
Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 1 

AG E N D A 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 
6:00 PM 

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702 

TELECONFERENCE LOCATION - 1404 LE ROY AVE, BERKELEY 94708 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – TERRY TAPLIN  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – VACANT 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – MARK HUMBERT 

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and virtual participation. If you 
are feeling sick, please do not attend the meeting in person. 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet 
accessible video stream at http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244. 

Remote participation by the public is available through Zoom.  To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, 
Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL: https://cityofberkeley-
info.zoomgov.com/j/1617862221 To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the 
screen.  To join by phone: Dial 1-669-254-5252 or 1-833-568-8864 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 161 786 
2221. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be 
recognized by the Chair. Please be mindful that the meeting will be recorded. 

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email 
council@berkeleyca.gov. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and 
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect. Any member of the public may 
attend this meeting.  Questions regarding public participation may be addressed to the City Clerk Department 
(510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda.

Pursuant to the City Council Rules of Procedure and State Law, the presiding officer may remove, or cause the 
removal of, an individual for disrupting the meeting. Prior to removing an individual, the presiding officer shall 
warn the individual that their behavior is disrupting the meeting and that their failure to cease their behavior may 
result in their removal. The presiding officer may then remove the individual if they do not promptly cease their 
disruptive behavior. “Disrupting” means engaging in behavior during a meeting of a legislative body that actually 
disrupts, disturbs, impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting and includes, but is not 
limited to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful regulations adopted by a legislative body, or engaging in 
behavior that constitutes use of force or a true threat of force.  

Page 1

http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1617862221
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1617862221
mailto:council@berkeleyca.gov


Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 2 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Land Acknowledgement Statement: The City of Berkeley recognizes that the community we 
live in was built on the territory of xučyun (Huchiun (Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the 
Chochenyo (Cho-chen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the ancestors and descendants of the 
sovereign Verona Band of Alameda County. This land was and continues to be of great importance to all 
of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band. As we begin our meeting tonight, we 
acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants of Berkeley, the documented 5,000-year history of a 
vibrant community at the West Berkeley Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in 
the East Bay.  We recognize that Berkeley’s residents have and continue to benefit from the use and 
occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation in 1878. As stewards of 
the laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only vital that we recognize the history of this land, but 
also recognize that the Ohlone people are present members of Berkeley and other East Bay communities 
today. The City of Berkeley will continue to build relationships with the Lisjan Tribe and to create 
meaningful actions that uphold the intention of this land acknowledgement. 

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional 
ceremonial matters. 

1. Presentation: Bay Area Housing Finance Authority 

City Manager Comments:  The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to 
the City Council in the form of an oral report.  The Council will not take action on such items but may 
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on 
the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two 
minutes each.  If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address 
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. Persons 
attending the meeting in-person and wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Council 
agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such comment, must submit a speaker card to the City 
Clerk in person at the meeting location and prior to commencement of that meeting. The remainder of the 
speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end of the agenda. 

Public Comment by Employee Unions (first regular meeting of the month): This 
period of public comment is reserved for officially designated representatives of City of Berkeley 
employee unions, with five minutes allocated per union if representatives of three or fewer unions wish to 
speak and up to three minutes per union if representatives of four or more unions wish to speak. 

 

Consent Calendar 
 The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the 

“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council 
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar for it to move to Action. 
Items that remain on the “Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items 
are not discussed or acted upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”. 

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At 
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any 
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will 
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons 
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time 
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar. 

Page 2



Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 3 

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information 
Calendar.  Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent 
Calendar and Information Items.  A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment 
on Consent Calendar and Information items. 

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees 
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such, 
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official 
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops. 

Consent Calendar 

1. Amending the Miscellaneous CalPERS Contract to (a) Eliminate PEPRA Cost
Sharing for Unrepresented Employees (b) Add Paramedic and Limited Term
EMT to Safety Category
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,895-N.S. amending
the contract between the Board of Administration, California Public Employees’
Retirement System, and the City Council for the City of Berkeley (a) pursuant to
California Government Code Section 20516 to eliminate the cost share contributions
made on behalf of the City by PEPRA members of the Unrepresented Employees
group, and (b) pursuant to California Government Code Section 20434 to add the
Paramedic and Limited Term Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) classifications
under the Safety category.
First Reading Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Humbert, Arreguin;
Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Bartlett, Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Aram Kouyoumdjian, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

2. At-Will Designations: Employee Relations Manager and Assistant to the City
Attorney
From: City Manager
Recommendation:  Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,896-N.S. amending
Berkeley Municipal Code Section 4.04.120(A) to designate the unrepresented
classifications of Employee Relations Manager and Assistant to the City Attorney as
at-will.
First Reading Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Humbert,
Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Aram Kouyoumdjian, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

Page 3



Consent Calendar  

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 4 

3. Lease Agreement: We Wield The Hammer at 2440 Durant Avenue in the 
Telegraph-Channing Mall and Garage
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,897-N.S. authorizing 
the City Manager to execute a lease agreement with We Wield The Hammer
(WWTH), a 501c3 nonprofit organization to use and occupy 2440 Durant Avenue 
inside the Telegraph-Channing Mall and Garage for a five (5) year lease term with an 
option to extend for one additional five (5) year term. The initial lease term is 
anticipated to begin March 1, 2024.
First Reading Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Humbert, 
Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Wengraf.
Financial Implications: See report.
Contact: Andrew Murray, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

4. City of Berkeley’s 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the City of Berkeley’s 2024 State 
and Federal Legislative Platform.
Financial Implications: See report.
Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000

5. Amendments to the Regulations for Alternate Commissioners
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution removing the now dissolved Police Review 
Commission from the list of designated commissions on which Alternate 
Commissioners may serve; expanding the list of designated commissions by adding 
the following five commissions: Community Health Commission, Environment and 
Climate Commission, Parks, Recreation, and Waterfront Commission, Transportation 
and Infrastructure Commission, and Zero Waste Commission; adding a new 
requirement for temporary appointments made to any quasi-judicial commissions to 
two business days prior to the meeting; and rescinding Resolution No. 67,205-N.S. 
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

6. Modifying the 2024 City Council Meeting Schedule
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution modifying the City Council regular meeting 
schedule for 2024, revising the start time for regular meetings, and rescheduling the 
April 16, 2024 regular meeting to April 2, 2024.
 Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Page 4



Consent Calendar   

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 5 

7. Grant Application: National Endowment for the Arts Grant for up to $150,000 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to submit a grant application to the National Endowment for the Arts (NEA) 
to receive up to $150,000 for a Civic Arts grant program totaling $300,000 to be 
regranted to nonprofit organizations for arts and cultural programming in the City of 
Berkeley in Fiscal Year 2026; to accept the grant if awarded; and to execute any 
resulting grant agreements and any amendments.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530 

 
8. Contract: Masako Miki Public Artwork Commission for Aquatic Park Pathway 

Wall 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
contract and any necessary amendments with artist Masako Miki for an amount not 
to exceed $69,000 for a public art commission of a ceramic tile mural on the 42’-long 
curved wall located along the San Francisco Bay Trail west of the intersection of 
Addison Street and Bolivar Drive in Aquatic Park.  
Financial Implications: Cultural Trust Fund - $69,000 
Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530 

 
9. Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible 

Issuance After Council Approval on February 13, 2024 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached 
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the 
requesting department or division.  All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold 
will be returned to Council for final approval.  
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $90,000 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 
10. Contract: Traditions Behavioral Health for Psychiatry Services 

From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute a contract with vendor Traditions Behavioral Health to provide 
psychiatry services through June 30, 2027 in an amount not to exceed $1,379,400.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 
11. Contract: CompuCom Systems, Inc. for Professional Services 

From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
contract with CompuCom Systems, Inc. for professional services for an amount not 
to exceed $300,000 through December 31, 2024.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kevin Fong, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500 

Page 5



Consent Calendar  

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 6 

12. Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women 
From: Commission on the Status of Women 
Recommendation: That Council refer to the Council Public Safety Policy Committee 
to develop plans to implement public safety crime prevention programs to address 
the current rising crime against women, particularly older women. These plans 
should include a budget referral to the Council Budget and Finance Committee for 
consideration in the June budget process. 
These plans should include:  
1. Developing a plan of safety escorts modeled on the Respect-BART Escorts 
Program passed by Council in 2003 to address the rash of muggings on Berkeley 
BART paths (North Berkeley and Ashby). As in that plan, where $40,500 was 
approved by Council, the Council Public Safety Policy Committee should identify the 
current amount of monies needed for funding for this newly developed 2024 plan and 
Council refer to the June budget process. These safety escorts should be available 
throughout the entire community of Berkeley upon request. The Council Public 
Safety Committee should also identify if a RFP need be issued for this purpose; 
2. Develop a plan to engage Berkeley community ambassadors working under the 
Downtown Berkeley Association, Telegraph Business Improvement District and any 
similar ambassador programs to provide safety escort services upon request through 
the business districts they serve and nearby residences that can be reached by foot; 
3. Explore if the City ride-share funded program, Go-Go Grandparent, should be 
expanded and in what form to provide ride shares for women concerned about their 
safety. Consider cost share, if necessary, for some women and working with the ride- 
share companies to ensure that they watch for the woman to safely reach her door 
before leaving; Consider the feasibility of lifting age or disability requirements. 
Identify a budgetary recommendation to be directed to the Council Budget and 
Finance Committee. 
4. Develop a City-wide community forum targeted towards women with a special 
emphasis on safety and crime prevention for older, vulnerable women. This meeting 
should be led by the Berkeley Police Department with participation by other safety-
related community resources and moderated by an official proposed by the Council 
Public Safety Committee. The Committee shall recommend that the forum be hybrid, 
both Zoom and in person. The Committee shall also discuss how City-wide 
promotion of this public safety crime prevention forum shall be conducted. 
5. Consult with the Berkeley Police Department to provide data and other information 
identifying geographic locations which are high priority for safety escorts. Consult 
with Berkeley Police Department to secure other information as to where women are 
most at safety risk and what hours safety escorts, and other recommendations as 
stated above, be best utilized. The Berkeley Police Department shall provide this 
information at a Council Public Safety Committee meeting.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7100 

  

Page 6



 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 7 

Council Consent Items 
 

13. RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service Center (Continued from January 
16, 2024) 
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Kesarwani (Author), 
Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) 
for the development of the city-owned West Berkeley Service Center, (1900 Sixth 
Street), to permit site acquisition and construction of a 100-percent affordable 
housing project with the following key features: -Space on the ground floor of the 
building for administrative offices, community space and supportive services as 
currently provided by the City; -Maximizing the number of units under the existing 
zoning Mixed Use-Residential (MU-R) in conjunction with state law AB 1763 (2019); -
A mix of unit sizes, including studios, one-bedroom, and two-bedroom units; -Require 
RFP applicants to include a plan for services provision and integration for the 
population(s) they propose to serve; -A preference for serving seniors and adults 
with mental health conditions while maintaining flexibility to serve other populations 
based on availability of funding.  
The City Manager should also consider the feasibility of the following elements in the 
program design: -Universally designed housing for older adults with a portion of the 
units for assisted living and memory care; -A board and care facility with a minimum 
of 20 beds including space for staff and services; -Explore available federal, state, 
regional, local and private funding sources to finance the construction of a housing 
project, including with the potential target populations. 
The issuance of an RFP should be timed to happen soon after funding for the 
development has been identified.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100 

 
14. Establishing a Black Arts and Culture District in the Adeline Corridor 

From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor), 
Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution designating the Adeline Corridor as the Black 
Arts and Culture District. Include members of Healthy Black Families and Equitable 
Black Berkeley in the Planning Committee to emphasize community involvement and 
focus on arts, culture, and well-being for South Berkeley residents. Establish a Black 
Arts and Culture Center.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130 

  

Page 7



 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 8 

Action Calendar 
 

 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action. For items moved to the Action 
Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on the item during the 
Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again during one of the Action Calendar public 
comment periods on the item. Public comment will occur for each Action item (excluding public hearings, 
appeals, and/or quasi-judicial matters) in one of two comment periods, either 1) before the Action Calendar 
is discussed; or 2) when the item is taken up by the Council. 

A member of the public may only speak at one of the two public comment periods for any single Action 
item. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium, or use the "raise 
hand" function in Zoom, to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten 
(10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the 
Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are 
permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four 
minutes. The Presiding Officer may, with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, 
allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 
 

Action Calendar – Scheduled Public Comment Period 
 During this public comment period, the Presiding Officer will open and close a comment period for each 

Action item on this agenda (excluding any public hearings, appeals, and/or quasi-judicial matters). The 
public may speak on each item. Those who speak on an item during this comment period may not speak a 
second time when the item is taken up by Council. 

  
Action Calendar – Public Hearings 
 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. For certain hearings, this is 

followed by five-minute presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will 
request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium, or use the "raise hand" function in Zoom, to be 
recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 
Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more 
than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an 
issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

When applicable, each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning 
the subject of the hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the 
commencement of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City 
Clerk. 
 

Page 8



Action Calendar – Public Hearings 
 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 9 

15. Appeal of Landmarks Preservation Commission Decision – Approval of 
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP22022-0005 for 1960 San Antonio 
Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue- Spring Estate 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution affirming the Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) decision to 
approve a Structural Alteration Permit (SAP) to restore the terrace, remove the non-
historic building addition, and repair railings and walkways of the Spring mansion; 
demolish the detached, non-historic garage and construct a new ten-car garage; 
demolish and replace the non-historic driveway, retaining walls and stairs on the east 
side of the property; construct a new, detached pool house; excavate and install a 
new swimming pool; and complete landscape improvements at a City Landmark 
residential property in the Hillside neighborhood, contingent upon rehabilitation of the 
historic gymnasium building, and dismiss the appeal.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 
Action Calendar – New Business 

 
16. Dissolution of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission and the 

Peace and Justice Commission; and, establishment of the Berkeley 
Community Action Agency Commission 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance to: 1. Repeal Chapter 3.68, 
Peace and Justice Commission; and, 2. Repeal Chapter 3.78, Human Welfare and 
Community Action Commission; and, 3. Establish the Berkeley Community Action 
Agency Commission with Chapter 3.70  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 
Information Reports 

 
17. Small Sites Program Update 

From: City Manager 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 
18. Bay Area Housing Finance Authority and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing 

Bond 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 
Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda 

Adjournment 

  

Page 9



 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 10 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

Archived indexed video streams are available at: 
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas. 

Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on 
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at 
https://berkeleyca.gov/.

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at: 
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas 

and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 

City Clerk Department - 2180 Milvia Street, First Floor 
Tel:  510-981-6900, TDD:  510-981-6903, Fax:  510-981-6901 

Email:  clerk@berkeleyca.gov 
 

Libraries: Main – 2090 Kittredge Street, 
Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue, West Branch – 1125 University, 

North Branch – 1170 The Alameda, Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch – 1901 Russell 
 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 
Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents, 
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials.  Please help the City respect these needs. 
 

 
 

Page 10

https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
https://berkeleyca.gov/
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas


 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 11 

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.  In addition, assisted 
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to 
be returned before the end of the meeting. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

I hereby certify that the agenda for this meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther 
King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on February 1, 2024. 

 

 

Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 

Communications 
Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and 
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are 
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing at the City Clerk Department 
and through Records Online. 

Communications – February 13, 2024 

Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and 
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to 
Council are public record. 

Item #16: Dissolution of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission 
and the Peace and Justice Commission; and, establishment of the Berkeley 
1. Human Welfare Community Action Commission (HWCAC) 
2. Peace and Justice Commission (2) 
3. Janice Schroeder 
 
Center Street Greenway & Strawberry Creek 
4. Kirstin Miller on behalf of Ecocity Builders 
 
Panoramic Hill Emergency Access/Egress 
5. Michael Kelly, on behalf of the Panoramic Hill Association 
 
Southside Rezoning 
6. Corey Smith 
 
Chess Club 
7. Carol Denney 
 
AC Transit 
8. Sandhya Hermon 
9. Morry Hermon 
10. Kabir Hermon 
11. Arjun Hermon 

Page 11

https://records.cityofberkeley.info/


 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 12 

12. Anne-Lise Francois 
 
United Artist Theater 
13. Laura Fujii 
14. Robert Wilkinson 
15. Melanie Lawrence 
16. Lori Pottinger 
17. Oakland Heritage Alliance 
 
Israel Military Aid 
18. Stephen Slauson 
 
Homelessness 
19. Tom Wolfman 
20. Karima Cammell 
 
Tree Removal 
21. Carol Denney 
 
Scooter Safety 
22. Virginia Browning 
23. Sean 
24. Cindi Goldberg 

 
EBMUD Repaving 
25. Greg Couch 
26. East Bay Municipal Utility District 
 
People’s Park 
27. Sophia Faaland 
28. Samuel Baker 
29. 10 similarly-worded form letters 
 
Natural Gas Alternatives 
30. G. Richard Raab 
 
Ohlone Bikeway 
31. Carol Hirth 
 
Mayor Arreguin 
32. Elana Auerbach 
33. Kira Findling 
 
Councilmember Robinson 
34. Barbara Gilbert 
 

Page 12



 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 13 

Waterfront Specific Plan 
35. Cal Sailing Club 
 
Berkeley Mayoral Candidates 
36. Downtown Berkeley Association 
 
Fulton-Woolsey Bike Boulevard 
37. Walk Bike Berkeley 
38. David Hoffman (2) 
39. Valerie Young 
 
No Subject 
40. Michele Shipp 
 
Student Project 
41. Akshat Pant 
Street Paving 
42. Kathleen Davis 
 
Downtown Affordable Housing 
43. Berkeley Chamber of Commerce 
 
URL’s Only 
44. Vivian Warkentin (2) 

 
Hamas/Israel 
45. Jennifer Fechner 
46. Kim Friedman 
47. Aaron Katler 
48. Eleanor Wang 
49. Hillary Kilimnik 
50. Anna Henry 
51. Moni Law (3) 
52. Daniel Frydman 
53. Aliza Craimer Elias 
54. Rachel 
55. Susanne DeWitt 
56. Summer Brenner 
57. Hillary Kllimnik 
58. Anna Henry 
59. Rosie Grady 
60. Daniel Zilberman 
61. Diana Bohn 
62. Candice Schott 
63. Jon Jackson 
64. Monika Mann 

Page 13



 

Tuesday, February 13, 2024 AGENDA Page 14 

65. Jacob Pincus 
66. Dorothea Dorenz (3) 
67. Imtiaz Ghori 
68. Aaron Katler 
69. 14 similarly-worded form letters 

Supplemental Communications and Reports 
Items received by the deadlines for submission will be compiled and distributed as follows.  If no items 
are received by the deadline, no supplemental packet will be compiled for said deadline. 
 
• Supplemental Communications and Reports 1 

Available by 5:00 p.m. five days prior to the meeting. 
 

• Supplemental Communications and Reports 2 
Available by 5:00 p.m. the day before the meeting. 
 

• Supplemental Communications and Reports 3 
Available by 5:00 p.m. two days following the meeting. 

 

Page 14



Ordinance No. 7,895-N.S. Page 1 of 2

Ayes: Hahn, Harrison, Humbert, Kesarwani, Taplin, and Arreguin.

Noes: None.

Absent: Bartlett and Wengraf.

Page 1 of 11

ORDINANCE NO. 7,895 N.S.

AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEY AND THE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION OF 
THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows: 

Section 1.

That an amendment to the contract between the City Council of the City of Berkeley and 
the Board of Administration, California Public Employees’ Retirement System, is hereby 
authorized, a copy of said amendment being attached hereto, marked Exhibit A, and by 
such reference made a part hereof as though herein set out in full. 

Section 2.

The Mayor of the City of Berkeley City Council is hereby authorized, empowered, and 
directed to execute said amendment for, and on behalf of, said Agency. 
Section 3.

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after the date of its adoption. Copies of 
this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the display case located 
near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 
15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each branch of the Berkeley 
Public Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation.

At a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Berkeley held on January 16,
2024, this Ordinance was passed to print and ordered published by posting by the
following vote:

Page 15

NSalwan
Typewritten Text
01



Ordinance No. 7,895-N.S. Page 2 of 2

Page 2 of 11

Page 16



Page 3 of 11

Page 17



Page 4 of 11

Page 18



Page 5 of 11

Page 19



Page 6 of 11

Page 20



Page 7 of 11

Page 21



Page 8 of 11

Page 22



Page 9 of 11

Page 23



Page 10 of 11

Page 24



Page 11 of 11

Page 25



Page 26



Ordinance No. 7,896-N.S. Page 1 of 2

ORDINANCE NO. 7,896-N.S.

AMENDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 4.04 TO UPDATE SECTION 
4.04.120 EXEMPTIONS FROM CAREER SERVICE (AT-WILL EMPLOYEES)

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1.  That Section 4.04.120 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is amended to read as 
follows: 

4.04.120 Exemption from career service (At-will employees).

The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all positions in the service of the City except:

A. The City Manager, Assistant City Manager, Deputy City Manager, Assistant to the City 
Manager, Assistant to the City Attorney, Police Review Commission Officer, Police 
Review Commission Investigator, Budget Manager, Assistant to the Mayor, Capital 
Improvement Programs Manager, Economic Development Manager, Legislative 
Assistant, and Employee Relations Manager;

B. Assistant, Associate and Senior Management Analyst when appointed to the City 
Manager’s Department or to the budget unit of the Management and Administrative 
Services Agency; and Secretary to the Mayor, Administrative Secretary and Secretary 
when appointed to the Mayor’s office;

C. All department heads, health officer, and supervising psychiatrist;

D. Persons employed seasonally in the summer camps;

E. Persons employed as reserve or emergency employees during the period of national 
emergency as provided in the ordinance creating such employment;

F. All persons who are paid at an hourly rate with the exception of library aides. Persons 
appointed as hourly library aides shall be part of the career service with the exception of 
those hired to fill temporary positions of six months or less. Persons appointed to these 
positions which are exempt from the career service shall serve at the pleasure of the 
appointing authority and may be demoted, suspended, or otherwise rejected at any time 
without cause and without right of appeal or hearing in any manner. Except that, any 
employee in the career service promoted or transferred to a position not included in the 
career service and made exempt from the career service shall be reinstated to their career 
appointment from which they were promoted or transferred if within six months of 
appointment to a position not included in the career service, action is taken to dismiss 
them, unless charges are filed and the employee is discharged in accordance with this 
chapter and the rules established hereunder for positions in the career service. All 
employments designated in this section shall be entitled to only those benefits provided 
for at-will employees in the personnel rules and regulations or in applicable memoranda 
agreements.

Page 1 of 2

Page 27

NSalwan
Typewritten Text
02



Ordinance No. 7,896-N.S. Page 2 of 2

Section 2. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be 
filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation.

At a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Berkeley held on January 30, 
2024, this Ordinance was passed to print and ordered published by posting by the 
following vote:

Ayes: Bartlett, Hahn, Harrison, Humbert, Kesarwani, Taplin, and Arreguin.

Noes: None.

Absent: Wengraf.

Page 2 of 2

Page 28



Ordinance No. 7,897-N.S. Page 1 of 1

ORDINANCE NO. 7,897-N.S.

LEASE AGREEMENT: WE WIELD THE HAMMER AT TELEGRAPH-CHANNING MALL 
AND GARAGE, 2440 DURANT AVENUE

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1.  FINDINGS:
The City owns the Telegraph-Channing Mall and Garage, and We Wield The Hammer, 
a 501c3 nonprofit organization, seeks to lease 2440 Durant Avenue at the premises for 
purpose of operating a retail business offering specialized classes and related materials 
to the public.

Section 2.  AUTHORIZATION FOR CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO LEASE AT 2440 
Durant Avenue, Berkeley CA:

The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a five-year lease agreement with the 
option for a five-year extension with We Wield The Hammer for real property located at 
2440 Durant Avenue, a ground floor retail space in the City of Berkeley Telegraph-
Channing Mall and Garage.  Such lease shall be on substantially the terms set forth in 
Exhibit A.

Section 3. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be 
filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation.

At a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Berkeley held on January 30, 
2024, this Ordinance was passed to print and ordered published by posting by the 
following vote:

Ayes: Bartlett, Hahn, Harrison, Humbert, Kesarwani, Taplin, and Arreguin.

Noes: None.

Absent: Wengraf.

Page 1 of 26

Page 29

NSalwan
Typewritten Text
03



  

Page 1 09/22

TELEGRAPH-CHANNING MALL LEASE

This lease is made on __________________________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
BERKELEY ("Landlord"), a Charter City organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
California and We Wield The Hammer ("Tenant"), a 501c3 nonprofit organization, who agree as 
follows:

This Lease is made with reference to the following facts and objectives:

A.  Landlord is the owner of the real property at 2440 Durant Avenue located inside 
Telegraph-Channing Mall & Garage, 2431 Channing Way, Berkeley, California 94704, 
("Premises") as further described in Exhibit A, attached to and made a part of this Lease.  

B. Tenant is willing to lease the Premises from Landlord pursuant to the provisions 
stated in this lease.

C. Tenant wishes to lease the Premises for the purpose of operating a metalsmithing 
training program and retail store.

D. Tenant has examined the Premises and is fully informed of the condition thereof 
and agrees to accept it in “as-is” condition.

1. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES

Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant leases from Landlord the Premises 
described above.

2. TERM

The term of this lease shall commence on the effective date of the Ordinance which authorizes 
this lease unless the Ordinance provides otherwise and shall be for a period of five (5) years plus 
the partial month, if any, immediately preceding the first full calendar month of this lease. 
Tenant shall have an option to extend the term of this Lease for an additional period of five (5) 
years, pursuant to Section 35 of this Lease. The effective date of the Ordinance shall be no less 
than thirty (30) days after the second reading of the Ordinance and its approval by City Council. 
The Term is further described in Exhibit B, attached to and made a part of this Lease.  

3. RENT

Tenant shall pay to Landlord as monthly rent, without deduction, setoff, prior 
notice, or demand, the sum of $1,085.00 per month in advance on the first day of each month, 
commencing on the date the Term commences, and continuing during the Term.  Monthly rent 
for the first month or portion of it shall be paid on the day the Term commences.  Monthly rent 

Page 2 of 26

Page 30



  

Page 2 09/22

for any partial month shall be prorated at the rate of 1/30th of the monthly rent per day.  All rent 
shall be paid to Landlord at the address to which notices to Landlord are given. 

The City agrees to abate the rent for the six months following the lease commencement date. 
Tenant will be responsible for all PG&E payments associated with 2440 Durant from the 
commencement date of the lease.

4. PERIODIC RENT INCREASES

The monthly rent shall be increased at the commencement of the second year of 
the Term and each year thereafter ("the adjustment date"). The adjusted monthly rent will be 
calculated by adding three percent (3%). Monthly rent increases based on the annual 3% 
adjustment have been calculated and are further described in Exhibit C, attached to and made a 
part of this Lease.  

5. SECURITY DEPOSIT

a. As security for the full and faithful performance by Tenant of each and every 
term, provision, covenant, and condition of this lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord cash in 
an amount equal to one month's payment of rent.  Such security shall be deposited on or before 
the effective date of the ordinance authorizing this lease. 

b. Tenant waives the provisions of California Civil Code section 1950.7, and all 
laws in force or that become in force after the date of execution of this Lease, that provide that 
Landlord may claim from a security deposit only those sums reasonably necessary to remedy 
defaults in the payment of rent, to repair damage caused by Tenant, or to clean the Premises.

c. If Tenant defaults in respect to any of the terms, provisions, covenants and 
conditions of this lease, including but not limited to the payment of rent, Landlord may use the 
security deposit or any portion of it to cure the default or compensate the Landlord for all 
damage sustained by Landlord resulting from Tenant's default.  If Landlord so uses any portion 
of the security deposit, Tenant will restore the security deposit to its original amount within ten 
(10) days after written demand from Landlord.

d. Landlord will not be required to keep the security deposit separate from its own 
funds and Tenant shall not be entitled to interest on the security deposit.  The security deposit 
will not be a limitation on Landlord's damages or other rights under this lease, or a payment of 
liquidated damages, or an advance payment of the rent.  If Tenant pays the rent and performs all 
of its other obligations under this lease, Landlord shall return the unused portion of the security 
deposit to Tenant within sixty (60) days after the end of the term; however, if Landlord has 
evidence that the security deposit has been assigned to an assignee of the Tenant, Landlord shall 
return the security deposit to the assignee.  Landlord may deliver the security deposit to a 
purchaser of the Premises and be discharged from further liability with respect to it. Tenant 

Page 3 of 26

Page 31



  

Page 3 09/22

waives the provisions of California Civil Code section 1950.7, and all laws in force or that 
become in force after the date of execution of this Lease, that provide that Landlord shall return 
the security deposit no later than thirty (30) days after the Landlord receives possession of the 
Premises.

6. LATE CHARGES

Tenant acknowledges that late payment by Tenant to Landlord of rent and other 
sums due hereunder will cause Landlord to incur costs not contemplated by this lease, the exact 
amount of which will be extremely difficult to ascertain.  Therefore, if any installment of rent or 
any other sum due from Tenant is not received by Landlord within ten (10) days after such 
amount is due, then, without any requirement for notice to Tenant, Tenant shall pay to Landlord 
a late charge equal to ten percent (10%) of such overdue amount.  The parties agree that this late 
charge represents a fair and reasonable estimate of the costs that Landlord will incur by reason of 
late payment by Tenant.  Acceptance of such late charge by Landlord shall in no event constitute 
a waiver of Tenant's default with respect to such overdue amount, nor prevent Landlord from 
exercising any of the other rights and remedies available to it.  

7. USE OF PREMISES; OPERATION

a. Tenant will use the Premises for the purpose of providing metalsmith training, 
jewelry making and metalsmith workshops, and selling related tools, supplies, branded gear, and 
other related items and agrees to continuously and uninterruptedly occupy and use the entire 
leased Premises for said purpose and to maintain adequate personnel for the efficient service of 
clients or customers.  Tenant shall not use nor permit the use of the whole or any part of the 
Premises for any other purpose without the Landlord's prior written consent.

b. Business may be conducted with the public on the leased Premises at any time 
on any day, provided that, 1) to do business after 10:00 p.m. on any day Tenant shall have 
obtained any permit required by federal, state or local law; and 2) Tenant hours of operation have 
been approved by the Landlord, including vacation, holiday, and seasonal schedule changes 
and/or closures (if any).

c. Tenant agrees to abide by all facility “Rules and Regulations” and are further 
described in Exhibit D, attached to and made a part of this Lease.  Amendments to Exhibit D 
may be made from time to time and do not require approval by City Council.

d.  In addition to Tenant’s agreement to abide by all other restrictions on Tenant’s 
use, Tenant hereby covenants that it shall not use the demised premises to engage in either the 
primary business of a flower shop, which shall include engaging in the primary business of 
selling flowers, plants, or related supplies nor the primary business of a deli/sandwich shop, 
which shall include engaging in the primary business of selling made to order sandwiches.  
Tenant agrees that any violation of these use restrictions shall constitute a default by Tenant 

Page 4 of 26

Page 32



  

Page 4 09/22

under this Lease, and that Landlord’s notice to Lessee of this specific use restriction shall not be 
deemed a waiver by Landlord of any other use restriction imposed on the Tenant for the use of 
the demised Premises.

8. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

a. Tenant recognizes and understands that this lease may create a possessory 
interest subject to property taxation and assessment and utility taxation, and that the Tenant will 
be responsible for the payment of any property taxes and assessments, and utility taxes levied on 
such interest.

b. Tenant shall pay all taxes on its personal property, fixtures and on its leasehold 
or possessory interest in the leased Premises and any other assessment that may be lawfully 
levied.

9. UTILITIES

Tenant agrees to pay any and all charges for electricity, gas, heat, cooling, 
telephone, internet services, sewer use, water, refuse collection and other utilities used in the 
Premises. Tenant is responsible for directly paying any and all charges associated with the 
dedicated Pacific Gas and Electric meter for the Premises. 

10. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

a. Tenant is responsible for ensuring that the Premise meet all applicable City of 
Berkeley codes prior to occupancy under this lease.

b.  Tenant shall keep and maintain in good order, condition and repair (except for 
reasonable wear and tear) all portions of the Premises including without limitation, all fixtures, 
interior walls, floors, ceilings, plumbing, glass, roof, heating, ventilating and sewage facilities 
serving the leased Premises, landscaping, and the sidewalk adjacent to the Premises.

c. Tenant shall make all required repairs upon demand by Landlord.  Failure to 
make such repairs within thirty (30) days of the Landlord's demand shall constitute a default by 
Tenant.  

11. IMPROVEMENTS

a.  Tenant shall not erect additions or structures nor make nor cause to be made 
any alterations, improvements, additions, or fixtures that affect the exterior or interior of the 
Premises, nor shall Tenant mark, paint, drill or in any way deface any floors, walls, ceilings, or 
partitions of the Premises without 1) first providing thirty (30) days' written notice to Landlord 
and 2) obtaining City of Berkeley Building Permits as required by the Berkeley Municipal Code 

Page 5 of 26

Page 33



  

Page 5 09/22

as it exists at the time of such improvements.  Failure to notify the Landlord or failure to obtain 
Building Permits or meet other regulatory requirements shall constitute a default by Tenant. 

b. Tenant shall require all contractors to provide a labor and materials bond for 
the full amount of the contract.  Tenant shall pay, when due, all sums of money that may be due 
or become due for any labor, services, materials, supplies or equipment furnished to or for 
Tenant, in, at, upon or about the leased Premises and which may be secured by any mechanic's, 
materialmen's or other lien against the Premises or Landlord's interest therein.

c. All alterations, improvements or additions that are now or in the future attached 
permanently to the Premises shall be the property of Landlord and remain with the Premises at 
the termination of this lease, except that Landlord can elect within thirty (30) days of the 
termination of the lease to require Tenant, at its cost, to remove any alterations, improvements or 
additions Tenant has made to the Premises.

12. INDEMNIFICATION

Tenant shall indemnify, defend and hold Landlord, its officers, agents, volunteers 
and employees harmless from: 1) all claims of liability for any damage to property or injury or 
death to any person occurring in, on, or about the Premises; 2) all claims of liability arising out 
of Tenant's failure to perform any provision of this lease, or any act or omission by Tenant, its 
agents, contractors, invitees or employees; and 3) all damages, liability, fines, penalties, and any 
other consequences arising from any noncompliance or violation of any laws, ordinances, codes, 
or regulations, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Except, however, that Landlord shall hold Tenant 
harmless from all claims of liability for damage resulting from the acts or omissions of Landlord 
or its authorized representatives.

13. INSURANCE

a. Tenant at its cost shall maintain public liability insurance with a single 
combined liability limit of $2,000,000 and property insurance against all risks of loss to any 
Tenant improvements or betterments, at full replacement cost with no coinsurance penalty 
provision insuring against all liability of Tenant and its authorized representatives arising out of 
and in connection with Tenant's use or occupancy of the Premises.  All such insurance shall 
insure performance by Tenant of the preceding indemnity provisions.  All insurance shall name 
the City of Berkeley, its officers, agents, volunteers and employees as additional insureds and 
shall provide primary coverage with respect to the City.  

b. If the insurance referred to above is written on a Claims Made Form, then 
following termination of this lease, coverage shall survive for a period of not less than five years.  
Coverage shall also provide for a retroactive date of placement coinciding with the effective date 
of this lease.

Page 6 of 26

Page 34



  

Page 6 09/22

c. Tenant at its cost shall maintain on all its personal property, Tenant's 
improvements, and alterations, in on, or about the Premises, a policy of standard fire and 
extended coverage insurance, with vandalism and malicious mischief endorsements.  This 
coverage shall be considered primary, and the proceeds from any such policy shall be used by 
Tenant for the replacement of personal property or the restoration of Tenant's improvements or 
alterations.

d. If Tenant employs any person, it shall carry workers' compensation and 
employer's liability insurance and shall provide a certificate of insurance to the Landlord.  The 
workers' compensation insurance shall:  provide that the insurance carrier shall not cancel, 
terminate, or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of said insurance except upon thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the Landlord; provide for a waiver of any right of subrogation against 
Landlord to the extent permitted by law; and be approved as to form and sufficiency by the 
Landlord's Risk Manager.

e. Tenant shall forward all insurance documents to: Real Property Administrator, 
Department of Public Works, Property Management 1947 Center Street, Fifth Floor, Suite 521 
Berkeley, California, 94704.

14. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND SAFETY

a. Tenant shall observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes 
and regulations of governmental agencies, including federal, state, municipal and local governing 
bodies having jurisdiction over any or all of the Tenant's activities, including all provisions of the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 and all amendments thereto, and all applicable 
federal, state, municipal, and local safety regulations.  All Tenant's activities must be in 
accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations.  

b. If a death, serious personal injury, or substantial property damage occurs in, on, 
or about the Premises, Tenant shall immediately notify the Landlord's Risk Management Office 
by telephone.  If any accident occurs on the Premises, Tenant shall promptly submit a written 
report to Landlord, in such form as Landlord may require.  This report shall include the 
following information:  1) name and address of the injured or deceased person(s), (2) name and 
address of Tenant's contractor, if any, (3) name and address of Tenant's liability insurance 
carrier, and (4) a detailed description of the accident.

c. Tenant shall report all existing hazardous materials handled at the site and any 
hazardous wastes generated at the site to the Toxics Management Division (TMD) on an annual 
basis and abide by all requirements of the TMD and other state and local environmental 
agencies. Upon release of hazardous materials or hazardous waste at the property or adjacent to 
the property, Tenant shall immediately notify the City of Berkeley Toxics Management Division. 

Page 7 of 26

Page 35



  

Page 7 09/22

If the release is significant, the Tenant must report it to the 911 and the Office of Emergency 
Services. 

15. NON-DISCRIMINATION AGAINST PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

a. If Tenant provides any aid, service or benefit to others on the City's behalf, 
Tenant shall, in the provision of such aid, service or benefit, observe and comply with all 
applicable provisions of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and any 
amendments thereto.  Tenant shall further observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, 
municipal and local laws, ordinances, codes and regulations prohibiting discrimination against 
individuals with disabilities or ensuring that individuals with disabilities are not excluded from 
participating in or receiving benefits, services or activities of the City.

b.  If Tenant is or becomes a "public accommodation" as defined in Title III of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Tenant shall observe and comply with all applicable 
provisions of the Act and any amendments thereto, and all applicable federal, state, municipal 
and local laws, ordinances, codes and regulations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of 
disability in the full and equal enjoyment of goods, services, facilities, privileges, advantages, or 
accommodations offered by the Tenant.  All Tenant's activities must be in accordance with these 
laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations, and Tenant shall be solely responsible for complying 
therewith.

16. REQUIRED ACCESSIBILITY DISCLOSURE

a.  Landlord hereby advises Tenant that the Premises and Improvements have not 
undergone an inspection by a certified access specialist, and except to the extent expressly set 
forth in this Ground Lease, Landlord shall have no liability or responsibility to make any repairs 
or modifications to the Premises or the Project in order to comply with accessibility standards.  
The following disclosure is hereby made pursuant to applicable California law:

b.  “A Certified Access Specialist (CASp) can inspect the subject Premises and 
determine whether the subject Premises comply with all of the applicable construction-related 
accessibility standards under state law. Although state law does not require a CASp inspection of 
the subject Premises, the commercial property owner or Landlord may not prohibit the lessee or 
Tenant from obtaining a CASp inspection of the subject Premises for the occupancy or potential 
occupancy of the lessee or Tenant, if requested by the lessee or Tenant. The parties shall 
mutually agree on the arrangements for the time and manner of the CASp inspection, the 
payment of the fee for the CASp inspection, and the cost of making any repairs necessary to 
correct violations of construction-related accessibility standards within the Premises.”  [Cal. Civ. 
Code Section 1938(e)].  Any CASp inspection shall be conducted in compliance with reasonable 
rules in effect at the Premises with regard to such inspections and shall be subject to Landlord’s 
prior written consent.

Page 8 of 26

Page 36



  

Page 8 09/22

17. CITY NON-DISCRIMINATION ORDINANCE

Tenant agrees to comply with the provisions of Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 
13.26 as amended from time to time.  In the performance of this lease, the Tenant agrees as 
follows:

a. The Tenant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, age (over 40), sex, 
pregnancy, marital status, disability, sexual orientation or AIDS.

b. The Tenant shall permit the Landlord access to records of employment 
advertisements, application forms, EEO-1 forms, affirmative action plans and any other 
documents which, in the opinion of the Landlord, are necessary to monitor compliance with this 
non-discrimination provision, and will, in addition, fill-out in a timely fashion, forms supplied by 
the Landlord to monitor these non-discrimination provisions.

18. NUCLEAR FREE BERKELEY

Tenant agrees to comply with Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 12.90, the 
Nuclear Free Berkeley Act, as amended from time to time.

19. OPPRESSIVE STATES

a.  In accordance with Resolution No. 59,853-N.S., Tenant certifies that it has no 
contractual relations with, and agrees during the term of this Lease to forego contractual relations 
to provide personal services to or to purchase, sell, lease or distribute commodities in the conduct 
of business with, the following entities:

(1) The governing regime in any Oppressive State.
(2) Any business or corporation organized under the authority of the 

governing regime of any Oppressive State.
(3) Any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, association, or any other 

commercial organization, and including parent-entities and wholly-owned 
subsidiaries (to the extent that their operations are related to the purpose of 
its contract with the City), for the express purpose of assisting in business 
operations or trading with any public or private entity located in any 
Oppressive State.

b. For purposes of this lease, the Tibet Autonomous Region and the provinces of 
Ado, Kham, and U-Tsang shall be deemed oppressive states. 

c. Tenant’s failure to comply with this section shall constitute a default of this 
lease and Landlord may terminate this lease pursuant to Section 29. In the event that the City 
terminates this lease due to a default under this provision, City may deem Tenant a non-

Page 9 of 26

Page 37



  

Page 9 09/22

responsible bidder for five (5) years from the date this lease is terminated.

20. BERKELEY LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE 

a. Tenant agrees to comply with Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.27, the 
Berkeley Living Wage Ordinance.  If Tenant employs six (6) or more part-time, full-time or 
stipend employees, and generates $350,000 or more in annual gross receipts, Tenant will be 
required to provide all eligible employees with City mandated minimum compensation during 
the term of this lease, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.27, and well as comply with the terms 
enumerated herein.  

b. Tenant shall be required to maintain all reasonable records and documents that 
would establish whether Tenant is subject to Berkeley's Living Wage Ordinance (LWO).  If 
Tenant is subject to the LWO, as defined therein, Tenant shall be further required to maintain 
monthly records of those employees located on the leased Premises.  These records shall include 
the total number of hours worked, the number of hours spent providing service on the leased 
property, the hourly rate paid, and the amount paid by Tenant for health benefits, if any, for each 
of its employees providing services under the lease.  The records described in this Section shall 
be made available upon the City's request.  The failure to produce these records upon demand 
shall be considered a default, subject to the provisions contained in sections 28 and 29 herein. 

    
c. If Tenant is subject to the LWO, Tenant shall include the requirements of the 

ordinance, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.27, in any and all subleases in which Tenant enters 
with regard to the subject Premises.  Sub-Tenants shall be required to comply with this ordinance 
with regard to any employees who spend 25% or more of their compensated time on the leased 
property.

d. If Tenant fails to comply with the requirements of this the LWO and this lease, 
the City shall have the rights and remedies described in this Section, in addition to any rights and 
remedies provided by law or equity.  

Tenant's failure to comply with this Section shall constitute default of the lease, upon 
which City may terminate this lease pursuant to Section 29. 

In addition, at City's sole discretion, Tenant may be responsible for liquidated damages in 
the amount of $50 per employee per day for each and every instance of an underpayment to an 
employee.  It is mutually understood and agreed that Tenant's failure to pay any of its eligible 
employees at least the applicable living wage rate will result in damages being sustained by the 
City; that the nature and amount of the damages will be extremely difficult and impractical to 
fix; that the liquidated damages set forth herein is the nearest and most exact measure of damage 
for such breach that can be fixed at this time; and that the liquidated damage amount is not 
intended as a penalty of forfeiture for Tenant's breach.  

Page 10 of 26

Page 38



  

Page 10 09/22

21. BERKELEY EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE

a. Tenant hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Berkeley Equal 
Benefits Ordinance, B.M.C. Chapter 13.29.  If Tenant is currently subject to the Berkeley Equal 
Benefits Ordinance, Tenant will be required to provide all eligible employees with City 
mandated equal benefits during the term of this lease, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.29, as 
well as comply with the terms enumerated herein.   

b. If Tenant is currently or becomes subject to the Berkeley Equal Benefits 
Ordinance, Tenant agrees to supply the City with any records the City deems necessary to 
determine compliance with this provision.  Failure to do so shall be a considered a default, 
subject to the provisions of Sections 28 and 29 of this lease.

c. If Tenant fails to comply with the requirements of this Section, City shall have the 
rights and remedies described in this Section, in addition to any rights and remedies provided by 
law or equity.

Tenant’s failure to comply with this Section shall constitute default of the lease, upon 
which City may terminate this lease pursuant to Section 29.

In addition, at City’s sole discretion, Tenant may be responsible for liquidated damages 
in the amount of $50.00 per employee per day for each and every instance of violation of this 
Section.  It is mutually understood and agreed that Tenant’s failure to provide its employees with 
equal benefits will result in damages being sustained by City; that the nature and amount of these 
damages will be extremely difficult and impractical to fix; that the liquidated damages set forth 
herein is the nearest and most exact measure of damages for such breach that can be fixed at this 
time; and that the liquidated damage amount is not intended as a penalty or forfeiture for 
Tenant’s breach.

22. SANCTUARY CITY CONTRACTING ORDINANCE
 
Tenant hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Sanctuary City Contracting Ordinance, 
B.M.C. Chapter 13.105.  In accordance with this Chapter, Tenant agrees not to provide the U.S. 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement Division of the United States Department of Homeland 
Security with any Data Broker or Extreme Vetting Services as defined herein:

a. “Data Broker” means either of the following: (1) The collection of information, including 
personal information about consumers, from a wide variety of sources for the purposes of 
reselling such information to their customers, which include both private-sector business 
and government agencies; (2) the aggregation of data that was collected for another 
purpose from that for which it is ultimately used.

Page 11 of 26

Page 39



  

Page 11 09/22

b. “Extreme Vetting” means data mining, threat modeling, predictive risk analysis, or other 
similar services.  Extreme Vetting does not include: (1) The City’s computer-network 
health and performance tools; (2) Cybersecurity capabilities, technologies and systems 
used by the City of Berkeley Department of Information Technology to predict, monitor 
for, prevent, and protect technology infrastructure and systems owned and operated by 
the City of Berkeley from potential cybersecurity events and cyber-forensic based 
investigations and prosecutions of illegal computer-based activity.

23. CONFLICT OF INTEREST PROHIBITED

a. In accordance with California Government Code Section 1090, Berkeley City 
Charter Section 36 and B.M.C. Chapter 3.64, neither Tenant nor any employee, officer, director, 
partner or member of Tenant, or immediate family member of any of the preceding, shall have 
served as an elected officer, an employee, or a committee or commission member of Landlord, 
who has directly or indirectly influenced the making of this Lease.

b. In accordance with California Government Code Section 1090 and the Political 
Reform Act, (Government Code Section 87100 et seq.,) no person who is a director, officer, 
partner, trustee, employee or consultant of Tenant, or immediate family member of any of the 
preceding, shall make or participate in a decision made by Landlord or any of its boards, 
commissions or committees, if it is reasonable foreseeable that the decision will have a material 
effect on any source of income, investment or interest in real property of that person or Tenant, 
except to the extent permitted by 2 California Code of Regulations, Section 18700(c)(2).

c. Interpretation of this paragraph shall be governed by the definitions and 
provisions use in the Political Reform Act, Government Code section 87100 et seq., its 
implementing regulations, manuals and codes, Government Code section 1090, Berkeley City 
Charter section 36 and B.M.C. Chapter 3.64, as amended from time to time.

24. PESTICIDES

All use of pesticides on the Premises shall be in compliance with the City of 
Berkeley's Pesticide Use Policy as it exists at the time of such use.

25. SIGNS

Tenant shall not install or letter any signs on the Premises without the prior 
written consent of Landlord.  All signs on the Premises shall conform to the provisions of 
Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 20.04.

26. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION

Page 12 of 26

Page 40



  

Page 12 09/22

If the Premises are totally or partially destroyed from any cause, rendering the 
Premises totally or partially inaccessible or unusable, Landlord may elect to terminate this lease 
or continue this lease in effect by giving notice to Tenant within thirty (30) days of the date of 
destruction.  If Landlord elects to continue this lease in full force and effect, then Landlord shall 
restore the Premises and the rent shall be abated, from the date of destruction until the date 
restoration is completed, in an amount proportionate to the extent to which the destruction 
interferes with Tenant's use of the Premises.  If Landlord fails to give notice of its decision to 
terminate or continue this lease within the period stated, Tenant may elect to terminate this lease.  
Tenant waives the provisions of Civil Code sections 1932(2) and 1933(4) with respect to any 
destruction of the Premises.   

27. EMINENT DOMAIN

If the whole or any portion of the Premises is taken by any paramount public 
authority under the power of eminent domain, then the rights and obligations of the parties shall 
be determined as follows:  If the Premises are totally taken by condemnation, this lease shall 
terminate on the date of taking.  If any portion of the Premises is taken by condemnation, Tenant 
shall have the right to either terminate this lease or to continue in possession of the remainder of 
the Premises under the terms of this lease.  Such right to terminate must be exercised by 
notifying Landlord within thirty (30) days after possession of the part taken by eminent domain.  
If Tenant does not terminate this lease within the thirty (30) day period, this lease shall remain in 
full force and effect except that the fixed rent shall be reduced in the same proportion that the 
square footage of the Premises taken bears to the square footage of the Premises immediately 
before the taking.  All damages awarded for such taking shall belong to and be the property of 
Landlord; provided, however, that Landlord shall not be entitled to any portion of the award 
made for loss of business and of business installations or improvements made by Tenant in 
accordance with this lease.

28. DEFAULT BY TENANT

a. The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default by Tenant:

1.  Failure to pay rent when due, if the failure continues for 10 days after notice 
has been given to Tenant.

2.  Abandonment and vacation of the Premises (failure to occupy and operate the 
Premises for 14 consecutive days shall be deemed an abandonment and vacation).

3.  Failure to perform any other provision of this lease if the failure to perform is 
not cured within 30 days after notice has been given to Tenant.  If the default cannot reasonably 
be cured within 30 days, Tenant shall not be in default of this lease if Tenant commences to cure 
the default within the 30-day period and diligently and in good faith continues to cure the 
default.

Page 13 of 26

Page 41



  

Page 13 09/22

b. Notices given under this paragraph shall specify the alleged default and the 
applicable lease provisions, and shall demand that Tenant perform the provisions of this lease or 
pay the rent that is in arrears, as the case may be, within the applicable period of time, or quit the 
Premises.  No such notice shall be deemed a forfeiture or a termination of this lease unless 
Landlord so elects in the notice.  The purpose of the notice requirements set forth in this section 
is to extend the notice requirements of the unlawful detainer statutes of California.

29. LANDLORD'S REMEDIES

Landlord shall have the following remedies if Tenant commits a default.  These 
remedies are not exclusive; they are cumulative in addition to any remedies now or later allowed 
by law.  

a. Tenant’s Right to Possession Not Terminated.  Landlord can continue this lease 
in full force and effect, and the lease will continue in effect as long as Landlord does not 
terminate Tenant's right to possession, and Landlord shall have the right to collect rent when due.  
During the period Tenant is in default, Landlord can enter the Premises and relet them, or any 
part of them, to third parties for Tenant's account.  Tenant shall be liable immediately to 
Landlord for all costs Landlord incurs in reletting the Premises.  Reletting can be for a period 
shorter or longer than the remaining term of this lease.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord the rent due 
under this lease on the dates the rent is due, less the rent Landlord receives from any reletting.  
No act by Landlord allowed by this paragraph shall terminate this lease unless Landlord notifies 
Tenant that Landlord elects to terminate this lease.  After Tenant's default and for as long as 
Landlord does not terminate Tenant's right to possession of the Premises, Tenant shall have the 
right to assign or sublet its interest in this lease if Tenant obtains Landlord's consent, but Tenant 
shall not be released from liability.  

If Landlord elects to relet the Premises as provided in this paragraph, rent that 
Landlord receives from reletting shall be applied to the payment of:  first, any indebtedness from 
Tenant to Landlord other than rent due from Tenant; second, all costs, including for 
maintenance, incurred by Landlord in reletting; third, rent due and unpaid under this lease.  After 
deducting the payments referred to in this paragraph, any sum remaining from the rent Landlord 
receives from reletting shall be held by Landlord and applied in payment of future rent as rent 
becomes due under this lease.  In no event shall Tenant be entitled to any excess rent received by 
Landlord.  If, on the date rent is due under this lease, the rent received from the reletting is less 
than the rent due on that date, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, in addition to the remaining rent 
due, all costs, including for maintenance, Landlord incurred in reletting that remain after 
applying the rent received from the reletting as provided in this paragraph.

b. Termination of Tenant's Right to Possession.  Landlord can terminate Tenant's 
right to possession of the Premises at any time.  No act by Landlord other than giving notice to 
Tenant shall terminate this lease.  Acts of maintenance, efforts to relet the Premises, or the 

Page 14 of 26

Page 42



  

Page 14 09/22

appointment of a receiver on Landlord's initiative to protect Landlord's interest under this lease 
shall not constitute a termination of Tenant's right to possession.  On termination, Landlord has 
the right to recover from Tenant:

i. The worth, at the time of award, of the unpaid rent that had been earned 
at the time of termination of this lease;

ii.  The worth, at the time of award, of the amount by which the unpaid 
rent that would have been earned after the date of termination of this lease until the time of 
award exceeds the amount of the loss of rent that Tenant proves could have been reasonably 
avoided;

iii.  The worth, at the time of award, of the amount by which the unpaid 
rent for the balance of the term after the time of award exceeds the amount of the loss of rent that 
Tenant proves could have been reasonably avoided; and

iv. Any other amount, and court costs, necessary to compensate Landlord 
for all detriment proximately caused by Tenant's default.

"The worth, at the time of award," as used in i and ii of this section, is to 
be computed by allowing interest at the maximum rate an individual is permitted by law to 
charge.  "The worth, at the time of award," as referred to in iii of this section, is to be computed 
by discounting the amount at the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco at 
the time of the award, plus 1%.

c. Appointment of Receiver.  If Tenant is in default of this lease Landlord shall 
have the right to have a receiver appointed to collect rent and conduct Tenant's business.  Neither 
the filing of a petition for the appointment of a receiver nor the appointment itself shall constitute 
an election by Landlord to terminate this lease.

d. Landlord’s Right to Cure.  Landlord, at any time after Tenant commits a 
default, can cure the default at Tenant's cost.  If Landlord at any time, by reason of Tenant's 
default, pays any sum or does any act that requires the payment of any sum, the sum paid by 
Landlord shall be due immediately from Tenant to Landlord at the time the sum is paid, and if 
paid at a later date shall bear interest at the maximum rate an individual is permitted by law to 
charge from the date the sum is paid by Landlord until Landlord is reimbursed by Tenant.  The 
sum, together with interest on it, shall be additional rent.

30. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Tenant shall not voluntarily assign or encumber its interest in this lease or in the 
Premises, or sublease all or any part of the Premises, or allow any other person or entity (except 
Tenant's authorized representative) to occupy or use all or any part of the Premises, without first 

Page 15 of 26

Page 43



  

Page 15 09/22

obtaining Landlord's consent.  Any assignments, encumbrance, or sublease without Landlord's 
consent shall be voidable and, at Landlord's election, shall constitute a default.  No consent to 
any assignment, encumbrance, or sublease shall constitute a further waiver of the provisions of 
this paragraph.  

31. ENTRY

Landlord and its authorized representatives shall have the right to enter the 
Premises at all reasonable times for any of the following purposes:  to determine whether the 
Premises are in good condition and whether Tenant is complying with its obligations under the 
lease; to do any acts that may be necessary to protect Landlord's interest in the Premises; or to 
perform Landlord's duties under this lease.  Landlord shall not be liable in any manner for any 
inconvenience, disturbance, loss of business, nuisance, or other damage arising out of Landlord's 
entry on the Premises as provided in this section, except damage resulting from the acts or 
omissions of Landlord or its authorized representatives.

32. NOTICES

A written notice is deemed served when a party sends the notice in an envelope 
addressed to the other party to this lease and deposits it with the U.S. Postal Service, registered 
mail, postage prepaid.  For purposes of this lease, notices shall be addressed as follows, as 
appropriate:

To the Landlord: Real Property 
Department of Public Works
1947 Center Street, Fifth Floor, Suite 521
Berkeley, CA 94704

Additionally, please email a PDF of the document to 
real_property@berkeleyca.gov 

To the Tenant: Prior to Lease Approval:
We Wield The Hammer
PO BOX 16088
Oakland, CA 94610

After Lease Approval:
We Wield The Hammer
2440 Durant Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94704

33. WAIVER

Page 16 of 26

Page 44

mailto:real_property@berkeleyca.gov


  

Page 16 09/22

No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or remedy of Landlord on any 
default by Tenant shall impair such a right or remedy or be construed as a waiver.  The receipt 
and acceptance by Landlord of delinquent rent shall not constitute a waiver of any other default; 
it shall constitute only a waiver of timely payment for the particular rent payment involved.  Any 
waiver by Landlord of any default must be in writing and shall not be a waiver of any other 
default concerning the same or any other provision of the lease.

No act or conduct of Landlord, including, without limitation, the acceptance of 
the keys to the Premises, shall constitute an acceptance of the surrender of the Premises by 
Tenant before the expiration of the term.  Only a notice from Landlord to Tenant shall constitute 
acceptance of the surrender of the Premises and accomplish a termination of the lease.  

Landlord's consent to or approval of any act by Tenant requiring Landlord's 
consent or approval shall not be deemed to waive or render unnecessary Landlord's consent to or 
approval of any subsequent act by Tenant.

34. EXCUSABLE DELAYS

If the performance of any act required of Landlord or Tenant is prevented or 
delayed by reason of strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, act of God, acts of the public enemy, fire, 
floods, epidemics, freight embargoes or other cause beyond the control of the party required to 
perform an act, the performance of such act shall be excused for the period of the delay and the 
period for the performance of such act shall be extended for thirty (30) days.

35. OPTION TO RENEW

a. Option Period.  So long as Tenant is not in default under this lease, either at the 
time of exercise or at the time the extended term commences, Tenant will have the option to 
extend the initial term of this lease for an additional period of five (5) years (the "option period") 
on the same terms, covenants, and conditions of this lease, except that the initial monthly rent 
and yearly rent increases during the option period will be determined as described below.  In 
order to exercise this option, Tenant must give written notice of its election to do so to Landlord 
at least 180 days, but not more than one year, prior to the expiration date of the initial lease term.  
Tenant shall have no other right to extend the term beyond the option period.

b. Option Period Monthly Rent.  For the purposes of this section, the "then-fair 
market rental value of the Premises" means what a Landlord under no compulsion to lease the 
Premises and a Tenant under no compulsion to lease the Premises would determine as rents 
(including initial monthly rent and rental increases) for the option period, as of its 
commencement, taking into consideration the uses permitted under this lease, the quality, size, 
design and location of the Premises, and the rent for comparable buildings located in the vicinity 
of the Premises.  Except, however, that the initial monthly rent and yearly rent increases for the 

Page 17 of 26

Page 45



  

Page 17 09/22

option period shall not be less than that provided during the initial lease term.

36. HOLDING OVER

If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises with Landlord's consent after the 
expiration of the term of this lease without having exercised any option to renew this lease, or 
after the termination of any such option period, such possession by Tenant shall be construed to 
be a tenancy from month-to-month, terminable on thirty (30) days' notice given at any time by 
either party.  All provisions of this lease, except those pertaining to term, shall apply to the 
month-to-month tenancy.

37. SURRENDER OF PREMISES, REMOVAL OF PERSONAL PROPERTY

At the termination of this lease, Tenant shall:  1) give up and surrender the 
Premises, in as good state and condition as reasonable use and wear and tear thereof will permit, 
damage by fire and the elements excepted; and 2) remove all property which is not a fixture of or 
permanent attachment to the Premises and which is owned and was installed by Tenant during 
the term of this lease.

38. TERMS BINDING ON SUCCESSORS

All the terms, covenants and conditions of this lease shall inure to the benefit of 
and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties to this lease.  The provisions of this 
section shall not be deemed as a waiver of any of the conditions against assignment set forth 
above.

39. TIME OF ESSENCE

Time shall be of the essence of each provision of this lease.

40. COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS

Each term and each provision of this lease performable by Tenant shall be 
construed to be both a covenant and condition.

41. GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern this lease.

42. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, AMENDMENTS

This lease and all exhibits attached and any documents expressly incorporated by 
reference contain the entire agreement between the parties regarding the lease of the Premises 

Page 18 of 26

Page 46



  

Page 18 09/22

described herein and shall supersede any and all prior agreements, oral or written, between the 
parties regarding the lease of these Premises.  This lease cannot be altered or otherwise modified 
except by a written amendment.

43. CONSENT OF PARTIES

Whenever consent or approval of either party is required, that party shall not 
unreasonably withhold such consent or approval.
 

44. BUSINESS LICENSE

Tenant certifies that it has obtained or applied for a City of Berkeley business 
license number as required by Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 9.04; or Tenant claims that it is 
exempt from the provisions of B.M.C. Ch. 9.04 and has written below the specific B.M.C. 
section under which it is exempt.

/// ///

Page 19 of 26

Page 47



  

Page 19 09/22

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this lease as of the date 
written on the first paragraph of this lease. 

LANDLORD
CITY OF BERKELEY

By:
City Manager

Registered on behalf 
of the City Auditor by:

Finance Department

THIS CONTRACT HAS BEEN 
APPROVED AS TO FORM BY 
THE CITY ATTORNEY FOR 
THE CITY OF BERKELEY
09/2022

Attest by:
City Clerk

TENANT

By:

Printed Name: Karen Smith

Title:
Executive Director, We Wield 
The Hammer

Berkeley Business 
License No.:

 

Page 20 of 26

Page 48



  

Page 20 09/22

Exhibit A

PREMISES

    

Physical (Legal) Address: 2431 Channing Way, Berkeley, CA 94704

Garage (and Commonly Used) Address: 2450 Durant Avenue, Berkeley, CA 94704

We Wield The Hammer
2440 Durant Avenue

Page 21 of 26

Page 49



  

Page 21 09/22

Exhibit B

AGREEMENT SPECIFYING TERM OF LEASE

Attached to and made part of the Lease dated the ______ day of ____________________, 20____, by and between 
the CITY OF BERKELEY, a municipal corporation, as Landlord, and WE WIELD THE HAMMER, A 501c3 
NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION as Tenant ("Tenant").

Landlord and Tenant do hereby confirm and acknowledge the following dates:

a. Lease Commencement Date is ________________________[DATE MUST BE AT LEAST 30 
DAYS AFTER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE]

b. Rent Commencement Date is __________________________[DATE]

c. Expiration Date of the initial term of the Lease is _______________DATE], subject to extension 
as provided in the Lease.

This Agreement shall be binding on the parties hereto, their successor and assigns and all subtenants of 
Tenant and any other party claiming under or through Tenant.  The Lease is in full force and effect as of the date 
hereof in accordance with its terms, and Tenant is in possession of the Premises.  Landlord has fulfilled all of its 
obligations under the Lease that were required to be fulfilled by Landlord on or prior to the Rent Commencement Date 
and Tenant has no claim or right of set-off against any Rent (as defined in the Lease) under the Lease.

This Agreement was entered into as of the ______ day of ____________________, 20____.

ATTEST/WITNESS: LANDLORD:
CITY OF BERKELEY, a municipal corporation

By: _____________________________________

Its: City Manager

By: ______________________________________________

Its: City Attorney 

By: ______________________________________________

Its: City Auditor 

ATTEST/WITNESS: TENANT:
WE WIELD THE HAMMER
a 501c3 NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION

By: _____________________________________
KAREN SMITH

Page 22 of 26

Page 50



  

Page 22 09/22

Exhibit C

PAYMENTS

 RENT PAYMENT SCHEDULE: We Weld the Hammer 2440 Durant@TCM
YEAR 1 2 3 4 5

MARCH 1 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

APRIL 2 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

MAY 3 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

JUNE 4 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

JULY 5 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

AUGUST 6 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

SEPTEMBER 7 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

OCTOBER 8 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

NOVEMBER 9 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

DECEMBER 10 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

JANUARY 11 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       

FEBRUARY 12 1,085.00$       1,117.55$       1,151.08$       1,185.61$       1,221.18$       
ANNUAL TOTAL: 13,020.00$     13,410.60$     13,812.92$     14,227.31$     14,654.12$     

6 MONTH RENT ABATEMENT: (6,510.00)$      
INITIAL TERM TOTAL: 62,614.95$     

PREMISES AREA (SQFT):

MONTHLY RATE PER SQFT:

INITIAL MONTHLY RENT:

ANNUAL INCREASE:

LEASE START DATE:

INITIAL TERM:

INITIAL TERM TERMINATION DATE:

NOTIFY LANDLORD FOR OPTION BY:

OPTION START DATE:

OPTION TERM:
OPTION TERMINATION DATE:

February 28, 2029

September 1, 2028

December 1, 2028

60 MONTHS
November 30, 2033

60 MONTHS

620

1.75$                                          

1,085.00$                                   

3.00%

March 1, 2024

Page 23 of 26

Page 51



  

Page 23 09/22

Exhibit D

RULES, RESTRICTIONS AND PROHIBITED USES

Tenant shall not use or permit the use of the Premises for any other business or purpose, except as 
set forth in this Lease and in strict accordance with the Rules and Regulations.  No part of the 
Premises shall be used in a way that endangers the health or safety of any user of the Premises.  
THESE PROHIBITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO APPLY 
TO LANDLORD, BUT ONLY TO TENANT UNDER THIS LEASE.  Landlord shall have the 
right, in Landlord's sole and absolute discretion, to waive all or any of the prohibitions set forth 
herein upon such matters, terms and conditions as Landlord, in its sole discretion, may determine.

RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR TELEGRAPH-CHANNING MALL
All Tenants of Telegraph-Channing Mall (“TCM”) shall comply with the following Rules and 
Regulations. Landlord shall not be responsible to Tenant for the failure of any other tenant or occupant of 
the building to comply with any of these Rules and Regulations:

1. Smoking is prohibited at TCM and Garage in accordance with Berkeley Municipal Code 
(“BMC”) 12.70.030, Locations Where Smoking Is Prohibited. Tenant, Tenant’s 
employees/volunteers, invitees, clients, guests, and other occupants shall abide by this Code. “No 
Smoking” signs are posted by Landlord. Tenant shall abide by and support the enforcement of 
this regulation prohibiting smoking in all public places, including but not limited to restaurants, 
public restrooms, business establishments, and parking garages. 
 

2. No pets are allowed on the premises, Building, or Property unless such animal is designated as a 
“service animal” and licensed with the City of Berkeley.  Every dog over the age of six months 
must be licensed and must wear the license (BMC 10.04.030).  Special tags for service animals 
may be obtained from Alameda County Animal Control at (925) 803-7046.

3. Tenant restrooms are exclusively for the use of Tenants, their employees/volunteers, and 
customers. Public restrooms, located directly across from the elevators, are available for use by all 
other visitors, parking garage customers, and the general public. 

4. No sign, placard, picture, name, advertisement, or notice visible from the exterior of the premises 
will be inscribed, painted, affixed, or otherwise displayed by Tenant on any part of the mall or 
parking structure without the prior written consent of Landlord. The Landlord will adopt and 
furnish to the tenant general guidelines relating to signs inside TCM. The tenant agrees to comply 
with those guidelines. All approved signs or lettering on doors will be printed, painted, affixed, or 
inscribed at the expense of the tenant by a person approved in writing by the Landlord. Material 
visible outside TCM will not be permitted.

5. The Directory of TCM (if any) will be provided for the display of the name and location of 
Tenants, and Landlord reserves the right to exclude any other names from the directory. Any 
additional name that the tenant desires to place upon the directory must be first approved by 

Page 24 of 26

Page 52



  

Page 24 09/22

Landlord, and, if so approved, a charge will be made for the additional name or name change.

6. Tenant shall display the days and hours of operation for their business. The days and hours of 
operation posted must match those shown in their Lease and/or approved by the Landlord. Tenant 
shall notify the Landlord in writing stating the reason (vacation, holiday or other observances, 
etc.,) and the start and end date of any and all closures or deviations from the posted hours of 
operation exceeding two (2) calendar days.

7. Tenant shall assume all responsibility for protecting the premises from theft, robbery, pilferage, 
vandalism, damage, or waste, including keeping doors locked and keep other means of entry to 
the premises closed, and turning off all water faucets, water apparatus, and utilities when needed 
or necessary. Tenant shall be responsible for any waste in or damage to the premises or any 
injuries sustained by other Tenants or occupants of TCM or Landlord for Tenant's negligent or 
willful acts or omissions in protecting the premises as set forth herein.

8. Landlord may waive any one or more of these Rules and Regulations for the benefit of any 
particular Tenant or Tenants, but no waiver by Landlord shall be construed as a waiver of those 
Rules and Regulations in favor of any other Tenant or Tenants, nor prevent Landlord from 
enforcing any of those Rules and Regulations against any or all of the Tenants of TCM. Any 
waiver of these Rules and Regulations by the Landlord shall be done in writing.

9. Landlord reserves the right at any time to change or rescind any one or more of these Rules and 
Regulations or to make any additional reasonable Rules and Regulations that, in Landlord's 
judgment, may be necessary for:

A. The management, safety, care, and cleanliness of the Premises, Building, and Real Property;
B. The preservation of good order; and
C. The convenience of other occupants and Tenants in the Premises, Building, and Real 

Property.

10. No store merchandise and/or displays shall be placed in TCM’s main corridor/paseo, arcade, or 
light well, nor block the path of travel within any part of TCM at any time. No events, classes, 
conferences, demonstrations, celebrations, or other gatherings shall occur in TCM’s corridor, 
porticos, trash room, or light well.

Page 25 of 26

Page 53



  

Page 25 09/22

The following are optional coversheets for Exhibits that may be included in a lease or license 
agreement:

Exhibit E 

TENANT IMPROVEMENTS

[THIS CAN BE A LIST OF IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN THE LEASE THAT MUST 
BE COMPLETED BY THE TENANT AT THE TENANT’S EXPENSE.]

Page 26 of 26

Page 54



  

Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov  Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager

Subject: City of Berkeley’s 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution approving the City of Berkeley’s 2024 State and Federal Legislative 
Platform.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Formal adoption and use of a legislative platform, by clearly indicating the City of 
Berkeley’s priorities, may increase the City’s effectiveness when competing for federal 
or state funding opportunities.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The proposed 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform outlines the City’s legislative 
priority areas related to homelessness, housing, economic development, infrastructure, 
public safety, sustainability and the environment, and health. In addition, the platform 
supports the City’s efforts to seek federal and state funding assistance in the areas of 
affordable housing and homelessness, infrastructure improvements and climate 
resiliency. These legislative priorities support the City’s long-term Strategic Plan goals, 
including providing state-of-the-art, well-maintained infrastructure; creating affordable 
housing and housing support services; creating a resilient and safe city, and continuing 
to be a global leader in addressing climate change, advancing environmental justice, 
and protecting the environment.

BACKGROUND
The City Manager and City Department Directors provided input regarding the priority 
areas and projects to include within the 2024 legislative platform. In addition, the Budget 
and Finance Policy Committee reviewed the draft platform during its meeting on January 
25, 2024, proposed amendments to the draft platform related to funding for affordable 
housing programs and recommended to forward the item as revised to the City Council 
with a positive recommendation (Vote: Ayes – Mayor Arreguin and Councilmember 
Kesarwani; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Councilmember Harrison).

Page 1 of 12

Page 55

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
04



  
City of Berkeley’s 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform CONSENT CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

Page 2

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
While adopting the legislative platform will not directly impact climate or improve 
environmental sustainability, these items will be supported by the platform through 
related policy and funding priorities.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
A formally adopted legislative platform clearly indicates the City’s policy and funding 
priorities, allowing for more effective, targeted advocacy for the City’s needs at the state 
and federal level.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The City could choose not to formally adopt a legislative platform. This could result in 
missing funding opportunities and a less clear position, voice or impact during state and 
federal level policy discussions and decisions.

CONTACT PERSON
Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, City Manager’s Office, (510) 981-7000

Attachments: 
1: Resolution

Exhibit A: City of Berkeley’s 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform

Page 2 of 12

Page 56



  

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CITY OF BERKELEY 2024 STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has an interest in indicating to state and federal 
government the City’s own legislative platform; and 

WHEREAS, said platform can improve the City’s ability to influence state and federal 
policy; and 

WHEREAS, said platform can improve the City’s effectiveness when competing for state 
and federal funding opportunities; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform clearly 
outlines the City’s policy and funding priorities.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council approves Exhibit A, the City of Berkeley’s 2024 State and Federal Legislative 
Platform.

Exhibits 
A: City of Berkeley 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform

Page 3 of 12

Page 57



   
 

 

 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
To:  The Honorable Jesse Arreguin and Members of the Berkeley City Council 
CC:  Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 

From:  Christopher Townsend, President, Townsend Public Affairs, Inc. 
  Niccolo De Luca, Vice President 

Joseph Mello, Federal Senior Associate 
Andres Ramirez, Senior Associate   

  Carly Shelby, Legislative Associate 
  Sammi Maciel, Federal Associate 
   
Date:  January 25, 2024 
Subject: Amended Draft 2024 State and Federal Legislative Agenda

 
Townsend Public Affairs, Inc. (TPA) has prepared a draft 2024 Legislative Platform for the City of 
Berkeley. The City’s legislative platform for 2024 will reflect the priorities of the Mayor, the City Council, 
and the people of Berkeley. The platform will include advocating for legislation, regulations, and funding 
that is consistent with the City’s adopted goals.  
 
Once adopted, this blueprint will be shared with key stakeholders in the State Legislature and 
Governor’s Administration as well as Congress and the Biden Administration. However, it will be 
necessary to remain nimble and responsive as we move through the legislative year. Our legislative 
agenda will be fluid as some issues will be addressed with introduced legislation.   
 
Proposed Legislative Priorities for 2024 
It is expected that the State Legislature in 2024 will maintain its focus on its recent priorities including;  
Climate Resiliency, Governance and Transparency, Homelessness and Behavioral Health, Housing 
and Greater Access, Public Safety, and Transportation and Infrastructure. 
 
The State Legislature is currently in interim recess and will reconvene on January 3rd to resume 
legislative activities. Legislators may begin introducing new pieces of legislation, many of which may be 
like bills that did not advance in 2023, the second year of the two-year legislative cycle.  
 
In Washington, DC a politically fraught Congress and new Speaker of the House will aim to legislate on 
several key priorities while balancing elections for the Presidency, House, and Senate. Major legislative 
action will center on the Fiscal Year (FY) 25 National Defense Authorization Act, 2024 Water Resources 
Development Act, the Farm Bill, and Energy Permitting Reform. Border security, foreign conflicts, 
artificial intelligence, and continued implementation of the Inflation Reduction Act and Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law will also garner much attention. 
 
Before Congress can focus on policy, both chambers must reconcile FY24 appropriations differences 
to fund the government and avoid a shutdown. Although this will likely drag into next year, Congress 
will begin accepting earmark requests for FY25 appropriations process as soon as February 2024.  
 
 
 

Page 4 of 12

Page 58



   

Proposed 2024 Legislative Platform                               Page 2 of 9  

Federal and State Legislative Monitoring and Potential Action 
The following legislative priorities are being recommended for monitoring, analysis, and potential action. 
The City Council may choose to take a position on a piece of legislation, continue to monitor without a 
position, or determine if any further response is required.   
 
TPA maintains a constantly updated matrix of state legislation and in years past have presented 
recommendations after session has started then providing rolling updates. TPA will monitor legislative 
activity in the following areas. 

 
Homelessness 

Policy Priorities: 
1) Prevent displacement of tenants and residents 
2) Expand emergency, transitional, and permanent housing opportunities 
3) Expand resources and housing alternatives for those unhoused persons who suffer with severe 

mental illness and require conservatorship 
4) Support legislative efforts that require counties to partner with cities when receiving direct allocation 

of homeless funds and have a regional focus in the expenditure of state funds 
5) Support legislative efforts that will allocate State homeless dollars such as the HHAP program and 

others, based off city point-in-time count numbers 
6) Support legislative changes to Coordinated Entry requirements that allow local governments to 

prioritize based on local unsheltered needs and encampment resolution for housing placements 
7) Support legislative efforts that have a focus on keeping people in housing, once placed, for many 

years which could include legislative changes to emergency shelter crisis declarations 
8) Support legislative efforts that address racial disparities in homelessness 
9) Support legislative efforts that provide minimum basic income for those who are unhouse or at risk 

of becoming unhoused 
  

Funding Priorities: 
1) Continue the state-funded emergency rent and utility assistance program for those at-risk of 

becoming homeless  
2) Expand funding for homeless services (e.g., the wrap around services necessary for transitional and 

permanent housing), non-congregate shelters and emergency shelters, as well as operating costs 
for permanent supportive housing 

3) Funding for permanent housing interventions that reduce and prevent homelessness 
4) Support for more mental health and behavioral health outreach services; incentivize County 

provision of In-Lieu of Services in the CalAIM system change 
5) Funding for targeted homeless prevention programs that provide financial assistance, legal and 

housing navigation services 
6) Funding for employment, wage-earning programs for homeless people 
7) Funding for substance abuse services 
8) Support funding efforts for non-congregate shelter such as Safe Parking programs and allow 

existing rent subsidies sources to be used to subsidize the rent at these programs 
9) Support funding for homeless services (e.g., the wrap around services necessary for transitional 

and permanent housing) and emergency shelters, as well as operating costs for permanent housing 
10) Investment in extremely low income housing for those experiencing homelessness 
11) Investment in mental health treatment across the continuum of care, including efforts to support or 

encourage creation of additional board and care beds as well as subacute treatment and psychiatric 
skilled nursing facilities 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 12

Page 59



   

Proposed 2024 Legislative Platform                               Page 3 of 9  

Housing 
Policy Priorities: 

1) Help promote and support housing legislation to enable the construction of more housing at various 
income levels; fight to repeal Article 34 

2) Support legislation that advances the creation or funding of affordable housing projects 
3) Pursue updates to the State building code, if necessary, and to promote innovative forms of housing 

construction 
4) Reasonable reform to CEQA to streamline development and housing opportunities 
5) Support legislative and funding efforts relating to housing preservation and acquisition and operation 
6) Support legislative efforts to protect tenants and small property owners impacted by the COVID-19 

pandemic which includes residential lease terminations 
7) Support legislative efforts to extend the State rent relief program and to bring back the eviction 

moratorium/eviction protections 
8) Support legislative efforts to reduce the voter threshold for passage of affordable housing bonds 
9) Support legislative efforts to repeal or reform the Ellis Act and the Costa–Hawkins Rental Housing 

Act 
10) Work with UC Regents to help support more opportunities for student housing 
11) Support legislative efforts that clarify recent ADU related legislation and count ADUs towards RHNA 

goals 
12) Support efforts that also encourage other forms of housing such as co-ops, land trusts, social 

housing, public housing, and other efforts 
13) Seek amendments to ADU legislation to establish additional conditions/protections on ADU 

construction in high fire hazard zones  
14) Strongly support efforts to restore any proposed reductions in funding to affordable housing 

programs including the Multifamily Housing Program, Transit Oriented Development Program, Infill 
and Infrastructure Grant Program, and others 

 
Funding Priorities: 

1) Support for soft-story seismic retrofits 
2) Funding for housing programs that advance racial equity 
3) Funding for innovative programs to prevent displacement and address hazardous housing 

conditions 
4) Enhance funding of state programs for operating costs that support permanent affordable housing 

for individuals with area median income up to 120 percent (which includes extremely low-income 
up to moderate incomes, i.e., workforce housing) 

5) Enhance funding opportunities for existing state programs to help support bicycle and pedestrian 
infrastructure in connection to housing 

6) Develop a state funding program that can support small sites acquisition and rehab (like San 
Francisco) 

7) Expand funding for affordable housing on transit agency sites 
8) Support funding for remediation of hazardous sites (to make viable for housing) 
9) Support efforts to create more student housing funding opportunities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 12

Page 60



   

Proposed 2024 Legislative Platform                               Page 4 of 9  

Economic Development 
Policy Priorities: 

1) Support and funding for arts and cultural spaces, arts education, and outdoor commerce  
2) Measures providing for new tax increment financing opportunities (i.e., business district 

establishment or Enhanced Infrastructure Financing Districts) to support commercial districts as well 
as infrastructure and affordable housing  

3) Efforts to encourage the development of sectors (and real estate sites) that align with quality job 
opportunities in local manufacturing, light industrial, bioscience, research and development, and 
other priority industry sectors. This includes environmental remediation of large industrial sites for 
redevelopment into research and development and/or life sciences use 

4) Cannabis Tax reform which includes lowering taxes and tax simplification 
5) Support efforts to address the digital divide  
6) Support legislation relating to Online Sales Tax Distribution Formula reform 
7) HARD HATS + funding for apprentice programs 
8) Support legislative and other efforts for programs that create pathways out of poverty, including 

guaranteed income programs 
9) Support legislative efforts to create and expand public banking  

 
Funding Priorities: 

1) Support for small business recovery, tourism/visitor recovery and other business sectors deeply 
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic 

2) Support funding for environmental remediation at the Pacific Steel site and other toxic sites 
throughout the City 

3) Support funding for the seismic retrofit and renovation public landmark buildings  (Civic Center, 
Veterans Building and Civic Center Plaza revitalization) 

4) Loan access for minority- and women-owned businesses who experience difficulties in accessing 
loans from private banks 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 12

Page 61



   

Proposed 2024 Legislative Platform                               Page 5 of 9  

Infrastructure 
Policy Priorities: 

1) Support developing climate smart, resilient infrastructure to address growing climate threats and 
address deferred maintenance  

2) Funding for programmatic implementation of hardware and software to ensure security 
3) Funding for programmatic initiatives to advance use of technology in partnership with delivering 

cutting edge and strategic programs 
4) Funding for upgrading and updating outdated technological infrastructure 
5) Measures affecting funding for roads, transit, “last mile” projects and goods movement as well as 

alternative modes of transportation (bikes, ebikes, escooters, etc.), and support the needs of the 
disabled community 

6) Support efforts to help commuters and increase public transportation and last mile expansion 
7) Measures that tax ride sharing networks and help reduce vehicle congestion 
8) Measures that support data sharing of TNCs with local government 
9) Support regional transportation projects that would provide a benefit to the City and surrounding 

communities 
10) Support for public infrastructure projects including the Ashby/North Berkeley BART Development, 

Berkeley Pier/Ferry Terminal Project, Maudelle Shirek (Old City Hall), Veterans Building, Civic 
Center Park, Santa Fe Right of Way, and San Pablo Park and Pool 

11) Increasing resiliency of public infrastructure from threats of climate change 
12) Support for public infrastructure that supports ADA access to all City facilities including buildings, 

Right of Way, and Parks 
13) Support equity in infrastructure by improving City facilities and amenities in South and West 

Berkeley 
14) Expand EIFD resources to include services for underserved communities 

 
Funding Priorities: 

1) Increased funding for bicycle and pedestrian safety improvements 
2) Increased funding for utility undergrounding 
3) Increased funding to address the wildland urban interface and fire safety 
4) Funding to electrify and add e-charging in public facilities and for the public fleet and to provide 

public e-charging stations 
5) Funding for the Safe Routes to School program 
6) Funding for improving, restoring, and enhancing public infrastructure including landmark sites (e.g., 

Maudelle Shirek) 
7) Funding for lifting equity through an African American Holistic Resource Center 
8) Funding to enhance and build recreation facilities to address neighborhood youth engagement and 

enrichment. (i.e., San Pablo Park and Pool) 
9) Funding for cyber security and necessary, related technological improvements 
10) Funding for riding transit especially when linked to housing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 12

Page 62



   

Proposed 2024 Legislative Platform                               Page 6 of 9  

Public Safety 
Policy Priorities: 

1) Support automated speed enforcement legislation and to seek alternatives to sworn traffic/parking 
enforcement 

2) Support efforts to have non-sworn staff to investigate and report taking 
3) Support disaster preparedness, training, response, and resilience efforts 
4) Criminal justice reform  
5) Support additional efforts to help prevent violence such as mental health services, supporting street 

outreach teams, focusing on other individuals before they are at risk 
6) Support efforts that reimagine public safety and incorporate community-based organizations to help 

address problems 
7) Support efforts to increase peace officer accountability and provide a means of decertifying police 

officers who engage in serious misconduct 
8) Support legislative efforts that seek to legalize safe crossings for pedestrian’s aka ‘jaywalking’, 

allows cyclists to treat stop signs as yield signs, red lights as stop signs and yield at traffic light 
intersections if they're making a right-hand turn, and other related efforts 

9) Support legislative modifications to the CalVIP program to help cities such as Berkeley 
10) Support legislation and funding to improve fire safety, including undergrounding utilities 

 
Funding Priorities: 

1) Support funding opportunities for alternative traffic enforcement efforts 
2) Support funding opportunities for violence prevention services 
3) Support funding opportunities for dispatch and service redesign or expansion 
4) Support wildland fire mitigation grants to support home hardening, vegetation management and 

suppression and response such as low or no-interest loan/grant programs to assist homeowners 
in clearing hazardous vegetation and hardening homes in high fire hazard zones 

5) Support funding opportunities for community paramedicine and alternative destination protocols 
6) Support funding/resources for analysis, development and implementation of road network for 

wildfire evacuation programs 
7) Support funding for park access and ADA amenities 
8) Support funding for law enforcement engagement and community-centered collaborative 

approaches in support of reimagining public safety efforts (Specialized Care Unit) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 12

Page 63



   

Proposed 2024 Legislative Platform                               Page 7 of 9  

Sustainability and the Environment 
Policy Priorities: 

1) Support legislative efforts to incentivize Low-Carbon Construction: ability to and tools for 
incentivizing lower-carbon construction with fees from higher-carbon construction projects. 

2) Support legislative efforts relating to electric bicycles: legislation to subsidize electric bicycle 
purchase, in coordination with electric vehicle subsidies.  

3) Support legislation efforts to expand transportation alternatives by water (ferry) 
4) Support legislative efforts to expand funding for electric vehicle charging in the public right of way  
5) Measures that provide new tools and potential revenue opportunities to address illegal dumping 
6) Measures that support regional planning for a climate change strategy, including sea level rise 
7) Support efforts that enhance data sharing for utility companies 
8) Support efforts for gray water capture  
9) Remediation of open space to expand public green/open space 
10) Support efforts to improve research on making desalination more cost effective and 

environmentally friendly 
Funding Priorities: 

1) Support technological advancements that reduce our draw on paper and nonrenewable resources 
2) Support development of software infrastructure to support current and emerging initiatives in the 
      most sustainable way possible 
3) Funding for enhancing capacity in Information Department to support ongoing movement towards 

sustainable systems that require forward thinking processes and modern technological systems 
4) Support funding to address sea level rise along waterfront and Aquatic Park (inclusive of state 

lands) 
5) Support funding for electrification and seismic retrofitting of care and shelter facilities 
6) Support funding for low-income solar and battery installation 
7) Support for reaching Climate Action Plan, Clean Water, and Resilience Plan goals 
8) Support funding for Zero Waste efforts 
9) Support funding for more EV charging stations at apartments and elsewhere 

 
  

Page 10 of 12

Page 64



   

Proposed 2024 Legislative Platform                               Page 8 of 9  

Health 
Policy Priorities: 

1) Support legislative efforts to enhance greater access to hospitals and health care. 
2) Support legislative efforts that will require counties to partner with cities relating to unspent Prop 63 

mental health funds 
3) Support legislative and other efforts to keep Alta Bates Hospital open and operating as an 

emergency and acute care hospital  
4) Support legislative efforts that support and increase psychiatric care facilities and acute care 

facilities 
5) Support legislative efforts to protect the rights of women and reproductive health 
6) Support legislative efforts that increase services such as mental health, substance abuse, treatment 

beds and other services for people living in encampments and in unsheltered settings 
7) Support legislative efforts that existing mental health and substance programming prioritize people 

who are referred by the homeless system 
8) Support legislative efforts that soften data sharing constraints at the Federal level: HIPAA contains 

broad information-sharing allowances among “treatment providers” for the purposes of “care 
coordination”—issue guidance defining homeless encampment or homeless-serving teams as 
“treatment providers” and making it clear that information can be shared on a need-to-know basis 

9) Support legislative efforts related to oversight of guardians, receivership, conservatorship and other 
forms of care 
Funding Priorities: 

1) Support funding and regulatory changes to advance for emergency readiness, particularly in 
relation to public health 

2) Support funding efforts relating to mental health treatment, substance abuse treatment, and other 
relates services 

3) Focus on funding health services for underserved communities 
 
 

Miscellaneous 
Policy Priorities: 

1) Support legislative efforts to make changes to the Brown Act to help encourage greater public 
participation and further encourage online meetings and make changes to posting requirements and 
public access in private residences 

2) Support legislative efforts to address the way ballot measures are formulated, worded, and 
advertised 

3) Support funding for emergency readiness, particularly in relation to public health 
 
 
One Time State and Federal Funding Priorities for “Member Request” Consideration 
As we have seen at both the Federal and State level, new initiatives and various funding opportunities 
have taken form over the last year. This also includes both legislative provisions that direct approved 
funds to be spent on specific projects, sometimes referred to as “Member Requests” or “Congressionally 
Directed Spending”. 

As it relates to state and federal “Member Requests”/ “Congressionally Directed Spending”, our 
recommended strategy is for the adopted Legislative Platform to include a handful of funding buckets 
that capture various project themes. This provides the City with the highest amount of flexibility as it is 
important to not only reflect the priorities of the state and federal lawmakers who sponsor these 
requests, but also to ensure that the City’s projects fit the eligibility requirements of the various state 
and federal funding sources. 

 
 

Page 11 of 12

Page 65



   

Proposed 2024 Legislative Platform                               Page 9 of 9  

These buckets include: 
 
• Affordable Housing/Homelessness which could include funding to reduce unsheltered 
homelessness including outreach and mental health services, non-congregate shelter, housing 
subsidies and gap funding for affordable housing projects including new construction and acquisition 
and rehabilitation of housing.  
 

• Infrastructure Improvements which could include funding for enhancements to public 
infrastructure including landmark sites, active transportation enhancements which includes bicycle and 
pedestrian upgrades at various city locations such as the Telegraph Shared Street project. 
 
• Climate Resiliency which could include funding for urban forestry interface, wildfire prevention, 
cooling centers, HVAC upgrades, and other related items. 
 
Process for Reporting/Next Steps 
In addition to weekly legislative updates and other communications we send to the City Team, TPA 
suggests verbal reports to the City Council when the State Legislature is on recess. For example, we 
would report out in April while they are on Spring Recess, during July while they are on Summer Recess, 
and in November or December when Session has concluded. 
 
Due to the ever-changing nature of legislation in Sacramento and Washington, TPA will provide monthly 
updates which can be shared with the City Council. 

Page 12 of 12

Page 66



Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

      February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Subject: Amendments to the Regulations for Alternate Commissioners 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a resolution removing the now dissolved Police Review Commission from the list 
of designated commissions on which Alternate Commissioners may serve; expanding the 
list of designated commissions by adding the following five commissions: Community 
Health Commission, Environment and Climate Commission, Parks, Recreation, and 
Waterfront Commission, Transportation and Infrastructure Commission, and Zero 
Waste Commission; adding a new requirement for temporary appointments made to 
any quasi-judical commissions to two business days prior to the meeting; and 
rescinding Resolution No. 67,205-N.S.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
In 2015, Council amended Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 3.02 to allow each 
Councilmember and the Mayor to appoint a pool of five Alternate Commissioners to serve 
on designated commissions when their regular appointee is on an approved leave of 
absence. Section 3.02.035 provides that the designated commissions on which alternate 
commissioners may serve is determined by Council resolution. The purpose of Alternate 
Commissioners is to facilitate the filling of commission seats by reducing the amount of 
forms and paperwork required for these temporary appointments.

Per Resolution No. 67,205–N.S., the designated commissions on which Alternate 
Commissioners may serve are the Housing Advisory Commission, Landmarks 
Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Police Review Commission, Sugar-
Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts, and the Zoning Adjustments Board. With 
the sunset of the Police Review Commission, it is necessary to remove that commission 
from the list.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

Page 1 of 5

Page 67

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
05



  
Amendments to the Regulations for Alternate Commissioners  CONSENT CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

2

Staff conducted a review of the Alternate Commissioner program to determine if any other 
commissions should be added or removed from the list. A review of the number of 
approved leaves of absence for the year 2022 and year 2023 indicates an increase in 
leave of absence requests. The following five commissions were at or near the top of the 
list for the number of approved leaves of absence. 

Community Health Commission
Environment and Climate Commission
Parks, Recreation, and Waterfront Commission
Transportation and Infrastructure Commission
Zero Waste Commission

Adding the five commissions listed above to the list of commissions for alternate 
commissioners will further increase efficiencies for Councilmembers, commissioners, and 
the City Clerk Department in the filling of commission seats when there are absences.

Furthermore, for the quasi-judicial commissions on the list, there was a need to allow for 
more time for staff to review potential conflicts of interest for alternate commissioners. For 
these commissions, it is important to review any potential conflicts that can affect due 
process requirements in their proceedings. Conflicts are fact specific and require careful 
consideration before making a determination. To ensure proper review of any potential 
conflicts of interest, the amended resolution requires the temporary appointment of an 
Alternate Commissioner to be made at least two business days prior to the meeting for 
quasi-judicial commissions.

BACKGROUND
All regulations and requirements of the BMC that apply to a Commissioner as defined in 
3.02.010.A also apply to Alternate Commissioners except BMC Section 3.02.040 (term 
maximum). 

For any commission with specific requirements for membership, the Alternate 
Commissioner must meet the same special category requirements in order to serve. 
Alternate Commissioners are subject to the December 1 term minimum. 

Alternate Commissioners must complete the Oath of Office and file a Form 700 at the 
time of their appointment as an Alternate Commissioner and not for each temporary 
appointment to one of the designated Commissions. The appointment of an Alternate 
Commissioner to serve as a temporary appointee must be filed by the appointing 
Councilmember or Mayor with the City Clerk prior to the meeting at which the Alternate 
Commissioner is to serve. For meetings held after business hours, the temporary 
appointment must be received by the City Clerk before 5:00 p.m. on the day of the 
commission meeting in order to be effective for that meeting.

Page 2 of 5

Page 68



  
Amendments to the Regulations for Alternate Commissioners  CONSENT CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

3

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability 
opportunities associated with the subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The Police Review Commission was dissolved with the establishment of the Police 
Accountability Board. This amendment removes the dissolved commission. The increase 
in leave of absence requests from commissioners over the past two years indicates a 
need to help facilitate filling of commission seats when there are absences, and this 
amendment expands the list of designated commissions on which Alternate 
Commissioners may serve. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Attachments: 
1: Resolution

Page 3 of 5

Page 69



  

Resolution No. XX,XXX-N.S. Page 1 of 2

RESOLUTION NO. XX,XXX–N.S.

SPECIFYING THE COMMISSIONS TO WHICH AN ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER 
MAY BE APPOINTED AND SPECIFYING THE APPLICABILITY OF CERTAIN 
REGULATIONS REGARDING ALTERNATE COMMISSIONERS

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Municipal Code provides for the use of Alternate 
Commissioners to serve as a temporary appointee on specified commissions; and 

WHEREAS, Berkeley Municipal Code Section 3.02.010.B. states that the commissions 
to which Alternate Commissioners may be appointed shall be set by resolution; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish the applicability of certain City policies with 
regards to Alternate Commissioners.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that 
Alternate Commissioners may be appointed to the following Commissions: Zoning 
Adjustments Board, Planning Commission, Housing Advisory Commission, Landmarks 
Preservation Commission, , Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Panel of Experts, Community 
Health Commission, Environment and Climate Commission, Parks, Recreation and 
Waterfront, Zero Waste Commission, and Transportation and Infrastructure Commission
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Alternate Commissioners must adhere to all 
regulations contained in the Commissioners’ Manual as adopted by resolution, except as 
provided herein and in the Municipal Code.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Alternate Commissioners may participate as members 
of the public at any commission meeting provided that they are not currently serving as 
an Alternate Commissioner or appointed to serve as a Commissioner on another 
commission, in which case the regulations contained in the Commissioners’ Manual 
would apply.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Alternate Commissioners may serve on more than one 
quasi-judicial commission, provided that they adhere to all Conflict of Interest, Due 
Process, and all other applicable laws, rules, and regulations.  Alternate Commissioners 
are prohibited from voting on the same project as members of both the Zoning 
Adjustments Board and the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Alternate Commissioners shall be required to take the 
Oath of Office only at the time of their appointment as an Alternate Commissioner and 
not for each temporary appointment to one of the Commissions listed in this resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an individual may be designated as an Alternate 
Commissioner by the Mayor and any number of Councilmembers concurrently, but may 
not serve on a single commission for more than one appointing elected official 
concurrently. 

Attachment 1
Page 4 of 5

Page 70



  

Resolution No. XX,XXX-N.S. Page 2 of 2

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the dismissal of an Alternate Commissioner is deemed 
effective the date it is received by the City Clerk unless a later date is specified.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the appointment of an Alternate Commissioner to 
serve as a temporary appointee must be filed by the appointing Councilmember or Mayor 
with the City Clerk prior to the meeting at which the Alternate Commissioner is to serve.  
For meetings held after business hours, the temporary appointment must be received by 
the City Clerk before 5pm on the day of the commission meeting in order to be effective 
for that meeting.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that for quasi-judicial commissions, a temporary 
appointment of an Alternate Commissioner must be made at least two business days prior 
to the meeting to ensure adequate opportunity for proper review of any potential conflicts 
of interest.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution No. 67,205-N.S. is hereby rescinded. 

Page 5 of 5

Page 71



Page 72



Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov Website: https://berkeleyca.gov

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Subject: Modifying the 2024 City Council Meeting Schedule

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution modifying the City Council regular meeting schedule for 2024, 
revising the start time for regular meetings, and rescheduling the April 16, 2024 regular 
meeting to April 2, 2024.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
With the resignation of Councilmember Robinson on January 12, 2024, a vacancy was 
created in the office of City Councilmember for District 7.  The District 7 seat is on the 
regular rotation to be filled at the 2026 municipal election. According to the City Charter 
(Article V, Section 12) if there is more than one year remaining on the term of the vacant 
seat, the City Council must call a special election to fill the vacancy. 

In response to Councilmember Robinson’s resignation, and subsequent need to hold a 
Special Election, the City Council on January 22, 2024 adopted Resolution No. 71,173-
N.S. calling for a Special Municipal Election to be held in Berkeley on April 16, 2024 to 
fill the City Council District 7 vacancy, and satisfying the requirements in the Charter.

Currently, there is a City Council meeting scheduled for April 16.  Given that the election 
is called for that date, this item is being submitted to allow Council to reschedule the 
April 16 meeting as the Council does not meet on the day of a City election.  Both April 
9 and April 23 are unavailable due to religious holidays (Eid-al-Fitr and Passover).  As 
such, rescheduling to April 2 is proposed, and will result in the spring recess starting on 
April 3.

The Mayor or a majority of the Council may call special meetings as needed.  The 
Council may also amend the regular meeting schedule when necessary.  This resolution 
will also change the start time for regular meetings from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 a.m.

Page 1 of 3

Page 73

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
06



Modifying the 2024 City Council Meeting Schedule CONSENT CALENDAR
    February 13, 2024

Page 2

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities, or any climate impacts 
associated with the subject of this report.

CONTACT PERSON
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Attachments: 
1: Resolution 

Page 2 of 3

Page 74



Page 1

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

ADOPTING THE CITY COUNCIL 2024 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Open Government Ordinance, the Council must adopt an 
annual meeting schedule with at least 24 regular meetings; and

WHEREAS, the proposed schedule provides for regular meetings to occur with starting 
times of 10:00 a.m. (beginning with the February 27, 2024 regular meeting); and

WHEREAS, the proposed schedule provides for regular meetings to occur on specified 
Tuesdays of each month with exceptions provided for recess periods or when a meeting 
would fall on a City, religious or cultural holiday or Election Day; and

WHEREAS, the Council desires to establish as part of their schedule a Winter, Spring 
and Summer recess period for 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor or a majority of the Council may call special meetings or revise 
the regular meeting schedule when necessary.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council adopts the modified 2024 regular meeting schedule on specified Tuesdays of 
each month with exceptions provided for when a meeting would fall on a City, religious or 
cultural holiday or Election Day, at 10:00 a.m. as indicated:

Winter Recess – December 13, 2023 – January 15, 2024
January 16 and January 30, 2024

February 13 and February 27, 2024
March 12 and March 19, 2024

April 2, 2024
Spring Recess – April 3 – May 6, 2024

May 7, May 14, and May 21, 2024
June 4 and June 25, 2024

July 9, July 23 and July 30, 2024
Summer Recess – July 31 – September 9, 2024

September 10, September 24, 2024
October 1, October 15, and October 29, 2024

November 12, and November 19, 2024
December 3 and December 10, 2024

Winter Recess – December 11, 2024 – January 14, 2025

Page 3 of 3

Page 75



Page 76



  

Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov  Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development Manager

Subject: Grant Application: National Endowment for the Arts Grant for up to $150,000

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to submit a grant
application to the National Endowment for the Arts (NEA) to receive up to $150,000 for 
a Civic Arts grant program totaling $300,000 to be regranted to nonprofit organizations 
for arts and cultural programming in the City of Berkeley in Fiscal Year 2026; to accept 
the grant if awarded; and to execute any resulting grant agreements and any 
amendments.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The NEA requires a one-to-one match for this grant request of up to $150,000 if 
awarded, which would be funded by the General Fund (Fund 011) in Fiscal Year 2026. 
Therefore, if awarded the full amount requested from the NEA, the City would receive 
$150,000 in federal funds to combine with the required City match of $150,000 to 
support a Civic Arts grant program totaling $300,000 to be expended in FY26; and 
appropriated in FY25. These federal grant funds would enable the City of Berkeley to 
leverage local funds to provide increased support for arts and cultural activities to 
benefit Berkeley residents. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
In November 2023, the City of Berkeley was awarded a $30,000 grant from the NEA to 
launch a new Civic Arts grant program (the Arts Program Grants) totaling $60,000 for 
Fiscal Year 2025, designed to support the following types of arts and cultural 
programming in the City of Berkeley:

 Nonprofit (not-art specific) organizations located in the City of Berkeley wishing to 
produce arts/cultural programming in the City of Berkeley led by a partnering arts 
organization or teaching artist; or

 Arts nonprofit organizations located in the Greater Bay Area (outside of Berkeley) 
wishing to produce arts/cultural programming taking place in the City of Berkeley.

Page 1 of 4

Page 77

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
07



  
Grant Application: National Endowment for the Arts CONSENT CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

Page 2

The Arts Program Grants category aims to (1) foster cross-sector collaborations and 
opportunities for non-arts organizations to hire arts and cultural workers or partner with 
Berkeley-based arts organizations for programming, and (2) offer the Berkeley 
community the opportunity to engage in Greater Bay Area programming offered by non-
Berkeley arts organizations taking place in Berkeley. Awards will be up to $5,000 each 
for eligible program-related expenses. The review criteria for this new grant category 
are: Program Narrative and Timeline (25%), Artistic Merit and Artistic Excellence (25%), 
Community Engagement and Impact (25%), and Cultural Equity (25%).

The NEA grant application for $150,000 aims to continue the new Civic Arts Grants 
funding category – the Arts Program Grants – for a second year, and to increase the 
amount of federal funding leveraged to bolster arts investment in Berkeley. If funded by 
the NEA, this second year of the Arts Program Grants would be administered in 
conjunction with the FY26 Civic Arts Grants process. 

BACKGROUND
Currently, the Civic Arts program administers an annual grants budget of approximately 
$700,000 from the City's General Fund (011) to provide grants in three distinct 
categories: 1) Individual Artist Projects; 2) Community Festivals, and 3) General 
Operating Support. In Fiscal Year 2024, the City allocated additional funding to 
establish a fourth category – Capital Project Grants – with $300,000 from the General 
Fund, which is currently being administered. 

In order to better support a wide range of arts and cultural activities in Berkeley and to 
increase equitable access to artistic expression and creativity, Civic Arts staff analyzed 
data from previous Civic Arts grant cycles and identified a gap in the current grant 
opportunities. Based upon this analysis, Staff sought funding from the NEA to pilot an 
Arts Program Grants category aimed at addressing the two types of arts programming 
that have historically not been eligible for Civic Arts Grants funding: 

1. Berkeley-based non-arts nonprofit organizations seeking funding for their current 
arts programing, or wishing to start arts programing.

2. Arts organizations in the Greater Bay Area wishing to do programming in 
Berkeley, especially those organizations in neighboring communities who already 
have strong partnerships with Berkeley-based arts facilities.

Approval for the first NEA grant application in accordance with the city’s administrative 
regulation (AR 1.17) was granted February 7, 2023. The City was notified of the award 
from the NEA on November 9, 2023 and is administering the new category in 
conjunction with FY25 Civic Arts Grants process. A decision of this current application 
for $150,000 (to be submitted in late February 2024) is anticipated by November of 
2024. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability 
opportunities associated with the subject of this report.

Page 2 of 4

Page 78



  
Grant Application: National Endowment for the Arts CONSENT CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

Page 3

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Accepting federal funding from the National Endowment for the Arts would help the City 
accomplish one of the five high-level goals articulated in The City of Berkeley’s Arts and 
Culture Plan (2018-2027): “Increase Investment in a Vibrant Arts Community, 
Strengthen and support Berkeley’s inclusive and culturally rich arts sector by expanding 
funding and marketing opportunities for a broader array of arts organizations.” 
Additionally, applying for these funds aligns with the City of Berkeley’s fiscal policy to 
leverage City funds to secure matching State and Federal resources for the City of 
Berkeley.  

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
No alternatives were considered.

CONTACT PERSON
Hilary Amnah, Civic Arts, Office of Economic Development, 510-981-7539

Attachment: 
1: Resolution

Page 3 of 4

Page 79



  

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

GRANT APPLICATION: REQUESTING $150,000 FROM THE NATIONAL 
ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS (NEA) TO SUPPORT ACCESS TO ARTS AND 
CULTURAL PROGRAMMING IN THE CITY OF BERKELEY BY CONTINUING THE 
CIVIC ARTS GRANTS PROGRAM FUNDING CATEGORY KNOWN AS THE ARTS 
PROGRAM GRANTS.

WHEREAS, the Arts and Culture Plan for the City of Berkeley (2017-18) includes the goal 
of increasing investment in a vibrant arts community by expanding funding and marketing 
opportunities for a broader array of arts organizations; and

WHEREAS, the Civic Arts Program has identified a gap in its current grant program 
offerings through data analysis, and community feedback on program-based funding; and

WHEREAS, an Arts Program Grant category supports the City’s ability to create 
increased access to arts and cultural programming taking place in Berkeley; and

WHEREAS, federal funding from the National Endowment for the Arts is available to 
local arts agencies for sub-granting purposes; and

WHEREAS, the City is implementing a pilot of the Arts Program Grant in Fiscal Year 2025 
with $30,000 in matching funds from the NEA for a total grant program amount of $60,000; 
and 

WHEREAS, to continue a second year of the Arts Program Grant category in Fiscal Year 
2026 with an increased total grant program amount of $300,000 to be supported with 
$150,000 in matching funds from the NEA; and 

WHEREAS, the City has identified the required match of $150,000 in the General Fund 
(Fund 011) for Fiscal Year 2026 to be appropriated in FY25; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
City Manager or her designee is authorized to submit a grant application to the National 
Endowment for the Arts to receive up to $150,000 for the above purpose; accept the grant 
if awarded; and execute any resultant agreements and amendments.

Page 4 of 4

Page 80



  

Office of City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development Manager

Subject:       Contract: Masako Miki Public Artwork Commission for Aquatic Park 
Pathway Wall 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any 
necessary amendments with artist Masako Miki for an amount not to exceed $69,000 
for a public art commission of a ceramic tile mural on the 42’-long curved wall located 
along the San Francisco Bay Trail west of the intersection of Addison Street and Bolivar 
Drive in Aquatic Park. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The $69,000 contract will be funded through the Cultural Trust Fund (Fund Code 148-
21-208-252-0000-000-446-612990) in Fiscal Year 2024. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Artist Masako Miki was selected through a competitive process to create a permanent 
artwork for the curved cement wall situated along the San Francisco Bay Trail on the 
north side of the Aquatic Park lagoon. The goal of the project is to enhance a visitor’s 
experience of the park by beautifying its context, reflecting the multi-layered history of 
the site, and highlighting the ecological importance of the park. 

Masako Miki’s proposal Contemplating the Universe was inspired by Berkeley’s tidal 
lagoon habitat, the history of the land and the local Ohlone people, as well as Japanese 
animistic folklore. The proposal’s imagery features a parade of shapeshifting characters, 
including shorebirds, fish, acorns, a coyote, eagle, fox, and hummingbird, and 
meaningful objects including lanterns and bowls. Contemplating the Universe reflects 
the history and ecological importance of the land while celebrating the local diversities 
of cultures to offer a new context for meaningful connections in our community (Figure 
1).

Page 1 of 4

Page 81

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
08



  

Contract: Masako Miki Public Artwork for Aquatic Park Pathway Wall CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

Figure 1: Artwork proposal by Masako Miki, Contemplating the Universe, tile mural for Aquatic Park (2023).

BACKGROUND
On July 27, 2022, the Civic Arts Commission approved the Aquatic Park Public Art 
Project Plan, which called for the commissioning of a tile mural artwork for the 42’-long 
curved wall located along the San Francisco Bay Trail in Aquatic Park, as follows: 
M/S/C (Passmore/Anno) to approve the Aquatic Park Public Art Project Plan.
Vote: Ayes — Anno, Blecher, Covarrubias, Dhesi, Ozol, Passmore, Woo; Nays — 
None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bullwinkel.

A Request for Qualifications for this artwork commission was released on October 11, 
2022 and was open through November 15, 2022. A selection panel, comprised of two 
arts professionals, a community representative, and one representative each from the 
Civic Arts Commission and the Parks, Recreation, and Waterfront Commission, 
reviewed the qualifications of the 53 applicants and recommended three finalists to 
develop detailed conceptual site-specific proposals. Once the proposals were received, 
staff conducted extensive community outreach to elicit the public’s responses to the 
three detailed proposals. A “Berkeley Considers” survey that invited respondents to 
provide feedback on each of the proposals was hosted on the City’s website from July 
21 to August 4, 2023 and was widely distributed through a citywide community message 
(July 2023). In addition to the “Berkeley Considers” survey, staff also provided 
organizations that have a unique connection to Aquatic Park the opportunity to provide 
additional written input. 

Page 2 of 4

Page 82

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


  

Contract: Masako Miki Public Artwork for Aquatic Park Pathway Wall CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

In August and September of 2023, the selection panel was reconvened to consider the 
finalists’ proposals in an interview format and Masako Miki’s proposal was selected and 
submitted to Civic Art Commission for final approval. At the September 27, 2023 Civic 
Arts Commission meeting, the commission unanimously approved the panel’s 
recommendations with the following vote: M/S/C (Ibarra/Covarrubias) Motion: to 
approve the Aquatic Park Public Art Selection Panel's Recommendation to implement 
the Aquatic Park Public Art Proposal by Masako Miki for the wall project. Vote: Ayes — 
Anno, Blecher, Covarrubias, Dhesi, Ibarra, Ozol, Passmore, Woo; Nays — None; 
Abstain — None; Absent — Bullwinkel. 

The contract with the artist will be for design development and fabrication of the mural’s 
ceramic tiles. The final design must be approved by the Civic Arts Commission before 
fabrication commences. Installation of the artwork will be handled through a separate 
contract with a California-licensed contractor.   

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability 
opportunities associated with the subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The proposal by Masako Miki was selected based upon the following criteria: aesthetic 
quality; appropriateness of the proposed artwork for the site and project goals; 
demonstrated feasibility of the preliminary proposal and the proposal budget; and 
demonstrated maintainability and durability of the artworks design, materials, fabrication 
and proposed installation methods.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The selection panel considered two other artistic proposals for the wall, but ultimately 
selected Masako Miki’s proposal Contemplating the Universe for advancement.

CONTACT PERSON
Mark Salinas, Civic Arts, Office of Economic Development, (510) 981-7538

Attachments: 
1:  Resolution

Page 3 of 4

Page 83

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


  

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT WITH MASAKO MIKI TO CREATE A PUBLIC ARTWORK ON THE 
AQUATIC PARK PATHWAY WALL

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley’s Arts and Culture Plan calls for the enhancement of 
Berkeley’s environment by placing temporary and permanent public art in public spaces 
throughout the city; and

WHEREAS, the Civic Arts Commission approved the Aquatic Park Public Art Project 
Plan on July 27, 2022, which called for the commissioning of a tile mural artwork for the 
42’-long curved wall located along the San Francisco Bay Trail in Aquatic Park; and

WHEREAS, funding for the tile mural at Aquatic Park was set aside in the Cultural Trust 
Fund (Fund 148) for Fiscal Year 2024; and

WHERES, a Request for Qualifications from professional practicing artists was released 
on October 11, 2022 and 53 applicants were reviewed by a selection panel comprised 
of two arts professionals, a community representative and one representative each from 
the Civic Arts Commission and the Parks, Recreation, and Waterfront Commission; and

WHEREAS, three finalists were selected by the panel and invited to develop site-
specific public art project proposals; and

WHEREAS, the selection panel reconvened to evaluate the three proposals and 
selected the proposal by Masako Miki for recommendation to the Civic Arts 
Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Civic Arts Commission approved Masako Miki for a public art 
commission of a ceramic tile mural for the Aquatic Park pathway wall at its regularly 
scheduled commission meeting on September 27, 2023. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
City Manager is authorized to execute a contract and any amendments thereto with 
Masako Miki for a public art commission of a ceramic tile mural on the Aquatic Park 
pathway wall for an amount not to exceed $69,000. A record signature copy of said 
contract and any amendments are to be on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

Page 4 of 4

Page 84

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


  

Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Henry Oyekanmi, Director, Finance 

Subject:      Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible    
Issuance After Council Approval on February 13, 2024

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached to staff report) that will 
be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the requesting department or 
division.  All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold will be returned to Council for 
final approval.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Total estimated cost of items included in this report is $90,000

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
On May, 6, 2008, Council adopted Ordinance No. 7,035-N.S. effective June 6, 2008, 
which increased the City Manager’s purchasing authority for services to $50,000.  As a 
result, this required report submitted by the City Manager to Council is now for those 
purchases in excess of $100,000 for goods; and $200,000 for playgrounds and 
construction; and $50,000 for services.  If Council does not object to these items being 
sent out for bid or proposal within one week of them appearing on the agenda, and 
upon final notice to proceed from the requesting department, the IFB (Invitation for Bid) 
or RFP (Request for Proposal) may be released to the public and notices sent to the 
potential bidder/respondent list.

PROJECT Fund Source Amount

Printing and Mail Services 
for RevCo billing

011
601

General Fund
Prof Svcs – Misc. $90,000

Total: $90,000

Page 1 of 4

Page 85

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
09



  
Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals CONSENT CALENDAR
Scheduled for Possible Issuance After Council                                                                 February 13, 2024
Approval on February 13, 2024

BACKGROUND
On May 6, 2008, Council adopted Ordinance No. 7,035-N.S., amending the City 
Manager’s purchasing authority for services.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
The Finance Department reviews all formal bid and proposal solicitations to ensure that 
they include provisions for compliance with the City’s environmental policies.  For each 
contract that is subject to City Council authorization, staff will address environmental 
sustainability considerations in the associated staff report to City Council. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Need for the goods and/or services.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Darryl Sweet, General Services Manager, Finance, 510-981-7329

Attachments:  
1: Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible Issuance
    After Council Approval on February 13, 2024

a. Printing and Mail Services for RevCo billing

Note:  Original of this attachment with live signature of authorizing personnel is on file in 
General Services.

Page 2 of 4

Page 86



NEXT 30 DAYS
DATE SUBMITTED: FEBRUARY 13, 2024

   Attachment 1

SPECIFICATION
NO.

DESCRIPTION OF
GOODS /

SERVICES BEING
PURCHASED

APPROX.
RELEASE

DATE

APPROX. BID
OPENING DATE

INTENDED USE ESTIMATED COST BUDGET CODE TO BE
CHARGED

DEPT. / DIVISION CONTACT NAME
& PHONE

24-11657-C Printing and Mail
Services for RevCo
billing

2.14.2024 3.14.2024 Printing and mailing from billing
software to bill:

refuse accounts (quarterly billing,
staggered over three months of

each quarter)

business license renewal mailing
(annual)

additional business license
courtesy mailing (annual)

business license delinquent
mailing (annual)

Residential Housing Safety
Program (annual with two

delinquent notices)

Marina (monthly)

Environmental Health permits
(monthly)

$90,000.00 011-33-324-341-0000-
000-412-612990-

601-33-324-341-0000-
000-472-612990-

Finance / RevCo Emily Teruya

981-7261

DEPT. TOTAL $ 90,000.00

TOTAL $ 90,000.00

1 of  2

Page 3 of 4

Page 87



  Page 4 of 4

Page 88



  

Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov  Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing & Community Services

Subject: Contract: Traditions Behavioral Health for Psychiatry Services

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to execute a contract 
with vendor Traditions Behavioral Health to provide psychiatry services through June 
30, 2027 in an amount not to exceed $1,379,400.  

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Funds for the scope of work in the amount of $1,379,400 will be provided from the Medi-
Cal Systemwide Fund #316.  

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Contracting with a psychiatry services provider will allow the Department of Health, 
Housing, and Community Services’ Mental Health Division (HHCS/MH) to provide 
uninterrupted services, and in particular, medication.  The City has experienced great 
difficulty in filling vacant positions for qualified staff who can prescribe psychiatric 
medications.  Due to a variety of factors, including the Medi-Cal expansion through the 
Affordable Care Act, an existing shortage of psychiatrists in the region has been greatly 
exacerbated.  HHCS/MH would greatly prefer to have career staff working in the clinic, 
and at this time there are multiple vacancies for psychiatrists in the Mental Health 
Division.  

BACKGROUND
HHCS/MH has contracted for psychiatry services in the past.  Traditions Behavioral 
Health is also a vendor under contract with Napa County.  HHCS/MH was able to draw 
on the competitive procurement process that Napa County did in order to develop this 
proposal, expediting the process.  

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, sustainability opportunities, or climate 
impacts associated with the subject of this report.

Page 1 of 3

Page 89

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
10



  
Contract: Traditions Behavioral Health for Psychiatry Services CONSENT CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

Page 2

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Traditions Behavioral Health offers locums tenens that provide psychiatry services to 
Med-Cal, uninsured, disenfranchised, and under-served populations.  These services 
are necessary for the provision of mental health treatment provided by the City, and 
cannot currently be provided at a sufficient level by career staff due to ongoing 
vacancies in the Psychiatrist classification.  These services will ensure the continued 
availability of medication prescription and monitoring.  These services will only be 
utilized during staff shortages and are not a replacement of permanent staffing. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Instead of drawing on Napa County’s RFP for contracted services, the City could issue 
its own RFP to identify a vendor.  Staff are not recommending this because of the 
urgent need to provide services.  Staff did not identify another action which is consistent 
with the HHCS/MH’s need to ensure continued availability of medication prescription 
and monitoring services. 

CONTACT PERSON
Jeffrey Buell, Manager of Mental Health Services, (510) 981-7682
Conor Murphy, Associate Management Analyst, HHCS, (510) 981-7611

Attachments: 
1: Resolution

Page 2 of 3

Page 90



  

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT WITH TRADITIONS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH FOR PSYCHIATRY 
SERVICES

WHEREAS, Traditions Behavioral Health has become an essential provider to multiple 
California municipalities for psychiatry services for mental health clients; and

WHEREAS, Traditions Behavioral Health offers psychiatry services, provided by licensed 
psychiatrists, to Medi-Cal, uninsured, disenfranchised, and under-served populations; 
and

WHEREAS, Traditions Behavioral Health’s services support mental health goals of 
improving the health and well-being of the community during periods of staff shortages; 
and

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2022, Traditions Behavioral Health submitted a proposal 
in response to a Request for Proposals from Napa County, outlining psychiatry services 
they could provide in a cost efficient manner; and

WHEREAS, funds are available in the current budget year in ERMA GL Code 316-51-
503-520-0000-000-451-612410-.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
City Manager or her designee is authorized to execute a contract and any amendments 
with Traditions Behavioral Health for psychiatry services through June 30, 2027 in an 
amount not to exceed $1,379,400.  A record signature copy of said contract and any 
amendments to be on file with the Office of the City Clerk.

Page 3 of 3

Page 91



Page 92



Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov  Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Kevin Fong, Director, Information Technology

Subject: Contract: CompuCom Systems, Inc. for Professional Services

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with CompuCom 
Systems, Inc. for professional services for an amount not to exceed $300,000 through 
December 31, 2024.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
One-time funding for these resources is available in the Department of Information 
Technology’s Fiscal Year 2024 Cost Allocation Fund allocation. Spending for this contract 
in future fiscal years will be subject to Council approval of the proposed citywide budget 
and annual appropriation ordinances. 

$300,000 FY 2024: Professional Services

(IT Cost Allocation, IT Department, Professional Services)

$300,000 Total FY 2024 Professional Services

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The Service Desk is the centralized support center that provides help and assistance to 
COB employees for IT-related products and services. The impact of the pandemic, 
running understaffed, and current staff departures has created a backlog of work and 
impacted the Service Desk’s ability to provide effective and timely support.  CompuCom 
Systems Inc. provides professional services that will assist IT in working through the 
backlog of work and provide technical expertise where needed. 

Partnering with CompuCom is aligned with the City’s strategic goal to be a customer-
focused organization that provides excellent, timely, easily-accessible service and 
information to our staff and the community.

Page 1 of 3

Page 93

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
11



Public
CompuCom Systems Inc., for Professional Services CONSENT CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

Page 2

BACKGROUND
At the beginning of the pandemic, the majority of employees were required to work from 
home. While this change was necessary, it increased the complexity of City’s computer 
environment by introducing a hybrid working model. The hybrid model resulted in an 
increased number of personal computers and mobile phones needing support by over 
60%. During this period, PC replacement was halted until employees returned to the 
office. Now that employees are back in the office, a backlog of over 400 PCs need to be 
replaced.  It is critical that these PCs are replaced to address both performance and 
security related issues associated with these older PCs. Furthermore, the city’s fluctuating 
workforce has increased the Service Desk’s workload; directly related to the hiring, 
movement, and termination of city employees and has steadily stayed at an increased 
level. With current staff departures, it is getting tougher to meet acceptable customer 
service level expectations resulting in loss of productivity for City employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
CompuCom resources will conduct their work onsite using City facilities and equipment.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Temporary staff can bridge the gap until PC replacements, the backlog of tickets, and 
technical documentation is up to date. The City has previously partnered with CompuCom 
Systems Inc. who has provided excellent service.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Information Technology has considered performing work in house; however, fulfillment of 
services will be delayed and will impact city employee’s productivity.

CONTACT PERSON
Kevin Fong, IT Director, Information Technology, 510-981-6541

Attachments: 
1: Resolution

Page 2 of 3

Page 94



Public

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

COMPUCOM SYSTEMS, INC.: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

WHEREAS, in February 2022, the City engaged a staffing consultant to supply a 
headcount to assist with PC replacement and other Service Desk tasks, which the 
headcount has aptly done so far; and

WHEREAS, CompuCom has the expertise in supplying IT staffing, and provides well 
qualified Technicians; and

WHEREAS, the Service Desk requires assistance on a significant backlog of operational 
business that directly impacts the productivity of City staff; and

WHEREAS, one-time funding for this is available in the Department of Information 
Technology’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 Cost allocation Fund, and spending for this contract 
in future fiscal years will be subject to Council approval of the proposed citywide budget 
and annual appropriation ordinances.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
City Manager is authorized execute a contract with CompuCom for professional services 
for an amount not to exceed $300,000 through December 30, 2024.
.

Page 3 of 3

Page 95



Page 96



  

Commission on the Status of Women

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Mayor and Members of the Berkeley City Council 

From: Commission on the Status of Women

Submitted by: Carole Marasovic, Chair, Commission on the Status of Women

Subject: Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women

RECOMMENDATION: 
That Council refer to the Council Public Safety Policy Committee to develop plans to 
implement public safety crime prevention programs to address the current rising crime 
against women, particularly older women. These plans should include a budget referral 
to the Council Budget and Finance Committee for consideration in the June budget 
process.

These plans should include: 

1. Developing a plan of safety escorts modeled on the Respect-BART Escorts Program 
passed by Council in 2003 to address the rash of muggings on Berkeley BART paths 
(North Berkeley and Ashby). As in that plan, where $40,500 was approved by Council, 
the Council Public Safety Policy Committee should identify the current amount of 
monies needed for funding for this newly developed 2024 plan and Council refer to the 
June budget process. These safety escorts should be available throughout the entire 
community of Berkeley upon request. The Council Public Safety Committee should also 
identify if a RFP need be issued for this purpose;

2. Develop a plan to engage Berkeley community ambassadors working under the 
Downtown Berkeley Association, Telegraph Business Improvement District and any 
similar ambassador programs to provide safety escort services upon request through 
the business districts they serve and nearby residences that can be reached by foot;

3. Explore if the City ride-share funded program, Go-Go Grandparent, should be 
expanded and in what form to provide ride shares for women concerned about their 
safety. Consider cost share, if necessary, for some women and working with the ride- 
share companies to ensure that they watch for the woman to safely reach her door 
before leaving; Consider the feasibility of lifting age or disability requirements. Identify a 
budgetary recommendation to be directed to the Council Budget and Finance 
Committee.

Page 1 of 102

Page 97

NSalwan
Typewritten Text
12



  
Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women Consent Calendar

February 13, 2024

4.  Develop a City-wide community forum targeted towards women with a special 
emphasis on safety and crime prevention for older, vulnerable women. This meeting 
should be led by the Berkeley Police Department with participation by other safety-
related community resources and moderated by an official proposed by the Council 
Public Safety Committee. The Committee shall recommend that the forum be hybrid, 
both Zoom and in person. The Committee shall also discuss how City-wide promotion of 
this public safety crime prevention forum shall be conducted.

5. Consult with the Berkeley Police Department to provide data and other information 
identifying geographic locations which are high priority for safety escorts. Consult with 
Berkeley Police Department to secure other information as to where women are most at 
safety risk and what hours safety escorts, and other recommendations as stated above, 
be best utilized. The Berkeley Police Department shall provide this information at a 
Council Public Safety Committee meeting.
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS:
In recent years, crime has risen including crime during broad daylight. Women have 
been frequently targeted, many of which have been older women. Women need to feel 
safe in our community. Safety escorts will reduce crime. The Commission Chair has 
consulted with former Councilmember Linda Maio, who sponsored the 2003 item, who 
confirmed that muggings greatly diminished under the 2003 BART Escorts Program 
following implementation.

A City-wide community forum will make Berkeley residents more aware of the crime and 
precautions that need to be taken.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Fiscal impacts shall be identified by the Council Public Safety Committee.  The figure of 
$40,500 earlier budgeted is obviously outdated as it is a figure from 20 years ago. In 
addition, that $40,500 exclusively covered safety escorts down BART paths and during 
limited hours. This recommendation broadens safety escorts coverage to a City-wide 
basis. Substantial funding is needed to fully implement these plans. However, the safety 
of our Berkeley residents is critical.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability 
opportunities associated with the subject of this report.

BACKGROUND
On November 15, 2023, the Commission on the Status of Women voted as follows: 

That Council refer to the Council Public Safety Policy Committee to develop plans to 
implement public safety crime prevention programs to address rising crime against 
women, particularly older women as stated in this recommendation in the 

Page 2 of 102

Page 98



  
Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women Consent Calendar

February 13, 2024

aforementioned 5 points. That Council refer plans developed based on the proposed 
recommendations for the safety of women, particularly older women, to the June budget 
process.

M/S/C: Marasovic, Arora

Ayes: Marasovic, Simon, Posey, Ortiz-Cedeno, Arora, Oliver

Noes: None.

Abstain:

Absent: Boyd

LOA: Seshagiri, Goodwin

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Safety is critical to our community. The crime landscape has changed where crime 
victims are targeted in broad daylight more commonly than in the past.  Women have 
been frequently targeted with many victims older and more vulnerable. These safety 
issues require awareness, education and implementation of crime prevention models 
beyond police response after the fact.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
To leave the situation as is and not provide needed crime prevention protections for 
women.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on this recommendation.

CONTACT PERSON
Okeya Vance-Dozier, Community Services Specialist II, Office of the City Manager 
(510) 981-7239
Carole Marasovic, Chair, Commission on the Status of Women, (510) 225-5060

Attachments: 
1. BART RESPECT Escorts program contract (2003)
2. BART RESPECT Escorts program contract (2006)
3. Resolution No. 57,737-N.S.
4. City Council Meeting Minutes, November 1, 1994
5. Resolution No. 57,832-N.S.
6. Resolution No. 58,160-N.S.

Page 3 of 102

Page 99



  
Recommendation on Public Safety/Crime Prevention for Women Consent Calendar

February 13, 2024

7. Resolution No. 58,636-N.S.
8. Resolution No. 59,012-N.S.
9. Resolution No. 62,124-N.S.
10.Resolution No. 63,166-N.S.

Page 4 of 102

Page 100



Page 5 of 102

Page 101



Page 6 of 102

Page 102



Page 7 of 102

Page 103



Page 8 of 102

Page 104



Page 9 of 102

Page 105



Page 10 of 102

Page 106



Page 11 of 102

Page 107



Page 12 of 102

Page 108



Page 13 of 102

Page 109



Page 14 of 102

Page 110



Page 15 of 102

Page 111



Page 16 of 102

Page 112



Page 17 of 102

Page 113



Page 18 of 102

Page 114



Page 19 of 102

Page 115



Page 20 of 102

Page 116



Page 21 of 102

Page 117



Page 22 of 102

Page 118



Page 23 of 102

Page 119



Page 24 of 102

Page 120



Page 25 of 102

Page 121



Page 26 of 102

Page 122



Page 27 of 102

Page 123



Page 28 of 102

Page 124



Page 29 of 102

Page 125



Page 30 of 102

Page 126



Page 31 of 102

Page 127



Page 32 of 102

Page 128



Page 33 of 102

Page 129



Page 34 of 102

Page 130



Page 35 of 102

Page 131



Page 36 of 102

Page 132



Page 37 of 102

Page 133



Page 38 of 102

Page 134



Page 39 of 102

Page 135



Page 40 of 102

Page 136



Page 41 of 102

Page 137



Page 42 of 102

Page 138



Page 43 of 102

Page 139



Page 44 of 102

Page 140



Page 45 of 102

Page 141



Page 46 of 102

Page 142



Page 47 of 102

Page 143



Page 48 of 102

Page 144



Page 49 of 102

Page 145



Page 50 of 102

Page 146



Page 51 of 102

Page 147



Page 52 of 102

Page 148



Page 53 of 102

Page 149



Page 54 of 102

Page 150



Page 55 of 102

Page 151



Page 56 of 102

Page 152



Page 57 of 102

Page 153



Page 58 of 102

Page 154



Page 59 of 102

Page 155



Page 60 of 102

Page 156



Page 61 of 102

Page 157



Page 62 of 102

Page 158



Page 63 of 102

Page 159



Page 64 of 102

Page 160



Page 65 of 102

Page 161



Page 66 of 102

Page 162



Page 67 of 102

Page 163



Page 68 of 102

Page 164



Page 69 of 102

Page 165



Page 70 of 102

Page 166



Page 71 of 102

Page 167



Page 72 of 102

Page 168



Page 73 of 102

Page 169



Page 74 of 102

Page 170



Page 75 of 102

Page 171



Page 76 of 102

Page 172



Page 77 of 102

Page 173



Page 78 of 102

Page 174



Page 79 of 102

Page 175



Page 80 of 102

Page 176



Page 81 of 102

Page 177



Page 82 of 102

Page 178



Page 83 of 102

Page 179



Page 84 of 102

Page 180



Page 85 of 102

Page 181



Page 86 of 102

Page 182



Page 87 of 102

Page 183



Page 88 of 102

Page 184



Page 89 of 102

Page 185



Page 90 of 102

Page 186



Page 91 of 102

Page 187



Page 92 of 102

Page 188



Page 93 of 102

Page 189



Page 94 of 102

Page 190



Page 95 of 102

Page 191



Page 96 of 102

Page 192



Page 97 of 102

Page 193



Page 98 of 102

Page 194



Page 99 of 102

Page 195



Page 100 of 102

Page 196



Page 101 of 102

Page 197



Page 102 of 102

Page 198



Office of the Mayor
      CONSENT CALENDAR

         February 13, 2024
(Continued from January 16, 2024)

To:    Honorable Members of the City Council

From:      Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmember Rashi Kesarwani, 
Councilmember Sophie Hahn, and Councilmember Susan Wengraf

Subject:     RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service Center

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the City Manager to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the development 
of the city-owned West Berkeley Service Center, (1900 Sixth Street), to permit site 
acquisition and construction of a 100-percent affordable housing project with the 
following key features: 

● Space on the ground floor of the building for administrative offices,
community space and supportive services as currently provided by the
City;

● Maximizing the number of units under the existing zoning Mixed Use-
Residential (MU-R) in conjunction with state law AB 1763 (2019);

● A mix of unit sizes, including studios, one-bedroom, and two-bedroom
units;

● Require RFP applicants to include a plan for services provision and
integration for the population(s) they propose to serve;

● A preference for serving seniors and adults with mental health conditions
while maintaining flexibility to serve other populations based on
availability of funding.

The City Manager should also consider the feasibility of the following elements 
in the program design:

● Universally designed housing for older adults with a portion of the units
for assisted living and memory care;

● A board and care facility with a minimum of 20 beds including space for
staff and services;

Page 1 of 66

Page 199

NSalwan
Typewritten Text
13



   RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service CenterCONSENT CALENDAR 
February 13, 2024     Page 2

● Explore available federal, state, regional, local and private funding
sources to finance the construction of a housing project, including with
the potential target populations.

The issuance of an RFP should be timed to happen soon after funding for the 
development has been identified. 

BACKGROUND
Berkeley General Plan Policy H-18 encourages the use of city-owned sites, including 
parking lots for affordable housing or mixed-use projects: “When appropriate and 
feasible, use City-owned or controlled sites for affordable housing and/or mixed-use 
residential projects with a substantial portion of affordable units.”

On May 28, 2019, (Attachment #1), the City Council stated the intent for the use of the 
West Berkeley Service Center property, 1900 6th Street, would be used for senior 
housing with on-site services consistent with Age Friendly Berkeley Plan 
recommendations and maximizing the number of affordable units on site. They further 
referred to the City Manager to conduct a basic analysis of the development potential 
for the site, including build-out scenarios for a three to seven story building on the site 
that would include amenities, supportive social services, and community space.

Staff returned “Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential for the West 
Berkeley Service Center Site” to Council as a comprehensive Information Report on 
the September 7, 2023 City Council Agenda. In the report, staff analyzed Zoning 
Designation, State Streamlining Laws and State Density Bonus to provide 
considerations for development potential. Current zoning of the site is MU-R. Given 
staff assumptions as provided in the report (Attachment #2), it could be possible to 
build 190 units in six stories with AB1763. AB1763 (2019) expands State Density 
Bonus Laws to housing projects that are 100 percent to low-income households 
(excluding manager units) with up to 20 percent of units for moderate-income 
households. Also, projects near transit, such as the West Berkeley Service Center site, 
are not subject to density limits, may raise height limits by three stories or 33 feet, and 
are allowed up to four concessions. 

Recommendations for Council action included rezoning the site to C-W and allocating 
funding for environmental review, or referral to the City Manager to develop 
recommendations to Council that would inform a RFP to develop senior housing on 
the site under the current MU-R zoning.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The population of Berkeley residents 65 and older has steadily increased in recent 
years. Projections from multiple sources, including the Alameda County Plan for Older 
Adults, show that by 2030 over 20% of Berkeley residents will be over 65.  Based on 
surveys completed by the Age Friendly Berkeley Initiative (2018) older adults 

Page 2 of 66

Page 200



   RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service CenterCONSENT CALENDAR 
February 13, 2024     Page 3

increasingly prefer to age in their communities with housing affordability and 
availability, along with transit access, noted as major areas of concern, especially for 
low-income respondents. Wait lists for affordable senior housing units are as long as 
8 years.1

Board and Care facilities operate under the supervision of the Department of Social 
Services through a Community Care License and are staffed 24 hours per day, seven 
days per week. They provide residential care for seniors and/or people with disabilities 
who need assistance in their daily lives including room and board, meals, a supportive 
living environment with daily activities for participation and entertainment, and 
assistance with personal care. There is a critical lack of Board and Care facilities in 
the state. In recent years, the number of licensed board and care facilities, including 
Adult Residential Facilities and Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly has been 
declining largely due to inadequate funding and rising housing construction costs.2  
San Francisco has lost more than a third of its facilities that serve seriously mentally 
ill people under the age of 60 which is consistent with what other counties report, 
anecdotally, up and down the state.3  More housing and mental health resources are 
critical to address the needs of our most vulnerable low-income adults who are most 
at-risk of homelessness: older adults, persons with disabilities, and persons with 
severe mental illness.

Currently, the City’s Health, Housing and Community Services Department is utilizing 
the West Berkeley Service Center to house the West Berkeley Family Wellness Center 
that provides services such as Women, Infants and Children’s (WIC) program, 
immunization programs, programs offering nursing support, Berkeley Black Infant 
Health and free yoga classes.  Community Development Block Grant ( (CDBG) funds 
have been identified for improvements to the facility and have a five-year requirement 
for use, once all the funds are drawn down, without a pro-rata repayment. These 
improvements are scheduled to begin during the first quarter of 2024. During that time, 
a temporary facility will be needed to accommodate the temporary relocation of these 
programs to ensure continuation of services and activities during the construction 
period of any new housing project.  

It is, currently, uncertain how this proposed development could be funded. The City of 
Berkeley Housing Trust Fund and funds from the 2018 Bond Measure O are in short 
supply or already dedicated to other projects.  However, additional resources may 

1 Age Friendly Berkeley Action Plan, 2018: https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-01/Age-
Friendly-Berkeley-Action-Plan.pdf
2White Paper: County Behavioral Health Directors Association, February 28, 2020: Loss of Board and 
Care Facilities Is at Crisis Level: https://namisantaclara.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Loss-of-
Board-and-Care-Facilities-is-at-Crisis-Level-2.28.20.pdf 
3 San Francisco Chronicle article: SF Board-and-Care homes for Seriously Mentally Ill Shuttering as 
Costs Soar, April 16, 2019: https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/SF-board-and-care-homes-
for-seriously-mentally-13766754.php

Page 3 of 66

Page 201

https://namisantaclara.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Loss-of-Board-and-Care-Facilities-is-at-Crisis-Level-2.28.20.pdf
https://namisantaclara.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Loss-of-Board-and-Care-Facilities-is-at-Crisis-Level-2.28.20.pdf


   RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service CenterCONSENT CALENDAR 
February 13, 2024     Page 4

become available through a proposed regional housing bond measure4 or earmarked 
funding. Preparing an RFP that would be ready for issuance at the time resources 
have been identified would expedite development of the West Berkeley Service 
Center, ensuring critical resources can be provided for the community.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Staff time required for developing recommendations for an RFP.  In addition, a budget 
will need to be developed for the temporary relocation of the West Berkeley Family 
Wellness Center services and possibly any pro-rata CDBG repayment.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY:
Aligns with environmental sustainability goals by providing housing densification along 
transit corridors.

CONTACT PERSON:
Mayor Jesse Arreguin (510) 981-7100

Attachments:

1. May 28, 2019 Council referral: Development of the West Berkeley Service Center,
1900 6th Street, for Senior Housing with Supportive Services

2. September 7, 2023, Referral Response: Analysis of the Development Potential of
the West Berkeley Service Center Site

4 Bay Area Housing for All website: https://bayareahousingforall.org/

Page 4 of 66

Page 202



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 5 of 66

Page 203



Page 6 of 66

Page 204



Page 7 of 66

Page 205



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 8 of 66

Page 206



Page 9 of 66

Page 207



Page 10 of 66

Page 208



Page 11 of 66

Page 209



Page 12 of 66

Page 210



Page 13 of 66

Page 211



Page 14 of 66

Page 212



Page 15 of 66

Page 213



Page 16 of 66

Page 214



Page 17 of 66

Page 215



Page 18 of 66

Page 216



Page 19 of 66

Page 217



Page 20 of 66

Page 218



Page 21 of 66

Page 219



Page 22 of 66

Page 220



Page 23 of 66

Page 221



Page 24 of 66

Page 222



Page 25 of 66

Page 223



Page 26 of 66

Page 224



Page 27 of 66

Page 225



Page 28 of 66

Page 226



Page 29 of 66

Page 227



Page 30 of 66

Page 228



Page 31 of 66

Page 229



Page 32 of 66

Page 230



Page 33 of 66

Page 231



Page 34 of 66

Page 232



Page 35 of 66

Page 233



Page 36 of 66

Page 234



Page 37 of 66

Page 235



Page 38 of 66

Page 236



Page 39 of 66

Page 237



Page 40 of 66

Page 238



Page 41 of 66

Page 239



Page 42 of 66

Page 240



Page 43 of 66

Page 241



Page 44 of 66

Page 242



Page 45 of 66

Page 243



Page 46 of 66

Page 244



Page 47 of 66

Page 245



Page 48 of 66

Page 246



Page 49 of 66

Page 247



Page 50 of 66

Page 248



Page 51 of 66

Page 249



Page 52 of 66

Page 250



Page 53 of 66

Page 251



Page 54 of 66

Page 252



Page 55 of 66

Page 253



Page 56 of 66

Page 254



Page 57 of 66

Page 255



Page 58 of 66

Page 256



Page 59 of 66

Page 257



Page 60 of 66

Page 258



Page 61 of 66

Page 259



Page 62 of 66

Page 260



Page 63 of 66

Page 261



Page 64 of 66

Page 262



Page 65 of 66

Page 263



Page 66 of 66

Page 264



CONSENT CALENDAR
FEBRUARY 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From:

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a resolution designating the Adeline Corridor as the Black Arts and Culture District. 
Include members of Healthy Black Families and Equitable Black Berkeley in the Planning 
Committee to emphasize community involvement and focus on arts, culture, and well-being for 
South Berkeley residents. Establish a Black Arts and Culture Center. 

CURRENT SITUATION

Meetings with Healthy Black Families and Equitable Black Berkeley representatives are ongoing 
to help with the vision of what the Black Arts and Culture District will be. 

BACKGROUND

The Adeline Corridor's development has been in the making for years to increase affordable 
housing, preserve historic structures, and increase economic growth. This area is located 
between Dwight Way to 62nd street with a focus on improvement while keeping its charm and 
legacy. By 2024, Healthy Black Families will have established their headquarters at 2001 Ashby 
Street, which will be a space for community members to receive health care with a focus on 
community programming with this larger facility. 

REVIEW OF EXISTING PLANS, PROGRAMS, POLICIES, AND LAWS

● City of Berkeley Arts and Culture Plan, 2018-2027
● EIFD - Proposal of creating Enhanced Infrastructure Financing Districts (EIFD) to assist 

with funding elements of the Adeline Corridor Plan and future projects. (2021)

CONSULTATION/OUTREACH OVERVIEW AND RESULTS

Reached out to Healthy Black Families and Equitable Black Berkeley. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Establishing this district would uplift members of the South Berkeley community with the 
development of affordable housing, thriving new businesses, and encouraging learning through 
the arts. Having a Black Arts and Culture Center creates a safe place and gathering area with a 
focus on encouraging young artists and bringing economic prosperity. This district will draw 
more Black families to Berkeley and encourage Cal alumni to stay after graduation with home-
buying opportunities. 

Page 1 of 2

Page 265

Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Councilmember Taplin (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)

Establishing a Black Arts and Culture District in the Adeline CorridorSubject:

https://records.cityofberkeley.info/PublicAccess/api/Document/ATQTxk0Ums9jZK9agjjahldW5E3bbfNLQLYp29%C3%894MvhdqHya29q5zvGsdIkKAl0sM5oAIEr37p99%C3%81HOQKNeQtyo%3D/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IL7LZibvqHHBkCO4Fi1atmGbnSF3kxYd/view?usp=sharing
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
14



IMPLEMENTATION, ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

● Look for funding support from The Civic Arts Grant program.
● Work with Berkeley Cultural Trust to help engage community support for this new 

district.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Studies have yet to be conducted. 

FISCAL IMPACTS

There are no direct fiscal impacts to the City of Berkeley related to the adoption of the Black 
Arts and Culture District.

OUTCOMES AND EVALUATION

Establishing a Black Arts and Culture District in South Berkeley will create a vibrant community 
for citizens and visitors. The arts encourage civic participation, give a voice to diverse 
perspectives, promote intercultural communication, and enhance Berkeley’s economy and 
physical environment. Berkeley’s rich history of supporting the arts and social justice activism 
will flourish in a Black Arts and Culture District. 

CONTACT PERSON
Vice Mayor Ben Bartlett bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info 
James Chang jchang@cityofberkeley.info
Tina R. Posner tposner@cityofberkeley.info

ATTACHMENTS AND MATERIALS

Page 2 of 2

Page 266

mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:jchang@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:tposner@cityofberkeley.info


  

Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

PUBLIC HEARING
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Jordan Klein, Director, Planning & Development Department

Subject: Appeal of Landmarks Preservation Commission Decision – Approval of 
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP22022-0005 for 1960 San Antonio 
Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue- Spring Estate

RECOMMENDATION
Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution affirming the 
Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) decision to approve a Structural Alteration 
Permit (SAP) to restore the terrace, remove the non-historic building addition, and repair 
railings and walkways of the Spring mansion; demolish the detached, non-historic 
garage and construct a new ten-car garage; demolish and replace the non-historic 
driveway, retaining walls and stairs on the east side of the property; construct a new, 
detached pool house; excavate and install a new swimming pool; and complete 
landscape improvements at a City Landmark residential property in the Hillside 
neighborhood, contingent upon rehabilitation of the historic gymnasium building, and 
dismiss the appeal.

SUMMARY
The LPC approved the SAP in June 2023. The action was appealed by the property 
owner because they object to Conditions of Approval #15 and #16 that require a Historic 
Preservation Treatment Plan (COA #15) and rehabilitation of the historic gymnasium 
building that is located on of the Landmark site (COA #16). 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The current property owner purchased the property in 2020 and initiated repair work 
with a building permit in 2022. On June 1, 2022, Bahadour Zarrin (applicant/contractor) 
submitted a SAP application seeking approval to demolish the existing detached 
garage, remove the auditorium building extension on top of the southwest terrace of the 
Spring Mansion (main building), and concrete walls, concrete steps, and the fountain 
near the San Antonio Avenue entrance; repair concrete walkways, retaining walls, 
railings, and balusters north, south, and west of the mansion; rehabilitate the room 

Page 1 of 103

Page 267

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
15



  
LPC Appeal: 1960 San Antonio Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue – Spring Estate PUBLIC HEARING
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0005 February 13, 2024

Page 2

below the auditorium; modify the driveway area off of San Antonio Avenue; and add a 
pool, pool house, and new garage. The work proposed under the SAP will remove non-
historic features and a non-historic addition, repair concrete features that are part of the 
Landmark, and add new buildings to accommodate the needs of the new owner.

LPC opened the first SAP hearing on August 4, 2022, and continued the matter without 
discussion pending submittal of a complete application and recommendation for final 
action. A neighbor shared concerns related to the condition of the site and public 
noticing procedures. Another neighbor expressed support for the project.

On March 2, 2023 LPC resumed the hearing, provided comments and direction to the 
applicant, and continued the matter pending receipt of the revised application submittal 
in response to their comments. At this meeting, two neighbors expressed concerns 
about the poor condition of the gymnasium building and a non-historic building, located 
on a separate parcel under the same ownership. 

A letter was received from a neighbor in May 2023, expressing concerns about the 
neglect of the property, and the size of the proposed garage. 

On June 1, 2023, LPC conducted a public hearing for the SAP after staff posted the 
requisite notice not less than ten days prior. LPC discussed the project and approved 
the SAP by a vote of 8-0-0-1 (Yes: Adams, Crandall, Enchill, Finacom, Linvill, 
Montgomery, Schwartz, Twu; No: None; Abstain: None; Absent: Leuschner).

On October 30, 2023 staff issued the Notice of the Decision, and on November 13, 
2023 the property owner filed an appeal for City Council review. The original applicant 
(contractor) is no longer involved with this project. The City Clerk set the matter for 
review by the Council on February 13, 2024. The Appellant was informed of the hearing 
date by letter on November 20, 2023.

In accordance with BMC Section 23.404.040(B), on or before January 30, 2024 staff 
posted the public hearing notice of the Council hearing at the site and nearby, and 
mailed notices to property owners and occupants within 300 feet of the project site, and 
the appellant. The Council must conduct a public hearing to resolve the appeal.

BACKGROUND
The City Landmark Spring Estate consists of a grand main building designed by John 
Hudson Thomas in the Beaux-Arts architectural style. It was completed in 1912 and 
features concrete and iron architectural features, terraces to the west, north, and south, 
and stairs and walkways leading to Arlington Avenue. The Landmark includes a 
gymnasium building adjacent to Arlington Avenue and an additional single-family 
dwelling (1984 San Antonio Avenue) known as the carriage house, which is on a 
separate parcel and under separate ownership. 

Page 2 of 103

Page 268



  
LPC Appeal: 1960 San Antonio Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue – Spring Estate PUBLIC HEARING
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0005 February 13, 2024

Page 3

Historically Significant Features:

 Mansion with concrete and iron architectural features

 Terraces and balustrades to the front, rear, and side of the mansion

 Fountain west of the mansion

 Stairs and walkway to Arlington Avenue

 Statues, urns, retaining walls in the Beaux Arts style

 Gymnasium at Arlington Avenue

 Carriage house at San Antonio Avenue (1984 San Antonio Avenue)

 Design landscape and hardscape features original to the estate 

LPC designated the property as a City Landmark in 2000 (see Attachment 4, 
designation record). The designation excluded several site features, including a building 
addition on the original southwest terrace of the Spring Mansion, garden sheds, tennis 
courts, a fountain and entrance features at the east, adjacent to San Antonio Avenue, 
the detached, two-car garage, and a residence at 639 Arlington Avenue.

The gymnasium and residence at 639 Arlington Avenue are in poor condition, and much 
of the grounds have been neglected, with failing or damaged retaining walls and 
overgrown vegetation. The condition of the property does not comply with BMC Chapter 
3.24.290, for good repair and maintenance required. A rehabilitation plan was required 
as a Condition of Approval (COA#15; page 6, Attachment 1) to ensure that the 
gymnasium is rehabilitated and the site is brought into compliance with the standards of 
the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance.  

For additional project background, please see Attachment 3, the June 1, 2023 LPC staff 
report for this project.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The issues raised in the appellant’s letter and staff’s responses are detailed below. For 
the sake of brevity, the appeal issues are not re-stated in their entirety. Please refer to 
the appeal letter (Attachment 2) for the full text.

Issue 1: Rehabilitation of the gymnasium is not feasible due to a “lack of 
structural and material integrity, lack of historical and architectural character, 
generations of neglect, and safety concerns” (Attachment 2, page 1).

Page 3 of 103

Page 269



  
LPC Appeal: 1960 San Antonio Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue – Spring Estate PUBLIC HEARING
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0005 February 13, 2024

Page 4

Response 1: The appellant has provided a property inspection report from a structural 
engineer, which concludes that the building is “not structurally sound and needs to be 
demolished” (Attachment 2, page 16). The building does not meet current building code 
requirements as it was constructed in 1929, and the foundation may appear imperfect 
with superficial cracks. However, evidence has not been submitted indicating that the 
building is infeasible to repair. 

The report provided by the appellant describes the current condition of the building but 
does not offer a remedy to the condition, other than demolition. Planning and 
Development Department staff find that demolition is not necessary and that a qualified 
professional can stabilize the building, and thus the structural integrity of the building 
can be restored through repair and rehabilitation. From a historic preservation 
perspective, the building retains material integrity since the exterior materials date from 
the time of its construction (National Register Bulletin 15, page 45)1. Rehabilitation of 
the building is feasible, and demolition is not required. 

The best practices in cultural resources preservation anticipates that repair and 
rehabilitation of neglected structures may be extensive and provides guidelines for the 
dutiful restoration of built resources. The primary guidance for the treatment of cultural 
resources is found in The Secretary of the Interior’s (SOI) Standards for the Treatment 
of Historic Properties 2017).2 

The SOI defines Rehabilitation as “the act or process of making possible a compatible 
use for a property through repair, alterations, and additions while preserving those 
portions or features which convey its historical, cultural, or architectural values.”

Preservation is defined as the “act or process of applying measures necessary to 
sustain the existing form, integrity, and materials of an historic property. Work, including 
preliminary measures to protect and stabilize the property, generally focuses upon the 
ongoing maintenance and repair of historic materials and features rather than extensive 
replacement and new construction. New exterior additions are not within the scope of 
this treatment; however, the limited and sensitive upgrading of mechanical, electrical, 
and plumbing systems and other code-required work to make properties functional is 
appropriate within a preservation project.”

It is evident when viewing the property from Arlington Avenue that the gymnasium has 
been neglected. The Standards recommend rehabilitation if extensive repair and 
replacement are required, and preservation if distinctive materials and features are 

1 “National Register Bulletin 15: How to Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation,” National Park 
Service, 1997, https://www.nps.gov/subjects/nationalregister/upload/NRB-15_web508.pdf. 
2 Anne E. Grimmer, “The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties 
with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring & Reconstruction Historic Buildings,” National 
Park Service, 2017, https://www.nps.gov/orgs/1739/upload/treatment-guidelines-2017-part1-preservation-
rehabilitation.pdf.  

Page 4 of 103

Page 270

https://www.nps.gov/subjects/nationalregister/upload/NRB-15_web508.pdf
https://www.nps.gov/orgs/1739/upload/treatment-guidelines-2017-part1-preservation-rehabilitation.pdf
https://www.nps.gov/orgs/1739/upload/treatment-guidelines-2017-part1-preservation-rehabilitation.pdf


  
LPC Appeal: 1960 San Antonio Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue – Spring Estate PUBLIC HEARING
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0005 February 13, 2024

Page 5

intact and convey the building’s historical significance. Standard 6 of the Standards for 
Preservation states that the “existing condition of historic features will be evaluated to 
determine the appropriate level of intervention needed. Where the severity of 
deterioration requires repair or limited replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
material will match the old in composition, design, color and texture.” 

Furthermore, the Guidelines for Preserving Historic Buildings state that preservation is 
the appropriate treatment when the objective of the project is to retain the building as it 
currently exists. Either rehabilitation and/or preservation of the gymnasium is necessary 
since the building is part of the Landmark, and maintenance of Landmarks is a 
requirement of BMC Section 3.24.290, good repair and maintenance required.

LPC included COAs #15 and 16 as project-specific requirements to prioritize the 
rehabilitation of the gymnasium along with the significant investment into the property 
that is represented by the scope of the SAP. The LPC’s decision aligns with the City’s 
Landmark Preservation Ordinance and the SOI Standards for the treatment of this City 
Landmark site. The appellant has not provided evidence that the gymnasium is 
infeasible to repair and, therefore, staff recommends that the City Council uphold the 
LPC’s decision to include COAs #15 and #16, and dismiss this appeal point.

Issue 2: The gymnasium should be removed due to public safety concerns 
(Attachment 2, page 1).

Response 2: The Building Official has not cited the gymnasium as a risk to public health 
and safety. The property owner may secure the building to prevent trespassers from 
entering, and thereby address safety concerns without removing the historic resource. 

The building is part of the Landmark designation and its removal has not been 
contemplated or assessed as part of the approved SAP, which focused on demolition of 
the detached garage and some failing terrace features. Such a request would likely 
engender a full environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA). 

City Council may consider this course of action, or uphold the LPC’s decision to require 
rehabilitation of the gymnasium, as part of the approved expansion project. Removal of 
the structure is not necessary to address potential safety concerns. Staff concludes that 
this appeal point is without merit and recommends that Council dismiss it.

Issue 3: The report from the historical architect, Mark Hulbert of Preservation 
Architecture, finds no evidence that supports the historical significance of the 
gymnasium (Attachment 2, page 1).

Response 3: The appellant has provided a report from a historical architect that argues 
that the gymnasium is not “rehabilitation worthy” (Attachment 2, pages 2-3). Staff 
disagree, and find that since the gymnasium is included in the Landmark, it must be 

Page 5 of 103

Page 271



  
LPC Appeal: 1960 San Antonio Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue – Spring Estate PUBLIC HEARING
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0005 February 13, 2024

Page 6

rehabilitated before the owners can construct the new buildings that are included in the 
SAP. The Notice of Decision (NOD) from the July 10, 2000 LPC meeting states that the 
LPC approved Landmark designation for the property. The gymnasium building is 
included in the Landmark since it contributes to the “historical, cultural and architectural 
value of the site” (Attachment 4, page 8).

As noted above, the condition of the property does not comply with BMC Section 
3.24.290, good repair and maintenance required. Per BMC Section 3.24.290(B) "good 
repair" means the prevention of structural decay or structural failure, or the prevention of 
irreparable damage to the major historic or architectural features of the structure. 
Furthermore, pursuant to BMC Section 3.24.290(C), good repair and maintenance 
applies to all portions of the property that are included in the Landmark designation. 
Rehabilitation of the gymnasium is required because the gymnasium is part of the 
Landmark. 

Staff recommends that Council dismiss this appeal point.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
The project approved by the LPC is in compliance with all applicable State and local 
environmental requirements, and would be built and operated according to current 
codes for energy conservation, waste reduction, low toxicity, and other factors.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Pursuant to BMC Section 3.24.300(E), the Council may (1) continue the public hearing, 
(2) reverse, affirm, or modify the LPC’s decision, or (3) remand the matter to the LPC. If 
Council remands the decision, then Council must also specify which issues shall be 
reconsidered.

Action Deadline:
Pursuant to BMC Section 3.24.300(F), if the disposition of this appeal has not been 
determined within 30 days of the date that City Council closed this hearing (not 
including Council recess), then the LPC decision shall be deemed affirmed and the 
appeal shall have been denied.

CONTACT PERSONS
Jordan Klein, Director, Planning & Development Department, (510) 981-7534
Anne Hersch, Land Use Planning Manager, (510) 981-7411
Allison Riemer, Associate Planner, (510) 981-7433

Attachments:
1. Draft Resolution

 Exhibit A: Findings and Conditions 
 Exhibit B: Project Plans, received May 15, 2023

2. Appeal Letter, received November 13, 2023

Page 6 of 103

Page 272



  
LPC Appeal: 1960 San Antonio Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue – Spring Estate PUBLIC HEARING
Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0005 February 13, 2024

Page 7

3. June 1, 2023 LPC Staff Report
4. Landmark Application and Notice of Decision for the John Hopkins Spring Estate
5. Index to Administrative Record
6. Administrative Record
7. Public Hearing Notice

Page 7 of 103

Page 273



  

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AFFIRMING THE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION (LPC) APPROVAL OF 
STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT (SAP) #LMSAP2022-0005 TO RESTORE THE 
TERRACE, REMOVE THE NON-HISTORIC BUILDING ADDITION, AND REPAIR 
RAILINGS AND WALKWAYS OF THE SPRING MANSION; DEMOLISH THE 
DETACHED, NON-HISTORIC GARAGE AND CONSTRUCT A NEW TEN-CAR 
GARAGE; DEMOLISH AND REPLACE THE NON-HISTORIC DRIVEWAY, RETAINING 
WALLS AND STAIRS ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE PROPERTY; CONSTRUCT A NEW, 
DETACHED POOL HOUSE, EXCAVATE AND INSTALL A NEW SWIMMING POOL; 
AND COMPLETE LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS AT A CITY LANDMARK 
RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY IN THE HILLSIDE NEIGHBORHOOD, CONTINGENT 
UPON REHABILITATION OF THE HISTORIC GYMNASIUM BUILDING, AND DISMISS 
THE APPEAL.

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2022 contractor Bahadour Zarrin submitted a Structural Alteration 
Permit to demolish the detached garage, the building on top of the southwest terrace, and 
concrete features near the San Antonio Avenue entrance; repair concrete features north, 
south, and west of the mansion; rehabilitate an addition below the southwest terrace; 
modify the driveway area off of San Antonio Avenue; and add a pool, pool house, and 
new garage; and

WHEREAS, on August 4, 2022 the Landmarks Preservation Commission opened the 
SAP hearing and continued the matter without discussion while awaiting receipt of a 
complete application and recommendation for final action; and

WHEREAS, on March 2, 2023 LPC resumed the hearing, provided comments and 
direction to the applicant, and continued the matter pending receipt of the revised 
application submittal in response to comments provided; and 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2023 staff posted the public hearing notice of the LPC hearing at 
the site and nearby, and mailed notices to property owners and occupants within 300 feet 
of the project site; and

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2023 LPC conducted a public hearing for the SAP. LPC discussed 
the project and approved the SAP by a vote of 8-0-0-1; and

WHEREAS, on October 30, 2023 staff issued the Notice of the Decision for the SAP; and 

WHEREAS, on November 13, 2023 the decision was appealed to City Council by the 
property owner, Abbas Mash; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk set the matter for review by the Council on February 13, 2024 
and the Appellant was informed of the hearing date by letter on November 20, 2023; and 

Page 8 of 103

Page 274



  

Page 2

WHEREAS, on or before January 30, 2024 staff posted the public hearing notice of the 
Council hearing at the site and nearby, and mailed notices to property owners and 
occupants within 300 feet of the project site, and the appellant; and

WHEREAS, on February 13, 2024 the Council held a public hearing to consider the LPC’s 
decision, and in the opinion of this Council, the facts stated in, or ascertainable from the 
public record, including the staff report and comments made at the public hearing, warrant 
approving the project.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Berkeley that 
the City Council adopts the findings made by the LPC in Exhibit A affirming the LPC 
decision to approve Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0005, adopts the 
Conditions of Approval in Exhibit A, approving the project plans contained in Exhibit B, 
and dismisses the appeal.

Exhibits
A: Findings and Conditions of Approval
B: Project Plans, received May 15, 2023

Page 9 of 103

Page 275



  

A t t a c h m e n t  1, Exhibit A

F i n d i n g s  a n d  C o n d i t i o n s

1947 Center Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420

1960 San Antonio Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue – 
The Spring Estate
Structural Alteration Permit (#LMSAP2022-0005) to restore the terrace, 
remove the non-historic building addition, and repair railings and 
walkways of the Spring Mansion; demolish the detached, non-historic 
garage and construct a new ten-car garage; demolish and replace the non-
historic driveway, retaining walls and stairs on the east side of the 
property; construct a new, detached pool house, excavate and install a new 
swimming pool; and complete landscape improvements at a City 
Landmark residential property in the Hillside neighborhood, contingent 
upon rehabilitation of the historic gymnasium building.  

CEQA FINDINGS
1. The project is limited to design review and historic preservation consideration and is 

categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of Regulations, 
§15000, et seq.) pursuant to Section 15331 (“Historic Resource 
Restoration/Rehabilitation”) and Section 15303 (“New Construction”) of the CEQA 
Guidelines.  Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 
apply, as follows: (a) the site is not located in an environmentally sensitive area, (b) 
there are no cumulative impacts, (c) there are no significant effects, (d) the project is not 
located near a scenic highway, and (e) the project site is not located on a hazardous 
waste site pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5.

SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FINDINGS 
Regarding the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation, the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission of the City of Berkeley makes the following findings:

1. The proposal to rehabilitate the property and add additional residential accessory 
structures would retain and continue the historic residential use of the property.

2. The historic character of the Spring Estate will be retained and preserved with proposed 
repairs and replacement of distinctive features, such as the concrete walkways, 
retaining walls, railings, and balusters north, south, and west of the mansion. The 
proposed new buildings and structures would generally be located south of the mansion 
and, would not be readily visible from the public right-of-way.

Page 10 of 103

Page 276



  
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE/645 ARLINGTON AVENUE Findings and Conditions
Page 2 of 8 #LMSAP2022-0005

3. This property will continue to be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and 
use as a result of the approved project. None of the proposed alterations are found to 
create a false sense of historical development. The proposed garage, pool house, and 
pool will have a contemporary design, and will be distinguished from the historic 
components of the estate.

4. No changes to this property that have acquired historical significance in their own right, 
have been identified, or are of concern for this project. 

5. This project would not negatively affect distinctive materials, features, finishes, and 
construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that characterize this property.

6. Deteriorated historic features of this property will be repaired where feasible, and 
replaced when repair is not feasible. The historic gymnasium will be rehabilitated (see 
Condition of Approval 13).

7. Chemical treatments are not anticipated; however, if they are appropriate, they will be 
undertaken using the gentlest means possible. Treatments that cause damage to 
historic materials are prohibited by the Conditions herein. 

8. Any archeological resources at this site would be protected and/or preserved in place 
per the City’s standard conditions and procedures for new construction and excavation.

9. Overall, the new construction would be differentiated and yet compatible with the Spring 
Estate. The proposed project would retain and would not destroy the historic materials 
and features of the Spring Estate. The new structures have been designed in a 
contemporary style with selected materials and finishes that are different than -- and 
also compatible with -- the Beaux-Arts mansion and features. 

10. The proposed new buildings would be constructed south of the mansion, near the side 
property line; if the new buildings were removed in the future, the essential form and 
integrity of the Spring Estate would be unimpaired.

LANDMARK PRESERVATION ORDINANCE FINDINGS
1. As required by Section 3.24.260 of the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance, the 

Commission finds that the proposed work is appropriate for and consistent with the 
purposes of the Ordinance, and will preserve and enhance the characteristics and 
features specified in the designation for this property, because:
A. The proposal includes rehabilitation of the concrete features around the mansion, 

and would not adversely affect the historic exterior features. 
B. The new work would not be readily visible from the public right-of-way, and would be 

subordinate to the mansion. Therefore, the proposed changes would not adversely 
affect the special character of this estate designed by John Hudson Thomas.  

C. As conditioned herein, the historic gymnasium building will be rehabilitated and the 
property brought into compliance with the Ordinance requirement to maintain 
designated sites in good repair; BMC Section 3.24.290.

Page 11 of 103

Page 277



  
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE/645 ARLINGTON AVENUE Findings and Conditions
Page 3 of 8 #LMSAP2022-0005

Page 12 of 103

Page 278



  
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE/645 ARLINGTON AVENUE Findings and Conditions
Page 4 of 8 #LMSAP2022-0005

STANDARD CONDITIONS

The following conditions, as well as all other applicable provisions of the Landmarks 
Preservation Ordinance, apply to this Permit:

1. Conditions Shall be Printed on Plans

The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set 
submitted for a building permit pursuant to this Permit, under the title ‘Structural 
Alteration Permit Conditions’. Additional sheets may also be used if the second sheet is 
not of sufficient size to list all of the conditions. The sheet(s) containing the conditions 
shall be of the same size as those sheets containing the construction drawings; 8-1/2” 
by 11” sheets are not acceptable.

2. Plans and Representations Become Conditions 

Except as specified herein, the site plan, floor plans, building elevations and/or any 
additional information or representations, whether oral or written, indicating the 
proposed structure or manner of operation submitted with an application or during the 
approval process are deemed conditions of approval.

3. Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations

The approved construction is subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable City 
Ordinances and laws and regulations of other governmental agencies.  Prior to 
installation, the applicant shall obtain Use Permit approval in accordance with BMC 
Section 23C.17 (Wireless Telecommunication).  Prior to construction, the applicant shall 
identify and secure all applicable permits from the Building and Safety Division, Public 
Works Department and other affected City divisions and departments.

4. Exercise and Expiration of Permits (BMC Section 23.404.060.C)
A. A permit authorizing a land use is exercised when both a valid City business 

license is issued (if required) and the land use is established on the property. 
B. A permit authorizing construction is exercised when both a valid City building 

permit (if required) is issued and construction has lawfully begun.
C. The Zoning Officer may declare a permit lapsed if it is not exercised within one 

year of its issuance, except if the applicant has applied for a building permit or has 
made a substantial good faith effort to obtain a building permit and begin 
construction. The Zoning Officer may declare a permit lapsed only after 14 days 
written notice to the applicant. A determination that a permit has lapsed may be 
appealed to the ZAB in accordance with Chapter 23.410 (Appeals and 
Certification). 

D. A permit declared lapsed shall be void and of no further force and effect. To 
establish the use or structure authorized by the lapsed permit, an applicant must 
apply for and receive City approval of a new permit.

5. Indemnification Agreement

The applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the City of Berkeley and its 

Page 13 of 103

Page 279



  
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE/645 ARLINGTON AVENUE Findings and Conditions
Page 5 of 8 #LMSAP2022-0005

officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, damages, claims, demands, 
judgments or other losses (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, expert witness 
and consultant fees and other litigation expenses), referendum or initiative relating to, 
resulting from or caused by, or alleged to have resulted from, or caused by, any action 
or approval associated with the project.  The indemnity includes without limitation, any 
legal or administrative challenge, referendum or initiative filed or prosecuted to overturn, 
set aside, stay or otherwise rescind any or all approvals granted in connection with the 
Project, any environmental determination made for the project and granting any permit 
issued in accordance with the project.  This indemnity includes, without limitation, 
payment of all direct and indirect costs associated with any action specified 
herein.  Direct and indirect costs shall include, without limitation, any attorney’s fees, 
expert witness and consultant fees, court costs, and other litigation fees.  City shall have 
the right to select counsel to represent the City at Applicant’s expense in the defense of 
any action specified in this condition of approval.  City shall take reasonable steps to 
promptly notify the Applicant of any claim, demand, or legal actions that may create a 
claim for indemnification under these conditions of approval.

6. Halt Work/Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources. In the event that cultural 
resources of Native American origin are identified during construction, all work within 50 
feet of the discovery shall be redirected. The project applicant and project construction 
contractor shall notify the City Planning Department within 24 hours.  The City will again 
contact any tribes who have requested consultation under AB 52, as well as contact a 
qualified archaeologist, to evaluate the resources and situation and provide 
recommendations.  If it is determined that the resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus 
significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be prepared and implemented in 
accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with Native American groups. If the 
resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce impacts to the 
resource and to address tribal concerns may be required.

7. Archaeological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f), “provisions for historical or unique 
archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction” should be instituted. 
Therefore:
A. In the event that any prehistoric or historic subsurface cultural resources are 

discovered during ground disturbing activities, all work within 50 feet of the resources 
shall be halted and the project applicant and/or lead agency shall consult with a 
qualified archaeologist, historian or paleontologist to assess the significance of the 
find.

B. If any find is determined to be significant, representatives of the project proponent 
and/or lead agency and the qualified professional would meet to determine the 
appropriate avoidance measures or other appropriate measure, with the ultimate 
determination to be made by the City of Berkeley. All significant cultural materials 
recovered shall be subject to scientific analysis, professional museum curation, and/or 
a report prepared by the qualified professional according to current professional 
standards.

C. In considering any suggested measure proposed by the qualified professional, the 
project applicant shall determine whether avoidance is necessary or feasible in light of 

Page 14 of 103

Page 280



  
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE/645 ARLINGTON AVENUE Findings and Conditions
Page 6 of 8 #LMSAP2022-0005

factors such as the uniqueness of the find, project design, costs, and other 
considerations.

D. If avoidance is unnecessary or infeasible, other appropriate measures (e.g., data 
recovery) shall be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while 
mitigation measures for cultural resources is carried out.

E. If significant materials are recovered, the qualified professional shall prepare a report 
on the findings for submittal to the Northwest Information Center.

8. Human Remains (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the 
event that human skeletal remains are uncovered at the project site during ground-
disturbing activities, all work shall immediately halt and the Alameda County Coroner shall 
be contacted to evaluate the remains, and following the procedures and protocols pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 (e)(1). If the County Coroner determines that the 
remains are Native American, the City shall contact the California Native American 
Heritage Commission (NAHC), pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5(c), and 
all excavation and site preparation activities shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find 
until appropriate arrangements are made. If the agencies determine that avoidance is not 
feasible, then an alternative plan shall be prepared with specific steps and timeframe 
required to resume construction activities. Monitoring, data recovery, determination of 
significance and avoidance measures (if applicable) shall be completed expeditiously.

9. Paleontological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). 
In the event of an unanticipated discovery of a paleontological resource during 
construction, excavations within 50 feet of the find shall be temporarily halted or diverted 
until the discovery is examined by a qualified paleontologist (per Society of Vertebrate 
Paleontology standards [SVP 1995,1996]). The qualified paleontologist shall document the 
discovery as needed, evaluate the potential resource, and assess the significance of the 
find. The paleontologist shall notify the appropriate agencies to determine procedures that 
would be followed before construction is allowed to resume at the location of the find. If the 
City determines that avoidance is not feasible, the paleontologist shall prepare an 
excavation plan for mitigating the effect of the project on the qualities that make the 
resource important, and such plan shall be implemented. The plan shall be submitted to 
the City for review and approval.

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS 
The following additional conditions are attached to this Permit and are project specific:

10. Garage Height. The garage shall have a maximum elevation of 490 feet, and the 
elevation point shall be noted in the plans.

11. Garage Trellis. The trellis on the garage shall not be metal. The trellis material shall be 
noted in the plans.

Page 15 of 103

Page 281



  
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE/645 ARLINGTON AVENUE Findings and Conditions
Page 7 of 8 #LMSAP2022-0005

12. Palm Trees. All healthy palm trees shall be retained on site.

13. Historic Sign and Stairs at the Arlington Entrance. The sign and stairs at the 
Arlington Avenue entrance to the property shall be restored. Photos showing the 
restored sign and stairs will be required before a Certificate of Occupancy is issued for 
new buildings. 

14. This Structural Alteration Permit is contingent upon Use Permit approval for the project.

15. Historic Preservation Treatment Plan. Prior to submittal of any building permit for this 
project, the applicant shall provide a site-specific historic preservation treatment plan for 
rehabilitation of the historic gymnasium building, main building terrace and concrete 
features throughout the site. The plan shall be prepared and implemented by or under 
the direct supervision of a Preservation Architect who meets or exceeds the Secretary 
of the Interior's Professional Qualifications Standards for Historic Architecture and 
Architectural History. This treatment plan shall define conditions assessment and 
documentation, protection, and monitoring requirements, and procedures to be 
implemented during restoration of the gymnasium, terrace, and concrete features, shall 
confirm structural conditions, and recommend preservation activities, protection 
measures, and procedures to be implemented. The building permit plan set shall 
demonstrate compliance with the treatment plan. 

16. Rehabilitation of Historic Gymnasium. Submittal of a building permit application to 
rehabilitate the gym is required prior to Landmarks plan check approval of any building 
permits for new buildings or structures. 

17. Repair and replacement of character-defining features. Deteriorated historic 
features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration 
requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old or 
historic feature in design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement 
of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence.

18. Chemical Treatments. With respect to historic resources located on this site or within 
the propose project area, any chemical treatments needed as construction progresses 
will be undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 

19. Details and Materials. Prior to Landmarks plan checker sign-off of the Building Permit 
set of drawings, the applicant shall submit building details, color and materials 
information for review and approval by Landmarks staff, in coordination with the LPC 
Chair as needed.

20. All glass is assumed to be clear glass. Any proposed glass that is not clear glass, shall 
be indicated on all drawings, and shall be reviewed for approval by staff.

21. All curbs and curb cuts shall be constructed per the standards and specifications of the 
Public Works Department. Curb cuts no longer utilized shall be restored per the Public 
Works Department specifications.

Page 16 of 103

Page 282



  
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE/645 ARLINGTON AVENUE Findings and Conditions
Page 8 of 8 #LMSAP2022-0005

22. Exterior lighting shall be downcast and not cause glare on the public right-of-way and 
abutting parcels.

23. The applicant shall provide irrigation for all landscaped areas. This shall be called out 
on Landscape building permit drawings.

24. The applicant shall be responsible for identifying and securing all applicable permits 
from the Building and Safety Division and all other affected City divisions/departments 
prior to the start of work.

Page 17 of 103

Page 283



PROJECT DATA

A010

TEL: 925-587-2140

PHOTOS

BERKELEY, CA 94707

GAME ROOM PLANS & ELEVATIONS - EXISTING &
PROPOSED

4

A301

A902

GYMNASIUM ELEVATIONS - EXISTING

A108

4

A100

CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE

OWNER:

NUMBER OF BUILDINGS ON LOT (EXISTING)

EXISTING PRIMARY BUILIDING FOOTPRINT

COVERED PORCH 1

OCCUPANCY CLASS:

6572

EXISTING LOT COVERAGE

1868

6

SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.

CORTE MADERA, CA 94925

CITY OF BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE

CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE

CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE BRENTWOOD, CA 94513

THE CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS OF EACH TRADE SHALL KEEP PREMISES CLEAN AT ALL TIME 
AND SHALL REMOVE ALL RUBBISH AS OFTEN AS REQUIRED (AT LEAST WEEKLY) FOR THE CONTRACTION AND 
FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE OWNER

13.

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DESIGN OF ALL TEMPORARY AND SHORING TO SUSTAIN ALL 
CONSTRUCTION LOADS, SOIL PRRESSURE, LATERAL, AND ANY OTHER LOADS THAT  THE STRUCTURE MAY 
BE SUBJECTED.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH CURRENT APPLICABLE LOCAL ORDINANCES FOR UTILITY SERVICES.

CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN AND PAY FOR ALL REQUIRED FEES, PERMITS, AND INSPECTION ASSESSED BY 
ANY GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY OR UTILITY COMPANY.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL WARRANT THAT ALL MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP ARE IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS. ANY AND ALL CHANGES MUST HAVE THE ENGINEER'S APPROVAL.

19.

IT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE DRAWINGS TO SHOW THE GENERAL APRRANGEMENT/LAYOUT OF WALLS WITHIN 
THE PROPOSED STRUCTURE. ELEMENTS OF WORK THAT ARE TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON A DESIGN-BUILD BASIS 
SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE CITY/COUNTY BEFORE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:

11.4

641

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:

SCOPE OF WORK INVOLVES :

- CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW GARAGE, POOL, POOL HOUSE,
POOL DECK, DRIVEWAY, AND LANDSCAPING
- INTERIOR REMODEL OF MAIN BUILDING ON 1ST AND 2ND
FLOORS UNDER A SEPERATE PERMIT
- GLASS REPLACEMENT OF MAIN BUILDING WINDOWS,
FRAMES TO REMAIN.

DESIGNER:

ORINDA, CA 94563

LOT COVERAGE - EXISTING & PROPOSED

PLANTING DETAILS & LEGEND

IRRIGATION DETAILS & LEGEND

PROJECT DATA

L6
L5
L4

A020

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY  ALL DIMENSIONS AND EXISTING BUILDING CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO 
CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO STARTING WORK. 
SHOULD THERE BE ANY DISCREPANCIES, IMMEDIATELY REPORT TO THE DESIGNER-OF-RECORD FOR CLARIFICATION.

CONTRACTOR SHALL ADHERE TO ALL CODES, RULES AND REGULATION GOVERNING CONSTRUCTION, BUILDING 
ACCESS, AND THE USE OF FACILITIES AS SET BY FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL CODES, AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
AGENCIES.

LARGE SCALE DRAWINGS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SMALL SCALE DRAWINGS; DETAILS TAKE PRECEDENCE 
OVER ALL. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER OF CONFLICTS IN WRITING PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF 
WORK. DRAWINGS ARE NOT TO BE SCALED FOR ANY REASON.

ALL DIMENTIONS ARE TAKEN FRIM FACE OF STUD OR CENTERLINE OF STUD AS SHOWN FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION 
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. DIMENSIONS SHALL BE TAKEN FROM FACE OF FINISH UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5.

ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN AN APPROVED WORKMANLIKE MANNER.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING ALL EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILIES, WHERE 
ENCOUNTRERED, MAKE ALL NECESSARY ARRANGEMENTS FOR SUPPORT, SHORE-UP, RE-ROUTE OR PROVIDE 
UTILITY DISCONNECTIONS AS REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE PUBLIC OR PRIVATE UTILITY COMPANIES.

AT ALL TIMES, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE TOTALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR CONDITIONS OF THE SITE, INCLUDING 
THE SAFETY  OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY; ALSO DESIGN ADEQUACY AND SAFETY OF ERECTION BRACING DURING 
SHORING, TEMPORARY, ETC. ENGINEER'S JOB SITE REVIEW  OF THE ADEQUACY OF THE CONTRACTOR'S SAFETY 
MEASURES.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPARING AND COORDINATING ALL DRAWINGS FOR PROPER 
FIT AND ATTACHMENT OF ALL PARTS. DETAILS NOT SHOWN, NOR DETAILED ON DRAWINGS, NOR CALLED FOR 
IN THESE NOTES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO THE SAME SIZE AND CHARACTER AS FOR SIMILAR CONDITIONS 
WHICH ARE SHOWN. DETAILED, OR SPECIFIED.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL SUBCONTRACTORS UNDER HIS HIRE, AND SHALL COORDINATE 
WITH ANY SUBCONTRACTORS UNDER SEPARATE HIRE BY OWNER TO MAINTAIN EFFICIENT WORKMANLIKE 
PROGRESS OF THE WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE OMITTED, BLOCKED OUT OR RELOCATED 
WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL WITH ENGINEER.

17.

PROTECTIVE MEASURES SHALL BE TAKEN BY THE CONTRACTOR TO PROTECT THE ADJACENT PROPERTY 
AT ALL TIMES DURING CONSTRUCTION. PROTECTIVE MEASURES SHALL BE TAKEN BY THE CONTRACTOR SO 
AS NOT TO CAUSE ANY MUD, SILT, OR DEBRIS ONTO PUBLIC OR ADJACENT PRIVATE PROPERTY.

ALL PARTITIONS SHALL BE BRACED TO ABOVE STUCTURE PER REQUIREMENTS OF LOCAL BUILDING CODE.

THE PROPOSED BUILDING SHALL BE CONNECTED TO THE STREET SEWER. SEE CIVIL PLANS FOR PROPOSED 
SANITARY SEWER PIPING AND CLEANOUTS.

21.

A SEPARATE INSPECTION BY THE COUNTY BUILDING INSPECTOR IS REQUIRED TO DETERMINE THE DEPTH 
AND CLEANLINESS OF THE HOLES REQUIRED FOR EPOXY BOLTS BEFORE THEY ARE INSTALLED.

2022 2022

PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE

EXISTING LOT COVERAGE

PAYMAN BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT

ADVANCED ENGINEERING

DON WIHLBORG DESIGN

SQ.FT.

%

SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.
SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.

12082

13733

2000

6540

235

2200

235

277

3

2
30

R3

120873

APN:

BASE ZONING:
CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

MAIN BUILDING
COVERED PORCH 1

GAME ROOM/CAFETERIA

MAIN BUILDING

GYM

GARAGE

POOL HOUSE

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE

NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES (EXISTING)

NUMBER OF BUILDINGS ON LOT (PROPOSED)

MAIN 2ND FLOOR PLAN - EXISTING & PROPOSED

SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

A104
A103

A101

SHADOW STUDY4

A206
GARAGE ELEVATIONS - PROPOSED

MAIN ELEVATIONS WEST - EXISTING & PROPOSED

A204

A201

A107

A060

PHOTOS (OUTDOOR)A080

ABBAS MASH

POOL EQUIPMENT ROOM PLAN, ELEVATION &
SECTION

SITE SECTIONS

ARCHITECT:

PAYMUN BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT
IN COLLABORATION WITH
JONATHAN RACHMAN DESIGN

A105TEL: 925-587-2140

PAYMUN BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT
IN COLLABORATION WITH
_EDIT

A302

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

A070 PHOTOS (MAIN HOUSE)

GARAGE PLANS - PROPOSED
POOL HOUSE PLANS - PROPOSED

A202

CAFETERIA - DEMOLITION

GYMNASIUM PLANS - EXISTING

MAIN ELEVATIONS NORTH & SOUTH - EXISTING
MAIN ELEVATIONS EAST - EXISTING & PROPOSED

A109

4

GARAGE AND POOL HOUSE RENDERING

A101B

A901

ENLARGED SITE PLAN

CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE

MAIN ROOF PLAN - EXISTING & PROPOSED

CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE

CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE

SITE PLAN - EXISTING

PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE

NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES (PROPOSED)

TOTAL EXISTING AREA

TOTAL EXISTING AREA

COVERED PORCH 2
GYM

BUILIDNG STORIES
TOTAL LOT AREA

COVERED PORCH 2

ADDRESS:

R1-H

12969

BERKELEYLOCAL JURISDICTION:

10
2

443

2200

6540

5

FT.

10

SQ.FT.

1321

SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.
SQ.FT.

SQ.FT.

13 SEMINOLE AVE

TEL: 925 516 3502

3381 WALNUT BLVD, SUITE 220

25 ORINDA WAY, SUITE 200

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE,
BERKELEY CA 94707

2022

2022

CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING CODE

2022

2022

2022

16.

15.

20.

11.

8.

9.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE LOCATION OF THE LIGHTING, HVAC OUTLETS, ALONG WITH THE CEILINGS 
AND SOFFITTS BEFORE CONSTRUCTION BEGINS.

7.

12.

3.

A010

1.

L1

4.

GENERAL INFORMATION

GRADING & DRAINAGE

PLANTING PLAN

A050

277
519

GENERAL CONTRACTOR:

ORINDA, CA 94563
25 ORINDA WAY, SUITE 200

IRRIGATION PLAN
IRRIGATION DETAILL2

L3

2.

6.

THE CONTRACTOR AND HIS SUBCONTRACTORS SHALL TAKE CAUTION WHEN WORKING AROUND THE EXISTING 
UTILITIES AND UNDERGROUND LINES.

10.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH OWNER ALL NON ITEMS NOT SHOWN ON DRAWINGS.

18.

22.

2022

CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE

ORINDA, CA 94563
TEL: 925-587-2140

TEL: 415 924 4466

SQ.FT.

%

SQ.FT.

14.

12969

519

62-2916-60-4

VB NON SPRINKLERED

TOTAL BUILDING FOOTPRINT
BUILDING HEIGHT

SHED
GARAGE

GAME ROOM

SQ.FT.

NUMBER OF PARCELS ON LOT (EXCLUDES
PARCEL 4, 639 ARLINGTON, SHOWN ON
SURVEY)

SITE PLAN - SIMPLIFIED
MAIN 1ST FLOOR PLAN - EXISTING & PROPOSED

SHED

SQ.FT.

SITE SECTIONS

POOL HOUSE ELEVATION - PROPOSED
A203

4

A105A
A106

25 ORINDA WAY, SUITE 200

A205

A102
A101C

PROJECT DIRECTORY

PROJECT DATA

BUILDING CODE SCOPE OF WORK

GENERAL NOTES

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

SHEET INDEX

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Attachment 1, Exhibit BPage 18 of 103

Page 284



4

A020

GENERAL INFORMATION

O.C.

MISC

P.LAM.

REFERENCE

ROOF DRAIN

W.W.M

W.M.

TEL

STORAGE

T.O.

SHEET

Detail Number

THIS PROJECT IS LOCATED IN A LOCAL RESPONSIBILITY AREA VERY HIGH FOR WILDFIRE PROTECTION, ROOFING, ATTIC 
VENTILATION, EXTERIOR WALLS, WINDOWS, EXTERIOR DOORS, DECKING, FLOORS, AND UNDERFLOOR PROTECTION TO
MEET CRC R337 REQUIREMENTS.

SECTION:

MULTI-PANE GLAZING WITH ONE PANE TEMPERED

ROOF

NOT IN CONTRACT

AREA DRAIN

APPROXIMATE

FIRE HOSE CABINET

ACOUSTIC TILE

CAST IRON

EQUAL

FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET

CEILING

EMERGENCY

ANGLE

CAB.

APPROX.

EQ.

E.W.P.

FLUOR.

ANGLE

F.A.

FOOTING

HOSE BIBB

FURR.

HR

JAN

LBS

LTG

CLR.

MH

MIN

MAX

MUL

M.D.F.

O.D.

NOM

OPP

N.T.S.

GND.

GL.

PERP

PROP

POLYVINYL CHLORIDE

PL

RADIUS

WP

REFR

GALVANIZED

W.O.

W/D

W

VAR

V.C.T

TEMP

T.O.P.

UON

STEEL

SIMILAR

SCHED

S

S.E.D

SEISMIC JOINT

STRUC

REINF

PRIOR TO BUILDING PERMIT FINAL APPROVAL, THE PROPERTY SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE VEGETATION
MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS PRESCRIBED IN CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE SECTION 4906, INCLUDING CALIFORNIA PUBLIC 
RESOURCES CODE 4291 OR CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 51182 PER CRC R337.1.5.

Sheet Number

MULTI-PANE GLAZING WITH ONE PANE TEMPERED

3.

VENTILATION

1" THICK STUCCO WITH 1 HOUR FIRE RATING

DIAMETER

BUILDING

POUND OR NUMBER

CLOSET

#

C.B.

BLK.

FENCE ALL TREES TO BE RETAINED TO COMPLETELY ENCLOSE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION, GRUBBING
OR GRADING. FENCES SHALL BE 6 FT. CHAIN LINK WITH POSTS SUNK INTO THE GROUND OR EQUIVALENT.

AERAIL MAP

R337 WORKSHEET

REQ

RM

S.C.

S.J

SKY LIGHT

SQUARE

SUSP

THK

W.C.

W/O

RAIN WATER LEADER

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN

PAINT

PL

PERF

GALV.

OPNG

N.I.C.

LAV

HOT WATER

H.M.

F.S.

CLO.

F.E.

EXP.

EXPO

A.D.

ASB.

L

EXTERIOR

FLUORESCENT

CATCH BASIN

FACE OF FINISH

FUTURE

GA.

I.D.

KIT

CERAMIC

CENTERLINE

ABOVE

AGGREGATE

BITUMEN

BOTTOM

BEAM

CEMENT

BOARD

FLASHING

AT

FINISH

ASBESTOS

EXPOSURE

FIRE ALARM

ARCHITECTURAL

FIRE EXTINGUISHER

FOUNDATION

CAULKING

ELECTRIC PANELBOARD

COLUMN

BITUM

FLOOR  DRAIN

C

@

CER.

FLAT BAR 

ACOUS.

ALUMINUM

& 

ABV.

AGGR.

BLDG.

BSE.

BM

F.O.C.

BD.

E.P.

ENCL.

EQUIP.

ARCH.

F.B. 

F.E.C.

EMER.

CLG.

C.B.

COL.

FULL SIZE

FIREPROOF

GAGE

C.O.

FPRF

F.O.S.

FTG.

C.I.

HOLLOW CORE

AL.

F.O.F

HAND RAIL

HOLLOW METAL

HOUR

INSULATIONINSUL

JANITOR

HDR

LAMINATELAM

POUNDS

H.W.

MATL

MAXIMUM

KITCHEN

MANUFACTURERMFR

MINIMUM

MOUNTEDMTD

MULLION

MECHANICAL

NORTHN

NOT TO SCALE

MECH

NOMINAL

H.R.

NEW

OPERABLEOPER

OPPOSITE

PRESSURE TREATEDP.T.

GYPSUM BOARD

OFFICE

G.B. 

GROUND

GYP. BD.

OFF

PERPENDICULAR

PROPERTY LINE

GLASS

PROPERTY

QUANTITY

PVC

R RISER

R.C.P

PLYWOOD

R.O. ROUGH OPENING

RAD

PLYWD

REFRIGERATOR

OUTSIDE DIAMETER

R.D.

WOODWD

WASHER / DRYER

WIRE WELDED FABRICW.W.F

WHERE OCCURS

WINDOW

WATER GLASSW.G.

WEST

WDW

VINYL COMPOSITION TILE

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

WALL MOUNT

TYPICALTYP

TEMPERED

TOP OF WALLT.O.W.

TOP OF PLATE

UNFINISHED

TREADT

STRUCTURAL

UNF

STL

WATERPROOFING

TOP OF

SPEC SPECIFICATION

SIM

SHGT SHEATHING

SCHEDULE

SPF

STAINLESS STEELS.S.

SEE ELECTRCIAL DWGS

SPRAY FOAM INSULATION

SOUTH

ROOM

SEE STRUCTURAL DWGS

REVISIONREV

REINFORCED

DOOR TAG

WINDOW TAG

Detail Number
REGISTER

DETAIL:
Detail Number

BUILDING IS LOCATED IN AN LRA HIGH FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONE.  ALL EXTERIOR MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION
METHODS SHALL MEET EXTERIOR WILDFIRE EXPOSURE STANDARDS.

RGTR

2.

SQ

Sheet Number

EXTERIOR WINDOWS

MATERIAL

EXTERIOR DOORS
WOOD GARAGE AND WOOD EXTERIOR DOORS TO BE MIN 1 3/8" THICK SOLD CORE
IGNITION RESISTANT

CLOSED, NO VENTS

MASONRY OR CERAMIC

IF ROOTS 2 IN. AND GREATER IN DIAMETER ARE ENCOUNTERED DURING SITE WORK AND MUST BE CUT TO COMPLETE THE
CONSTRUCTION, THE CONSULTING ARBORIST MUST BE CONSULTED TO EVALUATE EFFECTS ON THE HEALTH AND STABILITY OF
THE TREE AND RECOMMEND TREATMENT.

ANY ROOT PRUNING REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES SHALL RECEIVE THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF AND BE SUPERVISED
BY THE CONSULTING ARBORIST. ROOTS SHOULD BE CUT WITH A SAW TO PROVIDE A FLAT AND SMOOTH CUT.  REMOVAL OF ROOTS
LARGER THAN 2 IN. IN DIAMETER SHOULD BE AVOIDED.

ITEM

CLASS A - MODIFIED BITUMIN, SLATE AT POOL HOUSE OR APPROVED EQUAL

ON CENTER

DECKING MATERIALS

FIGURE 1.  THE BLACK DOTTED LINES ARE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  WORK IN THIS AREA IS PROHIBITED.

THE TREE TREE PROTECTION ZONE SHOWN ON ALL PLANS SHALL BE FENCED TO ENCLOSE THE ENTIRE AREA (FIGURE 1).  NO
GRADING, EXCAVATION, CONSTRUCTION OR STORAGE OF MATERIALS SHALL OCCUR WITHIN THAT ZONE.  NO UNDERGROUND 
SERVICES INCLUDING UTILITIES, SUB-DRAINS, WATER OR SEWER SHALL BE PLACED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  NO
MOTORIZED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE USED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE. THE LIMITS OF THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE WILL BE
ADJUSTED FOLLOWING REVIEW OF GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION PLANS. FOR DESIGN PURPOSES, THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE
SHALL BE DEFINED AS THE TREE DRIPLINE.

IGNITION RESISTANTUNDERFLOOR
UNDER EAVE

EXTERIOR SIDINGS AND SHEATHINGS

VICINITY MAP

1.

4.

WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE FIRE ZONE NOTES :

EXTERIOR/INTERIOR ELEVATION

ELEVATION HEIGHT

Sheet number

REQUIRED

REDWOODRWD

SOLID CORE

S.S.D

SECT SECTION

SHT

SL

STD STANDARD

STOR

SUSPENDED

TOP OF SLABT.O.S.

TELEPHONE

THICK

URINALUR

VARIES

WATER CLOSET

WATER RESISTANTW.R.

WOVEN WIRE MESH

WITHOUT

WEIGHTWT

REF

R.W.L

R.C. RESILIENT CHANNEL

QTY

PT

PLATE

PERFORATED

GRAB BAR

PAVINGPAV

PLASTIC LAMINATE

OPENING

NO NUMBER

N

METALMTL

MISCELLANEOUS

MANHOLE

MEDIUM DENSITY
FIBERBOARD
MATERIAL

LIGHTING

LAVATORY

INTERIORINT

INSIDE DIAMETER

HEADER

H.C.

H.B.

FUT.

FT.

FURRING

FOOT OR FEET

FACE OF STUDS

CLKG.

FON.

F.D.

EXT.

F.H.C.

FIN.

FL.

BOT.

ASPH.

A.T.

ADJ.

CEM.

I

ELECTRIC WATER COOLER

CLEAR

CLEAN OUT

CORNER BOARD

EXPANSION

EQUOPMENT

ENCLOSURE

FACE OF CABINET

CABINET

BASE

BLOCK

ASPHALT

ADJUSTABLE

ACOUSTICAL

AND 

WUIABBREVIATIONS SYMBOLS

MAPS TREE PROTECTION

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

1i

Elevation
Name

101

A101 Re
f

1

Ref1

Re
f

1

Ref1

SIM

A101
1

SIM
1

A101

Page 19 of 103

Page 285



N

?__

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

1"__

____

____

____

20__

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____

____
____

____

____

60__

____

____

____

____

____

____

L.1

IRRIGATION PLAN

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATEDIRRIGATION PLAN
 1/12" = 1'-0"

1

359
Mod

9858
Low

812 20
Mod

T

T

T

14428
Low

12314
Low

420 39
Mod

176 38
Low

126 37
Mod

375 36
Mod

174 25
Low

499 26
Mod

952 6
Low

1292 5
Low

12227
Mod

1817
Low

40810
Low

35511
Low

44612
Low

17613
Low

fm

R
F

M

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

993 4
Low

828 3
Low

146 2
Low

122 1
Low

112 24
Low

502 23
Mod

313 18
Low

597 16
Low

59 17
Low

10921
Mod

25222
Mod

32329
Mod

T
T

179 31
Mod

T

TTT

TT

T

782 35
Mod

780 33
Mod

506 34
Mod

T

174 30
Mod

T

T

TTT

212 32
Mod

T

T

T

64 42
Low

74 43
Mod

164 41
Mod

117 40
Mod

T
TT T

T

T

T

T

Page 20 of 103

Page 286



L.2

IRRIGATION DETAILS

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 21 of 103

Page 287



IRRIGATION
DETAILS & LEGEND

L.3

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 22 of 103

Page 288



L.4

PLANTING PLAN

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 23 of 103

Page 289



L.5

PLANTING
DETAILS & LEGEND

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 24 of 103

Page 290



N

2%

477.0

ADJACENT

484

1%

467.5

SPRING MANSION

 ELEV 471'

484

DRIVE

+

488'

RETAINING

ABOVE TREE ROOTS

477.0

476.8

476.4

473.8

473.0

473.9

4"

472.0  +

1%

473.9

1%

467.5

473.8

1%

1%

FFE 478.5

484

484

480

466.0

POOL HOUSE
1 STORY

476.8

FFE 471.67

1 STORY

473.0

466.0

477.5

TYP.

TW

481'

ANTONIO

466.0

466.0

DRIVE

1984 SAN
3 STORY

TW

TW

+

PROPERTY

+

482'

WALL

480

480
PERFORATE

TW

DRAIN LINE,
4" SOLID

477.0

+

LINE

476.4

476.4
473.0

473.9

479.00  +

473.0

2%

471.0

473.9

472.0  +

467.5

466.0

466.0

466.0

473.9

467.5

1%

467.5

473.0

473.0

473.8

476.4

476.4

1%

1%

GARAGE

FFE 478.43

POOL 50' X 16'

1%

16'-6" X 9'-2"

1960 SAN ANTONIO

486

47
8

482

ABOVE TREE ROOTS

488

641 SF

486

486

476.8

466.0

478.00 +

BELOW DECK

466.0

DECK PAVING

482

482

 ELEV 461'

POOL EQUIPMENT

2000 SF

1%

476.4

476.4473.0
467.5

467.5

1%

466.0

+

1%

1%

471.0

473.9

473.8

473.0

476.8

D DRAIN

CURB

478

482

482'

TW

481.5'

+

DECK PAVING

FO
U

N
TA

IN

46
0

+472.0 

GRADING & DRAINAGE

L.6

-3.83 CY
33.18 CY

132.36 CY

2.44 CY
Net cut/fill

TOPOGRAPHY SCHEDULE

60.57 CY

1.13 CY

0.00 CY
0.00 CY

130.59 CY
0.65 CY

-33.18 CY

-59.92 CY
-325.03 CY

-368.02 CY

0.00 CY325.03 CY
23.08 CY

Cut

0.00 CY
3.83 CY

500.38 CYTOTALS:

52.25 CY
-1.31 CY
78.34 CY

-23.08 CY

Fill

 1/12" = 1'-0"

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATEDDRAINAGE PLAN1

10
'-6

"

47'-2"68'-7"

13
'-1

0"

27'-4" 22'-10" 49'-9"

27'-1"

24
'-0

"

11
'-8

"

 4
74

 484

 4
86

 478

 472

 470

 474

 468

 464 460
 458

 456

 4
66 4
62

 4
60

 46
4

 462
 454

 470

 476

 452

 482

 480

 468

 488

 476

 4
76

 4
78

 474

 466

 472

Page 25 of 103

Page 291



E.
M

.

6"
 D

R
AI

N
PI

PE

6
"
 
D
R
A
IN
P
IP
E

G
.M
.

G
.M

.

E
.M
.

D
.I
.

1
6
"
 
S
T
U
M
P

14
" C

LU
ST

ER

1
4
"
 
C
L
U
S
T
E
R

14
" C

LU
ST

ER

1
4
"
 
C
L
U
S
T
E
R

2200 SF

13276 SF

6540 SF

POOL HOUSE

CAFETERIA
FOUNTAIN

277 SF

370 SF

443 SF

SPRING MANSION

6540 SF

PORCH

SHED

COVERED

1960 SAN ANTONIO

235 SF

2200 SF

COVERED

15190 SF

998 SF

519 SF

COVEREDCOVERED

7568 SF

641 SF

GARAGE

235 SF

6747 SF

 54 SF

277 SF

ASPHALT

1960 SAN ANTONIO

POOL DECK

6747

 82 SF

GYMNASIUM

POOL

2000 SF

PORCH

SHED

PATIO

1321 SF

519 SF

1160 SF

TENNIS COURT

GYMNASIUM

PORCH

GARAGE

15190 SF
PATIO

1868 SF

TENNIS COURT

SPRING MANSION

ASPHALT

PORCH

GAME ROOM

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

HY

D

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

HY

D

x

48
6.

48

W
.V

.

47
7.

46

48
6.

48

W
.M

.

W
.V

.

48
6.

18

48
6.

18

F.
H

.

F.
H

.

48
8.

36

48
8.

36

G
U

Y

48
8.

58

J.
P.

G
U

Y

J.
P.

48
8.

58

46
2.

67

T/
W

46
2.

56

T/
W

T/
W

T/
W

46
2.

92

T/
W

46
2.

92
46

2.
67

46
2.

56

T/
W

10
"T

R
EE

10
"T

R
EE

47
9.

54

47
9.

54

43
0.

43

43
5.

57

8"
 S

TU
M

P

43
9.

30

6"
 T

R
EE

12
" T

R
EE

45
5.

928"
 P

AL
M

12
" O

AK

12
" P

AL
M

45
7.

54
20

" T
R

EE

44
7.

27

20
" S

TU
M

P

44
7.

23

30
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

26
" T

R
EE

43
7.

33

46
0.

96

8"
 O

AK

10
" T

R
EE

45
6.

47

10
" O

AK

8"
 T

R
EE

40
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

8"
 O

AK

12
" O

AK

47
6.

32

12
" T

R
EE

20
" S

TU
M

P

30
" C

LU
ST

ER

45
7.

01

46
4.

10

6"
 T

R
EE

14
" O

AK

30
" Y

U
C

C
A 

C
LU

ST
ER

10
" O

AK

34
" S

TU
M

P

46
9.

45

43
0.

50

12
" P

AL
M

10
" O

AK

46
3.

11

46
5.

74

45
7.

97

50
" O

AK

14
" O

AK

44
9.

86

46
3.

49

4"
 T

R
EE

6"
 T

R
EE

6"
 O

AK

10
" O

AK

16
" O

AK

44
3.

60

30
" T

R
EE

12
" P

AL
M

8"
 T

R
EE

45
9.

73

40
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

8"
 T

R
EE

45
7.

83

16
" T

R
EE

18
" S

TU
M

P

45
0.

11

22
" S

TU
M

P

45
8.

46

43
9.

62

45
0.

57

8"
 P

AL
M

45
6.

43

6"
 T

R
EE

45
2.

24

14
" P

AL
M

45
3.

28

30
" T

R
EE

12
" O

AK
47

0.
86

30
" Y

U
C

C
A

42
9.

35

45
1.

10

48
0.

83

12
" O

AK

28
" O

AK

18
" T

R
EE

12
" O

AK

42
8.

77

4"
 T

R
EE

45
9.

90

24
" S

TU
M

P

46
2.

54

46
2.

27

20
" O

AK

45
5.

32

41
7.

22

48
1.

44

44
9.

87

8"
 T

R
EE

47
6.

03

44
8.

72

44
7.

76

44
8.

28

14
" O

AK

47
9.

34

10
" T

R
EE

44
3.

79

12
" T

R
EE

22
" O

AK

6"
 O

AK

40
" S

TU
M

P

48
1.

40

44
1.

49

46
2.

42
26

"P
AL

M

45
9.

92

28
" P

AL
M

46
0.

04

30
" C

LU
ST

ER

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER

6"
 T

R
EE

45
8.

87

46
9.

38

5"
 O

AK

46
5.

73

47
6.

07

44
1.

88

46
5.

5916
" P

AL
M

46
7.

66

8"
 O

AK

45
9.

02

12
" T

R
EE

47
1.

43

45
7.

08

46
1.

05

46
6.

21

14
" P

AL
M

10
" O

AK

8"
 T

R
EE

16
" O

AK

20
" S

TU
M

P

47
9.

12

47
6.

31

47
8.

97

6"
 T

R
EE

8"
 T

R
EE

48
3.

57

8"
 O

AK

12
" C

LU
ST

ER

46
4.

65

20
" T

R
EE

46
9.

98

46
9.

52

46
7.

93

46
3.

28

4"
 T

R
EE 6"

 T
R

EE

45
7.

23 36
" T

R
EE

4"
 T

R
EE

44
3.

39

26
" S

TU
M

P

44
0.

92

44
0.

76

44
8.

33
9"

 T
R

EE

42
1.

26

41
9.

31

47
4.

81

18
" P

AL
M

47
3.

32

43
7.

29

43
1.

69

8"
 T

R
EE

16
" O

AK

44
8.

63

46
1.

39

45
9.

62

20
" P

AL
M

16
" O

AK

14
" P

AL
M

10
" O

AK

43
8.

30

46
2.

52

45
4.

67

45
9.

73

8"
 T

R
EE

45
2.

58

8"
 T

R
EE

12
" C

LU
ST

ER

6"
 O

AK

45
1.

38

46
5.

89

45
1.

50

14
" P

AL
M

44
7.

37

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER

8"
 Y

U
C

C
A

44
6.

22

45
3.

87

12
" O

AK

45
6.

13

45
0.

36

24
" P

IN
E

40
" C

LU
ST

ER

45
3.

51

41
6.

84

44
8.

16

45
1.

48

43
0.

14

4"
 T

R
EE

45
3.

16

10
" T

R
EE

45
2.

99

16
" O

AK

48
9.

45

43
4.

84

4"
 T

R
EE

47
5.

42

44
1.

21

44
4.

46

6"
 O

AK

48
8.

36

6"
 T

R
EE

46
3.

87

45
6.

59

47
9.

14

20
" P

AL
M

10
" Y

U
C

C
A

8"
 T

R
EE

48
3.

16

44
0.

51

41
8.

07

10
" T

R
EE

14
" P

AL
M

6"
 O

AK

43
2.

11

46
7.

62

46
6.

22

45
3.

14

8"
 P

AL
M

10
" O

AK

4"
 T

R
EE

12
" T

R
EE

44
9.

48

44
1.

76

45
2.

47

18
" T

R
EE

18
" C

LU
ST

ER

30
" O

AK

6"
 T

R
EE

48
7.

74

43
7.

34

44
7.

36

10
" P

AL
M

6"
 O

AK

43
4.

76

47
6.

50

45
7.

16

20
" S

TU
M

P

47
2.

86

42
8.

36

45
9.

56

5"
 T

R
EE

5"
 T

R
EE

47
7.

46
16

" P
AL

M

47
4.

40

18
" P

AL
M

47
5.

11

44
2.

71

14
" O

AK

45
6.

05

18
" T

R
EE

45
2.

23

46
5.

29

24
" S

TU
M

P

4"
 T

R
EE

6"
 T

R
EE

16
" T

R
EE

44
8.

84

22
" S

TU
M

P

6"
 O

AK

44
0.

64

16
" T

R
EE

43
7.

14

6"
 O

AK

34
" S

TU
M

P

15
" P

AL
M

14
" T

R
EE

48
4.

25

9"
 O

AK

6"
 T

R
EE

8"
 O

AK

12
" S

TU
M

P

24
" S

TU
M

P

42
9.

01

6"
 O

AK

43
1.

70

42
6.

23

47
7.

23

41
9.

41

47
8.

53

43
1.

30

43
1.

03

20
" O

AK

8"
 O

AK

48
8.

49

16
" R

ED
W

O
O

D

8"
 P

AL
M

BL
D

G
.

7"
 O

AK

46
0.

99

24
" S

TU
M

P16
" T

R
EE

44
7.

80

10
" T

R
EE

6"
 P

AL
M

45
5.

87

44
7.

50

45
0.

60

45
6.

10

45
8.

02

10
" O

AK

6"
 T

R
EE

12
" P

AL
M

46
0.

43

46
0.

81

14
" P

AL
M

8"
 T

R
EE

20
" O

AK

12
" O

AK

30
" C

LU
ST

ER

43
1.

53

12
" T

R
EE

46
1.

82

48
3.

09
44

8.
78

42
1.

19

30
" S

TU
M

P

46
7.

91

46
5.

28

4"
 T

R
EE

80
" C

LU
ST

ER

43
4.

43

46
1.

81

12
" C

LU
ST

ER

44
5.

72

16
" P

AL
M

32
" C

LU
ST

ER

6"
 C

LU
ST

ER

6"
 T

R
EE

42
0.

27

45
3.

78

14
" P

AL
M

43
9.

78

4"
 T

R
EE

40
" S

TU
M

P

6"
 O

AK

43
9.

44

44
0.

22

45
3.

13

6"
 O

AK

12
" T

R
EE

44
6.

39

45
9.

57

45
9.

24

43
4.

86

44
4.

94

45
3.

95

46
0.

52

45
8.

26

46
6.

19

44
9.

98

44
7.

96

30
" P

IN
E

18
" P

AL
M

46
3.

71

45
4.

71

45
5.

89

45
5.

85
46

4.
57

46
1.

74

46
4.

17

24
" O

AK

44
9.

25

8"
 O

AK

6"
 O

AK

24
" S

TU
M

P

47
2.

55

46
6.

60

10
" O

AK

20
" T

R
EE

43
4.

54

44
1.

69

10
" T

R
EE

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER

8"
 O

AK

45
8.

95

45
9.

19

26
" P

AL
M

42
1.

38

42
6.

55

10
" O

AK

45
0.

84

45
2.

96

18
" C

LU
ST

ER

47
2.

72

6"
 C

LU
ST

ER

20
" T

R
EE

44
9.

45

44
5.

29

16
" T

R
EE

46
7.

01

46
6.

48

28
" T

R
EE

16
" O

AK

18
" P

AL
M

16
" T

R
EE

46
6.

79

46
8.

51

14
" T

R
EE

4"
 T

R
EE

47
1.

27

6"
 T

R
EE 30

" S
TU

M
P

44
9.

01

8"
 T

R
EE

8"
 T

R
EE

45
8.

10

43
4.

85

42
2.

18
14

" O
AK

47
6.

65

48
0.

33

12
" P

AL
M

49
0.

27

44
3.

52

47
0.

11

14
" P

AL
M

43
2.

12

45
1.

80

47
8.

40

48
0.

60

47
2.

63

47
6.

70

47
8.

23

18
" P

IN
E

16
" Y

U
C

C
A

14
" O

AK

19
" P

IN
E

30
" T

R
EE

43
2.

56

44
7.

80

12
" O

AK

45
0.

59

12
" O

AK

40
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

18
" O

AK

8"
 O

AK

46
2.

83

46
6.

98

12
" O

AK

44
9.

20

10
" T

R
EE

6"
 T

R
EE

6"
 O

AK

22
" T

R
EE

46
9.

93

46
9.

44

14
" P

AL
M

44
2.

68

8"
 O

AK

20
" C

LU
ST

ER

45
1.

18

44
3.

21

44
4.

93

45
4.

60

44
8.

74

44
3.

23

48
6.

69

6"
 Y

U
C

C
A

10
" T

R
EE

42
4.

95

20
" O

AK

24
" O

AK

42
9.

91

70
" Y

U
C

C
A 

C
LU

ST
ER

47
9.

37

40
" Y

U
C

C
A 

C
LU

ST
ER

14
" O

AK 20
" S

TU
M

P

47
9.

45

16
" T

R
EE

12
" O

AK

43
2.

64

47
7.

70

46
0.

29

18
" C

LU
ST

ER
48

1.
98

46
1.

32

43
6.

50

48
3.

12

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER

48
7.

26

30
" P

AL
M

42
8.

23

44
2.

85

49
0.

30

4"
 O

AK

18
" P

AL
M

18
" C

LU
ST

ER

6"
 O

AK

12
" T

R
EE

22
" S

TU
M

P 6"
 O

AK

48
" S

TU
M

P

43
9.

92

45
9.

85
44

6.
47

44
9.

88

4"
 T

R
EE

46
7.

82

12
" T

R
EE

12
" O

AK

14
" T

R
EE

8"
 O

AK

45
0.

67

46
0.

25

14
" P

AL
M

36
" T

R
EE

6"
 T

R
EE

45
9.

66

45
2.

62

45
1.

89

10
" T

R
EE

8"
 O

AK

8"
 O

AK

14
"O

AK
47

0.
86

40
" S

TU
M

P
43

4.
31

24
" S

TU
M

P
42

6.
12

24
" S

TU
M

P
43

2.
64

12
" C

LU
ST

ER
43

4.
76

34
" S

TU
M

P
43

8.
30

14
" T

R
EE

42
9.

91

22
" C

LU
ST

ER
42

9.
01

6"
 T

R
EE

42
6.

23

30
" C

LU
ST

ER
43

0.
14

10
" T

R
EE

43
1.

69

4"
 T

R
EE

43
4.

43

30
" C

LU
ST

ER
42

8.
36

6"
 T

R
EE

42
8.

23

10
" O

AK
42

8.
77

10
" O

AK
42

9.
49

8"
 O

AK
43

0.
43

14
" O

AK
43

1.
70

6"
 O

AK
43

1.
53

6"
 O

AK
43

2.
12

BL
D

G
.

43
6.

63

14
" O

AK
42

6.
55

80
" C

LU
ST

ER
43

0.
50

6"
 O

AK
42

4.
95

30
" S

TU
M

P
42

0.
27

20
" S

TU
M

P
41

9.
31

8"
 O

AK
41

9.
41

4"
 T

R
EE

41
8.

07
28

" O
AK

41
6.

84

12
" O

AK
41

7.
2216
" O

AK
41

9.
70

8"
 O

AK
42

1.
38

12
" O

AK
42

1.
19

12
" O

AK
42

1.
26

22
" O

AK
42

2.
18

40
" C

LU
ST

ER
43

1.
03

14
" O

AK
43

0.
20

12
" T

R
EE

43
2.

11

12
" T

R
EE

43
2.

56

12
" C

LU
ST

ER
42

9.
3510
" T

R
EE

43
0.

34 8"
 T

R
EE

43
1.

30

43
4.

84

30
" Y

U
C

C
A

43
4.

85

30
" Y

U
C

C
A

43
6.

76

20
" Y

U
C

C
A

43
5.

57

16
" R

ED
W

O
O

D
43

9.
30

30
" R

ED
W

O
O

D
43

9.
44

FE
N

C
E

43
7.

14

43
6.

50

30
" T

R
EE

43
7.

29

20
" S

TU
M

P
44

1.
49

8"
 S

TU
M

P
44

0.
91

20
" O

AK
44

0.
76

8"
 T

R
EE

44
2.

97

8"
 O

AK
44

2.
71

16
" O

AK
44

3.
44

14
" T

R
EE

44
3.

52

12
" T

R
EE

44
3.

70

12
" T

R
EE

44
8.

84

22
" S

TU
M

P
45

3.
16

6"
 O

AK
45

8.
95

12
" P

AL
M

46
0.

9918
" T

R
EE

46
0.

80

12
" O

AK
46

2.
06

18
" O

AK
46

3.
33

16
" O

AK
46

4.
65

20
" S

TU
M

P
44

4.
93

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER
44

4.
4618

" C
LU

ST
ER

44
4.

94

6"
 T

R
EE

44
3.

23

10
" T

R
EE

44
3.

39

22
" O

AK
44

1.
69

10
" S

TU
M

P
44

1.
88

12
" T

R
EE

44
0.

51

8"
 P

AL
M

44
0.

22

12
" O

AK
43

7.
96

10
" T

R
EE

43
9.

62
6"

 T
R

EE
43

7.
78

12
" T

R
EE

43
7.

33
6"

 T
R

EE
43

7.
34

22
" O

AK
43

4.
60

12
" T

R
EE

43
9.

78

8"
 T

R
EE

44
0.

92

16
" T

R
EE

44
1.

21
16

" T
R

EE
44

2.
68

26
" T

R
EE

44
3.

79

12
" O

AK
44

6.
39

10
" T

R
EE

44
8.

63

16
" C

LU
ST

ER
44

8.
74

16
" T

R
EE

45
0.

11

16
" T

R
EE

44
9.

21

22
" S

TU
M

P
44

8.
28

40
" S

TU
M

P
44

8.
78

16
" T

R
EE

44
9.

45

24
" S

TU
M

P
44

9.
01

18
" T

R
EE

44
7.

73

26
" S

TU
M

P
44

7.
80

22
" S

TU
M

P
44

7.
80

22
" S

TU
M

P
44

9.
58

34
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

45
0.

59

48
" S

TU
M

P
45

2.
58

18
" S

TU
M

P
45

4.
60

14
" O

AK
45

5.
51

8"
 T

R
EE

45
2.

47

18
" T

R
EE

45
3.

28

12
" O

AK
45

1.
50

8"
 O

AK
45

3.
95

6"
 O

AK
45

2.
99

18
" C

LU
ST

ER
44

7.
23

16
" T

R
EE

44
9.

81

4"
 T

R
EE

44
9.

48

6"
 P

AL
M

44
9.

87
6"

 P
AL

M
44

9.
88

6"
 P

AL
M

44
9.

98
10

" P
AL

M
45

0.
36

12
" O

AK
44

9.
20

20
" S

TU
M

P
44

7.
96

16
" T

R
EE

44
8.

31 4"
 T

R
EE

45
1.

96

4"
 T

R
EE

45
1.

65

4"
 T

R
EE

45
3.

51

20
" T

R
EE

45
4.

21

24
" S

TU
M

P
45

1.
18

40
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

44
9.

934"
 T

R
EE

44
9.

25

4"
 T

R
EE

44
9.

86

4"
 T

R
EE

45
0.

79

8"
 O

AK
45

1.
10

6"
 O

AK
45

5.
89

8"
 T

R
EE

45
4.

74

22
" T

R
EE

45
5.

858"
 O

AK
45

6.
10

8"
 T

R
EE

45
3.

87

12
" T

R
EE

45
2.

73

12
" S

TU
M

P
45

1.
89

6"
 T

R
EE

45
1.

38
12

" C
LU

ST
ER

45
2.

24
20

" C
LU

ST
ER

45
2.

96

8"
 P

AL
M

45
6.

05

6"
 T

R
EE

45
6.

43

10
" T

R
EE

45
7.

01 36
" T

R
EE

45
7.

97

16
" P

AL
M

45
7.

83

20
" T

R
EE

45
7.

54

18
" P

AL
M

46
0.

57

12
" O

AK
45

9.
66

8"
 O

AK
45

9.
6212

" P
AL

M
45

9.
57

12
" P

AL
M

46
1.

82

14
" P

AL
M

46
0.

43

18
" T

R
EE

46
0.

52
10

" O
AK

46
3.

49 6"
 O

AK
46

3.
71 8"

 T
R

EE
46

5.
29

36
" T

R
EE

46
5.

89

14
" P

AL
M

46
4.

17

14
" P

AL
M

46
3.

18

12
" P

AL
M

46
2.

89

28
" T

R
EE

46
3.

11

12
" T

R
EE

45
7.

23

8"
 P

AL
M

45
8.

878"
 P

AL
M

46
0.

25

8"
 T

R
EE

46
1.

05

8"
 T

R
EE

46
1.

39

14
" P

AL
M

46
1.

74

8"
 P

AL
M

46
2.

83

24
" S

TU
M

P
46

6.
21

16
" P

AL
M

46
4.

57

18
" P

AL
M

46
5.

73

18
" P

AL
M

46
5.

74

6"
 T

R
EE

46
0.

96

6"
 T

R
EE

46
0.

81

20
" T

R
EE

45
9.

734"
 T

R
EE

45
9.

01
6"

 T
R

EE
46

1.
81

32
" C

LU
ST

ER
46

3.
28

20
" O

AK

6"
 C

LU
ST

ER
47

2.
72

6"
 T

R
EE

46
7.

01

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER
46

6.
48

6"
 T

R
EE

46
7.

66

18
" P

AL
M

46
7.

74

16
" O

AK
46

7.
47

24
" T

R
EE

46
7.

91

24
" S

TU
M

P
16

" P
AL

M
46

9.
93

20
" P

AL
M

46
9.

56

8"
 T

R
EE

46
8.

51

6"
 T

R
EE

46
6.

79

8"
 T

R
EE

46
8.

33

12
" P

AL
M

46
7.

62

30
" T

R
EE

46
9.

60

14
" P

AL
M

46
9.

52

12
" O

AK
46

9.
45

12
" P

AL
M

47
1.

43

30
" S

TU
M

P

12
" T

R
EE

46
9.

44
6"

 T
R

EE
47

0.
11 12

" T
R

EE
47

1.
27

4"
 T

R
EE

47
2.

55

24
" P

AL
M

47
3.

11

16
" O

AK
47

3.
32

16
" P

AL
M

47
2.

86

20
" S

TU
M

P
16

" T
R

EE
47

6.
03

14
" O

AK
47

6.
70

4"
 T

R
EE

47
6.

50

12
" C

LU
ST

ER
48

0.
33

6"
 T

R
EE

47
9.

12

8"
 T

R
EE

47
4.

81

30
" T

R
EE

47
5.

42

12
" C

LU
ST

ER
47

6.
07

18
" C

LU
ST

ER
47

6.
31

14
" T

R
EE

47
7.

46

5"
 T

R
EE

48
1.

40
5"

 T
R

EE
48

1.
44

4"
 T

R
EE

48
0.

60

16
" O

AK
47

9.
45

8"
 O

AK
47

9.
14

10
" T

R
EE

47
5.

11

10
" O

AK
47

8.
40

20
" O

AK
47

8.
53

12
" P

AL
M

46
2.

33 14
" P

AL
M

46
3.

70

16
" T

R
EE

46
2.

27

6"
 C

LU
ST

ER
46

2.
52

6"
 C

LU
ST

ER
46

2.
54

34
" S

TU
M

P

12
" P

AL
M

46
4.

10

20
" P

AL
M

46
3.

87

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER
45

3.
78

12
" T

R
EE

45
9.

28

12
" O

AK
45

9.
56

12
" C

LU
ST

ER
45

9.
90

11
" T

R
EE

46
0.

29

30
" T

R
EE

45
7.

16

18
" C

LU
ST

ER
45

4.
40

24
" O

AK
46

0.
04

6"
 O

AK
46

1.
32

18
" C

LU
ST

ER
45

0.
84

9"
 O

AK
45

0.
90

18
" P

IN
E

45
5.

30

23
" T

R
EE

45
4.

67

12
" O

AK
45

6.
32

8"
 T

R
EE

45
5.

32
8"

 T
R

EE
45

8.
26 28

" P
AL

M
45

8.
10

19
" P

IN
E

45
9.

19

8"
 T

R
EE

45
9.

92
9"

 T
R

EE
45

9.
24

24
" P

IN
E

45
9.

85
30

" P
AL

M
46

1.
20

26
"P

AL
M

46
2.

42

14
" P

AL
M

6"
 O

AK
45

6.
47

6"
 O

AK
45

6.
13

10
" P

AL
M

44
8.

20

40
" S

TU
M

P
44

8.
16 26

" S
TU

M
P

44
8.

33

20
" S

TU
M

P
44

6.
47

16
" O

AK
44

2.
85

10
" O

AK
44

0.
64

18
" P

AL
M

44
5.

72

8"
 O

AK
44

6.
22

4"
 O

AK
44

7.
36

6"
 T

R
EE

45
2.

62

6"
 T

R
EE

45
2.

37

8"
 O

AK
45

1.
48

8"
 T

R
EE

45
1.

95

6"
 T

R
EE

45
3.

16

12
" T

R
EE

45
3.

13

10
" T

R
EE

45
0.

57

10
" T

R
EE

45
0.

25

8"
 T

R
EE

44
7.

37
16

" O
AK

44
5.

29

6"
 O

AK
44

4.
27

30
" O

AK
43

8.
80

6"
 O

AK
43

4.
54

20
" T

R
EE

43
4.

86

18
" O

AK
43

8.
04

20
" C

LU
ST

ER
43

9.
92

10
" O

AK
44

1.
76

6"
 O

AK
44

4.
53

20
" O

AK
44

7.
50

16
" T

R
EE

45
5.

61

14
" O

AK
44

8.
72

4"
 T

R
EE

44
7.

76

40
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

30
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

44
4.

83

40
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

44
3.

60

6"
 T

R
EE

44
3.

21

10
" O

AK
44

7.
27

12
" P

AL
M

45
0.

67

6"
 O

AK
45

0.
60

10
" O

AK
45

5.
87 6"

 O
AK

45
6.

30

30
" P

IN
E

45
8.

02

10
" O

AK
45

6.
59 7"

 O
AK

45
4.

71
8"

 O
AK

45
3.

14

4"
 O

AK
45

3.
00

12
" O

AK
45

1.
80

6"
 O

AK
45

2.
23

8"
 O

AK
45

8.
46

14
" O

AK
45

9.
34

24
" O

AK
46

5.
59

22
" O

AK
46

7.
35

9"
 Y

U
C

C
A

46
6.

92

7"
 R

ED
W

O
O

D
46

4.
27

5"
 R

ED
W

O
O

D
46

1.
98

10
" O

AK
45

4.
07

14
" O

AK
45

6.
47

18
" O

AK
45

5.
92

8"
 O

AK
45

7.
08

6"
 O

AK
46

3.
09

16
" O

AK
45

9.
02

10
" O

AK
45

9.
73

8"
 P

AL
M

46
1.

93

30
" P

AL
M

46
7.

35
16

" P
AL

M
46

9.
11

12
" O

AK
46

6.
22

16
" P

AL
M

46
6.

19

34
" S

TU
M

P
46

6.
07

14
" P

AL
M

46
5.

85

14
" P

AL
M

46
7.

36

8"
 O

AK
46

6.
60

14
" P

AL
M

46
7.

82

14
" P

AL
M

47
0.

04

14
" P

AL
M

47
1.

26

14
" P

AL
M

46
9.

38 50
" O

AK
46

7.
45

8"
 O

AK
46

4.
79

30
" S

TU
M

P
46

6.
98

30
" C

LU
ST

ER
46

5.
28

6"
 T

R
EE

46
8.

12

14
" T

R
EE

46
7.

93

8"
 O

AK
46

9.
72

14
" P

AL
M

46
9.

98

14
" P

AL
M

47
3.

38

5"
 O

AK
47

2.
48

15
" P

AL
M

47
2.

638"
 T

R
EE

47
4.

40

14
" O

AK
47

6.
32

20
" P

AL
M

47
7.

34

16
" P

AL
M

47
4.

57

6"
 T

R
EE

47
5.

47

12
" P

AL
M

47
5.

7212
" T

R
EE

47
9.

50

16
" P

AL
M

47
6.

38

20
" P

AL
M

47
6.

65

24
" Y

U
C

C
A 

C
LU

ST
ER

48
0.

45

18
" P

AL
M

47
7.

23

18
" P

AL
M

47
8.

23

16
" Y

U
C

C
A

47
7.

70

40
" Y

U
C

C
A 

C
LU

ST
ER

47
8.

3812
" Y

U
C

C
A 

C
LU

ST
ER

47
9.

34
10

" T
R

EE
47

9.
37

30
" Y

U
C

C
A 

C
LU

ST
ER

47
8.

97
70

" Y
U

C
C

A 
C

LU
ST

ER
48

0.
83

24
" C

O
N

IF
ER

47
6.

58

24
" P

AL
M

48
1.

47

24
" P

AL
M

48
0.

43

14
" S

TU
M

P
47

8.
64

24
" S

TU
M

P
48

0.
76

6"
 O

AK
48

3.
57

12
" S

TU
M

P
48

3.
09

8"
 O

AK
48

2.
99

6"
 T

R
EE

48
4.

25

5"
 T

R
EE

48
3.

12

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER
48

3.
16

6"
 T

R
EE

48
3.

69

30
" S

TU
M

P
48

1.
08

30
" S

TU
M

P
48

2.
00

20
" O

AK
48

1.
98

22
" S

TU
M

P
48

3.
11

8"
 Y

U
C

C
A

48
6.

21

30
" S

TU
M

P
48

6.
79

30
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

48
9.

45
12

" S
TU

M
P

48
7.

936"
 O

AK
48

8.
49

8"
 O

AK
48

8.
36

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER
48

7.
74

80
" C

LU
ST

ER
48

7.
26

6"
 Y

U
C

C
A

49
0.

30

10
" Y

U
C

C
A

49
0.

30

10
" Y

U
C

C
A

49
0.

27

12
" T

R
EE

48
6.

69

46
5.

85

8"
 O

AK

8"
 T

R
EE

8"
 O

AK

45
3.

00

22
" S

TU
M

P

44
7.

73

43
8.

80

45
0.

25

12
" O

AK

6"
 T

R
EE

6"
 T

R
EE

6"
 T

R
EE

46
3.

33

44
0.

91

43
6.

76

12
" T

R
EE

22
" O

AK

30
" S

TU
M

P

4"
 T

R
EE

8"
 O

AK

45
9.

28

80
" C

LU
ST

ER

42
6.

12

12
" Y

U
C

C
A 

C
LU

ST
ER

16
" O

AK

14
" T

R
EE

11
" T

R
EE

5"
 T

R
EE

12
" C

LU
ST

ER

14
" P

AL
M

20
" Y

U
C

C
A

46
1.

20

44
8.

20

46
8.

12

43
6.

63
10

" T
R

EE

43
4.

60

6"
 O

AK

46
8.

33

14
" O

AK

20
" S

TU
M

P

44
4.

53

44
9.

81

44
8.

31 45
1.

96

45
6.

30

45
0.

79

20
" C

LU
ST

ER

16
" P

AL
M

12
" S

TU
M

P

22
" O

AK

46
3.

18

24
" S

TU
M

P

46
1.

93

6"
 T

R
EE

45
2.

37

45
4.

07

8"
 T

R
EE

46
0.

57

45
1.

65

12
" P

AL
M

10
" P

AL
M

34
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

45
9.

01

40
" S

TU
M

P

16
" C

LU
ST

ER

43
7.

78

8"
 C

LU
ST

ER

16
" O

AK

46
4.

79

FE
N

C
E

30
" R

ED
W

O
O

D

43
0.

20

23
" T

R
EE

16
" T

R
EE

46
2.

33
12

" P
AL

M

46
7.

45

46
7.

47

47
2.

48

12
" T

R
EE

47
3.

11

48
3.

69

12
" P

AL
M

8"
 P

AL
M

24
" P

AL
M

45
6.

32

14
"O

AK

12
" P

AL
M 24

" T
R

EE

6"
 T

R
EE

47
0.

04

42
9.

49

45
5.

30

45
9.

34

43
8.

04
14

" P
AL

M

14
" O

AK

22
" C

LU
ST

ER

47
8.

38

12
" C

LU
ST

ER

10
" O

AK

10
" Y

U
C

C
A

20
" P

AL
M

43
4.

31

6"
 C

LU
ST

ER

46
7.

36

12
" O

AK

46
9.

60

6"
 O

AK

8"
 O

AK

4"
 O

AK

16
" P

AL
M

12
" O

AK

46
7.

35

30
" E

U
C

AL
YP

TU
S

46
6.

07

8"
 T

R
EE

45
6.

47

14
" P

AL
M

46
2.

89

18
" P

AL
M

34
" S

TU
M

P

46
2.

0645
2.

73

45
3.

16

45
4.

74

6"
 P

AL
M

45
4.

21

44
9.

93

44
4.

83

45
1.

95

12
" O

AK

22
" O

AK

44
9.

58

18
" O

AK

44
4.

27

45
5.

51

44
9.

21

10
" S

TU
M

P

12
" T

R
EE

43
7.

96

20
" O

AK

46
0.

80

6"
 O

AK

26
" S

TU
M

P

49
0.

30

30
" Y

U
C

C
A

44
2.

97

43
0.

34

12
" T

R
EE

45
5.

61

41
9.

70

8"
 O

AK

8"
 T

R
EE

18
" O

AK

48
6.

21

45
0.

90

45
4.

40

4"
 T

R
EE

12
" C

LU
ST

ER

46
3.

70

44
3.

44

48
2.

99

12
" T

R
EE

18
" C

LU
ST

ER

30
" T

R
EE

6"
 P

AL
M

8"
 T

R
EE

16
" T

R
EE

44
3.

70

8"
 P

AL
M

8"
 O

AK

46
9.

56

18
" P

AL
M

46
9.

72

46
7.

74

6"
 T

R
EE

16
" T

R
EE

16
" O

AK

18
" T

R
EE

44
7.

11

TO
P

45
0.

05

44
4.

84

TO
P

TO
P

45
0.

05

44
4.

84

TO
P

TO
P

TO
P

TO
P

44
9.

83

44
7.

11

44
9.

83
TO

P

G
AR

AG
E

47
7.

40
G

AR
AG

E

47
6.

15
G

AR
AG

E
47

6.
69

G
AR

AG
E

47
8.

65
G

AR
AG

E

47
7.

06

45
9.

57
F.

F.

48
1.

88

46
6.

29

48
8.

80

FE
N

C
E

49
1.

59

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

48
5.

17

FE
N

C
E

44
5.

86

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

48
4.

05

FE
N

C
E

48
7.

42

47
4.

55

FE
N

C
E

48
8.

59

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

48
4.

53

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E FE

N
C

E

FE
N

C
E

46
6.

29

44
5.

43
FE

N
C

E

48
8.

58

47
7.

95
47

4.
55

FE
N

C
E

49
1.

59

FE
N

C
E

47
7.

95

48
7.

42

48
3.

30

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

48
5.

17

48
4.

53

48
4.

05

48
3.

30

48
2.

36

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

44
5.

43

48
0.

85

48
2.

49

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

48
2.

36

48
2.

21

FE
N

C
E

48
8.

59

44
5.

86

49
0.

68

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

48
8.

58

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

48
1.

84

FE
N

C
E

FE
N

C
E

49
0.

99

FE
N

C
E

O
H
W

O
H

W

O
H
W

N

2,200 SF

TOTAL PROPOSED

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
4

A
P
N
:
0
6
2
-
2
9
1
-
0
6
0
-
0
5

A
R
E
A
 
=
 
9
,2
9
1
±
 
S
Q
. 
F
T
.

PATIO

277 SF
1
/
2
"
 
B
O
L
T

12,969  SF

AN
TO

N
IO

BR
IC

K
PA

TI
O

3/
8"

 P
IN

17,865 SF

GYM
MAIN BUILDING

R
EB

AR
 W

IT
H

 N
O

 C
AP

BE
AR

S
N

84
°4

9'
W

0.
47

'

IR
O

N
 P

IP
E 

W
IT

H
IL

LE
G

IB
LE

 T
AG

BE
AR

S
N

30
°3

1'
W

0.
71

'

WOOD
WALL

ST
O

N
E

W
AL

L

E
X
IS
T
IN
G
 
H
O
U
S
E

#
1
9
8
4
 
S
A
N
 
A
N
T
O
N
IO
 
A
V
E
N
U
E

MEDIAN CURB

EXISTING

14,821 SF

PROPOSED

B
E
A
R
S

N
3
1
°
5
7
'W

0
.5
3
'

R
E
B
A
R
 
W
IT
H
 
N
O
 
C
A
P

B
E
A
R
S

N
8
4
°
4
9
'W

0
.4
7
'

S
T
O
N
E
 
P
A
T
H

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

T
E
N
N
IS

C
O
U
R
T

CONCRETE GUTTER

5
' 
W
ID
E
 
U
T
IL
IT
Y
 
E
A
S
E
M
E
N
T

P
E
R
 
(2
0
0
9
-
1
5
2
3
5
1
)

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENT
PER (2010-204026)

ROCK
WALL

GYM

GAME ROOM/CAFETERIA

GARAGE

235 SF

13,119 SF

CONCRETE   SIDEWALK

A
S
P
H
A
L
T

D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

B
E
A
R
S

N
8
6
°
0
8
'W

0
.4
1
'

15,190 SF

W
IR
E
 
F
E
N
C
E

30,011 SF

POOL HOUSE
SHED

5'
 W

ID
E 

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
PE

R
 (2

00
9-

15
23

51
)

CONCRETESIDEWALK

SP
EE

D
BU

M
P

10%% OF LOT COVERAGE EXISTING

SHED

PROPOSED GROSS FLOOR AREA

2,200 SF

S
T
O
N
E

W
A
L
L

METAL FENCE

C
H

AI
N

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E

ST
O

NE
 P

AT
H

C
H

AI
N

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E

A
S
P
H
A
L
T

D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

2,000 SF

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

S
T
E
P
S

S
P
E
E
D

B
U
M
P

BUILDING FOOTPRINT & LOT COVERAGE

15,190 SF

6,540 SF

IR
O
N
 
P
IP
E

W
IT
H
 
IL
L
E
G
IB
L
E

T
A
G

B
E
A
R
S

N
2
9
°
0
4
'W

0
.8
7
'

M
ET
AL
 F
EN
C
E

B
R
IC
K

P
A
T
IO

46
9.

85

CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

POOL

14
' 
W
ID
E
 
A
C
C
E
S
S
 E
A
S
E
M
EN
T

P
ER
 
(2
0
0
9
-
15
2
3
5
1)

POOL DECK
37,371 SF

B
E
A
R
S

N
1
2
°
2
4
'E

0
.5
5
'

MAIN BUILDING

LOT SIZE

11.4%

120,873 SF

SHED
TOTAL

S
T
O
N
E

W
A
L
L

GYM

D
R
A
IN
A
G
E

P
O
N
D

WOOD
WALL

CONCRETEWALL

C
H
A
IN
 
L
IN
K
 
F
E
N
C
E

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

W
A
L
L

ME
TA
L 
FE
NC

E CONCRETE

WALL

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

W
A
L
L

B
E
A
R
S

N
4
0
°
4
2
'W

0
.1
7
'

PAVING

519 SF
COVERED PORCH

B
E
A
R
S

N
2
8
°
5
2
'W

0
.5
5
'

B
E
A
R
S

N
7
1
°
3
5
'W

0
.3
0
'

3 
ST

O
R

Y

MEDIAN CURB

CONCRETEWALL

W
IR

E  
FE

N
C

E

METAL FENCE

BE
AR

S
N

71
°3

5'
W

0.
30

'

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

W
A
L
L

CHAIN LINK FENCE

12,082 SF

13,119 SF

GAME ROOM

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
W
A
L
L

A
S
P
H
A
L
T

D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

R
O
C
K
S

IR
O

N
 P

IP
E 

W
IT

H
 T

AG
"L

S 
54

49
"

BE
AR

S
N

44
°2

9'
W

0.
93

'

IR
O

N
 P

IP
E

W
IT

H
 IL

LE
G

IB
LE

TA
G

BE
AR

S
N

29
°0

4'
W

0.
87

'

BE
AR

S
N

12
°2

4'
E

0.
55

'

AS
PH

AL
T

D
R

IV
EW

AY

AS
PH

AL
T

D
R

IV
EW

AY

W
IR

E 
FE

N
C

E

R
EB

AR
 A

N
D

 C
AP

"R
C

E 
18

65
0"

W
O

O
D

 A
N

D
 W

IR
E 

FE
N

C
E

AS
PH

AL
T

D
R

IV
EW

AY

CHAIN LINK FENCE

GARAGE

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 H

O
U

SE
#6

75
 A

R
LI

N
G

TO
N

 A
VE

N
U

E

   235 SF

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

CONCRETE WALL

ROCK
WALL

A
S
P
H
A
L
T
 
B
E
R
M

ROCK
WALL

CONCRETE WA
LL

CONCRETE  SIDEWALK

W
O

O
D

D
EC

K

5'
 W

ID
E 

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
PE

R
 (2

00
9-

15
23

51
)

R
O
C
K
S

PR
O

PE
R

TY
AD

JA
C

EN
T

CONCRETE   SIDEWALK

B
E
A
R
S

N
3
3
°
1
3
'W

0
.6
4
'

POOL HOUSE

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

W
A
L
L

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

S
T
E
P
S

B
E
A
R
S

N
6
4
°
0
8
'W

0
.3
0
'

6,540 SF

19
84

 S
AN

 641 SF

IMPERVIOUS SURFACES (OTHER THAN BUILDINGS)

EXISTING LOT COVERAGE

COVERED PORCH

AND GROSS FLOOR AREA:

PAVING

% OF LOT COVERAGE PROPOSED

19,516 SF

TOTAL EXISTING

277 SF

 641 SF

COVERED PORCH 519 SF

GYM

B
E
A
R
S

N
2
5
°
1
8
'W

0
.5
5
'

3
/
8
"
 
P
IN

IR
O
N
 
P
IP
E
 
W
IT
H
 
T
A
G

"
L
S
 
5
4
4
9
"

B
E
A
R
S

N
4
4
°
2
9
'W

0
.9
3
'

R
E
B
A
R
 
W
IT
H

N
O
 
C
A
P

B
E
A
R
S

N
6
2
°
3
7
'W

0
.3
2
'

B
E
A
R
S

N
7
9
°
1
2
'W

0
.3
3
'

IR
O
N
 
P
IP
E
 
W
IT
H

IL
L
E
G
IB
L
E
 
T
A
G

B
E
A
R
S

N
3
0
°
3
1
'W

0
.7
1
'

E
X
IS
T
IN
G
 
H
O
U
S
E

#
6
3
7
 
A
R
L
IN
G
T
O
N
 
A
V
E
N
U
E

A
S
P
H
A
L
T

B
E
R
M

A
S
P
H
A
L
T

D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

W
A
L
L

M
E
T
A
L 
F
E
N
C
E

A
S
P
H
A
L
T

D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

W
IR
E
 
F
E
N
C
E

B
R
IC
K
 
S
T
E
P
P
E
D
 
P
A
T
H

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

W
A
L
L

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
W
A
L
L

B
R
O
K
E
N
 
A
N
D

B
U
R
IE
D
 
C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

C
H
A
IN
 
LIN
K

FE
N
C
E

E
X
IS
T
IN
G
 
H
O
U
S
E

#
6
7
5
 
A
R
L
IN
G
T
O
N
 
A
V
E
N
U
E

CONCRETE WALL

A
S
P
H
A
L
T

D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

E
X
IS
T
IN
G

B
U
IL
D
IN
G

#
6
3
9
 
A
R
L
IN
G
T
O
N

A
V
E
N
U
E

CONCRETE  SIDEWALK

CONCRETESIDEWALK

W
O
O
D
 
A
N
D
 
W
IR
E
 
F
E
N
C
E

MEDIAN CURB

MEDIAN CURB

ROCK
WALL

5
' 
W
ID
E
 
U
T
IL
IT
Y
 
E
A
S
E
M
E
N
T

P
E
R
 
(2
0
0
9
-
1
5
2
3
5
1
)

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
2

A
P
N
:
0
6
2
-
2
9
1
6
-
0
5
9
-
0
5

A
R
E
A
 
=
 
9
,1
8
2
±
 
S
Q
. 
F
T
.

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

EASEMENT

PER (2010-204026)

P
A
R
C
E
L
 
3

A
P
N
:
0
6
2
-
2
9
1
6
-
0
6
0
-
0
4

A
R
E
A
 
=
 
1
1
,7
3
3
±
 
S
Q
. 
F
T
.

8"
TR

EE

2,200 SF

1,160 SF

GAME ROOM/CAFETERIA 1,868 SF

EXISTING GROSS FLOOR AREA

GAME ROOM 1,321 SF

GARAGE

2,200 SF

GARAGE 443 SF

TOTAL

2,000 SF

ROCKWALL

EXISTING

TOTAL PROPOSED

PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE

EXISTING
235 SFSHED

1,868 SF

443 SF

13,733 SF

998 SF

5
' 
W
ID
E
 
U
T
IL
IT
Y
 
E
A
S
E
M
E
N
T

P
E
R
 
(2
0
0
9
-
1
5
2
3
5
1
)

W
O
O
D

D
E
C
K

20,023 SF

L
A
R
G
E

R
O
C
K
S

A
SPH

A
LT D

RIVEW
A
Y

CONCRE
TE GUTT

ER

METAL FENCE

R
E
B
A
R
 
A
N
D
 
C
A
P

"
R
C
E
 
1
8
6
5
0
"

B
E
A
R
S

N
1
8
°
2
9
'W

0
.3
0
'

COVERED PORCH

TOTAL PROPOSED

MAIN BUILDING

PATIO

R
E
B
A
R
 
W
IT
H

N
O
 
C
A
P

   235 SF

MAIN BUILDING

ROCKWALL

CHAIN LINK

FENCE

S
P
E
E
D

B
U
M
P

R
O

C
KS

BE
AR

S
N

64
°0

8'
W

0.
30

'

RO
CKS

1,321 SF

C
H
A
IN
 
L
IN
K
 
F
E
N
C
E4

4 4
A050

LOT COVERAGE
EXISTING AND PROPOSED

 1/30" = 1'-0"
LOT COVERAGE - EXISTING

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

LOT COVERAGE - PROPOSED21
 1/30" = 1'-0"

14
" O

AK

1
4
"
 
O
A
K

48
0

480

430

470

46
0

460

440

450

450

430

490
48

0

460

42
0

44
0

440

460

470

470

47
0

48
0

440

48
0

480

440

420

42
0

450

450

470

48
0

480

490

450

430

490

48
0

480

46
0

450

420

490

44
0

430

460

50
'-0

"

6.1'

6'
-6

"

40'-0"

9.9'

7.1'

1
9
.9
'

1
9
.2
'

51
2'

-1
0"

9.9'

49.8'

24'-0"

47
'-2

"

16'-0"

13'-10"

22
'-7

"

5.8'

4'-1"

19
.2

'

13.1'

19
.9

'

9'-4"

11'-8"

18
'-6

"

28
.4

'

50
'-0

"

7
5
.1
'

6.1'

5.8'

13.1'

2
8
.4
'

6
1.2
'

460'-11"

460'-11"

27
'-5

"

10'-6"

N6
8°

28
'45

"W

114.09'

54.38'

79.27'

'

40.83'

1
3
7
.6
0
'

7
9
.7
0
'

23.01'

7
.6
8
'

2
8
.0
1
'

1

%%916
'

0

149.51'

"

2
7
.3
6
'

5
8
.0
3
'

40.83'

50
.7

0'

5.
00

'

23.03'

'

13
1.
0
1'
 
(1
3
1.
13
')

35.12'

==

8
3
.3
0
'

S
8
7
°
5
9
'2
1
"
W
 
(R
)

2

71.89'

114.09'

46.72'

3
7
.1
5
'

8
4
.6
4
'

S
7
7
°
3
3
'3
0
"
W

23.03'

1
0
4
.8
4
'

N
6
9
°
1
4
'4
0
"
E

5
.6
6
'

53
.0
4'

2
8
.9
8
'

18
.9
7
'

N31
°0

6'2
5"W

20.
57'

N07°09'46"E

59.19'

S12°26'30"E

58.71'

78.48'

3
9
.1
9
'

3
9
.5
7
'

N12°26'30"W
15.95'

L

3

60.28'

1
0
7
.0
2
'

N
28°

53'45"E

N11°41'08"E (R)

2

0
.

5
R

9

2
=

9

3
22=

0
0

1

29
.7

9'
79

.7
0'

84
.6

4'
35

.6
6'

13
7.

60
'

115.80'

46.72'

40
.8

7'
28

.0
1'

60
.6

8'

53
.04

'

53
.0

3'

28
.9

8'

35.12'

N31°06'25"W

N12°40'44"E

S12°26'30"E

S12°26'30"E150.37'

58.71'

70.23'

39
.1

9'

46
.0

9'

41
.6

0'

15.95'

60.28'

89
.5

6'

13
1.

01
' (1

31
.1

3')

N28°53'45"E

N11°41'08"E (R)

3
95=

54.38'

5

°

2'

C
A
LC
U
LA
T
E
D

B
A
S
IS
 
O
F
 
B
E
A
R
IN
G
S

N
6
8
°
2
8
'4
5
"W

'

=
9

5
0
.7
0
'

70.23' 79.27'

S12°26'30"E

4
1
.6
0
'

5
3
.0
3
'

17.39'

6
0
.6
8
'

1
9
.7
4
'

3
5
.6
6
'

1
5
.3
2
'

78.48'71.89'

59.19'
N07°09'46"E

17.39'

20.57'

18.97'

10
4.

84
'

19
.7

4'

S7
7°

33
'3

0"
W

83
.5

3'

5
R

.

58.03'

60
.7

9'

27
.3

6'

39
.5

7'

N12°26'30"W

L

5
.6
6
'

S8
7°

59
'2

1"
W

 (R
)

'

CA
LC

UL
AT

ED

BA
SI

S 
OF 

BE
AR

IN
GS

83
.3

0'
10

7.
02

'

2
.

37
.1

5'

23.01'

149.51'

15
.3

2'

4
0
.8
7
'

8
3
.5
3
'

2
9
.7
9
'

5
.0
0
'

115.80'

N12°40'44"E

6
0
.7
9
'

4
6
.0
9
'

8
9
.5
6
'

15.09'

" 9

3

0

%%916

°

2
9

.

0

15.09'

150.37'

'

'

93.34'

.

.

0

2

3

7

0

19.90'

78.80'

'

°

1

6

7

=

S7
8°

18
'5

2"
E

.

4

0

°

1
3
1
.8
7
'

6
.1
2
'

109.46'

'

R

1

=

%%916

2

4

05"

1
1
0
.5
0
'

N31
°0

6'2
4"W

N
7
3
°
5
8
'2
8
"
E

1
4
4
.8
8
'

N4
8°
19
'2
2"
EW

S4
7°
55
'4
1"
E

N01°24'50"W

7.98'

=
4

0
7

00'

N11°31'00"E

=
0'

=1°
9

=7'

\
U
+
0
3
9
4
=
4
°
3
9
'1
1
"

R1
7

%%9162
7
'

"
L4

4

9.25'

2

0

=
3
0

1
"

1

7

N12°40'44"E

49.17'

N07°09'46"E

N
7
7
°
3
5
'0
0
"
E

N
6
9
°
0
5
'2
4
"
E

L

1

0

78
.8
0'

" 0
' 4

2
%%916

'

6
R

1

N
69

°1
4'

40
"E

N
73

°5
8'

28
"E

N48°19'22"EW

S47°55'41"E

36
.6

6'

S7
7°

33
'3

0"
W

S12°26'30"E93.34'

N11°31'00"E

\U
+0

39
4=

4°
39

'1
1"

=27
%%916=2

71"
604'

0

.
0

3
°2

3
"

=
0

. 0
7

N12°40'44"E

49.17'

N07°09'46"E

N
69

°0
5'

24
"E

N
77

°3
5'

00
"E

' 7 = L" 1 ° 1%%916 0 . 10

' 0
7

L
.

2

0

=
0

'
9 3 4

109.46'

13
1.

87
'

6
'

'

L

0

R

0

L.4'

1'

162.52'

R

51
2.

81
'

11
0.

50
'

14
4.

88
'

=

5
=

5

6

1

N
7
7
°
3
5
'0
0
"
E

7
3
.4
5
'

0

'

3
1

0

%
%
9
16

6'1

8

2'

L
=
6
.9
0
'

3" %%916

S
7
7
°
3
3
'3
0
"
W

162.52'

.

S
7
8
°
1
8
'5
2
"E

1

19.
90'

58
.6
1'

N
6
9
°
1
4
'4
0
"
E

6

'

°

6

0

=°

.

R
=
8
4
.9
6
'

L

=
5

N20°4
5'20"W

3
6
.6
6
'

R

.
=

5
1
2
.8
1
'

2
0

13

L

4

1
=
.0

4

=

0

=

0

9
9
.9
8
'

N
6
9
°
0
5
'2
4
"
E

.

'
6

S12°26'30"E

R

°6

0

N31°06'24"W

58.61'

R
=8

4.
96

'

L=
6.

90
'

.

10

8
4

=2

.

0

4

1

1

N
77

°3
5'

00
"E

99
.9

8'

%%91
6

73
.4

5'

.3
3

'
=R

4

=

=

1
2
"
 
O
A
K

1
2
"
 
O
A
K

12
" O

AK

1
2
"
 
O
A
K

2
6
"
 
P
A
L
M

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

FRONT

SETBACK

115'-3"

FR
ON

T 
SE

TB
AC

K 
11

5'-
3"

(2
5%

 O
F 

46
1')

FRONT SETBACK

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

FRONT

SETBACK

115'-3"

(25% OF 461')

FR
ON

T 
SE

TB
AC

K 
11

5'-
3"

(2
5%

 O
F 

46
1')

FRONT SETBACK

115'-3" (25% OF 461')

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

SIDE SETBACK 4'

SIDE SETBACK 4'

SIDE SETBACK 4'

(25% OF 461')

115'-3" (25% OF 461')

SIDE SETBACK 4'

Page 26 of 103

Page 292



A060

PHOTOS

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 27 of 103

Page 293



A070

PHOTOS
(MAIN HOUSE)

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 28 of 103

Page 294



PHOTOS
(OUTDOOR)

A080

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 29 of 103

Page 295



SIDE SETBACK 4'

SIDE SETBACK 4'

(25%
 OF 461')

11
5'

-3
" (

25
%

 O
F 

46
1'

)

SIDE SETBACK 4'

SETBACK

115'-3"

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

FRONT

FRONT SETBACK 115'-3"

(25% OF 461')

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

 4
'

FR
O

NT
 S

ET
BA

CK

%%916=
26 °5

4 ' 0
5 "

EXISTING
BUILDING

P
E
D
E
S
T
R
I A
N
 
A
C
C
E
S
S
 
E
A
S
E
M
E
N
T

P
E
R
 
(2
0
1
0
-
2
0
4
0
2
6
)

P
E
D
E
S
T
R
IA
N
 
A
C
C
E
S
S

E
A
S
E
M
E
N
T

P
E
R
 
(2
0
1
0
-
2
0
4
0
2
6
)

14
' 
W
ID
E 
A
C
C
ES
S 
EA
SE
M
EN
T

PE
R 
(2
00
9-
15
23
51
)

5' WID
E UTIL

ITY EA
SEMEN

T

PER (2
009-1

52351)

5' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT
PER (2009-152351)

5' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT
PER (2009-152351)

PARCEL 2
APN:062-2916-059-05
AREA = 9,182± SQ. FT.

PARCEL 3
APN:062-2916-060-04
AREA = 11,733± SQ. FT.

PARCEL 4
APN:062-291-060-05
AREA = 9,291± SQ. FT.

TOP

TOP

TOP

TOP

449.83

450.05

447.11

444.84

F.F.
459.57

8"TREE

10"TREE

469.85

479.54

T/W

T/W
T/W

462.92

462.56
462.67

GARAGE GARAGE

GARAGE
GARAGE GARAGE

477.40 478.65

476.69
477.06 476.15

J.P.

GUY

488.36

488.58

F.H.

W.V.

W.M.

486.48

486.18

477.46

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCEFENCE

FENCEFENCE
FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

490.99

490.68

491.59

488.59

488.58

487.42

482.36

483.30

485.17

484.05

488.80

484.53480.85

477.95474.55
466.29

445.86

445.43

DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

420

420

43
0

440

440

450

45
0

45
0

46
0

46
0

460

470

47
0

470

480

480

480

480

480

490

49
0

44
0

43
0

OHW

OHW

14" CLUSTER

14" CLUSTER

16" STUMP

1
3
.1
'

19.9'

28.4'

19.2'

7
.1
'

9
.9
'

6
.1
'

5
.8
'

61
.2
'

75.1'

4
9
.8
'

83.53' 29.79'37.15'79.70'84.64'35.66'

S77°33'30"W
5.00'

19.74'137.60'

2
3
.0
1
'

2
3
.0
3
'

1
1
5
.8
0
'

4
6
.7
2
'

104.84
'

N69°1
4'40"E

5.66'

40.87'
28.01'

60.68'
15.32'

5
3
.0
4
'

53.03'

28.98'

7.68'

58
.0
3'

18
.9
7'

1
7
.3
9
'

3
5
.1
2
'

4
0
.8
3
'

N
3
1
°
0
6
'2
5
"
W

2
0
.5
7
'

N
1
2
°
4
0
'4
4
"E

1
1
4
.0
9
'

N
0
7
°
0
9
'4
6
"E

5
9
.1
9
'

S
1
2
°
2
6
'3
0
"
E

1
4
9
.5
1
'

S
1
2
°
2
6
'3
0
"
E

1
5
0
.3
7
'

5
8
.7
1
'

5
4
.3
8
'

7
9
.2
7
'

7
8
.4
8
'

7
0
.2
3
'

7
1
.8
9
'

39.19' 60.79'

46.09'27.36'

50.70'

39.57'

41.60'

N
1
2
°
2
6
'3
0
"
W

1
5
.9
5
'

L=59 . 3
2 '

6
0
.2
8
'

89.56' 83.30' 107.02'

N68°28'45"W

131.01' (131.13')

CALCULATED

BASIS OF BEARINGS

N
2
8
°
5
3
'4
5
"E

15
.0
9
'

N
1
1
°
4
1
'0
8
"E
 
(R
)

S87°59'21"W (R)

12" OAK

26" PALM

12" OAK

12" OAK

6" DRAINPIPE

D.I.

E.M. G.M.

14" OAK

DRAINAGE
POND

M
E
D
IA
N
 
C
U
R
B

M
E
D
IA
N
 
C
U
R
B

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
 
 
S
ID
E
W
A
L
K

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
 
S
ID
E
W
A
L
K

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

S
ID
E
W
A
L
K

STONE
WALL

W
O
O
D

W
A
L
L R
O
C
K

W
A
L
L

WOOD
DECK

EXISTING HOUSE
#637 ARLINGTON AVENUE

EXISTING
BUILDING

#639 ARLINGTON
AVENUE

BRICK
PATIO

R
O
C
K

W
A
L
L

R
O
C
K

W
A
L
L

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

W
A
L
L

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
W
A
L
L

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

A
S
P
H
A
LT
 D
R
IV
EW
A
Y

CHAIN LINK
 FENCE

C
H
AI
N 
LI
NK

FE
NC
E

EXISTING
BUILDING

EXISTING HOUSE
#675 ARLINGTON AVENUE

CHAIN LIN
K FENCE

WIRE FENCE

CONCRETE
TENNIS
COURT

BROKEN AND
BURIED CONCRETE

C
H
A
IN
 
L
IN
K
 
F
E
N
C
E

CONCRETE
WALL

EXISTING
BUILDING

STONE PATH

LARGE
ROCKSSTONE

WALL

CONCRETE
WALL

CONCRETE
WALL

CONCRETE WALL CONCRETE WALL

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

WOOD AND WIRE FE
NCE

ROCKS

WIRE F
ENCE

M
E
TA
L 
FE
N
C
E

M
E
T
A
L
 
F
E
N
C
E

RO
CK

S

M
E
T
A
L 
F
E
N
C
E

M
ET
AL
 F
EN
C
E

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

CONCRETE
WALL

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
W
A
L
L

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

W
A
L
L

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
G
U
T
T
E
R

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
G
U
T
T
E
R

ASPHALT BERM

ASP
HAL

T

BER
M

EXISTING
BUILDING

EXISTING HOUSE
#1984 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

EXISTING HOUSE
#1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

&
#645 ARLINGTON AVENUE

CONCRETE
WALL

CONCRETE
WALL

BRICK STEPPED PATH

CONCRETE
LANDING

CONCRETE
ENTRY

CONCRETE
STEPS

CONCRETE
STEPS

SPEED
BUMP

SPEED
BUMP

IRON PIPE WITH
ILLEGIBLE TAG

BEARS
N30°31'W

0.71'

BEARS
N12°24'E
0.55'

BEARS
N33°13'W
0.64'

BEARS
N18°29'W
0.30'

BEARS
N40°42'W

0.17'

REBAR WITH
NO CAP
BEARS

N62°37'W
0.32'

BEARS
N71°35'W
0.30'

BEARS
N79°12'W
0.33'

BEARS
N86°08'W

0.41'

REBAR WITH NO CAP
BEARS

N84°49'W
0.47'

BEARS
N64°08'W

0.30'

IRON PIPE WITH TAG
"LS 5449"
BEARS

N44°29'W
0.93'

IRON PIPE
WITH ILLEGIBLE

TAG
BEARS

N29°04'W
0.87'

BEARS
N31°57'W
0.53'

BEARS
N28°52'W

0.55'

REBAR AND CAP
"RCE 18650"

REBAR WITH
NO CAP

BEARS
N25°18'W
0.55'

0
.1
3
'

7.14'

1/2" BOLT

3/8" PIN

N69°1
4'40"E

110.50
'

N
2
0
°
4
5
'2
0
"
W

N
3
1
°
0
6
'2
4
"W

1
9
.9
0
'

N73°58'28"E
144.88'

N
4
8
°
19
'2
2
"E
W

5
8
.6
1'

S
4
7
°
5
5
'4
1"E

7
8
.8
0
'

N
0
1
°
2
4
'5
0
"
W

7
.9
8
'

S78°18'52"E
36.66'

R=164 . 0
0 '

L=77 . 0
0 '

S77°33'30"W 512.81'

S
1
2
°
2
6
'3
0
"
E

9
3
.3
4
'N

1
1
°
3
1
'0
0
"E

1
6
2
.5
2
'

R=
20

1 .
0 0

'
%

%
91

6
=

1
3

°3
1

' 3
9

"
L =

4
7 .

4
6

'

R=84.96'

L=6.90'

\U+0394=4°39'11"

R
=
1
2
1
.0
7
'
%
%
9
1
6

=
2
1
°4
7
' 1
8
"

L
=
4
6
.0
4
'

9
.2
5
'

R
=
2
0

0
.0
0
'
%
%
916

=30°23'1 1 "
L=106.07'

N
1
2
°
4
0
'4
4
"E

4
9
.1
7
'

N
0
7
°
0
9
'4
6
"E

1
0
9
.4
6
'

N77°35'00"E 99.98'

N69°0
5'24"E

131.87
'

N77°35'00"E 73.45'

N69°0
5'24"E

6.12'

xx

H

YD

xxxx
xxxxxxx

x

x

x

x

xxxxxx
x

x
x

x
x

FENCE
482.21

482.49

481.88

481.84

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

2

0
%%916

'
0.051=R

"92'93°2
=

#12

#6

#1

#8

#2#11

#3

#10

#9

#7

#5 #4
14"OAK
470.86

40" STUMP
434.31

24" STUMP
426.12 24" STUMP

432.64

12" CLUSTER
434.76

34" STUMP
438.30

14" TREE
429.91

22" CLUSTER
429.01

6" TREE
426.23

30" CLUSTER
430.14

10" TREE
431.69

4" TREE
434.43

30" CLUSTER
428.36

6" TREE
428.23

10" OAK
428.77

10" OAK
429.49

8" OAK
430.43

14" OAK
431.706" OAK

431.53

6" OAK
432.12

BLDG.
436.63

14" OAK
426.55

80" CLUSTER
430.50

6" OAK
424.95

30" STUMP
420.27

20" STUMP
419.31

8" OAK
419.41

4" TREE
418.07

28" OAK
416.84

12" OAK
417.22

16" OAK
419.70

8" OAK
421.38

12" OAK
421.19

12" OAK
421.26

22" OAK
422.18

40" CLUSTER
431.03

14" OAK
430.20 12" TREE

432.11

12" TREE
432.56

12" CLUSTER
429.35

10" TREE
430.34

8" TREE
431.30

434.84

30" YUCCA
434.85

30" YUCCA
436.76

20" YUCCA
435.57

16" REDWOOD
439.30

30" REDWOOD
439.44

FENCE
437.14

436.50

30" TREE
437.29

20" STUMP
441.49

8" STUMP
440.91

20" OAK
440.76

8" TREE
442.97

8" OAK
442.71

16" OAK
443.44

14" TREE
443.52

12" TREE
443.70

12" TREE
448.84

22" STUMP
453.16

6" OAK
458.95

12" PALM
460.99

18" TREE
460.80

12" OAK
462.06

18" OAK
463.33

16" OAK
464.65

20" STUMP
444.93

8" CLUSTER
444.46

18" CLUSTER
444.94

6" TREE
443.23

10" TREE
443.39

22" OAK
441.69

10" STUMP
441.88

12" TREE
440.51

8" PALM
440.22

12" OAK
437.96 10" TREE

439.62
6" TREE
437.78

12" TREE
437.33

6" TREE
437.34

22" OAK
434.60

12" TREE
439.78

8" TREE
440.92

16" TREE
441.21 16" TREE

442.68

26" TREE
443.79

12" OAK
446.39

10" TREE
448.63

16" CLUSTER
448.74

16" TREE
450.11

16" TREE
449.21

22" STUMP
448.28

40" STUMP
448.78

16" TREE
449.45

24" STUMP
449.01

18" TREE
447.73

26" STUMP
447.80

22" STUMP
447.80

22" STUMP
449.58

34" EUCALYPTUS
450.59

48" STUMP
452.58

18" STUMP
454.60

14" OAK
455.51

8" TREE
452.47

18" TREE
453.28

12" OAK
451.50

8" OAK
453.95

6" OAK
452.99

18" CLUSTER
447.23

16" TREE
449.81

4" TREE
449.48

6" PALM
449.87

6" PALM
449.88

6" PALM
449.98

10" PALM
450.36

12" OAK
449.20

20" STUMP
447.96

16" TREE
448.31

4" TREE
451.96

4" TREE
451.65

4" TREE
453.51

20" TREE
454.21

24" STUMP
451.18

40" EUCALYPTUS
449.93

4" TREE
449.25

4" TREE
449.86

4" TREE
450.79

8" OAK
451.10

6" OAK
455.89

8" TREE
454.74

22" TREE
455.85

8" OAK
456.10

8" TREE
453.87

12" TREE
452.73

12" STUMP
451.89

6" TREE
451.38

12" CLUSTER
452.24

20" CLUSTER
452.96

8" PALM
456.05

6" TREE
456.43

10" TREE
457.01

36" TREE
457.97

16" PALM
457.83

20" TREE
457.54

18" PALM
460.57

12" OAK
459.66

8" OAK
459.62

12" PALM
459.57

12" PALM
461.82

14" PALM
460.43

18" TREE
460.52

10" OAK
463.49

6" OAK
463.71

8" TREE
465.29

36" TREE
465.89

14" PALM
464.17

14" PALM
463.18

12" PALM
462.89

28" TREE
463.11

12" TREE
457.23

8" PALM
458.87

8" PALM
460.25

8" TREE
461.05

8" TREE
461.39

14" PALM
461.74

8" PALM
462.83

24" STUMP
466.21

16" PALM
464.57

18" PALM
465.73

18" PALM
465.74

6" TREE
460.96

6" TREE
460.81

20" TREE
459.73

4" TREE
459.01

6" TREE
461.81

32" CLUSTER
463.28

20" OAK

6" CLUSTER
472.726" TREE

467.01

8" CLUSTER
466.48

6" TREE
467.66

18" PALM
467.74

16" OAK
467.47

24" TREE
467.91

24" STUMP
16" PALM
469.93

20" PALM
469.56

8" TREE
468.51

6" TREE
466.79

8" TREE
468.33

12" PALM
467.62

30" TREE
469.60

14" PALM
469.52

12" OAK
469.45

12" PALM
471.43

30" STUMP

12" TREE
469.44

6" TREE
470.11

12" TREE
471.27

4" TREE
472.55

24" PALM
473.11

16" OAK
473.32

16" PALM
472.86

20" STUMP16" TREE
476.03

14" OAK
476.70

4" TREE
476.50

12" CLUSTER
480.33

6" TREE
479.12

8" TREE
474.81

30" TREE
475.42

12" CLUSTER
476.07

18" CLUSTER
476.31

14" TREE
477.46

5" TREE
481.40

5" TREE
481.44

4" TREE
480.60

16" OAK
479.45

8" OAK
479.14

10" TREE
475.11

10" OAK
478.40

20" OAK
478.53

12" PALM
462.33

14" PALM
463.70

16" TREE
462.27

6" CLUSTER
462.52

6" CLUSTER
462.54

34" STUMP

12" PALM
464.10

20" PALM
463.87

8" CLUSTER
453.78

12" TREE
459.28

12" OAK
459.56

12" CLUSTER
459.90

11" TREE
460.29

30" TREE
457.16

18" CLUSTER
454.40

24" OAK
460.04

6" OAK
461.32

18" CLUSTER
450.84

9" OAK
450.90

18" PINE
455.30

23" TREE
454.67

12" OAK
456.32

8" TREE
455.32

8" TREE
458.26

28" PALM
458.10

19" PINE
459.19

8" TREE
459.929" TREE

459.24
24" PINE
459.85

30" PALM
461.20

26"PALM
462.42

14" PALM

6" OAK
456.47

6" OAK
456.13

10" PALM
448.20

40" STUMP
448.16

26" STUMP
448.33

20" STUMP
446.47

16" OAK
442.85

10" OAK
440.64

18" PALM
445.72

8" OAK
446.22

4" OAK
447.36

6" TREE
452.62

6" TREE
452.37

8" OAK
451.48

8" TREE
451.95

6" TREE
453.16

12" TREE
453.13

10" TREE
450.57

10" TREE
450.25

8" TREE
447.37

16" OAK
445.29

6" OAK
444.27

30" OAK
438.80

6" OAK
434.54

20" TREE
434.86

18" OAK
438.04

20" CLUSTER
439.92

10" OAK
441.76 6" OAK

444.53

20" OAK
447.50

16" TREE
455.61

14" OAK
448.72

4" TREE
447.76

40" EUCALYPTUS

30" EUCALYPTUS
444.83

40" EUCALYPTUS
443.60

6" TREE
443.21

10" OAK
447.27 12" PALM

450.67

6" OAK
450.60

10" OAK
455.87

6" OAK
456.30

30" PINE
458.02

10" OAK
456.59

7" OAK
454.718" OAK

453.14

4" OAK
453.00

12" OAK
451.80 6" OAK

452.23

8" OAK
458.46

14" OAK
459.34

24" OAK
465.59

22" OAK
467.35

9" YUCCA
466.92

7" REDWOOD
464.27

5" REDWOOD
461.98

10" OAK
454.07

14" OAK
456.47

18" OAK
455.92

8" OAK
457.08

6" OAK
463.09

16" OAK
459.02

10" OAK
459.73

8" PALM
461.93

30" PALM
467.35

16" PALM
469.11

12" OAK
466.22

16" PALM
466.19

34" STUMP
466.07

14" PALM
465.85

14" PALM
467.36

8" OAK
466.60

14" PALM
467.82

14" PALM
470.04

14" PALM
471.26

14" PALM
469.38

50" OAK
467.45 8" OAK

464.79

30" STUMP
466.98

30" CLUSTER
465.28

6" TREE
468.12

14" TREE
467.93

8" OAK
469.72

14" PALM
469.98

14" PALM
473.38

5" OAK
472.48
15" PALM
472.63

8" TREE
474.40

14" OAK
476.32

20" PALM
477.34

16" PALM
474.57

6" TREE
475.47

12" PALM
475.72

12" TREE
479.50

16" PALM
476.38

20" PALM
476.65

24" YUCCA CLUSTER
480.45

18" PALM
477.23

18" PALM
478.23

16" YUCCA
477.70

40" YUCCA CLUSTER
478.38

12" YUCCA CLUSTER
479.34
10" TREE
479.37

30" YUCCA CLUSTER
478.97

70" YUCCA CLUSTER
480.83

24" CONIFER
476.58

24" PALM
481.47

24" PALM
480.43

14" STUMP
478.64

24" STUMP
480.76

6" OAK
483.57

12" STUMP
483.09

8" OAK
482.99

6" TREE
484.25

5" TREE
483.12

8" CLUSTER
483.16

6" TREE
483.69

30" STUMP
481.08

30" STUMP
482.00

20" OAK
481.98

22" STUMP
483.11

8" YUCCA
486.21

30" STUMP
486.79

30" EUCALYPTUS
489.4512" STUMP

487.93

6" OAK
488.498" OAK

488.36
8" CLUSTER
487.74

80" CLUSTER
487.26

6" YUCCA
490.30

10" YUCCA
490.30

10" YUCCA
490.27

12" TREE
486.69

N

MIDPOINT

EXISTING

PAVEMENT

INLET

894 SF

EXISTING BRICK BUILDING TO BE
RETURN TO ORIGINAL

AR
LI

NG
TO

N 
AV

EN
UE

HOUSE

REMOVE

REMOVE

AC

FENCE & GATE

WALL AND BALUSTRADE TO

EXISTING

CONCRETE

LOT DEPTH

PIPE AND DRAIN

EXISTING
177 SF

REMOVE

3308 SF

1350 SF

REMOVE EXISTING

2133 SF

EXISTING

DEMOLISHED

BRICK PATH 185SF

SAME AREA TO NORTH
DEMOLISHED

SUBJECT PROPERTY

47
8.

18

1342 SF
CONCRETE

EXISTING EXISTING

STAIRS

MIDPOINT

OF PL

OF PL

TREES, TYP (17)
REMOVE
EXISTING DRAIN

STUMPS, TYP (9)

REMOVE EXISTING

GUTTER

631 SF

REMOVE

2261 SF

REMOVE
EXISTING

PAVEMENT

EXISTING

CONCRETE

EXISTING
CONCRETE

CONCRETE
1387 SF

REMOVE

EXISTING
STAIRS

EXISTING

REMOVE EXISTING
STAIRS

REMOVE

REMOVE

REMOVE EXISTING

CONCRETE WALLS AND
STEPS TO BE

ADJACENT PROPERTY 639
ARLINGTON/CARRIAGE

GARAGE TO BE

REMOVE EXISTING

REPAIRED IN KIND AND TERRACE TO
RETURN TO ORIGINAL CONDITION  AND

CONSTRUCTION AND MIRROR

1960 SAN ANTONIO
AVENUE

MIRROR TERRACE AREA TO NORTH

EXISTING

CONCRETE

902 SF

EXISTING AC

DEMOLISHED BALUSTRADES TO BE

SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

47
3.

5

REMOVE

CONCRETE

REMOVEREMOVE

CONCRTE

REMOVE EXISTING

REMOVE

CONCRETE 1219 SF

A3
01

1
A3

02

1

4

4

4

4

4

4

SITE PLAN - EXISTING

A100

FIGURE 1.  THE BLACK DOTTED LINES ARE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  WORK IN THIS AREA IS PROHIBITED.

2.

THE TREE TREE PROTECTION ZONE SHOWN ON ALL PLANS SHALL BE FENCED TO ENCLOSE THE ENTIRE AREA (FIGURE 1).  NO
GRADING, EXCAVATION, CONSTRUCTION OR STORAGE OF MATERIALS SHALL OCCUR WITHIN THAT ZONE.  NO UNDERGROUND 
SERVICES INCLUDING UTILITIES, SUB-DRAINS, WATER OR SEWER SHALL BE PLACED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  NO
MOTORIZED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE USED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE. THE LIMITS OF THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE WILL BE
ADJUSTED FOLLOWING REVIEW OF GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION PLANS. FOR DESIGN PURPOSES, THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE
SHALL BE DEFINED AS THE TREE DRIPLINE.

IF ROOTS 2 IN. AND GREATER IN DIAMETER ARE ENCOUNTERED DURING SITE WORK AND MUST BE CUT TO COMPLETE THE
CONSTRUCTION, THE CONSULTING ARBORIST MUST BE CONSULTED TO EVALUATE EFFECTS ON THE HEALTH AND STABILITY OF
THE TREE AND RECOMMEND TREATMENT.

3.

4.

ANY ROOT PRUNING REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES SHALL RECEIVE THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF AND BE SUPERVISED
BY THE CONSULTING ARBORIST. ROOTS SHOULD BE CUT WITH A SAW TO PROVIDE A FLAT AND SMOOTH CUT.  REMOVAL OF ROOTS
LARGER THAN 2 IN. IN DIAMETER SHOULD BE AVOIDED.

1.

FENCE ALL TREES TO BE RETAINED TO COMPLETELY ENCLOSE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION, GRUBBING
OR GRADING. FENCES SHALL BE 6 FT. CHAIN LINK WITH POSTS SUNK INTO THE GROUND OR EQUIVALENT.

1

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

 1/24" = 1'-0"
SITE PLAN - EXISTING

460'-11"

512'-10"

Page 30 of 103

Page 296



E.M.

6" DRAINPIPE

G.M.

14" CLUSTER
14" CLUSTER

SIDE SETBACK 4'

115'-3"

(25% OF 461')

SIDE SETBACK 4'

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

 4
'

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

FRONT

FRONT SETBACK 115'-3"

SIDE SETBACK 4'

11
5'

-3
" (

25
%

 O
F 

46
1'

)

(25%
 OF 461')

FR
O

NT
 S

ET
BA

CK

SETBACK

x

x

x

x

x

xx

x

x

x

x

x x
x

x

H

YD

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

#7

#2

#12

#8

#5

#10

#6

#11

#3

#4

#1

#9

486.18
W.V.

F.H.
486.48

GUY

488.36
J.P.

488.58

T/W

462.92

T/W

462.67
462.56

T/W

10"TREE
479.54

461.93

450.60

20" STUMP

461.39

459.66

469.60

8" TREE

465.73

453.95

451.96

10" TREE

8" OAK

18" CLUSTER

12" TREE

8" TREE

454.60

430.34

426.23

12" OAK

443.52

454.67

430.14

6" TREE

467.62

4" TREE

8" OAK

12" OAK

14" PALM

431.30

14" PALM420.27

8" OAK

6" OAK

476.65

4" TREE

10" TREE

464.65

12" OAK

BLDG.

421.26

462.83

30" EUCALYPTUS

30" TREE

483.57

460.29

474.40

10" OAK

12" TREE

456.59

8" OAK

437.33

465.59

443.39

441.76

451.38

460.81

457.54

434.31

453.28

12" TREE

16" PALM

457.97

458.02

451.48

483.12

450.57

8" TREE

486.21

12" TREE

30" STUMP

453.14

14" OAK

8" OAK

14" OAK

453.13

456.13

436.76

431.53

435.57

460.52

6" PALM

428.23

12" OAK
437.96

481.40

6" TREE

490.30

448.84

444.46

462.06

439.78

16" TREE

4" TREE

451.10

12" PALM
459.57

6" TREE

479.45

20" PALM

456.47

24" OAK

456.47

8" OAK

458.10

14" PALM

10" YUCCA

484.25

454.74

456.43

478.97

15" PALM

463.87

12" OAK

463.70

453.78

6" TREE

9" TREE

459.56

451.18

14" PALM

8" TREE

465.89

22" TREE

40" EUCALYPTUS

6" PALM

457.8316" TREE

18" CLUSTER

470.11

454.21

8" OAK

434.84

6" OAK

12" OAK

431.69

30" CLUSTER

12" YUCCA CLUSTER

451.89

432.12

478.53

14" OAK

455.61

12" TREE

440.76

14" TREE

447.37

8" TREE

34" EUCALYPTUS

10" STUMP

12" OAK

18" PALM

8" TREE

12" OAK

14" PALM

22" OAK

14" PALM

4" TREE

26" STUMP

6" OAK12" OAK

443.60

455.87

6" OAK

10" TREE

16" OAK

10" PALM

456.32

461.20

459.28
14" PALM

12" TREE

14" PALM

461.74

472.63

12" TREE

429.01

460.96

449.98 450.36

12" OAK

441.69

434.54

16" TREE

12" CLUSTER

467.93

20" STUMP

16" REDWOOD

442.97

8" YUCCA

14" TREE

20" STUMP

34" STUMP

6" TREE

448.16

480.83

12" PALM

440.64

20" YUCCA

6" OAK

6" TREE

461.32

16" PALM

12" TREE

4" TREE

6" TREE

16" PALM

452.37

461.05

451.65

18" CLUSTER

16" PALM

440.91

30" YUCCA

6" OAK

FENCE

8" TREE

24" STUMP

14"OAK

430.20

10" TREE

418.07

18" PALM

472.72

459.01

12" CLUSTER

16" OAK

439.44

24" STUMP

6" TREE

8" OAK

40" CLUSTER

12" TREE

22" OAK

8" TREE

4" TREE

12" OAK

12" OAK

40" STUMP

12" TREE

437.78

449.58

448.63

20" STUMP

451.50

441.21

449.88

4" TREE 465.29

463.11

449.93

460.25

449.86

452.24

456.05

457.23

479.12

24" STUMP

4" TREE

6" OAK

12" CLUSTER

16" TREE

10" OAK

18" PINE

20" OAK

466.21

26"PALM

30" PALM

16" OAK
473.32

447.36

474.81

20" OAK

454.40

464.57

456.30

475.11

8" OAK

8" PALM

467.36

465.28

459.92

19" PINE

5" TREE

6" TREE

479.37

20" OAK

18" PALM

476.70

438.80

462.52

462.42

451.95

490.27

12" TREE

70" YUCCA CLUSTER

434.86

476.07

443.70

477.23

460.04

468.51

6" TREE

460.99

486.69

14" TREE

459.73

459.34439.92

8" TREE

468.12

476.03

8" CLUSTER 11" TREE

8" CLUSTER

459.73

476.50

30" TREE

12" PALM

28" TREE

6" TREE

453.16

6" PALM

18" STUMP

20" TREE

450.11

467.01

453.16

441.49

452.58

18" TREE
26" STUMP

22" STUMP

12" STUMP

24" TREE

30" CLUSTER

6" TREE

419.70

18" TREE

463.71

466.07

18" PALM

459.19

466.79

30" PINE

464.10

8" TREE

8" TREE

10" OAK

30" EUCALYPTUS

10" TREE

447.50

455.92

22" OAK

30" OAK

447.27

8" OAK

14" TREE

478.23

489.45

8" OAK

458.95

24" STUMP

50" OAK

452.62

428.77

428.36

434.85

432.11

417.22

436.63
4" TREE434.76

12" OAK

432.64

437.14

436.50

438.30

30" CLUSTER

18" PALM

8" TREE

449.01

14" OAK

40" YUCCA CLUSTER

463.28

8" OAK

6" TREE

449.45

455.51

452.96

4" TREE

447.80

4" TREE

449.81

8" PALM

463.49

457.01

12" TREE

12" TREE

429.49

6" TREE

467.47

20" STUMP

8" OAK

472.86

479.14

462.54

18" CLUSTER

455.85

477.46

445.72

8" OAK

6" TREE

20" CLUSTER

8" TREE

442.85

438.04

444.53

448.72

16" TREE

444.83

10" OAK

458.46

454.71

4" OAK

451.80

20" TREE

459.02

10" OAK
14" OAK

465.85
34" STUMP

14" PALM

452.23

16" YUCCA

476.32

454.07

10" TREE

5" OAK

469.56

6" TREE

466.19

464.17

488.36
8" CLUSTER

488.49

471.27

8" TREE

482.99

444.94

447.80

448.74

440.92

448.78

448.28

16" TREE

14" PALM

447.73

469.98

8" OAK
6" OAK

12" OAK

20" PALM

434.60

16" TREE

443.79

440.22

440.51

444.93

20" OAK

455.89

467.74

6" TREE

419.31

429.35

6" TREE

452.47

468.33

8" TREE

470.86

469.45

16" TREE

421.19

487.74

448.33

479.34

430.43

5" TREE

10" OAK

8" CLUSTER

481.98

10" YUCCA

20" OAK

466.60

40" STUMP

457.16

469.38

483.69

10" OAK

10" OAK

462.27

8" TREE

10" TREE

14" OAK

14" OAK

439.30

30" STUMP

30" TREE

12" PALM

426.55

446.39

463.33

22" STUMP

6" TREE

24" STUMP

448.31

20" CLUSTER

12" PALM

22" STUMP

8" PALM

461.81

456.10

466.48

12" CLUSTER

12" PALM

6" CLUSTER

449.21

16" CLUSTER

457.08

467.82

10" PALM

447.96

453.51
459.62

450.79

460.57

483.16

8" TREE

431.70

14" OAK

483.09

421.38

430.50

30" YUCCA

478.38

431.03

16" OAK

464.79

460.80

443.23

16" TREE

450.59

10" OAK

6" OAK

4" TREE

8" PALM

460.43 16" PALM

8" PALM

18" OAK

4" TREE

476.31

481.44

12" CLUSTER

455.30

437.34

12" PALM

458.26

28" PALM

455.32

450.25
14" PALM

444.27

6" OAK

10" OAK

450.67

452.73

467.35

467.45

14" PALM

472.48

477.70

6" YUCCA

30" TREE

24" PINE

452.99

28" OAK

448.20

12" OAK

478.40

23" TREE

459.24

6" OAK

450.84

8" STUMP

480.33

5" TREE

12" PALM

12" PALM

8" TREE

6" CLUSTER

18" CLUSTER

450.90
9" OAK

6" OAK

466.98

34" STUMP

471.43

449.20

446.22

12" TREE

18" OAK

20" STUMP

462.33

443.21

447.76

30" YUCCA CLUSTER

12" STUMP

16" OAK

40" EUCALYPTUS

469.72

487.26

24" OAK

16" OAK

40" EUCALYPTUS

470.04
7" OAK

6" OAK10" OAK

8" OAK

10" TREE

8" OAK

475.42469.44

40" STUMP

6" OAK

466.22

8" OAK

472.55

10" TREE

16" OAK

16" TREE

469.52

469.93

480.60

8" CLUSTER

6" CLUSTER

458.87

463.18
462.89

8" OAK

8" PALM

36" TREE

449.48

48" STUMP

449.25

24" STUMP

18" TREE

6" TREE

16" OAK

10" TREE

442.71

30" REDWOOD

437.29

16" OAK

18" TREE

467.91

80" CLUSTER

429.91

14" OAK

22" CLUSTER

426.12

18" OAK

22" OAK

432.56

422.18

32" CLUSTER20" TREE
467.66

6" OAK

6" TREE

434.43

449.87

6" OAK

22" STUMP

416.84

424.95

419.41

18" PALM

26" TREE

80" CLUSTER

14" PALM

6" TREE

490.30

473.11

20" TREE

26" PALM

445.29

6" OAK

446.47

453.00

459.85

442.68

4" OAK

12" CLUSTER

12" OAK

30" STUMP

36" TREE

20" PALM
4" TREE

24" PALM

459.90

461.82

18" PALM

453.87

465.74

6" OAK

441.88

443.44

439.62

447.23

TOP
449.83

447.11

444.84

TOP

TOP

TOP

450.05

484.05

482.36

FENCE

466.29
474.55

488.59

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE
FENCE

FENCE
485.17

487.42

484.53

445.43

445.86

488.58

483.30

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

491.59
FENCE

FENCE

477.95

OHW

N

EXISTING HOUSE
#675 ARLINGTON AVENUE

ELEVATED DECK

2200 SF

AR
LI

NG
TO

N 
AV

EN
UE

MIDPOINT

TREE
ORIGINAL AND MIRROR

REBAR AND CAP
"RCE 18650"

IRON PIPE WITH TAG
"LS 5449"
BEARS

N44°29'W
0.93'

CO
NC

RE
TE

DR
IV

EW
AY

RO
CK

W
AL

L

5' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT
PER (2009-152351)

R
O

C
K

W
AL

L

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

BEARS
N64°08'W

0.30'

 ELEV 471'

NEW DRIVEWAY AND RENOVATED

OF PL

SPRING MANSION

2000 SF

637 ARLINGTON

MIDPOINT

UNDER DECKING
POOL EQUIPMENT

CONSTRUCTION AND MIRROR
SPILLWAY

IRON PIPE WITH
ILLEGIBLE TAG

BEARS
N30°31'W

0.71'

M
ETAL FENCE

WIRE FENCE

CO
NC

RE
TE

 W
AL

L

M
ED

IA
N 

CU
RB

STONE
WALL

PROPERTY

FFE 471.67

R
O

C
K

W
AL

L

EXISTING
BUILDING

METAL FENCE

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

BEARS
N71°35'W

0.30'

 ELEV 471'

ROOTS, TYP.

TREE PROTECTION

TERRACE AREA TO NORTH

WALL AND BALUSTRADE TO

TO REMAIN AS IS

ADJACENT

FFE 478.5

GARAGE
1 STORY

FFE 478.43
1960 SAN ANTONIO

GYMNASIUM

ARLINGTON/CARRIGE
ADJACENT PROPERTY 639

OF PL

AT LANDING, STEPS
NEW MARBLE TILES

16'-6" X 9'-2" ELEV 461'

TENNIS COURT

SAME AREA TO NORTH

AND DECK
NEW POOL

LANDSCAPE PLAN
PAVING AT TERACES, SEERETURN TO ORIGINAL

ELEVATED

TYP.
OVER TREE ROOTS,

BASIN

DECK

FO
U

N
TA

IN

POOL
SPA

641 SF

IRON PIPE
WITH ILLEGIBLE

TAG
BEARS

N29°04'W
0.87'

REBAR WITH NO CAP
BEARS

N84°49'W
0.47'

SPEED
BUMP

ROCKS

WOOD AND WIRE FENCE

ROCKS

POOL HOUSE

STONE PATH

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

CHAIN LINK FENCE

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
W

AL
L

WOOD
DECK

BRICK
PATIO

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
SI

D
EW

AL
K

CHAIN LINK

FENCE

M
ED

IA
N 

CU
RB

3 STORY

CO
NC

RE
TE

   
SI

DE
W

AL
K

ANTONIO
1984 SAN

CHAIN LINK FENCE

BEARS
N12°24'E

0.55'

5' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT
PER (2009-152351)

CO
NC

RE
TE

  S
ID

EW
AL

K

ADJACENT

ASPHALT
 D

RIV
EW

AY

W
O

O
D

W
AL

L

WIRE FENCE

C
H

AI
N

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E

3/8" PIN

1 STORY

DECK OVER
BALUSTRADES TO RETURN TO SUSPENDED

HOUSE

PROPERTY

A3
01

4

A3
02

1

A1
09

1

4

4

4

4

4

4

A101

SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

1.

THE TREE TREE PROTECTION ZONE SHOWN ON ALL PLANS SHALL BE FENCED TO ENCLOSE THE ENTIRE AREA (FIGURE 1).  NO
GRADING, EXCAVATION, CONSTRUCTION OR STORAGE OF MATERIALS SHALL OCCUR WITHIN THAT ZONE.  NO UNDERGROUND 
SERVICES INCLUDING UTILITIES, SUB-DRAINS, WATER OR SEWER SHALL BE PLACED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  NO
MOTORIZED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE USED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE. THE LIMITS OF THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE WILL BE
ADJUSTED FOLLOWING REVIEW OF GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION PLANS. FOR DESIGN PURPOSES, THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE
SHALL BE DEFINED AS THE TREE DRIPLINE.

IF ROOTS 2 IN. AND GREATER IN DIAMETER ARE ENCOUNTERED DURING SITE WORK AND MUST BE CUT TO COMPLETE THE
CONSTRUCTION, THE CONSULTING ARBORIST MUST BE CONSULTED TO EVALUATE EFFECTS ON THE HEALTH AND STABILITY OF
THE TREE AND RECOMMEND TREATMENT.

3.

4.

ANY ROOT PRUNING REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES SHALL RECEIVE THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF AND BE SUPERVISED
BY THE CONSULTING ARBORIST. ROOTS SHOULD BE CUT WITH A SAW TO PROVIDE A FLAT AND SMOOTH CUT.  REMOVAL OF ROOTS
LARGER THAN 2 IN. IN DIAMETER SHOULD BE AVOIDED.

2.

FENCE ALL TREES TO BE RETAINED TO COMPLETELY ENCLOSE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION, GRUBBING
OR GRADING. FENCES SHALL BE 6 FT. CHAIN LINK WITH POSTS SUNK INTO THE GROUND OR EQUIVALENT.

FIGURE 1.  THE BLACK DOTTED LINES ARE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  WORK IN THIS AREA IS PROHIBITED.

 1/24" = 1'-0"

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

1 SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

14" OAK

470

48
0

44
0

490

480

480

460

46
0

45
0

43
0

420

450

440

46
0

480

47
0

480

440

43
0

49
0

420

45
0

50'-0"

50'-0"

28.4'

460'-11"

27'-5"

13
.1

'

9.
9'

6'-6"

9'
-4

"

13
'-1

0"

11
'-8

"

47'-2"

18'-6"

24
'-0

"

4'
-1

"

10
'-6

"

6.
1'

5.
8'

19.9'

22'-7"

19.2'

40
'-0

"

16
'-0

"

N31°06'25"W

46
.7

2'

137.60'

35
.1

2'

9

'0

71
.8

9'

27.36'

104.84'

23.
5=L

83.53' 37.15'79.70'84.64'19.74'

23
.0

1'

11
5.

80
'

28.01'

15.32'

53.04'

53.03'

17
.3

9'
40

.8
3'

20.57'

59
.1

9'

14
9.

51
'

S1
2°

26
'3

0"
E

15
0.

37
'

78
.4

8'

39.19' 60.79'

50.70'

39.57'

N
12

°2
6'

30
"W

15
.9

5'

60
.2

8'

N68°28'45"W

CALCULATED

BASIS OF BEARINGS

15
.09

'

"92

°
2

%%916

.
51=R

0

2
3

N1
1°

41
'0

8"
E 

(R
)

0

131.01' (131.13')

46.09'

70
.2

3'

58
.7

1'

54
.3

8'

89.56'

79
.2

7'

58
.03

'

28.98'

40.87'

S77°33'30"W
5.00'

29.79'

5.66'

'

N
07

°0
9'

46
"E

N1
2°

40
'44

"E

11
4.

09
'

9

35.66'

23
.0

3'

60.68'

S1
2°

26
'3

0"
E

18.97'

107.02'

S87°59'21"W (R)

'

=

41.60'

83.30'

N28
°5

3'4
5"

E

"

.

R=84.96'

7

=

3

.

R

1

19.90'

N73°58'28"E

1

4

4
7

4=
3

1
°

%
%

91
6

00.
=

'
0

=

110.50'

144.88'

58.61'

S47°55'41"E

78.80'

512.81'

93
.3

4'

16
2.

52
'

R
1

2
1

'
=

1
'

8 "
L

.
4

R

0
00 '

0
2

'
" L

10 6
'

49
.1

7'

10
9.

46
'

131.87'
73.45'

'

5
6

00.4
16

2

'

"

4

N77°35'00"E

N77°35'00"E

N1
2°

40
'44

"E

1

%%916°

=

.

=
0

°
1

.
%

%
91

6
=

S78°18'52"E

S1
2°

26
'3

0"
E

N31°06'24"W

N48°19'22"EW

L

1
R

3
'

9
'

L
.

6
3

=
02

'

0

N69°14'40"E

36.66'

S77°33'30"W

7

N1
1°

31
'00

"E

\U+0394=4°39'11"

0
2

7
4

6

L=6.90'

'

7

=

3

07

2

N0
7°

09
'4

6"
E

N69°05'24"E

50

99.98'

°

0

=

=

%%916

12" OAK

Page 31 of 103

Page 297



#11

#6#9

#10

#8
#3

#12 #4#5

#2

#7

#1

T/W

462.92

T/W
462.56

462.67 T/W

22" OAK

472.48

12" OAK

12" OAK

20" PALM

474.40

466.22

454.07

465.85

5" OAK

469.98

467.36

476.65
26" PALM

466.60

478.97

6" TREE

14" PALM

6" OAK

467.45

452.23

50" OAK

477.23

480.83

456.47 467.82

469.38

16" OAK

472.63

464.79

14" TREE

40" YUCCA CLUSTER

8" OAK

15" PALM

8" TREE

70" YUCCA CLUSTER

14" PALM

466.07

479.37

479.34

478.38

24" OAK

14" PALM
470.04

465.59

468.12

18" PALM

12" YUCCA CLUSTER

20" OAK

8" OAK

466.19

476.32

459.34

455.92

470.86

459.02

8" OAK

30" CLUSTER

30" YUCCA CLUSTER

10" TREE

12" OAK

14" OAK

465.28

7" OAK

10" OAK

18" OAK

18" PALM

16" PALM

467.35

8" OAK

14" OAK

467.93457.08

14" PALM14"OAK

481.98

454.71

34" STUMP

478.23

469.72

14" PALM

14" OAK

14" PALM

N

1 STORYDECK

FFE 478.5

1 STORY

SIDE SETBACK 4'

POOL

2000 SF

SPA

 ELEV 471'

FFE 471.67

POOL HOUSE

5' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT
PER (2009-152351)

GARAGE

641 SF

 ELEV 471'

4
A1

09

4

ENLARGED SITE PLAN

A101B

3.

2.

FENCE ALL TREES TO BE RETAINED TO COMPLETELY ENCLOSE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION, GRUBBING
OR GRADING. FENCES SHALL BE 6 FT. CHAIN LINK WITH POSTS SUNK INTO THE GROUND OR EQUIVALENT.
THE TREE TREE PROTECTION ZONE SHOWN ON ALL PLANS SHALL BE FENCED TO ENCLOSE THE ENTIRE AREA (FIGURE 1).  NO
GRADING, EXCAVATION, CONSTRUCTION OR STORAGE OF MATERIALS SHALL OCCUR WITHIN THAT ZONE.  NO UNDERGROUND 
SERVICES INCLUDING UTILITIES, SUB-DRAINS, WATER OR SEWER SHALL BE PLACED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  NO
MOTORIZED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE USED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE. THE LIMITS OF THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE WILL BE
ADJUSTED FOLLOWING REVIEW OF GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION PLANS. FOR DESIGN PURPOSES, THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE
SHALL BE DEFINED AS THE TREE DRIPLINE.

FIGURE 1.  THE BLACK DOTTED LINES ARE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  WORK IN THIS AREA IS PROHIBITED.

IF ROOTS 2 IN. AND GREATER IN DIAMETER ARE ENCOUNTERED DURING SITE WORK AND MUST BE CUT TO COMPLETE THE
CONSTRUCTION, THE CONSULTING ARBORIST MUST BE CONSULTED TO EVALUATE EFFECTS ON THE HEALTH AND STABILITY OF
THE TREE AND RECOMMEND TREATMENT.

4.

ANY ROOT PRUNING REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES SHALL RECEIVE THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF AND BE SUPERVISED
BY THE CONSULTING ARBORIST. ROOTS SHOULD BE CUT WITH A SAW TO PROVIDE A FLAT AND SMOOTH CUT.  REMOVAL OF ROOTS
LARGER THAN 2 IN. IN DIAMETER SHOULD BE AVOIDED.

1.

1
 1/8" = 1'-0"

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

480

460

23
'-1

1"

24
'-0

"

50'-0"

13
'-1

0"

27'-5"

11
'-8

"

10
'-6

"

40
'-0

"

16
'-0

"
4'

-1
"

18'-6"

9'
-4

"

6'-6"

22'-7" 50'-0"

37.15'

17
.3

9'
40

.8
3'

89.56'

83.53' 79.70' 29.79'

35
.1

2'

83.30' 107.02'

512.81'

Page 32 of 103

Page 298



E.M. G.M.

(25% OF 461')

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
AC

K 
4'

SIDE SETBACK 4'

FRONT SETBACK 115'-3"

FR
O

NT
 S

ET
BA

CK

11
5'

-3
" (

25
%

 O
F 

46
1'

)

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

 4
'

x

x

x

x

H

YD

x
x

x

x

x
x

x
x

x

x

x x

x
x

#8 #6

#5

#1

#11

#9

#12

#7

#10

#3

#2

#4

F.H.
486.48

FENCE
484.05

N

ADJACENT PROPERTY 639

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
 
 
S
ID
E
W
A
L
K

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

S
ID
E
W
A
L
K

ROCKS

MIDPOINT

OF PL
MIDPOINT

LANDSCAPE PLAN
RETURN TO ORIGINAL

PROPERTY
3 STORY

SUSPENDED

ADJACENT

RO
CK

S

W
O
O
D

W
A
L
L

WIRE F
ENCE

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

CHAIN LINK
 FENCE

POOL EQUIPMENT

CONSTRUCTION AND MIRROR
ORIGINAL AND MIRROR

2200 SF

TREETYP.
OVER TREE ROOTS,

1 STORY
1 STORY

FO
U

N
TA

IN

FFE 478.5

ELEVATEDELEVATED DECK

AT LANDING, STEPS

OF PL

SPRING MANSION

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E

D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
 
S
ID
E
W
A
L
K

M
E
D
IA
N
 
C
U
R
B

C
O
N
C
R
E
T
E
 
W
A
L
L

WOOD
DECK

C
H
AI
N 
LI
NK

FE
NC
E

WOOD AND WIRE FE
NCE

M
E
TA
L 
FE
N
C
E

ASPHALT
DRIVEWAY

M
E
T
A
L 
F
E
N
C
E

EXISTING
BUILDING

C
H
A
IN
 
L
IN
K
 
F
E
N
C
E

FFE 478.43
1960 SAN ANTONIO

637 ARLINGTON
PROPERTY

HOUSE

NEW MARBLE TILES

UNDER DECKING

ARLINGTON/CARRIGE

WALL AND BALUSTRADE TO

SAME AREA TO NORTH

BALUSTRADES TO RETURN TO NEW POOL
PAVING AT TERACES, SEE
NEW DRIVEWAY AND RENOVATEDTREE PROTECTION

BASIN
SPILLWAY

ROOTS, TYP.

AND DECK

TENNIS COURT

DECK OVER

ADJACENT

ANTONIO
1984 SAN

FFE 471.67

POOL HOUSE
GARAGE

2000 SF

 ELEV 471'
DECK

POOL
SPA

641 SF

 ELEV 471'

16'-6" X 9'-2" ELEV 461'TERRACE AREA TO NORTH

AR
LI

NG
TO

N 
AV

EN
UE

TO REMAIN AS IS

GYMNASIUM

CHAIN LIN
K FENCE

M
E
D
IA
N
 
C
U
R
B

A
S
P
H
A
LT
 D
R
IV
EW
A
Y

1

A3
01

4

A3
02

1

A1
09

4

4

4

4

A101C

SITE PLAN - SIMPLIFIED

2.

4.

FIGURE 1.  THE BLACK DOTTED LINES ARE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  WORK IN THIS AREA IS PROHIBITED.

1.

THE TREE TREE PROTECTION ZONE SHOWN ON ALL PLANS SHALL BE FENCED TO ENCLOSE THE ENTIRE AREA (FIGURE 1).  NO
GRADING, EXCAVATION, CONSTRUCTION OR STORAGE OF MATERIALS SHALL OCCUR WITHIN THAT ZONE.  NO UNDERGROUND 
SERVICES INCLUDING UTILITIES, SUB-DRAINS, WATER OR SEWER SHALL BE PLACED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE.  NO
MOTORIZED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE USED IN THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE. THE LIMITS OF THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE WILL BE
ADJUSTED FOLLOWING REVIEW OF GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION PLANS. FOR DESIGN PURPOSES, THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE
SHALL BE DEFINED AS THE TREE DRIPLINE.

FENCE ALL TREES TO BE RETAINED TO COMPLETELY ENCLOSE THE TREE PROTECTION ZONE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION, GRUBBING
OR GRADING. FENCES SHALL BE 6 FT. CHAIN LINK WITH POSTS SUNK INTO THE GROUND OR EQUIVALENT.

IF ROOTS 2 IN. AND GREATER IN DIAMETER ARE ENCOUNTERED DURING SITE WORK AND MUST BE CUT TO COMPLETE THE
CONSTRUCTION, THE CONSULTING ARBORIST MUST BE CONSULTED TO EVALUATE EFFECTS ON THE HEALTH AND STABILITY OF
THE TREE AND RECOMMEND TREATMENT.

ANY ROOT PRUNING REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES SHALL RECEIVE THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF AND BE SUPERVISED
BY THE CONSULTING ARBORIST. ROOTS SHOULD BE CUT WITH A SAW TO PROVIDE A FLAT AND SMOOTH CUT.  REMOVAL OF ROOTS
LARGER THAN 2 IN. IN DIAMETER SHOULD BE AVOIDED.

3.

1

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

 1/24" = 1'-0"
SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

1
3
.1
'

50'-0"

5
.8
' 10

'-6
"

11
'-8

"

13
'-1

0"

27'-5"22'-7"

40
'-0

"

18'-6"

6
.1
'

19.2'

28.4'

19.9'

9'
-4

"

47'-2"50'-0"

16
'-0

"

460'-11"

6'-6"

24
'-0

"

50.70'

.

60.79'

=

37.15'

S87°59'21"W (R)

N68°28'45"W

'
3

95=

1
5
.9
5
'

N
1
2
°
2
6
'3
0
"
W

41.60'

46.09'

39.19'

3
5
.1
2
'

53.03'

15.32'

60.68'

28.01'

1
1
5
.8
0
'

2
3
.0
1
'

84.64'

"
2'9

2

%%916

0
5

=R
0

'

3

9

83.53'35.66'

4
6
.7
2
'

40.87'

104.84
'

79.70'

28.98'

4
0
.8
3
'

5
3
.0
4
'

2

39.57'

N
1
1
°
4
1
'0
8
"E
 
(R
)

CALCULATED

BASIS OF BEARINGS

131.01' (131.13')

27.36'

58
.0
3'

2
3
.0
3
'

L

°2

0.
1

18
.9
7'

6
0
.2
8
'

99.98'

0

R

0

0

'

4

L

=

73.45'N77°35'00"E

N77°35'00"E

N
1
2
°
4
0
'4
4
"E

7
.6

0
=L

"

3
°

3

0
.
0

0

'
0

6
"

1'
7

2
%
%
9
1
6

7
2

=
R

\U+0394=4°39'11"

6
.

4

1
6
2
.5
2
'

N
1
1
°
3
1
'0
0
"E

S
1
2
°
2
6
'3
0
"
E

S77°33'30"W

'

7
=

36.66'

5
8
.6
1'

144.88'

N73°58'28"E

1
9
.9
0
'

"
0

°
2=

%%916

.
6

R
1

0
4

'

6

N69°1
4'40"E

S78°18'52"E

N
4
8
°
19
'2
2
"E
W

7

=

9
3
.3
4
'

L=6.90'

4

1

4
=

4
8

2

4

=

1

2

0

1

131.87
'

4
9
.1
7
'

N
3
1
°
0
6
'2
4
"W

110.50
'

N69°0
5'24"E

'

1'

0

'

=

.
L

°
1

%
%
916

'

R=84.96'

7

0.

.

L
S
4
7
°
5
5
'4
1"E

5

5

'
0

7
8
.8
0
'

=

1

N
0
7
°
0
9
'4
6
"E

Page 33 of 103

Page 299



UPUP

N

GREAT HALL

BASEBOARD AND MOLDING

AREA OF WORK

SINK

POWDER

CABINET

RACK

C
AB

IN
ET

WINE CELLAR

TEMPERED GLASS WALL

C
AB

IN
ET

LAUNDRY

CLOSETCLOSET

BATH

PARLOR

MUD ROOM

NEW WALL

CLOSET

ALL NEW WALLS TO MATCH EXISTING FINISH,

BAR

STAIR

POWDER

PARLOR

BAR & LOUNGE

FORMAL DINING ROOM

POWDER

FOR

LIFT

1/2" TEMPERED GLASS SHOWER

HOOD

VENT OPENING AT

ELEC.

DW

PROVIDE SAFETY GLAZING FOR
WINDOW AT SHOWER

SINK

REF

REF

ELEC.

TILE ALL FLOORS AND WALLS

C
AB

IN
ET

PROVIDE 100 SQ.IN.

HVAC

ELEC.

DOOR MIN, 22" OUTSWING, 1/2"

ROOM

FUTURE

HALL

STORAGE

MUD ROOM

FOYER

GUEST ROOM

CL

ENTRY

DINING ROOM

HALL

MECHANICAL

BEDROOM 1CLOSET

FORMAL LIVING ROOM

PANTRY

DEMOLISHED WALL

ROOM

WALL LEGEND

1 HOUR RATED WALL

FOYER

LIVING ROOM

CLOSET
STORAGE

VESTIBULE

KITCHEN

STORAGE

NOTES:

ROOM

BATH

KITCHEN

M
EC

H

ENTRY

TV

HOIST

C
AB

IN
ET

FORMAL LIVING ROOM

OVEN &

DW

DOOR

AREA OF WORK

CL
ELEC.

DW

C
AB

IN
ET

SINK

GREAT HALL

A102

MAIN 1ST FLOOR PLANS
EXISTING & PROPOSED

2

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1ST FLOOR PROPOSED1ST FLOOR EXISTING1
 1/8" = 1'-0"

7'-9"

3'
-0

"

22'-7"

2'-0"

9'
-2

"

19
'-0

"

22'-7"

14'-4"

5'-3"

3'
-9

"

2'-1" 5'-6"

2'
-4

"

14'-4"

6'
-8

"

2'-0"

2'-7"

5'
-8

"

3'-9"

6"
16

'-0
"

.
.

10
'-6

"

9'-7" 14'-4"

.
.

.

22'-7" . 33'-4"

23'-8"20'-9"

4'
-4

"

. . 6'-10"

16
'-0

"

1'-6"XMIN 15"

11'-3"

6'-10" 16'-0"

.

7'-0"

10
'-6

"
21

'-3
"

6'
-0

"

.

18
'-9

"

7'-8"

40
'-6

"
8'

-0
"

10'-4"

3'-3"

11'-0"4'-0"

6"

9'-7"

5'-4"

16
'-0

"

35
'-4

"

4'
-4

"

1'-9"XMIN 15"

4'
-0

"

1'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

11
'-2

"

.
17

'-1
1"

22'-7"

16'-5"

5'-3"

10'-5"11'-3"

.

104

103

102

105

DW

Page 34 of 103

Page 300



N

BATHROOMS

TEMPERED GLASS WALL

WALL

AREA OF WORK

LIFT

HALL

CLOSET

CLOSET

BEDROOM

FLOORS AND

WINDOW AT SHOWER

ROOF HATCH

TILE ALL

TILE ALL

PROVIDE 100WALL

GLASS  DOOR, 28",

SHOWER DOOR MIN,

36" ABOVE NOSE OF TREAD, 1

22" OUTSWING, 1/2"

GLASS WALL

FUTURE

CL

OVERHANG

BATH

HIS BATH

BATH

OVERHANG

CLOSET

SUN ROOM

BEDROOM

SITTING

PARLOR

NEW WALL

DN DN

STORAGE

HER BEDROOM

CLOSET

DN

W

TEMPERED GLASS

GLASS SHOWER

DOOR MIN, 22" OUTSWING, 1/2"

WALLS AT

FLOORS AND
WALLS AT

FOR WINDOW AT TUB

WINDOW AT STAIR

HOIST

PROVIDE SAFETY GLAZING FOR

ABOVE

BATHROOMS

RETRACTABLE

PROVIDE SAFETY GLAZING FOR

WALLS AT
BATHROOMS

DOOR

BATHROOMS

OPENING AT

OUTSWING, 1/2" TEMPERED
GLASS WALL

TEMPERED GLASS

1/2" TEMPERED
OUTSWING, 1/2"

TEMPERED GLASS WALL

1/2" TEMPERED

AREA OF WORK

1/2" TEMPERED GLASS

WALL

MAX. 7 3/4" RISER
PROVIDE CONTINOUS HANDRAIL

DOOR MIN, 22"

WALLS AT

D

CLOSET

BALCONY

BATH

BEDROOM

SUN ROOM

BEDROOM

LIBRARY/MEDIA

HER BATH

CLOSET

LAUNDRY

CL

HALL

BALCONY

HALL

CLOSET

BATH

BATH

HVAC

LIBRARY

BATH

BEDROOM

ALL NEW WALLS TO MATCH EXISTING FINISH,

1 HOUR RATED WALL

WALL LEGEND

DEMOLISHED WALL

NOTES:

BASEBOARD AND MOLDING

BEDROOM

CLOSET

CLOSET

CLOSET

BATH CL

STAIR

BEDROOM DN

CLOSET

BATH

DN

HALL

SITTING

CL

HIS BEDROOM

FOR

MIN 10" TREAD

1/2" DIA, 1 1/2" FROM FACE OF

AREA OF WORK

AREA OF WORK

1/2" TEMPERED GLASS SHOWER
DOOR MIN, 22" OUTSWING, 1/2"

1/2" TEMPERED

NEW STAIR

1/2" TEMPERED GLASS SHOWER

BEDROOM

SQ.IN. VENT

TILE ALL
FLOORS AND

TILE ALL
FLOORS AND

1/2" TEMPERED GLASS

PROVIDE SAFETY GLAZING

PROVIDE SAFETY GLAZING FOR

WINDOW AT HINGE SIDE OF DOOR

SHOWER DOOR MIN, 22"

PARLOR

A103

MAIN 2ND FLOOR PLANS
EXISTING & PROPOSED

1 2ND FLOOR EXISTING

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

2
 1/8" = 1'-0"
2ND FLOOR PROPOSED

 1/8" = 1'-0"

31'-1"

3'-0"XMIN

24
'-2

"
5'

-6
"

18
'-0

"
.

23'-2" 7'-8" 16'-8"

.
.

7'
-2

"
.

.

15'-10"

.

10'-11"

3'
-7

"6'-7"

3'-9"

6'-10"

2'-10"

4'-0"

19'-10"

23'-1"

4'-7"

2'
-8

"

4'-5"

4'
-3

"

4'
-2

"

1'-6"XMIN 15"1'-6"XMIN 15"

3'-0"

3'
-0

"

8'
-3

"

4'
-1

"

5'
-8

"

5'
-6

"

14'-11"7'-2"

11'-2"

15
'-8

"
18

'-1
1"

2'
-4

"

.

6'
-1

0"

8'
-3

"

.

.

.

1'-11"XMIN 15"

.
19

'-1
" 15

'-8
"

10
'-2

"

13'-6"8'-7"
3'-6"

6'
-7

"

.

1'
-1

0"

3'-3"

209

201

203204

206

207

208

210
211

212

213

202

205

Page 35 of 103

Page 301



N

MAINTAIN 3'

CORNICE

CHIMNEY TOP

OPENING

ROOF ACCES

CHIMNEY TOP

SKYLIGHT

CORNICE

CHIMNEY TOP

SKYLIGHT

OPENING AT STAIR

3'-6" GUARD, MAX OPENING
LESS THAN 21", S.S.D.

PROVIDE CRICKETS AT HATCH
FOR SLOPE TO RETURN TO

PARAPET

SKYLIGHT

CHIMNEY TOP

PARAPET

CHIMNEY TOP

CHIMNEY TOP

CHIMNEY TOP

CHIMNEY TOP

CHIMNEY TOP

SLIDING ROOF HATCH

CHIMNEY TOP

EXISTING DRAINAGE SLOPE, TYP.

SKYLIGHT

MAIN ROOF PLANS
EXISTING & PROPOSED

A104

1

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

 1/8" = 1'-0"
ROOF PLAN PROPOSEDROOF PLAN EXISTING

2'
-1

0"

Page 36 of 103

Page 302



N

CL

CHANGING ROOM

BATHROOM VENT

GREAT

1% slope

BATH

ROOM

CL

1%
 s

lo
pe

4

A105

POOL HOUSE PLANS
PROPOSED

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED
1

 1/4" = 1'-0"

POOL HOUSE PLAN - PROPOSED

 1/4" = 1'-0"

POOL HOUSE ROOF PLAN - PROPOSED2

6"

14
'-3

"

2'
-0

"

22'-9"

15
'-9

"

6"

18'-9"

13
'-1

"

35'-4"

6"

8'
-5

"

8'-0"

3'
-2

"

2'
-0

"

2'-0"

18'-3"

14
'-1

"

19'-7"

15'-1"

26
'-7

"

2'-0"

22
'-7

"

5'-5"

16'-7"

2'-0"

6"

17'-8"

Page 37 of 103

Page 303



N

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

PARKING

 GARAGE PLANS
PROPOSED

A105A

GARAGE PLAN - PROPOSED 2

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED 1/4" = 1'-0"

GARAGE ROOF PLAN - PROPOSED

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

4'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

2'
-0

"

17
'-0

"

4'
-0

"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

2'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

25
'-4

"

2'-0"

40'-0"

2'
-6

"

39'-0"

45'-0"

11'-0"2'-0"

6'
-0

"

13'-5" 4'
-6

"

1'-2"

1'-0"

2'-6" 10'-7"

2'-6"

50
'-0

"

49
'-0

"

2'-6"

58
'-6

"

4'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

2'
-0

"

18'-0"

8'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

Page 38 of 103

Page 304



N

DN

GYMNASIUM

BASEMENT

FLAT ROOF

UNFINISHED

A106

GYMNASIUM PLANS
EXISTING

GYMNASIUM ROOF PLAN - EXISTING

 1/4" = 1'-0"
2

2

GYMNASIUM PLAN - EXISTING

 1/4" = 1'-0" 1/4" = 1'-0"
3

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

GYMNASIUM BASEMENT PLAN - EXISTING

60'-3"

35
'-3

"

11
'-1

0"

60'-3"

Page 39 of 103

Page 305



N

BATH

DEMOLISHED WALL

GAME KITCHEN

STORAGE

ROOM

BU
IL

T-
IN

REPAIR IN KIND

EXISTING WALL

WALL LEGEND

A107

GAMEROOM
PLANS & ELEVATIONS

EXISTING & PROPOSED

 1/4" = 1'-0"
21

4
 1/4" = 1'-0"

GAME ROOM - SOUTH ELEVATION

GAME ROOM - EXISTING & DEMOLITION

 1/4" = 1'-0"
3

 1/4" = 1'-0"

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

GAME ROOM - PROPOSED

GAME ROOM - WEST ELEVATION

4"
7'

-8
"

11'-8"

23
'-8

"

33
'-5

"

4" 4" 15'-5"

15
'-1

1"
7'

-2
"

4"

40'-7"

33
'-5

"

22'-9"

4"

9'-6"

7'
-1

0"

13'-11"

40'-7"

GAME
ROOF/PLAZA

GAME
ROOF/PLAZA
468' - 4 5/32"468' - 4 5/32"

Page 40 of 103

Page 306



N

DOORS OF CAFETERIA,

RETURN PLAZA FLOOR TO ORIGINAL CONDITION

CAFETERIA

ORIGINAL CONDITION

FIREPLACE, RETURN STAIRS

WALLS WINDOWS AND

EXISTING WALL

WALL LEGEND

DEMOLISHED WALL

DEMOLISHED FLAT ROOF

TO ORIGINAL CONDITION

RETURN BALUSTRADES TO

DEMOLISH ALL BRICK

DEMOLISH MASONRY

A108

CAFETERIA - DEMOLITION

 1/4" = 1'-0"

4

6

3 CAFETERIA - SOUTH ELEVATION

CAFETERIA - NORTH ELEVATION5

 1/4" = 1'-0"
CAFETERIA ROOF - DEMOLITION

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

CAFETERIA - DEMOLITION 2  1/4" = 1'-0"

CAFETERIA - EAST ELEVATION

CAFETERIA - WEST ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"

 1/4" = 1'-0" 1/4" = 1'-0"

1

ROOF/PLAZA
468' - 4 5/32"

CAFETERIA ROOF

GAME
ROOF/PLAZA
468' - 4 5/32"

478' - 0 31/32"

GAME
ROOF/PLAZA

CAFETERIA ROOF
478' - 0 31/32"

CAFETERIA ROOF
478' - 0 31/32"

468' - 4 5/32"

478' - 0 31/32"

GAME

CAFETERIA ROOF

Page 41 of 103

Page 307



N

IGNITION RESISTANT

POOL

BEAM CONSTRUCTION

POOL DECK, OVER ROOFING

ROOM, CONCRETE

POOL

IGNITION RESISTANT

42" METAL GUARDRAIL

EQUIPMENT ROOM

CONCRETE PAD WITH LEDGER
BOARD AT PAD

TIMBER POST AND

POOL EQUIPMENT

TIMBER COLUMN

MEMBRANE AT POOL

TIMBER POST AND

SUSPENDED SPILLWAY

LINE OF DECK OVERHEAD

LI
N

E 
O

F 
D

EC
K 

O
VE

R
H

EA
D

TIMBER COLUMN

POOL PAVING OVER CONCRETE PAD
WHEN WITHIN +/- 6" OF GRADE,

ROOM

TIMBER BEAM

TRELLIS SCREEN

ELEVATED DECK CONNECTS TO

BEAM CONSTRUCTION

EQUIPMENT

A109
4

4

4

A109

POOL EQUIPMENT ROOM
PLAN, ELEVATION & SECTION

4

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

POOL EQUIPMENT - WEST ELEVATION

1 POOL EQUIPMENT ROOM

 1/4" = 1'-0"

POOL EQUIPMENT - SOUTH ELEVATION 32  1/4" = 1'-0"

 1/4" = 1'-0"

 1/4" = 1'-0"

SECTION AT TERRACE STAIRS TO POOL DECK

18
'-6

"

18'-6"

10
'-2

"

4"

EQ

16
'-6

"

11'-2"

EQ
6'

-0
"

3'
-6

"
10

'-2
"

9'
-2

"

3'
-6

"

7'-0"

3"

Ø16'-0"

9'-2"

11'-2"5'-10"

Page 42 of 103

Page 308



TRIM AND MOLDING TO REMAIN, TYP.

CHIMNEY TOP

WOOD WINDOWS, GLASS TO BE REPLACED ONLY ALL CASING,

SKYLIGHT GARAGE TO BE DEMOLISHED, WHITE PLASTER EXTERIOR

ADJACENT PROPERTY TO THE EASTCHIMNEY TOP CHIMNEY TOPWHITE PLASTER EXTERIOR THROUGHOUT

CHIMNEY TOP ADJACENT PROPERTY TO THE EASTCHIMNEY TOPWHITE PLASTER EXTERIOR THROUGHOUT WOOD WINDOWS, GLASS TO BE REPLACED ONLY ALL CASING,CHIMNEY TOP

EXISTING GARAGE

CHIMNEY TOP

TRIM AND MOLDING TO REMAIN, TYP.

SKYLIGHT CHIMNEY TOP

MAIN ELEVATIONS WEST
EXISTING & PROPOSED

A201

WEST ELEVATION - PROPOSED
 1/8" = 1'-0"

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

WEST ELEVATION - EXISTING

1

29
'-9

"

11
'-0

"

31
'-8

"
31

'-8
"

29
'-9

"
2ND FLOOR

490' - 11 5/32"

2ND CEILING

1ST CEILING
489' - 0 1/8"

TOP OF PARAPET
508' - 2 9/32"

EAVE
505' - 1 25/32"

MAIN 1ST FLOOR

ELEVATION
MAIN AVERAGE

476' - 6 21/32"

MAIN AVERAGE

476' - 6 21/32"
FLOOR

CEILINGPOOL HOUSE

CEILINGPOOL HOUSE

483' - 8"

471' - 8"

485' - 8"

494' - 0"
GARAGE ROOF

MAIN AVERAGE

476' - 6 21/32"

MAIN 1ST FLOOR

2ND FLOOR
490' - 11 5/32"

1ST CEILING
489' - 0 1/8"

2ND CEILING
501' - 4 15/16"

TOP OF PARAPET

EAVE
505' - 1 25/32"

POOL HOUSE

ELEVATION

478' - 5 5/32"

501' - 4 15/16"

ELEVATION

508' - 2 9/32"

478' - 5 5/32"

Page 43 of 103

Page 309



CHIMNEY TOP

TRIM AND MOLDING TO REMAIN, TYP.

CHIMNEY TOP

CHIMNEY TOPCHIMNEY TOP CHIMNEY TOPCHIMNEY TOP

EXTERIOR THROUGHOUT

WOOD WINDOWS, GLASS TO BE REPLACED ONLY ALL CASING,

CHIMNEY TOP CHIMNEY TOP SKYLIGHTEXISTING GARAGE WHITE PLASTER

EXTERIOR THROUGHOUT
SKYLIGHTWHITE PLASTER

WHITE PLASTER WOOD WINDOWS, GLASS TO BE REPLACED ONLY ALL CASING,
TRIM AND MOLDING TO REMAIN, TYP.

LINE OF GARAGE BEHIND ELEVATION CUT LINEPOOL HOUSE

EXTERIOR THROUGHOUT

A202

MAIN ELEVATIONS EAST
EXISTING & PROPOSED

2

1
 1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION - EXISTING

EAST ELEVATION - PROPOSED

 1/8" = 1'-0"

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

29
'-9

"

10
'-5

"

31
'-8

"

11
'-8

"

AV
ER

AG
E 

H
EI

G
H

T 
11

'

31
'-8

"

29
'-9

"

12
'-0

"

ELEVATION
476' - 6 21/32"

CEILING

CEILINGPOOL HOUSE
485' - 8"

MAIN 1ST FLOOR
478' - 5 5/32"

MAIN AVERAGE
ELEVATION

476' - 6 21/32"

2ND FLOOR
490' - 11 5/32"

501' - 4 15/16"

TOP OF PARAPET
508' - 2 9/32"

505' - 1 25/32"

ELEVATION
AVERAGE

FLOOR
POOL HOUSE

471' - 8"

472' - 5"

MAIN 1ST FLOOR
478' - 5 5/32"

2ND FLOOR
490' - 11 5/32"

2ND CEILING
501' - 4 15/16"

508' - 2 9/32"

EAVE
505' - 1 25/32"

POOL HOUSE

EAVE

2ND CEILING

483' - 8"
POOL HOUSE

MAIN AVERAGE

TOP OF PARAPET

Page 44 of 103

Page 310



EXISTING GARAGE CHIMNEY TOP

CHIMNEY TOPCHIMNEY TOPWHITE PLASTER EXTERIOR THROUGHOUT WOOD WINDOWS, GLASS TO BE REPLACED ONLY ALL CASING,
TRIM AND MOLDING TO REMAIN, TYP.

CHIMNEY TOP

CHIMNEY TOP SKYLIGHTWHITE PLASTER EXTERIOR THROUGHOUT WOOD WINDOWS, GLASS TO BE REPLACED ONLY ALL CASING,
TRIM AND MOLDING TO REMAIN, TYP.

CHIMNEY TOP CHIMNEY TOP

SKYLIGHT

A203

MAIN ELEVATIONS
NORTH & SOUTH - EXISTING

1

 1/8" = 1'-0"
SOUTH ELEVATION - EXISTING

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

2

NORTH ELEVATION - EXISTING
 1/8" = 1'-0"

33
'-1

"29
'-9

"

29
'-9

"

31
'-8

"

31
'-8

"

29
'-9

"

ELEVATION

EAVE

MAIN 1ST FLOOR

MAIN 1ST FLOOR
478' - 5 5/32"

MAIN AVERAGE

476' - 6 21/32"

2ND FLOOR
490' - 11 5/32"

505' - 1 25/32"

TOP OF PARAPET
508' - 2 9/32"

478' - 5 5/32"

2ND FLOOR
490' - 11 5/32"

2ND CEILING
501' - 4 15/16"

EAVE
505' - 1 25/32"

508' - 2 9/32"

MAIN AVERAGE
ELEVATION

TOP OF PARAPET

476' - 6 21/32"

Page 45 of 103

Page 311



TPO ROOFING - WHITE

WHITE STUCCO SIDING

DOORS AND WINDOWS
ALUMINUM CLAD WOOD

4 4

4 4

A204

POOL HOUSE
ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"

POOL HOUSE - SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0" 1/4" = 1'-0"

POOL HOUSE - NORTH ELEVATION

2
 1/4" = 1'-0"

POOL HOUSE - WEST ELEVATION

3

1

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

POOL HOUSE - EAST ELEVATION4

2'
-0

"

12
'-0

"
2'

-0
"

2'
-0

"

27'-4"

12
'-0

"

35'-3"

2'
-0

"

12
'-0

"

472' - 5"

483' - 8"

483' - 8"

POOL HOUSE CEILING

POOL HOUSE CEILING

AVERAGE
ELEVATION

POOL HOUSE

POOL HOUSE CEILING

POOL HOUSE

ELEVATION

POOL HOUSE CEILING

POOL HOUSE CEILING

POOL HOUSE CEILING

CEILING

POOL HOUSE
FLOOR

AVERAGE
ELEVATION

POOL HOUSE

ELEVATION

483' - 8"

485' - 8"485' - 8"

472' - 5"

472' - 5"

485' - 8" 485' - 8"

483' - 8"

472' - 5"

471' - 8"

AVERAGE

POOL HOUSE

POOL HOUSE

AVERAGE

CEILING

POOL HOUSE

Page 46 of 103

Page 312



WHITE STUCCO,

LIGHT GREY STUCCO

LIGHT GREY STUCCO

1" WOODEN TRIM

MATCH "E" MAIN

MATCH "E" MAIN

HOME

TPO ROOFING - WHITE

TPO ROOFING - WHITETPO ROOFING - WHITE

MATCH "E" MAIN

WHITE STUCCO,

SECTIONAL WOOD
OVERHEAD

LIGHT GREY STUCCO

1" WOODEN TRIM

LIGHT GREY STUCCO

PAINT DARK GREY
GARAGE DOOR,

HOME

HOME

WHITE STUCCO,

TPO ROOFING - WHITE

LIGHT GREY STUCCO

GARAGE ELEVATION

A205
GARAGE - EAST ELEVATION

GARAGE - SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"  1/4" = 1'-0"

GARAGE - WEST ELEVATION

4GARAGE - NORTH ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"  1/4" = 1'-0"

1 2

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

3

12
'-0

" 15
'-6

"

12
'-0

"

8'
-6

"

8'
-6

"
15

'-6
"

8'
-6

"
15

'-6
"

12
'-0

"15
'-6

"

GARAGE ROOF

ELEVATION
AVERAGE

GARAGE

478' - 6"
GARAGE

473' - 9"
ELEVATION

GARAGE

478' - 6"
GARAGE

473' - 9"
ELEVATION

AVERAGE

478' - 6"
GARAGE

GARAGE ROOF GARAGE ROOF

473' - 9"
ELEVATION

AVERAGE

478' - 6"
GARAGE

494' - 0"

494' - 0"494' - 0"

GARAGEGARAGE

GARAGE ROOF

AVERAGE

473' - 9"

494' - 0"

Page 47 of 103

Page 313



WOOD SIDING

WOOD SIDING

WOOD SIDING

WOOD SIDING

GYMNASIUM ELEVATION
EXISTING

A2064

GYMNASIUM - SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"
3

 1/4" = 1'-0"
2

 1/4" = 1'-0"

 1/4" = 1'-0"

GYMNASIUM - EAST ELEVATIONGYMNASIUM - NORTH ELEVATION

1

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

GYMNASIUM - WEST ELEVATION

22
'-1

1"

60'-2"

25
'-1

1"

27
'-1

"

25
'-1

1"22
'-1

1"

17
'-1

1"

22
'-1

1"

35'-3"

451' - 5"

ELEVATION
GYM AVERAGE

451' - 5"

425' - 6"
GYM BASEMENT

428' - 6 1/16"

GYM AVERAGE

451' - 5"
GYM ROOF

425' - 6"
GYM BASEMENT

428' - 6 1/16"
ELEVATION

451' - 5"
GYM ROOF

425' - 6"
GYM BASEMENT

GYM AVERAGE
ELEVATION

GYM ROOF

428' - 6 1/16"

GYM ROOF

Page 48 of 103

Page 314



N

POOL EQUIPMENT

GARAGE

TENNIS

TENNIS

ADJACENT PROPERTY

GYMNASIUM

1960 SAN ANTONIO,

POOL HOUSE

ADJACENT PROPERTY 639

COURT

ARLINGTON/CARRIAGE HOUSE

DECK & POOL

BE DEMOLISED

GAME ROOM

DEMOLISED
1960 SAN ANTONIO,
SPRING MANSION

ADJACENT PROPERTY

ADJACENT PROPERTY

GARAGE TO BE

ADJACENT PROPERTY

SPRING MANSION

GYMNASIUM

ARLINGTON/CARRIAGE HOUSE

GAME ROOM

ADJACENT PROPERTY 639

CAFETERIA TO

COURT

ROOM

A301

SITE SECTIONS

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

 1/12" = 1'-0"
SITE SECTION FROM ARLINGTON AVE - EXISTING

 1/12" = 1'-0"
2 SITE SECTION FROM ARLINGTON AVE - PROPOSED

1

471' - 8 1/32"

MAIN 1ST FLOOR
478' - 5 5/32"

478' - 6"

GAME ROOM
459' - 7 9/16"

434' - 6"

SHED
441' - 0"

ELEVATION
428' - 6 1/16"

MAIN 1ST FLOOR
478' - 5 5/32"

GARAGE
478' - 6"

POOL HOUSE
FLOOR

GAME ROOM
459' - 7 9/16"

GYMNASIUM

SHED
441' - 0"

GYM AVERAGE
ELEVATION
428' - 6 1/16"

494' - 0"

GYMNASIUM

GYM AVERAGE

GARAGE

434' - 6"

GARAGE ROOF

Page 49 of 103

Page 315



ADJACENT

PROPERTY

1960 SAN ANTONIO,

ADJACENT PROPERY
PROPERTY

ADJACENT

PROPERTY

GYMNASIUM

SPRING MANSION

POOL

GYMNASIUM

SPRING MANSION
GARAGE TO BE DEMOLISHED

POOL HOUSE

ROOM
EQUIP

ADJACENT PROPERY

GAME ROOM

ADJACENT

POOL

GARAGE PROPERTY

1960 SAN ANTONIO,

ADJACENT

CAFETERIAGAME ROOM

A302

SITE SECTIONS

 1/16" = 1'-0"

2 SITE SECTION - EXISTING
 1/16" = 1'-0"

1

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

SITE SECTION - PROPOSED

29
'-9

"

GYMNASIUM

459' - 7 9/16"
GAME ROOM

FLOOR
POOL HOUSE

GARAGE

MAIN 1ST FLOOR

GARAGE ROOF
494' - 0"

478' - 6"

478' - 5 5/32"

GARAGE
478' - 6"

GAME ROOM
459' - 7 9/16"

GYMNASIUM
434' - 6"

471' - 8 1/32"

478' - 5 5/32"

434' - 6"

MAIN 1ST FLOOR

Page 50 of 103

Page 316



A901

SHADOW STUDY

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 51 of 103

Page 317



GARAGE AND POOL HOUSE
RENDERING

A902

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 52 of 103

Page 318



CUSTOME MADE OUTDOOR LIGHTING
TO REPLICATE ORIGINAL

CONCRETE ROOF
REPLACEMENT IN KIND

SKYLIGHT TO REMAIN WOODEN WINDOWS, GLASS TO BE REPLACED ONLY.
ALL CASING, TRIM AND MOLDING TO REMAIN, TYP.

WHITE PLASTER EXTERIOR THROUGHOUT.
REPLACEMENT IN KIND

CHIMNEY TOP
REPLACEMENT IN KIND

MATERIAL BOARD
(MAIN HOUSE)

M01

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

NOTE :

ALL COLORS AND TEXTURES ARE REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLES ONLY, PENDING
VERIFICATION OF ACTUAL MATERIAL SUPPLIERS AND MANUFACTURERS FOR THIS
PROJECT.

Page 53 of 103

Page 319



M02

MATERIAL BOARD
(OUTDOOR)

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

NOTE :

ALL COLORS AND TEXTURES ARE REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLES ONLY, PENDING
VERIFICATION OF ACTUAL MATERIAL SUPPLIERS AND MANUFACTURERS FOR THIS
PROJECT.

Page 54 of 103

Page 320



TPO ROOFING - WHITE

ALUMINUM CLAD WOODEN
DOORS AND WINDOWS

SCONCES

WHITE STUCCO SIDING
TO MATCH 

M03

MATERIAL BOARD
(POOL HOUSE)

NOTE :

ALL COLORS AND TEXTURES ARE REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLES ONLY, PENDING
VERIFICATION OF ACTUAL MATERIAL SUPPLIERS AND MANUFACTURERS FOR THIS
PROJECT.

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

Page 55 of 103

Page 321



SCONCES

LIGHT GREY STUCCO

OVERHEAD SECTIONAL 
GARAGE DOOR,

1" WOODEN TRIM

LIGHT GREY STUCCO

WHITE STUCCO
MATCH TO THE MAIN HOUSE

TPO ROOFING - WHITE

PAINT DARK GREY

MATERIAL BOARD
(GARAGE)

M04

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

NOTE :

ALL COLORS AND TEXTURES ARE REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLES ONLY, PENDING
VERIFICATION OF ACTUAL MATERIAL SUPPLIERS AND MANUFACTURERS FOR THIS
PROJECT.

Page 56 of 103

Page 322



TPO ROOF
REPLACEMENT IN KIND

WHITE PAINTED WOOD SIDING
REPLACEMENT IN KIND

WOODEN WINDOWS
REPLACEMENT IN KIND

MATERIAL BOARD
(GYMNASIUM)

M05

ABBAS MASH

05/13/2023

SPRING MANSION

BERKELEY, CA 94707
1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE

PAYMUN BUILDING & 
DEVELOPMENT, Inc.

REVISION DATE

PLANNING SUBMITTAL I

SADAF DAYLAMI
DESIGNER & DRAFTER :

AS INDICATED

NOTE :

ALL COLORS AND TEXTURES ARE REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLES ONLY, PENDING
VERIFICATION OF ACTUAL MATERIAL SUPPLIERS AND MANUFACTURERS FOR THIS
PROJECT.

Page 57 of 103

Page 323



Attachment 2
Page 58 of 103

Page 324



Page 59 of 103

Page 325



Page 60 of 103

Page 326



Page 61 of 103

Page 327



Page 62 of 103

Page 328



Page 63 of 103

Page 329



Page 64 of 103

Page 330



Page 65 of 103

Page 331



Page 66 of 103

Page 332



Page 67 of 103

Page 333



Page 68 of 103

Page 334



Page 69 of 103

Page 335



Page 70 of 103

Page 336



Page 71 of 103

Page 337



Page 72 of 103

Page 338



Page 73 of 103

Page 339



Attachment 3  

L A N D M A R K S

P R E S E R V A T I O N

C O M M I S S I O N

S t a f f  R e p o r t

1947 Center Street, 2nd Fl., Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420

FOR COMMISSION ACTION
JUNE 1, 2023

1960 San Antonio Avenue/645 Arlington Avenue – 
The Spring Estate
Structural Alteration Permit (#LMSAP2022-0005) to restore the terrace, 
remove the non-historic building addition, and repair railings and 
walkways of the Spring Mansion; demolish the detached, non-historic 
garage and construct a new ten-car garage; demolish and replace the 
non-historic driveway, retaining walls and stairs on the east side of the 
property; construct a new, detached pool house, excavate and install a 
new swimming pool; and complete landscape improvements at a City 
Landmark residential property in the Hillside neighborhood, contingent 
upon rehabilitation of the historic gymnasium building.    

I.   Application Basics

A. Land Use Designations: 
 Zoning: Single Family Residential District, Hillside Overlay (R-1H)

B. CEQA Determination: pending.

C. Parties Involved:

 Property Owner: Abbas Mash
18 Deer Oaks Drive
Pleasanton, CA 

 Project Applicant: Bahadour Zarrin
Paymun Building & Development
25 Ordina Way, Suite 200

Page 74 of 103

Page 340



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 2 of 18 June 1, 2023

Orinda, CA 

D. Recommendation: Review revised proposal and consider final action.

Page 75 of 103

Page 341



  

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1960 SAN ANONIO AVENUE
June 1, 2023 Page 3 of 18

Figure 1: Vicinity Map showing nearby City Landmarks & Districts

 

Subject 
Property

Page 76 of 103

Page 342



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 4 of 18 June 1, 2023

Figure 2: Proposed site plan 

Figure 3: Subject property, east elevation of main house, north elevation of garage, 
current site conditions (Jonathan Rachman Design). 

Historic
Gymnasium

Former faculty quarters 
(separate parcel, not 

part of Landmark)

Historic
Spring

Mansion

New pool house, 
pool

New garage

Page 77 of 103

Page 343



  

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1960 SAN ANONIO AVENUE
June 1, 2023 Page 5 of 18

Page 78 of 103

Page 344



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 6 of 18 June 1, 2023

Figure 4: Subject property, north elevation of garage to be demolished (2022).

Page 79 of 103

Page 345



  

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1960 SAN ANONIO AVENUE
June 1, 2023 Page 7 of 18

Figure 5: Subject property, west elevation of addition off west terrace. Upper level 
cafeteria/auditorium to be demolished to restore the southwest terrace. Game room 
below the terrace to be rehabilitated (2022).

Page 80 of 103

Page 346



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 8 of 18 June 1, 2023

Figure 6: Subject property, southwest terrace, to be restored to match existing terrace 
(2022).

Page 81 of 103

Page 347



  

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1960 SAN ANONIO AVENUE
June 1, 2023 Page 9 of 18

Figure 7: Subject property, gymnasium, east elevation, rehabilitation needed (2022).

Figure 8: Enlarged proposed site plan 

Page 82 of 103

Page 348



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 10 of 18 June 1, 2023

Figure 9: Proposed east elevation 

Figure 10: North-south section 

Figure 11: Section from Arlington Avenue 

Proposed pool house 
and garage

Spring 
mansion

Proposed pool 
house and garage

Proposed pool house and garage

Page 83 of 103

Page 349



  

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1960 SAN ANONIO AVENUE
June 1, 2023 Page 11 of 18

II. Background

Brief History & Site Conditions
The subject property is comprised of three parcels under the same ownership. The 
largest is approximately 112,000 sq. ft., with frontage on San Antonio Avenue and 
Arlington Avenue. The second parcel has frontage on San Antonio Avenue and contains 
no structures. The third parcel is located at 639 Arlington Avenue and contains a 
building that was faculty quarters when the property was a college. 

The City Landmark Spring Estate consists of a grand main building designed by John 
Hudson Thomas in the Beaux-Arts architectural style. It was completed in 1912 and 
features concrete and iron architectural features, terraces to the west, north, and south; 
and stairs and walkways leading to Arlington Avenue. The site includes a gymnasium 
adjacent to Arlington Avenue and a single-family dwelling (1984 San Antonio) known as 
the carriage house. The dwelling at 1984 San Antonio Avenue is part of the Landmark, 
but under separate ownership. 

Historically Significant Features:
 Mansion with concrete and iron architectural features
 Terraces and balustrades to the front, rear, and side of the mansion
 Fountain west of the mansion
 Stairs and walkway to Arlington Avenue
 Statues, urns, retaining walls in the Beaux Arts style
 Gymnasium at Arlington Avenue
 Carriage house at San Antonio Avenue (1984 San Antonio Avenue)
 Design landscape and hardscape features original to the estate

 
The Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) designated this property as a City 
Landmark in 2000 (see Attachment 5). The designation excludes a building addition on 
the original southwest terrace of the Spring Mansion; garden sheds; tennis courts; a 
fountain and entrance features at the east, adjacent to San Antonio Avenue; the 
detached, two-car garage; and the residence at 639 Arlington Avenue (originally faculty 
housing, currently vacant and on a separate parcel).

The gymnasium and residence at 639 Arlington Avenue are in poor condition, and much 
of the grounds have been neglected, with failing or damaged retaining walls and 
overgrown vegetation. The condition of the property does not comply with BMC Section 
3.24.290, good repair and maintenance required. If this SAP were granted, then a 
rehabilitation plan could be required as a Condition of Approval to ensure the 
gymnasium is rehabilitated. A Use Permit application to demolish and replace the former 
faculty house may be submitted to the Zoning Adjustments Board without LPC 
consideration because it is not part of the Landmark.

Page 84 of 103

Page 350



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 12 of 18 June 1, 2023

Application Chronology
On June 1, 2022, the applicant submitted Administrative Use Permit (AUP) #ZP2022-
0070 and the subject Structural Alteration Permit application. The AUP is subject to review 
and approval by the Zoning Officer. AUP consideration is contingent upon the 
Commission’s approval of the subject SAP. In accordance with BMC Section 3.24.220, 
the Commission opened the SAP hearing on August 4, 2022, and then continued the 
matter without discussion while awaiting receipt of a complete application and 
recommendation for final action. On August 19, October 11 and November 19, 2022, the 
applicant submitted additional material, and on March 2, 2023, the Commission resumed 
the hearing, provided comments and direction to the applicant, and then continued to 
await receipt of the revised application submittal in response to their comments. 

On May 15 and May 16, 2023, the applicant provided revised plans, material boards, an 
applicant statement, and a draft rehabilitation plan for the gymnasium; see Attachment 2 
for the plans and material boards. Staff mailed and posted ten-day advance public notices 
on (or before) May 22, 2023, in accordance with the requirements of BMC Section 
3.24.230. 

Community Discussion
The City received two correspondences from concerned neighbors in August and 
September 2022 (included previously with the March 2, 2023 staff report). At the August 
4, 2022 hearing, a neighbor shared concerns related to animals and public noticing 
procedures, and another neighbor was supportive of the project. At the March 2, 2023 
LPC meeting two neighbors expressed concerns about the poor condition of the 
gymnasium and faculty house, located on a separate parcel. A letter was received from a 
neighbor in May 2023, and they expressed concerns about the neglect of the Arlington 
side of the property, and the size of the proposed garage. Overall, neighbors are 
concerned about the neglect of the property, and continued inadequate maintenance (e.g. 
overgrown vegetation along the Arlington).

III. Project Description

The applicant proposes to demolish the detached garage, the auditorium building on top 
of the southwest terrace, and concrete walls, concrete steps, and the fountain near the 
San Antonio Avenue entrance; repair concrete walkways, retaining walls, railings, and 
balusters north, south, and west of the mansion; rehabilitate the room below the 
auditorium; modify the driveway area off of San Antonio Avenue; and add a pool, pool 
house, and new garage. Table 1, below, summarizes the scope of work. The proposed 
project would comply with many of the ministerial development standards for the R-1 
zoning district, but would require approval from the Zoning Officer to add the pool house, 
add a garage more than 24 feet in length, and add an unenclosed spa.

 

Page 85 of 103

Page 351



  

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1960 SAN ANONIO AVENUE
June 1, 2023 Page 13 of 18

 Table 1: Summary of Proposed Scope of Work at Spring Estate site

Location
Feature to 

be 
Preserved?

Scope of Proposed Work Project Plans 
Sheets

 Restore terrace, remove non-
historic “cafeteria” addition

A050, A100-
A101B, A108, 
A201, A301-
A302

 Renovate existing recreation room 
below southwest terrace

A050, A107, 
A301-A302

Main Building
Spring 

Mansion
Yes

 Repair & replace walkways, 
retaining walls, railings and 
balusters

A100-A101, 
A301-A302

San Antonio 
Site Entrance 

Features
(east)

No

 Demolish driveway, and replace 
with new, expanded driveway
 Remove existing retaining walls, 
stairs and fountain, and add 
replacement retaining walls

A050, A100-
A101

Detached 
Garage No  Demolish 2-car garage

 Construct new 10-car garage

A050, A100-
A101B, A105, 
A201-A203, 
A205, A301-
A302

South Yard 
Area No

 Construct 641 sq. ft, single-story 
pool house
 Excavate and install below-grade 

swimming pool with decking and 
equipment enclosure

A050, A100-
A101B, A105, 
A109, A201-
A202, A204, 
A301-A302

Landscape 
throughout 

site
No  New plantings

 Preserve oak trees L1-L6

Page 86 of 103

Page 352



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 14 of 18 June 1, 2023

IV. Issues and Analysis

At the March 2, 2023 LPC meeting, the Commission received a presentation from staff 
and the applicant, and then provided comments on the proposed design of the new 
buildings. In response, the Applicant revised some aspects of the proposal and the 
project design, and then re-submitted the project plans for further consideration; see 
Attachment 2 of this report. 

The Commission’s comments and the Applicant’s responses are summarized in Table 2, 
below.
 

Table 2.  March 2, 2023 LPC Comments – Project & Design Improvements

Topic LPC Direction Response Project Plans
Sheet

Improve massing; consider 
terracing

New features including 
pilasters, windows, pedestrian 
door, & balcony; new vehicle 
door arrangement; new 
decorative details such as 
pilasters & a pergola. 

A105A, A201, 
A205, A301, A302, 

A902, M04

Reduce overall size No change A105A, A201, 
A205, A301, A302

Avoid pitched roof Flat roof
A105A, A201, 

A205, A301, A302, 
A902, M04

Use plantings to screen 
structure

Plants shown in renderings 
only, no new information in 
landscape plan.

A902, M04

Improve design of vehicle 
doors Change of color only A205, A902, M04

Lower height to less than 
main building porte cochère No change A302

Two-Story
Garage

Consider pedestrian 
access/door

Person door added to east 
elevation (not shown in floor 
plan).

A205, A902, M04

Consider lower, flatter roof Flat roof A204, A902, M03
Pool 
House More glazing Windows are modern in design, 

with larger pieces of glass. A204, A902, M03

Reduce pavementVehicle 
Pavement Consider alternative to 

asphalt
No change M02

The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (1977) 
and the Landmarks Preservation Ordinance (BMC Section 3.24) would apply to this 

Page 87 of 103

Page 353



  

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1960 SAN ANONIO AVENUE
June 1, 2023 Page 15 of 18

request for improvements to the Spring Estate City Landmark property. Analysis of 
applicable Standards is provided below.  

A.  The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation
The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties 
defines Rehabilitation as “the act or process of making possible a compatible use for a 
property through repair, alterations, and additions while preserving those portions or 
features which convey its historical, cultural, or architectural values.” The analysis 
below summarizes staff’s preliminary findings for this project with respect to the most 
pertinent Secretary’s Standards.

SOI Standard 6
Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity 
of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will 
match the old in design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of 
missing features will be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence.

Analysis: The proposed scope of work includes repairing and replacing concrete 
features including steps, railings, balustrades, and retaining walls around the 
mansion. The new features will match the old in design, color, texture, and 
materials. 

The historic gymnasium is in poor condition and has received considerable 
attention from the neighbors who are concerned that it has or will become a 
nuisance. The condition of the property does not comply with BMC Section 
3.24.290, good repair and maintenance required. At this time, the Building Official 
has not made a formal determination about the status of the structure. 
Meanwhile, staff and the applicant have discussed a possible requirement to 
rehabilitate the structure if the subject SAP were to receive a favorable final 
outcome. The applicant has been advised that a Site/Structure Specific Historic 
Preservation Treatment Plan would be included as a Condition of Approval and, 
the scope of this project has been expanded to include rehabilitation of the 
gymnasium. 

The applicant proposes to introduce marble at the landing off of the west 
entrance of the mansion, where marble tiles would replace concrete under the 
balcony. This change is limited in scope and location and not likely to result in a 
significant impact on the Landmark. The material change at the west landing 
would not be visible from the right-of-way, and would not be very visible due to 
the balcony above. 

SOI Standard 9
New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic 
materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new 

Page 88 of 103

Page 354



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 16 of 18 June 1, 2023

work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic 
materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of 
the property and its environment.

Analysis: Originally the applicant proposed a new garage with a flat roof and 
decorative pilasters that matched the design of the mansion. In the first 
incomplete letter staff said that the design of the garage was in conflict with 
Standard 9. Subsequently, the applicant revised the design, and removed the 
pilasters and changed the roof to a hipped roof. At the March 2 LPC meeting 
Commissioners and staff provided feedback on the design of the garage and pool 
house. The applicant submitted revised plans in May. The revised garage is still 
large in massing and tall, particularly when viewed from the south, but the new 
details on the building have elevated the design. The revised pool house and 
garage both have flat roofs which are compatible with the mansion, and the 
overall design of the pool house and garage is differentiated from the mansion 
(Figures 12 and 13). 

The revised design of the new buildings and features is contemporary and, 
therefore, distinct from the Beaux Arts architectural design of the historic Spring 
Mansion, but the garage height should be lowered, and additional details are 
needed on the doors, windows, and lighting.

Figure 12: Proposed garage next to the mansion, from the north-south section

Proposed garage is taller than the mansion porte cochère 

Page 89 of 103

Page 355



  

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION 1960 SAN ANONIO AVENUE
June 1, 2023 Page 17 of 18

B.  Landmarks Preservation Ordinance (LPO) Review Standards and Criteria

The analysis below summarizes staff’s findings for this project with respect to the 
requirements for SAP approval in accordance with the LPO.

BMC Section 3.24.260, Paragraph C.1
“For applications relating to landmark sites, the proposed work shall not adversely affect 
the exterior architectural features of the landmark and, where specified in the 
designation for a publicly owned landmark, its major interior architectural features…”

Analysis: The revised design of the proposed pool house and garage with flat 
roofs and modern design elements is both complimentary to and distinct from the 
existing mansion. The mansion will remain unchanged, and non-historic features 
such as the fountain on the San Antonio side of the property will be removed. 

“…nor shall the proposed work adversely affect the special character or special 
historical, architectural or aesthetic interest or value of the landmark and its site, as 
viewed both in themselves and in their setting.”

Analysis: The new garage may be visible from the public right-of-way, and the 
height could be lowered to reduce any negative impacts on the Landmark. 

V. Rationale for Recommendation

Improvements have been made to the design of the proposed garage and pool house. 
Table 2 provides a summary of LPC comments and the applicant’s response. The 
following aspects of the project should be considered before final action:

 Garage massing and visibility. The height of the garage could be lowered, which 
would reduce the visual impact of the garage. The applicant has attempted to 
address the blank walls of the garage, but it is not clear why particular design 
choices were made. There are some inconsistencies between the floor plan, 
elevations, and renderings. Congruence between the floor plan, elevations, and 
renderings could be a condition of approval. The height, size, and details of the 
garage could be addressed with conditions of approval. 

 Pool House. Staff believes revisions to the pool house design successfully 
addressed to the Commissioners’ comments. However, if further refinements are 
needed, then the Commission can direct staff to include Conditions of approval as 
needed.

 New expanded driveway. Commissioners’ concerns about the amount of proposed 
asphalt have not been addressed. The driveway design and material could be 
discussed tonight. 

Page 90 of 103

Page 356



  

1960 SAN ANTONIO AVENUE LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Page 18 of 18 June 1, 2023

VI. Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Commission:
1) Review and discuss the proposed project design and the project’s potential 

regulatory compliance.
2) Take favorable action and adopt the Draft Findings and Conditions for Approval if 

the proposal is found to satisfy the requirements of BMC Section 3.24.220.

Attachments
1. Draft Findings and Conditions for Approval
2. Project Plans (including Landscape Plans), and Material Boards received May 15, 2023
3. Correspondence, May 2023

Prepared by: Allison Riemer, Associate Planner, ariemer@cityofberkeley.info, 510-981-7433
Reviewed by: Fatema Crane, Principal Planner/LPC Secretary; fcrane@cityofberkeley.info (510) 981-7410

Page 91 of 103

Page 357

mailto:ariemer@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:fcrane@cityofberkeley.info


Attachment 4
Page 92 of 103

Page 358



Page 93 of 103

Page 359



Page 94 of 103

Page 360



Page 95 of 103

Page 361



Page 96 of 103

Page 362



Page 97 of 103

Page 363



Page 98 of 103

Page 364



Page 99 of 103

Page 365



Page 100 of 103

Page 366



Page 101 of 103

Page 367



Page 102 of 103

Page 368



 
 

Administrative Record 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
This attachment is on file and available for review at 
the City Clerk Department, or can be accessed from 
the City Council Website.  Copies of the attachment 
are available upon request. 
 

 
 

City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
or from:  
 
The City of Berkeley’s Website 
http://www.berkeleyca.gov 

Attachments 5-6 

Page 369

http://www.berkeleyca.gov/


Attachment 7  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING – BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL

LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPEAL: 1960 SAN ANTONIO 
AVENUE/645 ARLINGTON AVENUE- SPRING ESTATE

STRUCTURAL ALTERATION PERMIT #LMSAP2022-0005

The public may participate in this hearing by remote video or in-person.

Notice is hereby given by the City Council of the City of Berkeley that on TUESDAY, 
FEBRUARY 13, 2024 at 6:00 P.M. a public hearing will be conducted to consider an appeal 
of the decision by the Landmarks Preservation Commission to APPROVE Structural 
Alteration Permit #LMSAP2022-0005 to restore the terrace, remove the non-historic 
building addition, and repair railings and walkways of the Spring mansion; demolish 
the detached, non-historic garage and construct a new ten-car garage; demolish and 
replace the non-historic driveway, retaining walls and stairs on the east side of the 
property; construct a new, detached pool house, excavate and install a new swimming 
pool; and complete landscape improvements at a City Landmark residential property 
in the Hillside neighborhood, contingent upon rehabilitation of the historic gymnasium 
building.

The hearing will be held at the Berkeley Unified School District Board Room located at 1231 
Addison Street, Berkeley CA 94702.

A copy of the agenda material for this hearing will be available on the City’s website at 
www.berkeleyca.gov as of February 1, 2024. Once posted, the agenda for this meeting 
will include a link for public participation using Zoom video technology, as well as any 
health and safety requirements for in-person attendance.

For further information, please contact Allison Riemer, Project Planner, (510) 981-7433 or 
ariemer@berkeleyca.gov. Written comments should be mailed or delivered directly to the City 
Clerk, 2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704, in order to ensure delivery to all 
Councilmembers and inclusion in the agenda packet.  

Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of the 
City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-
mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but 
if included in any communication to the City Council, will become part of the public 
record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made 
public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the City 
Clerk.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not 
include that information in your communication.  Please contact the City Clerk at 981-6900 or 
clerk@berkeleyca.gov for further information.

________________________________

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Mailed: January 30, 2024

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny (Code Civ. Proc. 1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 65009(c)(5) an appeal, the 
following requirements and restrictions apply: 1) Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6, 
no lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny or approve a Board or Commission decision may be filed 
more than 90 days after the date the Notice of Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed.  Any 
lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be barred. 2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a 
City Council decision to approve or deny a Board or Commission decision, the issues and evidence will 
be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the 
close of the last public hearing on the project.

If you challenge the above in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone 
else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the 
City of Berkeley at, or prior to, the public hearing.  Background information concerning this proposal will 
be available by request from the City Clerk Department and posted on the City of Berkeley webpage 
prior to the public hearing. 

Page 103 of 103

Page 370

http://www.berkeleyca.gov/
mailto:ariemer@berkeleyca.gov
mailto:clerk@berkeleyca.gov


Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov  Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/

ACTION CALENDAR 
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing, and Community Services

Subject: Dissolution of the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission and 
the Peace and Justice Commission; and, establishment of the Berkeley 
Community Action Agency Commission 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt first reading of an Ordinance to:

1. Repeal Chapter 3.68, Peace and Justice Commission; and,
2. Repeal Chapter 3.78, Human Welfare and Community Action Commission; and,
3. Establish the Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission with Chapter 3.70

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The City of Berkeley receives approximately $300,000 of CSBG funding per calendar 
year to support programs and services that combat poverty for Berkeley residents. 
Currently, the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission (HWCAC) acts as 
the federally mandated tripartite board for CSBG funding and advises the Council on 
how to use these funds. The duties associated with CSBG funding will be transferred to 
the newly-established Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission (BCAA), which 
will take on the advisory responsibilities previously held by the HWCAC. The City 
Council will continue to be the decision-making body and will be responsible for all final 
CSBG funding decisions.

The dissolution of two commissions and establishment of one commission may reduce 
staffing and operating costs associated with running commission meetings, because the 
total number of commissions will be decreased by one. This staff cost saving was 
identified in the June 15, 2021 Council item, “Commission Reorganization for Post-
COVID19 Budget Recovery” (Attachment 2). 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
In order to sustain civic engagement and remain fiscally responsible, in June 2021 the 
City Council directed the City Manager to consolidate several City commissions, 
including the HWCAC and Peace and Justice Commission (PJC). Additionally, as of this 
writing, the HWCAC has two commissioners and has not achieved a commission 
meeting quorum since June 21, 2023. This is a significant problem for both the City 

Page 1 of 29

Page 371

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
16



Dissolution of the HWCAC and PJC; and establishment of the BCAA ACTION CALENDAR 
February 13, 2024

Page 2

commission meeting requirements as well as CSBG funding requirements, for which the 
HWCAC serves as an advisory board to Council. Without regular meetings of the 
HWCAC, the City is in violation of the contract requirements for CSBG funding, which 
include approval of CSBG revenue contracts, regular review of community agency 
performance reports, public hearings on community needs, and funding 
recommendations to City Council. With over half of the seats currently vacant, the PJC 
has also struggled to maintain its membership.

The proposed Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission (BCAA) would adopt all 
CSBG-related requirements, ensuring contract compliance and preservation of the 
approximate $300,000 per calendar year that the City receives in CSBG funding for 
anti-poverty programs and services for Berkeley residents. 

The proposed change from 15 members of the HWCAC to a nine-member structure for 
the BCAA would achieve a balance between the strict federal funding requirement to 
have a tripartite board, and the ability to keep the seats on the commission filled. The 
three parts of the tripartite board are one-third elected public officials (or their 
designees), at least one- third elected low-income individuals residing in the CSBG 
agency's designated service area (in this case, the City of Berkeley), and the remaining 
members from the private sector (such as representatives from business, industry, 
labor, religious, human services, education, or other groups with interest in the 
community). City staff received technical assistance from the California Community 
Action Partnership Association (CalCAPA), which supports Community Action Agencies 
and CSBG funding recipients with HUD compliance, to ensure that the new commission 
structure will be CSBG compliant.

The new BCAA municipal code chapter will include the key responsibilities and 
requirements from both the HWCAC and PJC.

BACKGROUND
On June 15, 2021, City Council directed the City Manager to examine a multi-phased 
approach to the consolidation of City commissions, including a merger of the HWCAC 
and the PJC. The merging of these two commissions was delayed due to conflicting 
municipal code requirements, as well as challenges to ensuring CSBG funding 
compliance. City staff have now determined that the commissions are able to be 
merged without disrupting the responsibilities of each respective commission. City staff 
shared a memo with both commissions that included a description and timeline for the 
merger, as well as staff contact information for any questions, concerns, or feedback.

The HWCAC was established to identify social welfare needs of the community and to 
advise City Council on the use of CSBG funds for services that benefit low-income 
Berkeley residents, acting as a tripartite board for the City of Berkeley’s CSBG funding. 

Page 2 of 29

Page 372



Dissolution of the HWCAC and PJC; and establishment of the BCAA ACTION CALENDAR 
February 13, 2024

Page 3

The PJC was established to advise City Council and the Berkeley Unified School Board 
on all matters relating to the City of Berkeley’s role in issues of peace and social justice, 
including, but not limited to the issues of ending the arms race, abolishing nuclear 
weapons, support for human rights and self-determination throughout the world, and the 
reallocation of our national resources so that money now spent on war and preparation 
of war is spent on fulfilling human needs and the promotion of peace.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no environmental sustainability or climate impacts associated with this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The proposal to dissolve the HWCAC and PJC and establish the BCAA is consistent 
with Council’s directive to consolidate those two commissions. The new commission 
(BCAA) will be responsible for all CSBG-related requirements, which are currently not 
being met by the HWCAC due to ongoing commissioner vacancies and a lack of 
commission meeting quorum. The formation of the BCAA addresses these issues 
explicitly, by introducing new strategies and configurations for the tripartite board. In 
addition, the PJC has struggled to maintain its membership as well with over half of the 
seats currently vacant. Combining the two commissions will help maintain a more robust 
membership and public participation, and will support carrying out the assigned duties.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Due to the ongoing commission vacancies in the HWCAC and PJC, as well as Council’s 
directive to consolidate the HWCAC and PJC, no alternative actions were considered.

CONTACT PERSON
Mary-Claire Katz, Associate Management Analyst, HHCS, 981-5414

Attachments: 
1: Ordinance 
2. “Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery”, June 15, 2021

Page 3 of 29

Page 373



  

ORDINANCE NO. -N.S.

ADDING CHAPTER 7.26 TO THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE ESTABLISHING THE 
BERKELEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY COMMISSION AND REPEALING 
CHAPTERS 3.68 AND 3.78 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. That a new Chapter 3.70 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is added to read as 
follows:

Chapter 3.70

BERKELEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY COMMISSION

Sections:
3.70.010 Creation of the Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission
3.70.020 Membership
3.70.030Term of office 
3.70.040 Vacancy and removal 
3.70.050 Temporary vacancies
3.70.060 Officers, meetings and procedures 
3.70.070 Social welfare defined 
3.70.080 Social justice defined
3.70.090 Functions of the commission
3.70.100 Elections for low-income representatives
3.70.110 Bylaws of the Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission

Section 3.70.010 Creation of the Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission
The Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission is hereby created with an 
effective date of May 1, 2024.

Section 3.70.020 Membership
A. The commission shall consist of nine members.  This commission is not subject 

to BMC Sections 2.04.030–2.04.130, the Fair Representation Ordinance, due to the 
Community Action Agency membership regulations in state and federal law.

B. Three of the members shall be appointed by the Berkeley City Council by 
majority vote.

C. Three of the members shall be low-income representatives, subject to the 
eligibility requirements of this paragraph, and elected to the commission using one of 
the methods in Section 3.70.100: 

i. An individual who is at or below the federal poverty line, and who resides within 
the City of Berkeley; or

ii. An individual from a group(s) or organization(s) composed primarily of low-
income persons and representing the interest of the low-income population in the City of 

Page 4 of 29

Page 374



  

Page 2

Berkeley, whose membership duly select a representative chosen in accordance with a 
democratic selection procedure.

D. Three of the members shall be members or officials of business, industry, labor, 
religious, welfare, education, or major groups and interests in the community, as 
required by California Government Code Sections 12736(e), 12750(a)(2), and 12751 
(and its successors), the language of which is incorporated herein by reference. These 
members should be identified and nominated for Council approval by the existing 
commissioners.

E. For the purpose of members appointed pursuant to paragraph C and D, the 
community service block grant (CSBG) target area is within the boundary of the City of 
Berkeley. 

Section 3.70.030 Term of office. 
For purposes of determining term limits under Section 3.02.040, a commissioner’s 

service on the Human Welfare & Community Action Commission or the Peace & Justice 
Commission shall be counted toward their service upon their appointment to the 
Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission.

Section 3.70.040 Vacancy and removal of elected members
Elected members of the commission are subject to the same membership and 
attendance requirements as appointed members except as otherwise provided in this 
chapter.

A. A vacancy shall exist when an elected board member moves and establishes 
residence outside of their election district or otherwise no longer meets the eligibility 
requirements of Section 3.70.020.C. 

B. Vacancies in any elected commission position shall be filled by a new election 
pursuant to Section 3.70.100.

Section 3.70.050 Temporary vacancies
An elected member of the commission may take a temporary leave of absence of up 

to three months in duration by notifying the City Clerk and the commission secretary in 
writing in advance of the absence, during which time a temporary vacancy shall exist. 
During the period of such temporary vacancy in an elected position, a temporary 
appointment shall be made by the remaining low-income representatives subject to the 
eligibility requirements of Section 3.70.020.C.

Section 3.70.060 Officers, meetings and procedures
A. The commission shall elect one of its members chairperson and one of its 

members vice-chairperson. 
B. The commission shall establish a regular place and time for meeting. All 

meetings shall be noticed as required by law and shall be scheduled in a way to allow 
for maximum input from the public. The frequency of meetings shall be as determined 
by City Council resolution. The scheduling of special meetings in addition to those 
established by City Council resolution, except special meetings that take the place of 
cancelled regular meetings, shall be subject to approval by the City Council. A request 
for a special meeting shall include the reason for the proposed meeting and should be 

Page 5 of 29

Page 375



  

Page 3

expedited on the City Council’s agenda, or in the alternative, placed before the Agenda 
Committee for approval. 

C. A majority of the members appointed to the commission shall constitute a 
quorum and the affirmative vote of a majority of the members appointed is required to 
take any action.

D. All subcommittees of this commission should fairly reflect the composition of the 
commission. 

Section 3.70.070 Social welfare defined
"Social Welfare" as used in this chapter, means that endeavor which is concerned 

with community-wide and group interests rather than with needs of individual residents 
and embraces such areas, among others, special needs of the family, children, youth 
and the aged, and the way in which people live and work together. 

Section 3.70.080 Social justice defined
“Social justice" shall refer to the goal of creating a world community in which the 

relations between people are based on equality, respect for human rights, and the 
abhorrence of exploitation and all forms of oppression. 

Section 3.70.090 Functions of the commission
The functions of the commission shall be as follows: 
A. The commission shall function as the Board of the Community Action Agency as 

set forth in California Government Code Sections 12750 - 12763 and its successors, the 
terms of which are incorporated herein by reference; 

B. Identify social welfare needs of the Berkeley community and create awareness of 
these needs among residents; 

C. Review and accept the Community Needs Assessment as outlined in the 
Community Service Block Grant Organizational Standards and create a citizen 
awareness of these needs;

D. Encourage the development of programs designed to improve the social welfare 
of the Berkeley community; 

E. Advise the Berkeley City Council on all matters relating to the City of Berkeley’s 
role in issues of peace and social justice, including, but not limited to the issues of 
ending the arms race, abolishing nuclear weapons, support for human rights and self-
determination throughout the world;

F. Create citizen awareness around issues of social justice;
G. Advise the City Council on matters relating to the responsible investment of 

public funds in accordance with the responsible investment policy established by 
Resolution No. 55,141A-N.S. and its successors. 

H. Act in an advisory role to City Council on Socially Responsible Investment for the 
City of Berkeley as prescribed in B.M.C. Section 3.68.070.K, including socially 
responsible procurement policy, Nuclear Free Berkeley Act Waivers, and Oppressive 
States Contracting Prohibition (per Resolution 59,853-N.S. and its successors);

I. Perform such other functions and duties as may be directed by the City Council 
or prescribed or authorized by any ordinance of the City; 

Page 6 of 29

Page 376



  

Page 4

J. In prescribing the above duties and functions of the commission, it is not the 
intent of the Council to duplicate or overlap the functions, duties or responsibilities 
heretofore or hereafter assigned to any other City board or commission or to a City 
department. As to such functions or responsibilities above set forth which are partially or 
wholly the responsibilities of another board or commission or of a department of the 
City, the commission will render assistance and advice to such board, commission or 
department as may be requested.

Section 3.70.100 Elections for low-income representatives
Low-income representatives shall be chosen in accordance with democratic 

selection procedures adequate to assure that they represent the low-income persons in 
the geographic service area of the City of Berkeley. Among the selection procedures 
which may be employed, as determined by the commission secretary, either separately 
or in combination, are the following: (a) nominations and elections, whether within the 
neighborhoods, community, or service area as a whole; (b) selection at a meeting or 
conference of low-income persons such that the date, time, and place of such a meeting 
or conference have been adequately publicized; (c) selection of a small area basis 
(such as a neighborhood) of representatives who in turn select members for the 
commission; (d) the commission may recognize a group(s) or organization(s) composed 
primarily of low-income persons and representing the interest of the low-income 
population, whose membership may select one or more representatives to the 
commission. Persons at or below the federal poverty line shall be permitted to vote in 
the selection processes. The commission may request a waiver for the federal poverty 
line eligibility in order to establish residency or other relevant criteria as a basis for 
eligibility, which will be provided to and reviewed by the commission secretary for CSBG 
compliance 

Section 3.70.110 Bylaws of the Berkeley Community Action Agency Commission
The commission shall prepare and maintain bylaws for the community action 

agency. These bylaws and amendments thereto shall be consistent with City, state and 
federal policies governing community action agencies. 

Section 2. That Chapter 3.68 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is hereby repealed 
effective May 1, 2024.

Section 3. That Chapter 3.78 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is hereby repealed 
effective May 1, 2024.

Section 4. Posting
Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the display 
case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin 
Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed 
at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation.

Page 7 of 29

Page 377



Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 1 

P R O C L AM AT I O N  
C AL L I N G A S PE C I AL  M E E TI NG  O F T HE

B E R K E LE Y C I T Y  C O U N CI L  
In accordance with the authority in me vested, I do hereby call the Berkeley City Council in special 

session as follows: 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021 
4:00 PM 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – TERRY TAPLIN  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available.   

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on 
Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987.  If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the 
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise 
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.  

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 879 0868 1987. If 
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the 
Chair.  

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email 
council@cityofberkeley.info. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark 
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the 
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time 
to be specified. 

1

Page 8 of 29

Page 378

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87908681987
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info


 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 2 

 
Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  
 

Action Calendar 
 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 

moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine 
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two 
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. The Presiding Officer may, with the consent of 
persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 
 

Action Calendar – Old Business 
 

1.  Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor), Mayor Arreguin (Co-
Sponsor) (Reviewed by the Agenda & Rules Committee) (Continued from May 25, 
2021) 
Recommendation:  
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the enabling 
legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a phased 
approach. Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless 
Services Panel of Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond 
Oversight Committee first, and request that the City Manager bring back changes to 
the enabling legislation to implement these consolidated commissions. Phase 2: All 
other Commissions as proposed in the report. As staff is able to make 
recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those recommendations forward 
one by one. 
2. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes.  
3. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment 
Commission and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of 
the merged commissions.  
4. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be composed of only 
Mayor and Council appointees.  
5. Refer to City Manager and Commissions the following additional considerations: 
- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 
how to handle. - Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by 
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, 
and by what means they might be merged/adjusted. - What elements of each 
Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant topics/issues not currently 
covered that might be added to a more comprehensive and/or relevant merged 
Commission’s charter. - Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a 
greater number of members. - The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for 

2

Page 9 of 29

Page 379



Action Calendar – Old Business 
 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 3 

appointment to the merged Commission. - The possibility of recommended or 
required Standing Committees of the Merged Commission. - Volunteer workload and 
capacity given scope of Commission’s charter 
Policy Committee Recommendation: Make a Qualified Positive Recommendation to 
City Council to: 1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes 
to the enabling legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in 
a phased approach. Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless 
Commission/Homeless Services Panel of Experts and Housing Advisory 
Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight Committee first, and request that the City 
Manager bring back changes to the enabling legislation to implement these 
consolidated commissions. Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed in the 
report. As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring 
those recommendations forward one by one. 2. Refer to the Commissions impacted 
a process to determine the charge/responsibilities of the newly merged commissions, 
and bring Commission input to the appropriate Policy Committees (as proposed by 
Vice-Mayor Droste in 4/5/21 submittal) for further recommendations to the City 
Manager on revised charge/responsibilities of merged commissions. 3. Refer to staff 
to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated commissions and 
the effective date of the changes. 4. Consider establishing 18 members on the new 
Climate and Environment Commission and establishing specific subcommittees 
focused on the policy areas of the merged commissions.5. The Peace, Justice and 
Human Welfare Commission will be comprised of only Mayor and Council 
appointees. 6. Refer Councilmember Hahn questions to City Manager and 
Commissions: “Commissions to Combine/Merge - Suggested Considerations” 
 - Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 
how to handle. - Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by 
City Council, through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, 
and by what means they might be merged/adjusted. - What elements of each 
Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant topics/issues not currently 
covered that might be added to a more comprehensive and/or relevant merged 
Commission’s charter. - Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a 
greater number of members. - The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for 
appointment to the merged Commission. - The possibility of recommended or 
required Standing Committees of the Merged Commission - Volunteer workload and 
capacity given scope of Commission’s charter. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180 

 

Public Comment - Items on this agenda only 

Adjournment 
I hereby request that the City Clerk of the City of Berkeley cause personal notice to be given to each 
member of the Berkeley City Council on the time and place of said meeting, forthwith. 
 

3

Page 10 of 29

Page 380



 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 4 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
    and caused the official seal of the City of Berkeley to be 
    affixed on this 3rd day of June, 2021. 

     
    Jesse Arreguin, Mayor 

Public Notice – this Proclamation serves as the official agenda for this meeting. 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Date:  June 3, 2021 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. 
 

4

Page 11 of 29

Page 381

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 

 
Tuesday, June 15, 2021 AGENDA Page 5 

Communications 
Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and 
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are 
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing through Records Online. 

Item #1: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery 
1. Holly Scheider 
 

5

Page 12 of 29

Page 382

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/


6

Page 13 of 29

Page 383



1

Lori Droste
Berkeley Vice Mayor
 

ACTION CALENDAR
June 15, 2021

(Continued from May 25, 2021)
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
 
From: Councilmember Lori Droste (Author), Councilmembers Rigel Robinson 

(Co-Sponsor), Rashi Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor) and Mayor Jesse Arreguín 
(Co-Sponsor)

 
Subject: Commission Reorganization for Post-COVID19 Budget Recovery
 
RECOMMENDATION
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the
enabling legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a
phased approach.

Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless Services Panel
of Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight
Committee first, and request that the City Manager bring back changes to the
enabling legislation to implement these consolidated commissions.

Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed below.
As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those
recommendations forward one by one.

New Commission Name Former Commissions to be Reorganized

Commission on Climate and the 
Environment

Zero Waste, Energy, Community Environmental Advisory, and 
Animal Care

Page 1 of 13

7

Page 14 of 29

Page 384

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
Special Meeting Item



2

Parks, Recreation, Waterfront (special 
Marina subcommittee)

Children, Youth, and Recreation and Parks and Waterfront

Peace, Justice, and Human Welfare1 Peace and Justice and Human Welfare, Community Action 
Commissions

Public Health Commission & Sugar 
Sweetened Beverage Panel of Experts 

Community Health Commission and Sugar Sweetened Beverage 
Panel of Experts

Housing Advisory Commission Measure O and Housing Advisory Commission

Homeless Services Panel of Experts Homeless Commission and Measure P Homeless Services Panel 
of Experts

Public Works and Transportation Public Works and Transportation

Planning Planning and Cannabis

All other commissions will maintain their current structure: Aging, Library Board of Trustees, Civic Arts, 
Disability, Commission on the Status of Women, Design Review Committee, Disaster and Fire Safety, BIDs, Fair 
Campaign Practices and Open Government, Redistricting, Landmarks Preservation, Labor, Loan Adjustments 
Board, Personnel, Planning, Police Review/Accountability, Reimagining Public Safety, Mental Health, Zoning 
Adjustments Board, and Youth

2. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes. 

3. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment Commission 
and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of the merged 
commissions. 

4. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be composed of only Mayor 
and Council appointees. 

5. Refer to City Manager and Commissions the following additional considerations:
- Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 

how to handle.  
- Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by City Council, 

through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, and by what 
means they might be merged/adjusted 

1 Members will be appointed by Council and membership should adhere to Government Code Section 12736(e); 12750(a)(2) and 
12751.

Page 2 of 13

8

Page 15 of 29

Page 385



3

- What elements of each Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant 
topics/issues not currently covered that might be added to a more 
comprehensive and/or relevant merged Commission’s charter.  

- Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a greater number of 
members.  

- The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for appointment to the merged 
Commission.  

- The possibility of recommended or required Standing Committees of the Merged 
Commission  

- Volunteer workload and capacity given scope of Commission’s charter

Policy Committee Oversight2 Commissions

Agenda and Rules 1. Fair Campaign Practices/Open Government 
Commission

2. Personnel Board 

Budget and Finance (Any legislation that requires funding)

Public Safety 1. Disaster and Fire Safety Commission
2. Police Accountability Board/Police Review 

Commission
3. Reimagining Public Safety Task Force 

Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation 
and the Environment

1. Commission on the Environment
2. Parks, Recreation and Waterfront with Marina 

subcommittee
3. Public Works and Transportation 

Land Use and Economic Development 1. Measure O Housing Commission
2. Planning Commission
3. Labor
4. Civic Arts Commission 

Health, Equity, Life Enrichment, and 
Community

1. Peace, Justice, and Civil Rights 
2. Health and Sugar Sweetened Beverage Panel of 

Experts 
3. Homeless Services Panel of Experts 
4. Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
5. Commission on the Status of Women
6. Disability Commission

2 Primary policy committee oversight but legislation may be referred to multiple policy committees.

Page 3 of 13

9

Page 16 of 29

Page 386



4

Other Commissions:  Zoning Adjustments Board (DRC), Landmarks Preservation, Board of Library Trustees, 
BIDs, Independent Redistricting Commission, Loan Administration Board

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
On April 5, 2021, the Agenda and Rules Committee made a qualified positive 
recommendation to City Council to:
1. Refer to the City Manager and City Attorney to bring back changes to the enabling 
legislation to reorganize existing commissions as proposed below in a phased 
approach. 

Phase 1: Prioritize merging the Homeless Commission/Homeless Services Panel of 
Experts and Housing Advisory Commission/Measure O Bond Oversight Committee first, 
and request that the City Manager bring back changes to the enabling legislation to 
implement these consolidated commissions. 

Phase 2: All other Commissions as proposed below. 
As staff is able to make recommendations on consolidation, they can bring those 
recommendations forward one by one. 

New Commission Name 
(suggested)

Former Commissions to be Reorganized

Commission on Climate and the 
Environment 

Zero Waste, Energy, Community Environmental 
Advisory, and Animal Care

Parks, Recreation, Waterfront 
(special Marina subcommittee)

Children, Youth, and Recreation and Parks and 
Waterfront

Peace, Justice, and Human Welfare Peace and Justice Commission and Human Welfare 
and Community Action Commission 

Public Health Commission & Sugar 
Sweetened Beverage Panel of 
Experts 

Community Health Commission and Sugar Sweetened 
Beverage Panel of Experts

Housing Advisory Commission Measure O and Housing Advisory Commission

Homeless Services Panel of 
Experts

Homeless Commission and Measure P Homeless 
Services Panel of Experts

Page 4 of 13

10

Page 17 of 29

Page 387



5

Public Works and Transportation Public Works and Transportation

Planning Planning and Cannabis

All other commissions will maintain their current structure:  Aging, Library Board of 
Trustees, Civic Arts, Disability, Commission on the Status of Women, Design Review 
Committee, Disaster and Fire Safety, BIDs, Fair Campaign Practices and Open Government, 
Redistricting, Landmarks Preservation, Labor, Loan Adjustments Board, Personnel, Planning, 
Police Review/Accountability, Reimagining Public Safety, Mental Health, Zoning Adjustments 
Board, and Youth

2. Refer to the Commissions impacted a process to determine the 
charge/responsibilities of the newly merged commissions, and bring Commission input 
to the appropriate Policy Committees (as proposed by Vice-Mayor Droste in 4/5/21 
submittal) for further recommendations to the City Manager on revised 
charge/responsibilities of merged commissions. 

3. Refer to staff to develop recommendations on the transition to new consolidated 
commissions and the effective date of the changes. 

4. Consider establishing 18 members on the new Climate and Environment Commission 
and establishing specific subcommittees focused on the policy areas of the merged 
commissions.

5. The Peace, Justice and Human Welfare Commission will be comprised of only Mayor 
and Council appointees. 

6. Refer Councilmember Hahn questions to City Manager and Commissions: 
“Commissions to Combine/Merge - Suggested Considerations”

 Federal, state or other external mandates that might be impacted, and determine 
how to handle

 Whether charters of to-be-merged Commissions were adopted by City Council, 
through measures or initiatives passed by voters, or are by Charter, and by what 
means they might be merged/adjusted

 What elements of each Commission to keep, update, or retire, as well as relevant 
topics/issues not currently covered that might be added to a more comprehensive 
and/or relevant merged Commission’s charter.

 Whether the merged Commission might include 9, or a greater number of 
members.

 The possibility of requiring specific qualifications for appointment to the merged 
Commission.

 The possibility of recommended or required Standing Committees of the Merged 
Commission

 Volunteer workload and capacity given scope of Commission’s charter

Page 5 of 13

11

Page 18 of 29

Page 388



6

PROBLEM/SUMMARY STATEMENT
Commissions provide an important mechanism for residents to shape public policy and 
provide input on City business. However, the City of Berkeley maintains far more 
commissions than other cities of similar size, with a significant investment of City 
resources to staff all 37 commissions. Some commission secretaries report spending 
upwards of 20+ hours per week on commission business, which takes valuable time 
away from addressing other pressing City priorities. The local public health emergency 
created by the global COVID-19 pandemic has required City staff to shift to new roles 
and maintain an Emergency Operations Center since January 2020; recovery from the 
pandemic will continue to demand the full attention of our City staff for the foreseeable 
future. Given the uncertainties that our City faces in recovering from the COVID-19 
pandemic and the demands that this recovery places on our City staff, it is an 
appropriate time to consider how best to consolidate our commissions in a manner that 
helps the City to achieve its core mission.   

REITERATION OF PRINCIPLES
Commissions are a fundamental part of the City’s policymaking process. Members of 
boards and commissions provide an invaluable service to our City. They advise the City 
Council on a wide variety of subjects by making recommendations on important policy 
matters. Without the assistance of the various boards and commissions, the City 
Council could give many complex and significant matters only a perfunctory review. The 
detailed studies and considered advice of boards and commissions are often catalysts 
for innovative programs and improved services. Serving on a board or commission can 
be a rewarding experience for community service– minded residents. It is an excellent 
way to participate in the functioning of local government and to make a personal 
contribution to the improvement of our community. Making local government effective 
and responsive is everybody’s responsibility. 

● The Public Works Commission, for example, develops the City’s five year paving 
plan which they then present to City Council for approval. Through extensive 
community outreach and research, the Commission identifies the streets most in 
need of repaving. 

● With the passage of Measure D in 2014, a Panel of Experts on Sugar-Sweetened 
Beverages has guided the City’s spending of over $5 million in revenue 
generated from the Measure. Those dollars have bolstered local public 
campaigns and education initiatives. 

Page 6 of 13

12

Page 19 of 29

Page 389



7

These are merely two examples of the powerful role that Commissions play in City 
policymaking.      
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Current Commission Structure
The City of Berkeley has approximately thirty-seven commissions overseen by city 
administration, most of which have at least nine members and who are appointed by 
individual councilmembers. These commissions were intended to be a forum for public 
participation beyond what is feasible at the City Council, so that issues that come before 
the City Council can be adequately vetted.
 
Some commissions are required by charter or mandated by voter approval or 
state/federal mandate. Those commissions are the following:

1. Board of Library Trustees (charter)
2. Business Improvement Districts (state mandate)
3. Civic Arts Commission (charter)
4. Community Environmental Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate--

CUPA)
5. Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government (ballot measure)
6. Homeless Services Panel of Experts (ballot measure)
7. Housing Advisory Commission (state/federal mandate)
8. Human Welfare and Community Action (state/federal mandate)
9. Measure O Bond Oversight Committee (ballot measure)
10. Mental Health Commission (state/federal mandate)
11. Personnel (charter)Police Review Commission (ballot measure)
12. Sugar-Sweetened Beverages (ballot measure)

 
Berkeley must have its own mental health commission because of its independent 
Mental Health Division. In order to receive services, the City needs to have to have an 
advisory board. Additionally, Berkeley’s Community Environmental Advisory 
Commission is a required commission in order to oversee Certified Unified Program 
Agency (CUPA) under California’s Environmental Protection Agency. Additionally, some 
commissions serve other purposes beyond policy advisories. The Children, Youth and 
Recreation Commission, Housing Advisory Commission, and the Human Welfare and 
Community Action Commission advise Council on community agency funding. 
However, some of the aforementioned quasi-judicial and state/federal mandated 
commissions do not need to stand independently and can be combined to meet 
mandated goals.
 
The Importance of Commissions

Page 7 of 13

13

Page 20 of 29

Page 390



8

Commissions serve a vital role in the City of Berkeley’s rich process of resident 
engagement. An analysis of agendas over the past several years shows that the 
commissions have created policy that have benefited the community in meaningful and 
important ways. In 2020, 14 of the 16 commission items submitted to Council passed.  
From 2016-2020, an average of 34 items were submitted by commissions to Council for 
consideration.
 
The City’s Health, Housing and Community Development department serves an 
important role in addressing COVID-19, racial disparities, inequitable health outcomes, 
affordable housing, and other important community programs. Additionally, Health, 
Housing, and Community Development also staffs ten commissions, more than many 
cities of Berkeley’s size. Council needs to wrestle with these tradeoffs to ensure that we 
seek the maximum benefit for all of the Berkeley community, particularly our most 
vulnerable.
 
Commission Structures in Neighboring Jurisdictions
In comparison to neighboring jurisdictions of similar size, Berkeley has significantly 
more commissions. The median number of commissions for these cities is 12 and the 
average is 15.
 

 Comparable                  
Bay Area City

Population 
(est.)

Number of 
Commissions Links

 Berkeley 121,000 37
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-
_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf

 Antioch 112,000 6https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-commissions/

 Concord 130,000 14
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-
Commi

 Daly City 107,000 7
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Inf
ormation/boards.htm

 Fairfield 117,000 7https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/gov/comms/default.asp

 Fremont 238,000 15https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-Committees

 Hayward 160,000 12https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions

Page 8 of 13

14

Page 21 of 29

Page 391

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/External%20Roster.pdf
https://www.antiochca.gov/government/boards-commissions/
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-Commi
https://www.cityofconcord.org/264/Applications-for-Boards-Committees-Commi
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Information/boards.htm
http://www.dalycity.org/City_Hall/Departments/city_clerk/Commissions_Information/boards.htm
https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/gov/comms/default.asp
https://www.fremont.gov/76/Boards-Commissions-Committees
https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/boards-commissions


9

 Richmond 110,000 29https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-Commissions

 San Mateo 105,000 7https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/60/Commissions-Boards

 Sunnyvale 153,000 10https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=22804

 Vallejo 122,000 17http://www.ci.vallejo.ca.us/cms/one.aspx?pageId=22192

 
To understand the impact on various departments and staffing capacity, the following 
table shows which departments are responsible for overseeing various commissions.
 
Staffing and Resources Supporting Berkeley’s Current Commission Structure

Commission Name
Overseeing Department (Total Commissions in 

Department)

Animal Care Commission City Manager (8)

Civic Arts Commission City Manager (8)

Commission on the Status of Women City Manager (8)

Elmwood BID Advisory Board City Manager (8)

Loan Administration Board City Manager (8)

Peace and Justice Commission City Manager (8)

Solano Ave BID Advisory Board City Manager (8)

Cannabis Commission Planning (7)

Community Environmental Advisory Commission Planning (7)

Design Review Committee Planning (7)

Energy Commission Planning (7)

Landmarks Preservation Commission Planning (7)

Planning Commission Planning (7)

Zoning Adjustments Board Planning (7)

Page 9 of 13

15

Page 22 of 29

Page 392

https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/256/Boards-and-Commissions
https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/60/Commissions-Boards
https://sunnyvale.ca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?blobid=22804
http://www.ci.vallejo.ca.us/cms/one.aspx?pageId=22192


10

Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission Parks (3)

Parks and Waterfront Commission Parks (3)

Youth Commission Parks (3)

Commission on Aging Health, Housing, and Community Services (HHCS) 
(10)

Commission on Labor HHCS (10)

Community Health Commission HHCS (10)

Homeless Commission HHCS (10)

Homeless Services Panel of Experts HHCS(10)

Housing Advisory Commission HHCS (10)

Human Welfare & Community Action Commission HHCS (10)

Measure O Bond Oversight Committee HHCS (10)

Mental Health Commission HHCS (10)

Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts HHCS (10)

Disaster and Fire Safety Commission Fire (1)

Commission on Disability Public Works (4)

Public Works Commission Public Works (4)

Transportation Commission Public Works (4)

Zero Waste Commission Public Works (4)

Fair Campaign Practices Commission/Open Government 
Commission

City Attorney (1)

Personnel Board Human Resources (1)

Page 10 of 13

16

Page 23 of 29

Page 393



11

Police Review Commission/Police Accountability Board Police Review Commission/Police Accountability 
Board Staff

Reimagining Public Safety Task Force City Manager *(8) and BPD (2)

Board of Library Trustees Library (1)

Gray=charter
Red=state/federal mandate
Yellow=quasi-judicial
Blue=ballot initiative
Orange=state/federal mandate and quasi-judicial
Green=quasi-judicial and ballot initiative

 
The departments that staff more than five commissions are Health, Housing, and 
Community Services (10 commissions), Planning (7 commissions), and the City 
Manager’s department (8 commissions). At the same time, some smaller departments 
(e.g. the City Attorney’s office) may be impacted just as meaningfully if they have fewer 
staff and larger individual commission workloads.
 
Policy Committee Structure Expands Opportunities for Public Input
With the recent addition of policy committees, proposed legislation is now vetted by 
councilmembers in these forums. Each policy committee is focused on a particular 
content area aligned with the City of Berkeley’s strategic plan and is staffed and an 
advisory policy body to certain city departments.  Members of the public are able to 
provide input at these committees as well.  The policy committees currently have the 
following department alignment:
 
Department and Policy Committee alignment

1. Agenda and Rules–all departments
2. Budget and Finance–City Manager, Clerk, Budget, and Finance
3. Land Use and Economic Development–Clerk, Planning, HHCS, City 

Attorney, and City Manager (OED)
4. Public Safety–Clerk, City Manager, Police, and Fire
5. Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment and 

Sustainability (Clerk, City Manager, Planning, Public Works, and Parks)
6. Health, Equity, Life Enrichment, and Community (Clerk, City Manager, 

HHCS)
 
Staffing Costs
Based upon preliminary calculations of staff titles and salary classifications, the average 
commission staff secretary makes roughly $60-$65/hour. Based upon recent interviews 
with secretaries and department heads, individual commission secretaries work 

Page 11 of 13

17

Page 24 of 29

Page 394



12

anywhere from 8-80 hours a month staffing and preparing for commission meetings. To 
illustrate this example, a few examples are listed below.
 

Commission Step 5 Rate 
of Pay

Reported 
Hours a Month

Total Direct Cost of 
Commission per Month

Animal Care $70.90 8 $567.20

Landmarks Preservation 
Commission

$57.96 80 $4,636.80
 

Design Review Commission $52.76 60 $3,165.60
 

Peace and Justice $60.82 32 $1,946.24

 
It is extremely challenging to estimate a specific cost of commissions in the aggregate 
because of the varying workload but a safe estimate of salary costs dedicated to 
commissions would be in the six-figure range.
 
Many commissions--particularly quasi-judicial and land use commissions– require more 
than one staff member to be present and prepare reports for commissions. For 
example, Zoning Adjustment Board meetings often last five hours or more and multiple 
staff members spend hours preparing for hearings. The Planning Department indicates 
that in addition to direct hours, additional commission-related staff time adds an extra 
33% staff time.  Using the previous examples, this means that the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission would cost the city over $6,000 in productivity while the 
Design Review Commission would cost the City over $4,000 a month. 
 
Productivity Losses and Administrative Burden
Current productivity losses are stark because of the sheer amount of hours of staffing 
time dedicated to commissions. As an example, in 2019 one of the City of Berkeley’s 
main homeless outreach workers staffed a commission within the City Manager’s 
department. She spent approximately 32 hours a month working directly on commission 
work. While this is not a commentary on a particular commission, this work directly 
impacted her ability to conduct homeless outreach. 
 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Page 12 of 13

18

Page 25 of 29

Page 395



13

At a time when the City needs to demonstrate efficiency and fiscal restraint, the current 
commission structure is costly and duplicative. At the same time, civic engagement and 
commission work absolutely deserve an important role in Berkeley. Consequently, this 
legislation retains commissions but centers on overall community benefit, staff 
productivity, and associated costs. This is imperative to address, especially in light of 
COVID-19 and community demands for reinvestment in important social services.

FISCAL IMPACTS 
Significant savings associated with reduced staffing.

CONTACT
Vice Mayor Lori Droste 510-981-7180

Page 13 of 13

19

Page 26 of 29

Page 396



20

Page 27 of 29

Page 397



 
 

Communications 
 
 
 
 
 

All communications submitted to the City Council are 
public record.  Communications are not published directly 
to the City’s website.  Copies of individual communications 
are available for viewing at the City Clerk Department and 
through Records Online. 
 
City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
Records Online 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline 
 
To search for communications associated with a particular City Council 
meeting using Records Online: 

Page 28 of 29

Page 398



1. Select Search Type = “Public – Communication Query (Keywords)” 
2. From Date: Enter the date of the Council meeting 
3. To Date: Enter the date of the Council meeting (this may match the 

From Date field) 
4. Click the “Search” button 
5. Communication packets matching the entered criteria will be 

returned 
6. Click the desired file in the Results column to view the document as 

a PDF 
 

Page 29 of 29

Page 399



Page 400



  

Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/

INFORMATION CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing, and Community Services 

Subject: Small Sites Program Update

INTRODUCTION
City Council approved the Small Sites Program (SSP) in 2018. As individual loan 
applications do not require Council approval, Council directed staff to provide the 
Housing Advisory Commission and Council with project updates. The Department of 
Health, Housing, and Community Services’ Housing and Community Services Division 
(HHCS/HCS) shared an information report in December 2019, after the approval of the 
first SSP project – Stuart Street Apartments (1638 Stuart). This report includes an 
update on that development, as well as information on the second project awarded SSP 
loan funds, Solano Avenue Cooperative (1685 Solano). 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Update on Stuart Street Apartments
The City issued its first SSP Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) in 2019, and initially 
awarded $1M to Bay Area Community Land Trust (BACLT) for the acquisition and 
renovation of Stuart Street Apartments (Stuart). This loan included $50k in previously 
awarded predevelopment funds. Stuart consists of two buildings with a total of eight 
units on the property owned by McGee Avenue Baptist Church. BACLT partnered with 
the church to renovate both buildings, which had been vacant for over 20 years. Staff’s 
project analysis was included in the 2019 SSP information report. 

Due to the extremely poor condition of the buildings and inadequate initial estimates, 
BACLT requested additional funding from the City in 2020 and 2021 to support the 
renovation work. The attached Stuart project review reflects staff’s analysis for adding 
$1,052,500 to the project’s SSP loan through the first and second amendments. The 
third amendment, to add $50,000, was approved via a Council budget referral on 
November 3, 2022 and is not reflected in staff’s 2021 underwriting. The total City loan 
for Stuart is $2,102,500, or $263k per unit. 

Solano Avenue Cooperative
Health, Housing, and Community Services (HHCS) issued its second SSP NOFA in 
December 2020, and received one application from BACLT for the acquisition and 

Page 1 of 12

Page 401

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
17



  
Small Sites Program Update INFORMATION CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

Page 2

renovation of the Solano Avenue Cooperative project (1685 Solano). BACLT initially 
requested $2,846,402 for Solano, but submitted a revised request for $3.9M after 
reevaluating the scope and budget. This was the maximum subsidy for the 13-unit 
property allowed under the program. The previous owner transferred the property 
partially occupied and partially renovated. BACLT used the City funds for phased 
renovation of the residential units with common area upgrades, exterior repairs, and 
landscaping improvements. 

Contingent upon resident support, BACLT intends to operate the property as a non-
equity or limited-equity cooperative serving households earning up to 80% of the Area 
Medium Income, with shared responsibilities between the residents and BACLT. 
Berkeley Housing Authority awarded three project-based Section 8 vouchers to the 
project. BACLT completed renovations, and expects to be fully occupied by January 
2024. The project ended up $165k over budget, which BACLT addressed by deferring 
an equal amount of their developer fee, which they will collect over time, out of the 
project’s cash flow. 

Due to its length, the Solano application is available online at the following link:
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Solano%20Avenue%20Cooperative
%20SSP%20Application.pdf. HCS staff’s project review is attached.

BACKGROUND
The Small Sites Program was created in 2018 as an “over-the-counter” application 
process with projects approved by the City Manager. SSP proposals do not go to the 
Housing Advisory Commission or City Council for approval. Instead, projects that meet 
the program criteria receive funding, if funding is available. 

There are no dedicated funds for the Small Sites Program; instead staff release NOFAs 
after Council allocates funds to the program. To date, HHCS/HCS released two SSP 
NOFAs, and received one application each time. If there were multiple proposals, staff 
would prioritize the application that best meets the goals of the Small Sites Program. 
The Small Sites Program Guidelines are posted on the City’s website: 
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-04/Housing-Trust-Fund-Guidelines.pdf.

Renovations are inherently less predictable than new construction, as building 
deficiencies are often uncovered in the course of the project and may exceed the 
required construction contingency. To help mitigate the risk, the City requires SSP 
developers to hire third party construction managers if they cannot demonstrate 
sufficient in-house capacity. SSP projects require significant HHCS/HCS staff 
involvement, relative to new construction projects carried out by higher capacity 
developers with multiple other lenders and layers of oversight. 

Page 2 of 12

Page 402

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Solano%20Avenue%20Cooperative%20SSP%20Application.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Solano%20Avenue%20Cooperative%20SSP%20Application.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-04/Housing-Trust-Fund-Guidelines.pdf


  
Small Sites Program Update INFORMATION CALENDAR

February 13, 2024

Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
BACLT acquired Solano partially renovated. The prior owner installed dual-paned 
windows, water-efficient plumbing fixtures, and bicycle parking. BACLT’s renovations 
included energy efficiency upgrades, as was feasible. 

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
HHCS is not accepting applications for the Small Sites Program at this time since no 
funds are available. Council could allocate general funds to the Small Sites Program, or 
refer consideration of Housing Trust Fund program funding to the Housing Advisory 
Commission. Additionally, some aspects of the Small Sites Program have been 
incorporated into the Housing Trust Fund guidelines, so that source will work better for 
smaller sites.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
The number and size of feasible projects scale with the amount of funds available for 
this program, so the fiscal impacts will depend on Council’s future actions. A significant 
expansion of funds available for small sites projects would require additional staffing, 
since the program anticipates an expedited timeline and requires close staff 
involvement. 

CONTACT PERSON
Jenny Wyant, Senior Community Development Project Coordinator, HHCS, 510-
981-5228

Attachments: 
1: Stuart Project Review Form 2021-10-29
2. Solano Project Review Form 2022-01-13

Page 3 of 12

Page 403



Applicant:

Project Name:

Project Address:

Funds Requested:

Project Summary:

Program Objectives:
No
No

n/a
256,563$          
8

Yes

Bay Area Community Land Trust

This revised analysis reflects BACLT's August 2020 request for $652,500 and October 2021 
request for $400,000 in additional project funding.  
BACLT is renovating 8 residential units located at 1638 Stuart Street. The property is owned 
by McGee Avenue Baptist Church, and has been vacant for more than 20 years. The buildings 
were in poor condition, and if they continue to deteriorate beyond the point of repair, current 
zoning could limit replacement development to two units. BACLT entered into a 57 year lease 
with MABC to renovate the property and rent the 8 units to households earning up to 80% of 
the area median income. If there is sufficient interest amongst the future residents, BACLT 
intends to operate the property as a non-equity cooperative and encourage as much resident 
management as possible.  

$2,052,500

Are residents at imminent risk of Ellis Act evictions?

1638 Stuart Street

BACLT has been involved with several renovations over the past few years, as the developer 
and co-developer. BACLT had a project management role in two renovations, which had a 
combined total development cost of $350,000. BACLT most comparable project was an 
acquisition and renovation project with a budget of $1.8 million, which BACLT co-developed 
with the San Francisco Land Trust. The former Executive Director, who lead previous 
development efforts, retired in June 2021. BACLT is now relying on consultants for project and 
construction management. 

Stuart Street Apartments

Is the property occupied?
Do the existing residents include vulnerable populations (i.e. families with 
minor children, elderly, disabled, and catastrophically-ill persons)?

Average AMI of current residents:

Developer Experience and Capacity

Subsidy per unit:
Number of affordable units proposed:
Proposed conversion to cooperative?:

If yes, describe vulnerable population, below.

No

Property is vacant.

Small Sites Program - Project Review

Developer must have completed one comparable project, and have the demonstrated 
capacity to undertake the proposed project.

Page 1 of 3

Attachment 1
Page 4 of 12

Page 404



Stuart Street Apartments
Property Eligibility

Total number of units: 8
Do all residential units meet the City's definition of 'dwelling unit'? Yes
Is the majority of the property residential? Yes

Project Scope

Yes

Yes

Project Budget
Yes
Yes

n/a
Yes

Yes
no

Yes
7%
6%

Do the reserves comply with the following?
Operating: 25% of budgeted 1st year operating expenses 25%
Replacement: Greater of $2,000 per unit or the amount necessary to 

pay replacement costs for the next 10 years, as 
specified in the PNA. Yes - $16k.

Vacancy: The monthly rent for units (residential and 
commercial) vacant at acquisition, multiplied by the 
number of months expected to remain vacant during 
renovation and lease-up.

No - $24k 
reserve, equal to 
1.9 months rent

Operating Proforma
Yes

Yes
Do the reserve deposits comply with the following:

Operating: None unless balance drops below 25% of prior year's 
operating expenses Yes

Replacement: The higher of a) the amount needed according to the 
approved 20-year PNA, or b) $400 per unit per year 
($350 per unit for projects with 11+ units) $400 pupa

Does the renovation budget include sate prevailing wage rates?

Is there a positive cash flow for 15+ years after project completion?
Do the vacancy rates meet or exceed program requirements (5% 
residential, 20% commercial)

Is the proposed City loan leveraged with private financing?
Is the proposed per unit subsidy under the program limits?
Is the acquisition price substantiated by an appraisal showing both the 
fair market value and the anticipated restricted value?
Are fees charged to the project reasonable?
Is the developer fee less than the program limit of $80,000 plus $10,000 
per unit, not to exceed 5% of project costs (excluding the developer fee)?
Are construction management fees less than $25,500?

Construction contingency (must be 15% or higher)
Soft cost contingency (must be 15% or higher)

Does the proposed renovation meet the health and safety needs of the 
project?
Is the renovation scope and budget supported by a physical needs 
assessment (PNA) of the property?

Page 2 of 3

Attachment 1
Page 5 of 12

Page 405



Stuart Street Apartments

n/a
Yes - all units at 

80%

n/a

Yes

Exceptions to the Program Guidelines

Yes

Funding Recommendation/Funding Contingent Upon

Does the project have an average affordability of 80% of the area median 
income (AMI)?

Have 75% of existing households acknowledged their agreement to 
participate (in the conversion to restricted affordability and cooperative 
conversion, if applicable)?

BACLT requested to cap all units at 80% AMI (rather than achieving an average AMI of 80%).
- 1638 Stuart has no existing tenants, and BACLT has demonstrated that the project will have  
a positive cash flow if rents are capped at 80% AMI.
Low vacancy reserve ($24,000)
- Requirement assumes the project is operating during construction. Stuart is vacant and will 
not be operated until construction is complete, so a higher vacancy reserve is not necessary.
Construction Management costs in excess of $25,500
- The budget shows $50,000 for project and construction management. With the signifincantly 
increased project costs, BACLT could have requested a higher developer fee. However, 
BACLT hired project and construction management consultants to take on duties previoulsy 
carried out by staff.  
Low Contingencies
- The project is more than halfway done (59% through construction as of September 2021), 
and it's reasonable to have lower contingency percentages. The current construction budget 
includes an allowance for anticipated change orders in addition to the contingency. 
BACLT Loan
BACLT is providing a loan to the project, funded by private individuals. BACLT requested to 
use project cash flow to repay the loan over time.   

Amend the existing development loan to add $400,000, for a total City loan of $2,052,500.

Do 66% or more of the existing households income-certify, with incomes 
averaging up to 80% AMI? Up to 34% of households may be over-income 
(above 120% AMI) or refuse to certify.

Is applicant proposing to convert the property to a limited equity housing 
cooperative (LEHC) or similar model?
Applicant experience with cooperative conversion:

BACLT has four cooperatives that are part of the land trust. 

Existing Tenants and Affordability

Did the Applicant request or does the project require any exceptions to 
the program guidelines?
Describe exceptions, below.

Limited Equity Housing Cooperative

Page 3 of 3

Attachment 1
Page 6 of 12

Page 406



Small Sites Program - Project Review

Applicant:

Project Name:

Project Address:

SSP Funds Requested:

Project Summary:

Program Objectives:
yes

partially

106%
300,000       
13
yes

Average AMI of current residents:

1685 Solano Avenue

Solano Avenue Cooperative

Bay Area Community Land Trust (BACLT)

1685 Solano is a 13-unit residential building with four 1-bedroom units and nine 2-bedroom 
units. The property was built in 1964, and has four stories and an elevator. The current owner 
initiated Ellis Act evictions in 2019, with the intent of renovating the property and converting 
the building to tenancy in common. BACLT engaged with the remaining residents in late 2019 
and has been working towards acquisition since then. BACLT plans to complete the 
renovations in progress, and convert the property to a nonequity or limited equity cooperative 
owned by the land trust with residents taking on some management responsibilities in 
partnership with BACLT. 

3,900,000

If yes, describe vulnerable population, below.

yes

There are five residents occupying four units. Household incomes range from 68% AMI to 
145% AMI. Two of the existing residents are elderly. 

Are residents at imminent risk of Ellis Act evictions?
Is the property occupied?
Do the existing residents include vulnerable populations (i.e. families with 
minor children, elderly, disabled, and catastrophically-ill persons)?

Subsidy per unit:
Number of affordable units proposed:
Proposed conversion to LEHC?:

Developer must have completed one comparable project, and have the demonstrated 
capacity to undertake the proposed project.

Developer Experience and Capacity

Page 1 of 6

Attachment 2
Page 7 of 12

Page 407



  

Solano Avenue Cooperative
Developer Capacity
BACLT operates under a cooperative structure, and currently has three staff members, 
including an Organizational Director. BACLT is in the process of hiring for a Projects Director. 
The current staff do not have significant construction or project development experience. 
Housing staff have concerns about BACLT's capacity to take on new projects without 
additional organizational support. BACLT hired a construction management consultant, and 
keeping a consultant on through the renovation process will be a condition of the City's loan. 

The organization's financial indicators are mixed, with the interim (September 2021) financials 
showing a weak current ratio, which is partially due to $295k in funds owed to Stuart Street 
vendors and contractors. This is likely related to BACLT's slow turnaround time in requesting 
lender funds and disbursing it to their general contractor. BACLT's financials show a healthy 
cash ratio, and the organizaiton could support operations for 279 days (at least 90 is 
preferred). A small organization such as BACLT is more impacted by changes in income and 
expenses than a larger organization with more financial resources. The proposed developer 
fee of $210,000 would bolster BACLT's income significantly. The City reserved $200,000 to 
support capacity building for BACLT in FY22, some of which will be used for the construction 
management consultant. The capacity building contract will include benchmarks for 
performance to encourage BACLT's organizational growth and stability. 

Developer Experience
The City awarded $1 million to BACLT for Stuart Street through its first SSP NOFA in 2019. 
Stuart is an 8-unit property that sat vacant for over 20 years, and was in extremely poor 
condition. The project has suffered significant delays and cost overruns. The budget overruns 
are in part due to significant work needed in sections of the building that were inaccessible 
during BACLT's assessment of the renovation needs, and in part because BACLT and its 
construction team underestimated the damage to the existing structure. The City added 
$652,500 in 2020. BACLT requested  an additional $400,000 from the City to complete the 
project, for a total loan of $2,052,000. BACLT hired a construction manager for Stuart to 
oversee the remaining renovations, and the BACLT Board is providing closer oversight of 
active projects. 

Prior to Stuart Street, BACLT was involved with several renovations in recent years, as the 
developer and co-developer. BACLT had a project management role in two renovations, 
which had a combined total development cost of $350,000. BACLT most comparable project 
was an acquisition and renovation project with a budget of $1.8 million, which BACLT co-
developed with the San Francisco Land Trust. BACLT has extensive experience with tenant 
organizing, trainings, and establishing limited equity and nonequity cooperatives. 

Page 2 of 6

Attachment 2
Page 8 of 12

Page 408



  

Solano Avenue Cooperative
Property Eligibility

Total number of units: 13
Do all residential units meet the City's definition of 'dwelling unit'? yes
Is the majority of the property residential? yes

Project Scope

yes

yes

Project Budget
yes
yes

yes

yes

yes

yes
yes
yes
yes

Do the capitalized reserves comply with the following?
Operating: 25% of budgeted 1st year operating expenses yes
Replacement: Greater of $2,000 per unit or the amount necessary 

to pay replacement costs for the next 10 years, as 
specified in the PNA.

no, 
see note

Vacancy: The monthly rent for units (residential and 
commercial) vacant at acquisition, multiplied by the 
number of months expected to remain vacant during 
renovation and lease-up.

yes

Is the proposed City loan leveraged with private financing?
Is the proposed per unit subsidy under the program limits?
Is the acquisition price substantiated by an appraisal showing both the fair 
market value and the anticipated restricted value?
Are fees charged to the project reasonable?
Is the developer fee less than the program limit of $80,000 plus $10,000 per 
unit, not to exceed 5% of project costs (excluding the developer fee)?
Are construction management fees less than $25,500?
Does the renovation budget include sate prevailing wage rates?
Construction contingency (must be 15% or higher)
Soft cost contingency (must be 15% or higher)

The proposed construction budget does not include all of the items identified in the physical 
needs assessment (PNA), as some of that work will be completed by the current owner. 
BACLT addresses the remaining immediate and short-term needs identified in the PNA in its 
renovation scope. The renovation scope addresses health and safety needs, and will 
incorporate water-efficient and energy efficient improvements. Some longer term scope items 
identified in the PNA will be addressed in the first ten years of operations, and will be paid for 
out of the replacement reserves. 

Does the proposed renovation meet the health and safety needs of the 
project?
Is the renovation scope and budget supported by a physical needs 
assessment (PNA) of the property?

Page 3 of 6

Attachment 2
Page 9 of 12

Page 409



  

Solano Avenue Cooperative

Operating Proforma
yes

yes

Do the reserve deposits comply with the following:
Operating: None unless balance drops below 25% of prior year's 

operating expenses TBD

Replacement: The higher of a) the amount needed according to the 
approved 20-year PNA, or b) $400 per unit per year 
($350 per unit for projects with 11+ units)

no,
see note

TBD

yes

yes

Is there a positive cash flow for 15+ years after project completion?
Do the vacancy rates meet or exceed program requirements (5% 
residential, 20% commercial)

Existing Tenants and Affordability

Does the project have an average affordability of 80% of the area median 
income (AMI)?

Have 75% of existing households acknowledged their agreement to 
participate (in the conversion to restricted affordability and cooperative 
conversion, if applicable)?

Do 66% or more of the existing households income-certify, with incomes 
averaging up to 80% AMI? Up to 34% of households may be over-income 
(above 120% AMI) or refuse to certify.

Operating Reserve Deposits:
The operating proforma shows annual deposits to the operating reserve starting at  $6,182, or 
approximately $476 per unit per year. As part of annual compliance monitoring, staff will 
review the project's operating reserves to determine whether deposits are required. 

Financing:
The City loan is contingent upon BACLT securing private financing. The project's debt service 
coverage ratio is 1.15, which is the minimum potential lenders will want to see. BACLT is 
working with Enterprise Community Partners on a loan from the Bay Area Preservaion Pilot 
program that would support the acquisition and renovation. 
 
Replacement Reserves:
The capitalized replacement reserve is $26,000 ($2k per unit), and is not sufficient to address 
the capital needs identified in the PNA. The proforma shows annual deposits of $350 per unit. 
BACT requested that 2/3 of residual receipts be put towards replacement reserves until the 
balance is sufficient to meet the projected costs from the PNA. BACLT's proforma shows 
repayment to the City starting in year 11. BACLT also requested a transfer tax refund, which 
was approved by Council in October 2021. Between the construction budget, capitalized 
replacement reserves, and reserve deposits, BACLT shows sufficient funding to address the 
anticipated renovation needs. 

Page 4 of 6

Attachment 2
Page 10 of 12

Page 410



  

Solano Avenue Cooperative

yes

Exceptions to the Program Guidelines

yesDid the Applicant request or does the project require any exceptions to the 
program guidelines?
Describe exceptions, below.

Replacement Reserves: 
The construction budget is $1.4 million (including contingency) and the capitalized 
replacement reserve is $26,000. That combined budget addresses the shorter term capital 
needs identified in the PNA, but BACLT needs to build its replacement reserves to plan for 
future capital needs such as elevator repair. BACLT requested that 2/3 of the residual 
receipts  stay with the project for the replacement reserves until the reserve balance is 
sufficient to address the capital needs identified in the PNA. Based on the current proforma, 
this means the City will not receive any repayments until after the tenth year of operating.  

Affordability: 
While the program requires an average of 80% AMI for the building, capping all 13 units at 
80% AMI will allow BACLT to get the maximum property tax waiver for the property. The 
existing over-income tenants will stay, but their units will be restricted at turnover.  

Is applicant proposing to convert the property to a limited equity housing 
cooperative (LEHC)?
Applicant experience with LEHC conversion:

BACLT intends to convert the property to a non-equity cooperative. BACLT has extensive 
experience working with resident communities on cooperative conversions. The existing 
tenants have expressed support for this effort. 

Limited Equity Housing Cooperative

Existing Tenants:
BACLT must provide tenant acknowledgment forms prior to loan closing. BACLT has certified 
tenant incomes and found that three out of four households are over 100% AMI. The overall 
average for the building meets the SSP requirements. Occupied units will be restricted to 80% 
AMI or lower at turnover. 

Page 5 of 6

Attachment 2
Page 11 of 12

Page 411



  

Solano Avenue Cooperative

Funding Recommendation
Fund the project at $3,900,000, with the following conditions for BACLT:
- A first mortgage in an amount sufficient to complete the project
- Retain a development consultant to oversee the remaining renovations
- Tenant acknowledgement forms from all current residents, acknowledging that BACLT is 
acquiring the property, that there will be affordability restrictions on the units, and that BACLT 
intends to convert the property to a nonequity cooperative.
- CEQA approval

Note: Separate from this process, the City will enter into a contract for FY22 capacity building 
funds that will include performance standards to support BACLT's growth.

Page 6 of 6

Attachment 2
Page 12 of 12

Page 412



  

Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/

INFORMATION CALENDAR
February 13, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing, and Community Services

Subject: Bay Area Housing Finance Authority and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing 
Bond 

INTRODUCTION
Alameda County is preparing an expenditure plan for the Bay Area Housing Finance 
Authority’s (BAHFA) $10 to 20 billion Regional General Obligation Affordable Housing 
Bond. The bond is under consideration for the November 2024 election. Berkeley is not 
eligible for a direct allocation and must participate in Alameda County’s expenditure 
planning. and its preparation for.

SUMMARY 
The San Francisco Bay Area Regional Housing Finance Act (California Government 
Code § 64500, et seq.) (the “Act”) created the Bay Area Housing Finance Authority 
(BAHFA) in 2019. Alameda County is coordinating with local jurisdictions to prepare for 
the potential Regional General Obligation Affordable Housing Bond under consideration 
for the November 2024 election (“regional housing bond”) put forth by the BAFHA. 

All nine Bay Area counties and four cities (Oakland, San Jose, Santa Rosa, and Napa) 
will receive 80% of bond funding. BAFHA will retain the remaining 20% of bond funding 
to use throughout the region. Berkeley will be able to apply for funding from Alameda 
County’s share and the BAFHA regional fund.

All jurisdictions that receive funding must adopt local expenditure plans to outline how 
their funding will be spent. BAFHA will set an official date for submitting expenditure 
plans, which may be as soon as February 3, 2025. Alameda County is conducting 
preliminary outreach to inform local jurisdictions of the bond’s requirements and the 
plan’s spending priorities.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
No costs are associated with receiving a presentation. The proposed structure of the 
bond does not include an allocation specifically for Berkeley. Funds for this area will go 
to Alameda County. Alameda County will receive approximately $984 million if the 
regional housing bond is approved by voters. The County must prepare and adopt a 
funding plan by early 2025. No action is needed at this time. 

Page 1 of 6

Page 413

mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
NSalwan
Typewritten Text
18



  
Bay Area Housing Finance Authority (BAHFA) INFORMATION CALENDAR
and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing Bond February 13, 2024

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
BAHFA’s purpose is to raise, administer and allocate funding and provide technical 
assistance at a regional level for tenant protection, affordable housing preservation, and 
new affordable housing production, commonly referred to as the “3P’s” housing 
strategy. BAHFA’s jurisdiction is the entire area within the boundaries of the counties of 
Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano and Sonoma, 
and the city and county of San Francisco (“San Francisco Bay Area”).

The 2024 Regional Housing Bond
In the summer of 2022, the BAHFA Board and the ABAG Executive Board began the 
process to consider placing a $10 to 20 billion general obligation bond on the November 
2024 ballot. Both the ABAG Executive Board and the BAHFA Board must authorize the 
regional housing bond to be submitted to Bay Area voters; if they do so, counties are 
required to place the measure upon the ballot. 

The current threshold for passing the regional housing bond is a 2/3 supermajority of all 
Bay Area voters (not county-by-county). However, the State Legislature recently 
approved ACA 1, which will place a statewide constitutional amendment on the 
November 2024 ballot that would reduce the threshold to 55%. If ACA 1 is approved, 
the reduced threshold would apply to bond measures on the same ballot. 

If the regional housing bond passes, eighty percent (80%) of the net revenue will be 
returned to counties based on each county’s share of assessed property values. This 
portion of the funds is referred to as “County Housing Revenue”. The region’s large 
cities and the cities that have been assigned more than 30% of their county’s low-
income RHNA obligation can elect to receive a direct allocation from the County 
Housing Revenue. In 2024, the cities that could receive a direct allocation are Oakland, 
San Jose, Santa Rosa and the City of Napa. The remaining twenty percent (20%) of the 
net revenue, referred to as “Regional Housing Revenue”, will be available to BAHFA for 
distribution anywhere in the region. 

Berkeley is under the umbrella of Alameda County’s funding. The City will also be 
eligible for funds from BAFHA’s regional pool.

BAHFA’s Regional Expenditure Planning 
BAHFA and localities receiving a direct allocation from a regional housing bond are 
required to adopt an expenditure plan for their share of the funds (Government Code 
Sections 64650-64652.) BAHFA’s regional expenditure plan is due in summer 2024 
(prior to the election), whereas local expenditure plans will not be due until after the 
election (likely in early 2025). The BAHFA Board and the ABAG Executive Board are 
actively developing the regional expenditure plan in consultation with local 
governments, housing stakeholders, and members of the public. 

Page 2 of 6

Page 414

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=&title=6.8.&part=2.&chapter=3.&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=&title=6.8.&part=2.&chapter=3.&article=


  
Bay Area Housing Finance Authority (BAHFA) INFORMATION CALENDAR
and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing Bond February 13, 2024

BAHFA’s goals for its investments are to prioritize projects that serve those with the 
greatest need; achieve scale; control construction costs; and advance innovative 
construction and design approaches that will help the region deliver the housing it 
needs. More information about the regional expenditure planning process is available 
on the BAHFA webpage: https://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/authorities/bay-area-housing-
finance-authority-bahfa. 

Alameda County’s Local Expenditure Planning
Alameda County will be required to produce a local expenditure plan for its County 
Housing Revenue if the bond is approved by voters. February 2025 would be the 
earliest date BAHFA could set for submittal of the plan. 

The Act establishes a set of investment categories with minimum investment targets 
that correspond to the 3P’s: 52% for production, 15% for preservation, and 5% for 
tenant protections,1 with the remaining 28% designated as “flexible” funding that may be 
used for housing or housing-related uses as defined in the ballot measure (for example, 
infrastructure necessary to support housing development). 

Figure 1. BAFHA Funding Categories 

1 Currently, Section 1 of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution provides that general obligation bonds can only 
be used for the acquisition or improvement of real property; tenant protection programs and services are 
generally ineligible uses of bond funds. Unless this changes, BAHFA staff plan to recommend that the BAHFA Board 
and the ABAG Executive Board allow for deviation from the 5% minimum allocation for tenant protections (as 
allowed by the Act). 

52%
28%

15%

5%

Production Flexible Funding Preservation Tenant Protections

Page 3 of 6

Page 415

https://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/authorities/bay-area-housing-finance-authority-bahfa
https://mtc.ca.gov/about-mtc/authorities/bay-area-housing-finance-authority-bahfa


  
Bay Area Housing Finance Authority (BAHFA) INFORMATION CALENDAR
and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing Bond February 13, 2024

The Act establishes parameters for Alameda County’s local expenditure plan and allows 
for flexibility within those parameters for the County to prioritize investments that best 
meet local needs. Alameda County’s expenditure plan must satisfy the following criteria:

 Include minimum investment targets noted above (52% for production, 15% for 
preservation, 5% for tenant protections); 

 Production investments:
o Can include rental and/or ownership housing;
o Must carry a deed restriction to ensure affordability; 
o Can serve residents with incomes up to 120% of the Area Median Income 

(AMI), though must prioritize projects that help meet extremely low-
income, very low-income and low-income Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation (RHNA) targets;

 Preservation investments:
o Can include rental and/or ownership housing;
o Must carry a deed restriction to ensure affordability for households earning 

up to 120% of AMI;
o Cannot cause the displacement of any current residents or result in a net-

loss of units;
 Include a plan for spending the 28% of funding that is “flexible” and can be used 

for housing and/or housing-related uses as may be allowed by the ballot 
measure (such as housing-related parks and infrastructure); and

 Be considered at a public meeting at least 30 days prior to its adoption. 

Counties will submit their adopted plans to BAHFA. If the expenditure plan meets the 
foregoing criteria, the plan is deemed approved and will be posted to BAHFA’s website. 
Table 1 outlines the structure and approximate amounts of Alameda County’s local 
expenditure plan within these criteria.

Table 1. BAFHA Bond Allocation Estimate for Alameda County (excluding Oakland) 

Bond 
Allocation

Estimated 
Share Amount

Approximate Bond 
Allocation

Total GO Bond Allocation 100% $984 million
County Admin 5% $49 million 
Balance to Disperse 95% $935 million 

Balance to Disperse Level $935 million
Production 52% min. $486 million
Preservation 15% min. $140 million 

Page 4 of 6

Page 416



  
Bay Area Housing Finance Authority (BAHFA) INFORMATION CALENDAR
and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing Bond February 13, 2024

Tenant Protections** 5% min. $47 million 
Flexible Funding 28% $262 million

* Bond allocation amounts will change when updated with 2023-2024 Assessed Values from the 
California State Board of Equalization. The figures above are based on 2020 Assessed 
Values.

** State law does not allow bond proceeds to be spent for non-capital (i.e., services) costs so 
funds assigned to tenant protection must be reassigned absent a change in law.

The County will work with local jurisdictions, stakeholders, and the public throughout 
2024 to shape its expenditure plan. Information on upcoming public workshops and 
other opportunities for participation are available on the Alameda County Department of 
Housing and Community Development’s website: https://housingneedsac.org/equity-
framework-process/ 

BACKGROUND
BAHFA is a joint effort of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and the 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG). MTC was created by the state 
Legislature in 1970 (California Government Code § 66500 et seq.) to serve as the 
transportation planning, coordinating, and financing agency for the nine-county San 
Francisco Bay Area. BAHFA is governed by the same board as MTC. ABAG was 
formed in 1961 by a joint powers agreement among Bay Area local governments and 
serves as the comprehensive regional planning agency and Council of Governments for 
the nine counties and 101 cities and towns of the San Francisco Bay Area. Some 
actions related to the placement of a measure on the ballot and approval of a regional 
expenditure plan require action by both the BAHFA Board and the ABAG Executive 
Board in its role as required by the Act.

The BAHFA Board and the ABAG Executive Board are comprised of local elected 
officials. For Alameda County, Carol Dutra-Vernaci and Nathan Miley are members of 
the BAHFA Board, and Mayor Jesse Arreguín and Nathan Miley are members of the 
ABAG Executive Board. These officials will participate in regional votes about the 2024 
regional housing bond.

Additional Background
In 2021, BAHFA secured a $20 million allocation from the state budget to begin 
operation and implement pilot projects across the “3Ps.” BAHFA has since received or 
been awarded additional funds from the state’s Regional Early Action Planning (REAP) 
Grant 2.0 funding, philanthropic donations, as well as in-kind and financial support from 
private industry and from MTC. With these initial investments, BAHFA is poised to 
deliver over $50 million in financing, programs, and technical assistance to spur 
innovation and advance housing solutions across the nine-county Bay Area. 
Specifically, this seed funding has supported the creation of programs that set the stage 
for BAHFA’s role as a regional affordable housing lender and provider of new housing 
resources, including:

Page 5 of 6

Page 417

https://housingneedsac.org/equity-framework-process/
https://housingneedsac.org/equity-framework-process/


  
Bay Area Housing Finance Authority (BAHFA) INFORMATION CALENDAR
and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing Bond February 13, 2024

 Creation of the Doorway Housing Portal, a one-stop shop for Bay Area residents 
to search for and apply to affordable housing listings. The Doorway Housing 
Portal was soft launched in summer 2023 and will continue to add features and 
listings in the coming months. 

 The Welfare Tax Exemption Preservation Program, through which BAHFA has 
already assisted five developments that preserve the affordability of 325 units 
and prevented displacement of tenants. Preservation of another 330 apartments 
is currently in progress.

 A $15 million Preservation Pilot Program to support the acquisition and 
rehabilitation of apartments occupied by lower-income residents, creating a 
guarantee of long-term affordability and preventing displacement of existing 
residents.

 Collaboration with MTC and ABAG to create a $28 million Priority Sites Pilot 
Program that will catalyze affordable housing in transit-proximate locations that 
leverage public land or redevelop underutilized malls and office parks.

 Completion of an affordable housing “pipeline” study, which identified 
approximately 33,000 affordable homes that are currently in predevelopment 
across the region and in need of funding.

 A $5 million Rental Assistance Pilot Program to offer five-year housing subsidies 
to extremely rent-burdened seniors, people with disabilities, and other at-risk 
tenants to prevent homelessness.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
Funding from a potential regional housing bond can support infill development and 
rehabilitation of existing housing stock. Both of these activities are generally accepted to 
mitigate greenhouse gas emissions. 

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
The regional housing bond can potentially provide critical funding to Berkeley’s 
affordable housing initiatives. Berkeley is not eligible for a direct allocation and must 
participate in Alameda County’s expenditure planning. 

This presentation will provide the City Council with the opportunity to understand the 
planning process and opportunities for the proposed bond. Staff will continue to engage 
with Alameda County, local stakeholders, and the public to inform the priorities for the 
County’s expenditure plan. 

CONTACT PERSON
Mike Uberti, Senior Community Development Project Coordinator, HHCS, (510) 
981-5114

Page 6 of 6

Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



1

Page 422



Page 423



2

Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



3

Page 427



Page 428



4

Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



5

Page 438



Page 439



6

Page 440



7

Page 441



Page 442



8

Page 443



9

Page 444



10

Page 445



11

Page 446



12

Page 447



Page 448



13

Page 449



14

Page 450



Page 451



15

Page 452



16

Page 453



17

Page 454



Page 455



18

Page 456



Page 457



19

Page 458



20

Page 459



21

Page 460



Page 461



22

Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



23

Page 465



Page 466



Page 467



Page 468



Page 469



Page 470



24

Page 471



25

Page 472



Page 473



26

Page 474



Page 475



27

Page 476



28

Page 477



29

Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



Page 482



Page 483



Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



Page 492



Page 493



Page 494



Page 495



Page 496



Page 497



30

Page 498



Page 499



31

Page 500



32

Page 501



Page 502



Page 503



Page 504



Page 505



Page 506



33

Page 507



34

Page 508



35

Page 509



Page 510



Page 511



Page 512



Page 513



Page 514



36

Page 515



37

Page 516



Page 517



Page 518



Page 519



38

Page 520



Page 521



39

Page 522



40

Page 523



41

Page 524



42

Page 525



Page 526



43

Page 527



Page 528



44

Page 529



Page 530



45

Page 531



46

Page 532



47

Page 533



48

Page 534



Page 535



49

Page 536



50

Page 537



51

Page 538



Page 539



Page 540



52

Page 541



53

Page 542



54

Page 543



55

Page 544



Page 545



56

Page 546



Page 547



Page 548



Page 549



Page 550



Page 551



57

Page 552



58

Page 553



59

Page 554



Page 555



60

Page 556



Page 557



61

Page 558



Page 559



Page 560



62

Page 561



63

Page 562



64

Page 563



65

Page 564



Page 565



66

Page 566



Page 567



Page 568



Page 569



Page 570



Page 571



Page 572



Page 573



67

Page 574



68

Page 575



69

Page 576



Page 577



Page 578



Page 579



Page 580



Page 581



Page 582



Page 583



Page 584



Page 585



Page 586



Page 587



Page 588



Page 589



Page 590



Page 591



Page 592


	2024-02-13 Agenda - Council
	2024-02-13 Item 01 Amending the Miscellaneous CalPERS Contract to (a) Eliminate PEPRA
	2024-02-13 Item 02 At-Will Designations  Employee Relations Manager and Assistant to the City Attorney
	2024-02-13 Item 03 Lease Agreement  We Wield The Hammer
	2024-02-13 Item 04 City of Berkeley’s 2024 State and Federal Legislative Platform
	2024-02-13 Item 05 Amendments to the Regulations for Alternate Commissioners
	2024-02-13 Item 06 Modifying the 2024 City Council Meeting Schedule.pdf
	2024-02-13 Item 07 Grant Application  National Endowment for the Arts Grant for up to  150,000
	2024-02-13 Item 08 Contract  Masako Miki Public Artwork Commission
	2024-02-13 Item 09 Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled
	2024-02-13 Item 10 Contract  Traditions Behavioral Health for Psychiatry Services
	2024-02-13 Item 11 Contract  CompuCom Systems, Inc. for Professional Services
	2024-02-13 Item 12 Recommendation on Public Safety-Crime Prevention for Women
	2024-02-13 Item 13 RFP for Development of West Berkeley Service Center
	2024-02-13 Item 14 Establishing a Black Arts and Culture District in the Adeline Corridor
	2024-02-13 Item 15 Appeal of Landmarks Preservation Commission Decision
	2024-02-13 Item 16 Dissolution of the Human Welfare and Community
	2024-02-13 Item 17 Small Sites Program Update
	2024-02-13 Item 18 Bay Area Housing Finance Authority and 2024 Regional Affordable Housing Bond
	2024-02-13 Communications



